
CITY OF

fj

Members of the City Council

Cecilia Aguiar-Cuny. Mayor
Bill Biasi, Mayor Pro-Tempore
Harold Anderson

Jesse Loren

Pierre ftteu

ERS
t n t ft

Est. 1875

Winters City Council Meeting
City Council Chambers

318 First Street

Tuesday, October 18, 2016

Joftn W. Donlevy, Jr., City Manager
Ethan Walsh, City Attorney

Nanci Mills. City Oerk

5:45 p.m. - Executive Session

AGENDA

Safe Harbor for Closed Session - Pursuant to Government Code Section
54954.5

Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.8 of the Government Code - Real
Estate Negotiations - Various Property Locations - APN #'s 003-160-062, 003-
160-063, 003-160-064, and 003-160-022 - Real Property Negotiator City
Manager John W. Donlevy, Jr.

6:30 p.m. - Regular Session

AGENDA

PLEASE NOTE - The numerical order of items on this agenda Is for convenience
of reference. Items may be taken out of order upon request of the Mayor or
Councilmembers. Public comments time may be limited and speakers will be
asked to state their name.

Roll Call

Pledge of Allegiance

Approval of Agenda



Winters City Council Agenda
Meeting of October 18. 2016 page - 2 -

COUNCIUSTAFF COMMENTS

PUBLIC COMMENTS

At this time, any member of the public may address the City Council on matters,
which are n^ listed on this agenda. Citizens should reserve their comments for
matter listed on this agenda at the time the item is considered by the Council. An
exception is made for members of the public for whom it would create a hardship
to stay until their item is heard. Those individuals may address the item after the
public has spoken on issues that are not listed on the agenda. Presentations
may be limited to accommodate all speakers within the time available. Public
comments may also be continued to later in the meeting should the time ailotted
for public comment expire.

CONSENT CALENDAR
Ail matters listed under the consent calendar are considered routine and non-
controversial, require no discussion and are expected to have unanimous
Council support and may be enacted by the City Council in one motion in the
form listed below. There will be no separate discussion of these items.
However, before the City Council votes on the motion to adopt, members of the
City Council, staff, or the public may request that specific items be removed from
the Consent Calendar for separate discussion and action. Items(s) removed will
be discussed later in the meeting as time permits.

A. Minutes of the Regular Meeting of the Winters City Council Held on
Tuesday, October 4, 2016 (pp. 5-7)

B. Amendment No. 2 to Larry Walker Associates (LWA) Contract
Agreement No. 15-001 (pp. 8-17)

C. Resolution No. 2016-35, a Resolution of the City Council of the City
of Winters Amending 2012 and 2013 Salary Schedules to Comply
with CalPERS Audit Finding - Administrative Coordinator (pp. 18-
26)

D. Application for Youth Soccer and Recreation Development Program
Grant Funds (pp. 27-30)

E. Purchase of a Compressor for Jack Hammer (pp. 31)
Selection of Consultant for Fee Study and Cost Allocation Plan
(pp. 32-63)

F.

PRESENTATIONS

Certificates of Appreciation Presentation to Local Businesses by
Winters Police Corporal Gordon Brown for Their Support and
Contributions to a Drug Education Program with Winters Police
Department and LAW Publications

City of Winters



Winters City Council Agenda
Meeting of October 18, 2016 page - 3 -

WJUSD Facilities Update by Superintendent Todd Cutler, Ed.D.
(pp. 64-75)

DISCUSSION ITEMS

1. Public Hearing, Introduction and Consideration of Ordinance 2016-
10, an Ordinance of the City Council of the City of Winters to
Approve Various Amendments to Title 17, Zoning, in the Winters
Municipal Code (pp. 76-163)

2. Public Hearing, Introduction and Consideration of Ordinance 2016-
11, an Ordinance of the City Council of the City of Winters to
Approve Various Amendments to Title 19, Code Enforcement, of
the Winters Municipal Code (pp. 164-228)

CITY OF WINTERS AS SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE WINTERS
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

1. Proposed Issuance of Refunding Tax Allocation Bonds (pp. 229-
233)

CITY MANAGER REPORT

INFORMATION ONLY

ADJOURNMENT

I declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing agenda for the October 18,
2016 regular meeting of the Winters City Council was posted on the City of
Winters website at www.citvofwinters.orQ and Councilmembers were notified via
e-mail of its' availability. A copy of the foregoing agenda was also posted on the
outside public bulletin board at City Hall, 318 First Street on October 13. 2016,
and made available to the public during normal business hours.

JJUj
Nafnci G. Mills, Ci C

City of Winters



Winters City Council Agenda
Meeting of October 18. 2016 page - 4 -

Questions about this agenda - Please call the City Clerk's Office (530) 794-6701.
Agendas and staff reports are available on the city web page
www.citvofwinters.ora/administrative/admin council.htm

General Notes: Meeting facilities are accessible to persons with disabilities. To
arrange aid or services to modify or accommodate persons with disability to
participate in a public meeting, contact the City Clerk.

Staff recommendations are guidelines to the City Council. On any item, the
Council may take action, which varies from that recommended by staff.

The city does not transcribe its proceedings. Anyone who desires a verbatim
record of this meeting should arrange for attendance by a court reporter or for
other acceptable means of recordation. Such arrangements will be at the sole
expense of the individual requesting the recordation.

How to obtain City Council Agendas:

View on the internet: www, citvofwinters.org/administrative/admin council.htm
Any attachments to the agenda that are not available online may be viewed at
the City Clerk's Office or locations where the hard copy packet is available.

Email Subscription: You may contact the City Clerk's Office to be placed on the
list An agenda summary is printed in the Winters Express newspaper.

City Council agenda packets are available for review or copying at the following
locations:

Winters Library - 708 Railroad Avenue (Agenda Only)
City Hall - Finance Office -318 First Street
During Council meetings - Right side as you enter the Council Chambers

City Council meetings are televised live on City of Winters Govemment Channel 20 (available to those who
subscribe to cable television) and replayed follovting the meeting.

Wednesday at 10:00 a m

DVDs of City Council meetings are available for review at Winters City Hall

City of Winters



CITY OF

c rr

ERS
o t n i a

Est. 1875

Minutes of the Regular Meeting of the Winters City Council
Held on October 4, 2016

Mayor Cecilia Aguiar-Curry called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m.

Present: Council Members Harold Anderson, Bill Biasi, Jesse Loren, Pierre
Neu and Mayor Cecilia Aguiar-Curry

Absent: None

Staff: City Manager John Donlevy and City Clerk Nanci Mills.

Council Member Neu led the Pledge of Allegiance.

Approval of Aoenda: Motion by Council Member Neu, second by Council
Member Biasi to approve the agenda with no changes. Motion carried with the
following vote:

AYES: Council Members Anderson, Biasi, Loren, Neu. Mayor Aguiar-Curry
NOES: None

ABSENT: None

ABSTAIN: None

CGUNCIiySTAFF COMMENTS

PUBLIC COMMENTS: Wally Pearce of the Winters Senior Foundation reviewed
the Foundation's proposal to celebrate those seniors 90 years of age and older,
advocating for a day in the community dedicated to honoring our older adults.
May was designated as Senior Citizens Month by President Kennedy and was
later renamed Older Americans Month. Wally is recommending the City and the
Senior Foundation co-host an annual event starting in the spring in 2017.

Karen May, 100 Caselli Ct, has lived here only a short time but would like to see
a birthday celebration to honor our older adults.



Winters City Councii Minutes
Meeting of October 4,2016 Page - 2 -

CONSENT CALENDAR

A. Minutes of the Regular Meeting of the Winters City Council Held on
Tuesday, September 6, 2016

B. Minutes of the Regular Meeting of the Winters City Council Held on
Tuesday, September 20, 2016

C. Funding Authorization and Consultant Agreement with Wood
Rodgers for Flood Hazard Evaluation in Northeast Area of City's
General Plan

D. Resolution 2016-33, a Resolution of the City Council of the City of
Winters Approving a Grant Deed for Fire Separation Easement and
Resolution 2016-34, a Resolution of the City Council of the City of
Winters Approving the Interceptor Site Easement Agreement for
Hotel Winters, LLC (Downtown Hotel) Parcel Map #5080

City Manager Donlevy gave an overview. Council Member Anderson asked
about conversations with Cal Trans as they have been the sticking point in the
past on flood issues in regards to Item C.

Motion by Council Member Neu, second by Council Member Anderson to
approve Consent Items A, B, and C. Motion carried with the following vote:

AYES: Council Members Anderson, Biasi, Ldren, Neu, Mayor Aguiar-Curry
NOES; None

ABSENT: None

ABSTAIN: None

Council Member Anderson recused himself for Consent Item D and did not return
to the meeting.

Motion by Council Member Neu, second by Council Member Loren to approve
Consent Item D. Motion carried with the following vote:

AYES: Council Members Biasi, Loren, Neu, Mayor Aguiar-Curry
NOES: None

ABSENT: Council Member Anderson
ABSTAIN: None

PRESENTATIONS

None

City of Winters



Winters City Council Minutes
Meeting of October 4, 2016 Page -3-

DISCUSSION ITEMS

1. None

CITY OF WINTERS AS SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE WINTERS
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

1. None

CITY MANAGER REPORT: Drove members of the Winters Senior Foundation
to the State Capitol last week on one of the City's shuttle buses.

ADJOURNMENT. Mayor Aguiar-Curry adjoumed the meeting at 6:41 p.m.

Cecilia Aguiar-Curry, MAYOR

ATTEST:

Nanci G. Mills, City Clerk

City of Winters



CITY OF

e a

ERS
o t n f a

Est. 1875

CITY COUNCIL

STAFF REPORT

TO:

DATE

Honorable Mayor and Councilmembers

October 18, 2016

THROUGH: John W. Donlevy, Jr., City Manager

FROM: Carol Scianna, Environmental Services Manager

SUBJECT: Amendment 2 to Larry Walker Associates (LWA) Contract Agreement 15-001 in
the Amount not to Exceed $ 18,170.00

RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends approval of Amendment 2 of Agreement 15-001
with Larry Walker Associates in the amount nor to exceed $18,170 for expanded services regarding
the Wastewater Treatment Facilities(WWTF) Master Plan Updates.

BACKGROUND: The City initiated a contract with LWA to update the WWTF Masterplan that
they originally developed in 1996. The plan was subsequently updated in 2007 with the
expectation of new housing developments coming being eminent. The 2007draft proposed
several options for expansion that was expected to be required with the addition of 800 new
homes. However when the housing market declined the draft Masterplan was not finalized.
In 2015 the Highlands housing development began discussions with the City to begin construction
of their project of about 400 homes, LWA was tasked to update the 2007 Masterplan, these efforts
were funded by the developer.
A draft was completed however the City has requested a change of scope namely developing
scenarios with higher population projections of 12,243 to reflect the General Plan, rather than
just the population of 9000 or so, that would be generated with the current homes approved for
development.
Additionally, the City is requiring that effluent from the 800 new homes be directed straight to
the WWTF and not to the East Street Pump Station as the current system operates. These flows
will need to be screened prior to entering the Ponds. LWA was directed to do the preliminary
design for an influent screen to be installed at WWTF, as part of the design process it was
determined through the hydraulic analysis that modifications would be required between the
ponds to allow for full future influent flows. These tasks took the project over budget from the
initial scope by an estimated $3000, which the amended scope addresses. Funding for this project
will coming from the sewer impact fees.



FISCAL IMPACT: Not to exceed $18,170.00



707 Fourth Street. Suite 200
Davis, CA 95616

530,753.6400

530.753.7030 fax

www.lwa.com

LARRY

WALKER

,-iaiSeptember 2, 2016

Ms. Carol Scianna associates

Environmental Services Manager
City of Winters
318 First Street

Winters, CA 95694

Revised Scope of Services for Wastewater Facilities Master Plan Update and
Screening Facility Preliminary Design Technical Memorandum

Dear Ms. Scianna;

Larry Walker Associates (LWA) is pleased to submit this revised scope of services to
the City of Winters (City) to assist the City in updating its Wastewater Facilities Master
Plan (Master Plan) and preparing an Influent Screening Facility Preliminary Design
Technical Memorandum. LWA updated the City's Wastewater Treatment Facilities
Master Plan in August 1996 and subsequently prepared a draft Wastewater Treatment
Facilities Master Plan Update in January 2007. The City requested a further update of
its Master Plan as it plans for urban growth and increased water recycling. LWA
previously submitted a scope of work services to update the City's Master Plan in June
2015. LWA prepared a draft Master Plan update in March 2016.

In January 2016, the City requested that LWA develop a preliminary design technical
memorandum for an influent screening facility. This effort was added as Task 8 to the
original scope of services for the Wastewater Treatment Facilities Master Plan Update.

Following meetings with City staff, the City requested an alternative future population of
12,243 be used to in developing the Master Plan update. The purpose of this revised
scope of services to revise developed scenarios with the higher population projections
for the Master Plan update, present findings from the Master Plan update to the City
Planning Commission and City Council, and conduct a hydraulic capacity analysis of the
ponds as part of the influent screening facility design

Scope of Services

To assist the City with its Master Plan update and influent screening facility design,
LWA proposes the following scope of services.

10



• Task 1. Conduct Kick-Off Meeting
• Task 2. Compile and Review Existing Data and Information
• Tasks. Update Design Criteria for the Wastewater Treatment Facility
• Task 4. Assess Potential Regulatory Requirements
• Tasks. Develop and Evaluate Treatment and Disposal Alternatives
• Task 6. Prepare Wastewater Facilities Master Plan Update
• Task 7. Project Management
• Task 8. Screening Facility Preliminary Design Technical Memorandum
• Task 9. Present Master Plan Update to City Planning Commission and City

Council

Each task is discussed in more detail below.

Taski: Conduct Kick-Off Meeting

LWA will conduct a meeting with City staff to kick-off the project. The purpose of this
meeting is to confirm the project understanding, discuss the project approach and
schedule, identify the project responsibilities and persons of contact, and gather
relevant infonnation or data needed as part of this effort. LWA will prepare an agenda
for the meeting and meeting notes following the meeting.

This task was completed under the prior scope of services, and is not updated in this
proposed scope of services.

Task 2: Compile and Review Existing Data and infonnation

LWA will obtain and review data and information from the City that is applicable to the
Master Plan update. This data and/or information may include, but are not limited to, the
following:

• Current Master Plan

• Wastewater influent and effluent flow and quality
• Design drawings for the Wastewater Treatment Facility
•  Existing water balance
•  Recycled water use agreements
•  Proposed development plans

This task was completed under the prior scope of services, and is not updated in this
proposed scope of services.

Task 3: Update Design Criteria for the Wastewater Treatment Facility

Based on the data and infonnation review, LWA will develop the design criteria for flows
and loadings and level of treatment for future facilities.

In this proposed scope of services, LWA will update the design criteria for flows and
loadings and level of treatment for future facilities to assess a higher projected 2036

11



population of 12,243 compared to a projected 2036 population of 8,800 derived in the
draft March 2016 Master Plan update.

Task 4. Assess Potential Regulatory Requirements

LWA will identify potential regulatory requirements that may affect proposed wastewater
treatment facility upgrades, including, but not limited to permitting requirements and
California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) requirements. LWA will assess potential
future regulatory requirements that may impact the level of treatment required and the
disposal options available.

This task was completed under the prior scope of services, and is not updated in this
proposed scope of services.

Task 5. Develop and Evaluate Treatment and Disposal Alternatives

LWA will develop and evaluate feasible treatment and disposal alternatives that will be
capable of complying with potential future regulatory requirements. The evaluation will
include comparisons of estimated capital and operating costs and non-monetary factors.
Based on the evaluation of alternatives, LWA will select an alternative as the
recommended plan for future treatment and disposal of effluent. The Master Plan
update will include descriptions of the principal features of the recommended alternative
and a proposed implementation schedule.

In this proposed scope of services, LWA will develop, evaluate, and, if necessary,
update feasible treatment and disposal alternatives based on a higher projected 2036
population of 12,243 compared to a projected 2036 population of 8,800 derived in the
March 2016 draft Master Plan update. LWA will analyze the alternatives using the same
methodology that was used in the draft March 2016 Master Plan update and
recommend an alternative and proposed implementation schedule.

Task 6. Prepare Wastewater Facilities Master Plan Update

LWA will prepare a draft Master Plan update for review by City staff. LWA will meet with
City staff to receive and discuss the City's comments. LWA will incorporate the City's
comments and prepare a final Master Plan update.

In this proposed scope of services, LWA will revise the draft Master Plan update that
incorporates a higher projected 2036 population of 12,243 compared to a projected
2036 population of 8,800 derived in the March 2016 draft Master Plan update. LWA will
meet with City staff to receive and discuss the City's comments. LWA will incorporate
the City's comments and prepare a final Master Plan update.

Task 7: Project Atanagemenf

LWA will provide on-going project management, which includes regular communication
with City staff regarding the project schedule, budgets, expenditures and other issues
related to the administration of the contract.

12



To maintain an open line of communication between the City and LWA, LWA staff will
communicate regularly with City staff to update them on the progress of the project. The
City are encouraged to contact LWA at any time during the project with ideas,
questions, or concerns.

In this proposed scope of services, LWA will plan for one meeting or conference call to
provide a project status update.

Task 8: Screening Facility Preliminary Design Technical Memorandum

LWA will coordinate with City staff and the City's design engineer to confirm force main
design and existing site conditions. LWA will develop a preliminary design layout,
including drawings, and sizing for the proposed influent screening facility. LWA will also
consider future expansion of the proposed influent screening facility if future force mains
are connected to ̂ e Wastewater Treatment Facility. LWA will also prepare a
preliminary construction cost estimate for the proposed influent screening facility. LWA
will summarize the preliminary design layout, sizing of the proposed influent screening
facility, and construction cost estimate in a draft Preliminary Design Technical
Memorandum that will be submitted to the City for review. LWA will meet with City staff
to receive and discuss comments on the draft Preliminary Design Technical
Memorandum. LWA will incorporate comments received from City staff and prepare a
final Preliminary Design Technical Memorandum that will be submitted to the City.

During the development of the influent screening facility preliminary design, LWA
discovered a constraint in the pond system at the Wastewater Treatment Facility that
reduced the maximum hydraulic capacity. As part of the influent screening facility
preliminary design technical memorandum. LWA will conduct a hydraulic capacity
analysis and provide recommendations for modifying the pond system in order to
increase the hydraulic capacity of the Wastewater Treatment Facility to meet the
projected influent flows resulting from the introduction of new and planned force mains
in the collection system.

Task 9: Present Master Plan Update to City Planning Commission and City Council

LWA will prepare Powerpoint presentations and conduct up to four (4) total
presentations for the City Planning Commission and City Council to present the findings
and recommendations. LWA will receive comments and answer questions from the City
Planning Commission and City Council during the presentations.

Project Schedule

A proposed project scheduled, based on receiving a Notice to Proceed by July 1. 2015,
is presented in the table below. The schedule is contingent on receiving timely data,
comments and feedback from the City.

13



Task

No.
Task

Anticipated Schedule
for Completion

1 Conduct KIck-Off Meeting Completed

2 Compile and Review Existing Data and information Completed

3 Update Design Criteria for Wastewater Treatment Faciiity October 2016

4 Assess Potential Regulatory Requirements Completed

5 Develop and Evaluate Treatment and Disposal Altematives October 2016

6 Prepare Wastewater Facilities Master Plan Update

-  Draft Master Plan Update November 2016

-  Final Master Plan Update December 2016

7 Project Management Ongoing

6 Screening Faciiity Preliminary Design Technical Memorandum Completed

9 Present Master Plan Update to City Planning Commission and
City Council

December 2016

(1) The anticipated schedule of completion assumes that LWA receives a Notice to Proceed by
October 1,2016

Cost Estimate

All work in the original scopes of services for the Master Plan Update and the influent
screening facility preliminary design had a total budget of $39,070. The proposed cost
estimate to update the Master Plan with a higher population estimate, present findings
of the Master Plan update to the City Planning Commission and City Council, and
conduct a hydraulic capacity analysis of the WWTF pond system is $18,170.

All work will be conducted on a time and materials basis for a cost not to exceed a

revised total budget of $57,240 according to LWA's current billing rates, which are
adjusted annually on July 1. A breakdown of the anticipated work effort is presented in
the following table.

We look fonward to the opportunity to work with the City and respond to your needs in
an efficient and effective manner. Please feel free to contact me should you have any
questions or concerns regarding this scope of services and/or cost estimate.

Sincerely,

QtKmcut£au

Gorman Lau, P.E.
Senior Engineer

cc: Alan Mitchell. Ponticello Enterprises Consulting Engineers, Inc.

14



Task
No. Task

Ordinal Cost
gftthiulH

(06111/15)

CostEsSnete
ARendment

(1201/15)

Propo»dCost
PkHhuIo

Araendnsnt

((S02/1B)

Revised Cost
Estimate

1 Conduct Kick-Off Meeting $960 _

$960
2 Compile and Review Existing Data and

Information
$3,580 -

- $3,560

3 Upddlti Design Criteria forVtfostewater
TreabnentFadli^

$2,250
- $440 $2,690

4 Assess Potential Regulatory Requirements $2,250 - _ $2,250
5 Develop and Evaluate Treatment and Disposal

AHematives
$10,890 - $2,640 $13,530

6 Prepare Wfestewater FacOities Master Plan Update

-  Draft Master Plan Update $7,790 - $4,920 $12,710
RnaJ Master Plan Update $3,110 _ $1,230 $4,340

7 Project Management $1,520 $880 $2,400
8 oweening Fadlity Preliminary Design

Technical Memorandum
- $6,720 $2,700 $9,420

g Present Masta* Plan Update to City Planning
Commission and City Coundl

- - $5,360 $5,360

Total $32,350 $6,720 $18,170 $57,240

15



ATTACHMENT A

2016-2017 LWA Billing Rate Sheet

16



LARRY WALKER ASSOCIATES

Rate Schedule
Effective July 1, 2016 - June 30,2017

PERSONNEL

Project Staff
Allison Lewis
Denise Walton
Adriana Stovall
Michelle Benson
Kathryn Walker
Olin Applegate
Katrine Arredondo
Jenny Bayley
Suzanne Brovwi
Antonia Estevez-Olea
Nima Jabbari
Adriel Leon
Amir Manl

Danielle Moss

Steve Maricle

Jeff Walker
Elizabete Yin

Bryant Alvarado
Alina Constantin^cu
Reni Keane-Dengel
Airy Krich-Brinton
Mike Marson
Giles Pettrfor
Hope M. Taylor

Senior St^
Krisrine Comeillie
Diana Engle
Laura Foglia
Paul Hartman

Gorman Lau
Will Lewis
Amy Storm
Mike Trouchon
Rachel Warren

Associate

Denise Conners
Betsy Elzufbn
Sandy Mathevi/s

Mitch Mysliwieo
Claus Suverkropp

Principal
Karen Ashby
Ashli Cooper Oesai
Brian Laurenson

Chris Minton
Mack Walker

Tom Grovhoug

Rate $/Hour

$ 60
$ 80
$ 90
$145

$145
$160
$160
$160
$160
$160
$160
$160
$160
$160
$175
$175

$175
$195
$195
$195
$195
$195
$195

$195

$220
$220
$220
$220
$220
$220
$220

$220
$220

$245
$245

$245

$245

$245

$270
$270
$270
$270
$270"
$295

REIMBURSABLE COSTS

Travel:

Local mileage
Transportation
Auto rental

Fares

Room

Subsistence

Current IRS rate

Acteal expense
Actual commercial rate

Acteal e^^nse
Actual expense
$48 per day

The rate fbr each meal as follows:
Breakfast

Lunch

Dinner

Incidentals

$ 9

$13

$21
$ 5

Report Reproduction and Copying:

Actual outside expense
Per black and white copy,
In-house 5°-°®
Per color copy, in-house $0.89
Per binding, in-house $1.95

Special Postage and Express Mall:

Actual expense

Otiier Direct Costs:

Actual expense

Daily Equipment Rental Rates:

All single parameter field meters

(pH. EC. D.O., Turbidity)
Multi-parameter field meters
Peristaltic Sampling Pump
Protessional grade GPS unit
Digital Row Meter
Digital Fluorometer
Multi-parameter Data Sonde

(Vi^h telemetry)
- first day
- each additional day

Subcontractors:

Actual expense plus 10% fee

$25 each
$35
$35
$25

$45
$45

$200
$ 40

Note: hi Charged when ovemlght lodging Is required.

Revised 8/16/16

17



CITY OF

e r/ o

ERS
t ft t a

Eit. 1875

TO: Honorable Mayor and Council Members

DATE: October 18, 2016

THROUGH: John W. Donlevy, Jr., City Manager

FROM: Nanci G. Mills, Director of Administrative Services/City Clerk*'^'^
SUBJECT: Resolution No. 2016-35 Amending Salary Schedules - CalPERS Audit

Finding - Administrative Coordinator

RECOMMENDATION:

Adopt Resolution 2016-35 amending 2012 and 2013 Salary Schedules to comply with
CalPERS Audit Finding.

BACKGROUND:

In August of 2015 CalPERS began an Audit of the City of Winters. The primary objective
was to determine whether the City of Winters complied with applicable sections of the
California Government Code, California Public Employees' Pension Reform Act of 2013,
California Code of Regulations and its contract with the CalPERS.

One of the findings was that when the City reclassified the Administrative Coordinator to
the Mid-Management Association the 4% Education Incentive was to discontinue as it was
not part of the Mid-Management MOU, however the City continued to pay it. It was
discovered by the City and built in to the salary range for this position in 2014.

Staff has amended the attached salary schedules to meet the requirements. There are
no changes to salaries/rate of pay within any of the other salary schedules.

FISCAL IMPACT:

None

18



CITY OF

e t/

ERS
o t ft t e/

Est. 1875

Resolution 2016-35

Amending Salary Schedules - CalPERS Audit Finding

Administrative Coordinator Position

19



City of Winters

Effective January 1, 2012

BENEFIT UNIT & POSITION

MM Accounting Technician*

Ml Administrative Assistant (v)*
MM Administrative Coordinator - Police Dept.*
Ml Buiding Official*

F  Captain - Fire**

E  City Clerk*

E  City Council*

E  Mayor*

CON City Manager*

Ml Community Services Officer*

PO Corporal**

DH Director of Administrative Services*

DH Director of Community Development*
DH Director of Financial Management*

M  Environmental Services Manager*
C  Executive Asst. to City Manager*
F  Engineer-Fire**

F  Fire Chief**

F  Firefighter**

MM Grant Writer*

DH Housing Manager*

PO Lieutenant (v)**

Ml Maintenance Worker-I*

Ml Maintenance Worker - II*

Ml Maintenance Worker - III - Senior*

Ml Maintenance Worker - IV - Field Supervisor*

C  Management Analyst - Administration*

MONTHLY SALARY STEPS

B C D

ANNUAL SALARY

$3,065 $3,218 $3,379 $3,548 $3,725 $36,780 $44,700
$3,192 $3,352 $3,520 $3,696 $3,881 $38,304 $46,572
$5,841 $6,133 $6,440 $6,762 $7,032 $70,092 $84,384
$5,356 $5,624 $5,905 $6,827 $6,510 $64,272 $78,120
$4,910 $5,156 $5,414 $5,685 $5,969 $58,920 $71,628

$80 $960 $960
$180 $2,160 $2,160
$180 $2,160 $2,160

$10,398 $124,776 $124,776
$2,649 $2,781 $292 $3,066 $3,219 $31,788 $38,628
$4,379 $4,588 $4,807 $5,037 $5,279 $52,548 $63,348
$6,855 $7,198 $7,558 $7,936 $8,333 $82,260 $99,996
$6,855 $7,198 $7,558 $7,936 $8,333 $82,260 $99,996
$6,855 $7,198 $7,558 $7,936 $8,333 $82,260 $99,996
$5,583 $5,862 $6,155 $6,463 $6,786 $66,996 $81,432
$3,114 $3,269 $3,432 $3,604 $3,784 $37,368 $45,408
$4,379 $4,588 $4,807 $5,037 $5,279 $52,548 $63,348
$6,855 $7,198 $7,558 $7,936 $8,333 $82,260 $99,996
$4,179 $4,388 $4,607 $4,837 $5,079 $50,148 $60,948
$3,871 $4,065 $4,268 $4,481 $4,705 $46,452 $56,424
$6,855 $7,198 $7,558 $7,936 $8,333 $82,260 $99,996
$5,685 $5,969 $6,267 $6,580 $6,909 $68,220 $82,908
$2,205 $2,315 $2,431 $2,553 $2,681 $26,460 $32,172
$2,917 $3,063 $3,216 $3,377 $3,546 $35,004 $42,552
$3,545 $3,722 $3,908 $4,103 $4,308 $42,540 $51,696
$4,311 $4,527 $4,753 $4,991 $5,241 $51,732 $62,892
$3,871 $4,065 $4,268 $4,481 $4,705 $46,452 $56,460

ro
o



City of Winters

Effective January 1,2012

BENEFIT UNIT& POSITION MONTHLY SALARY STEPS ANNUAL SALARY

B

MM Management Analyst - Community Development*
MM Management Analyst-Finance*

DH Police Chief**

PO Police Officer**

M  Public Works Superintendent*

Ml Records Clerk II*

Ml Recreation Coordinator (v)*

S  Sergeant**

E  Treasurer*

$3,871 $4,065 $4,268 $4,481 $4,705 $46,452 $56,460
$3,871 $4,065 $4,268 $4,481 $4,705 $46,452 $56,460
$6,855 $7,198 $7,558 $7,936 $8,333 $82,260 $99,996
$4,179 $4,388 $4,607 $4,837 $5,079 $50,148 $60,948
$5,583 $5,862 $6,155 $6,463 $6,786 $66,996 $81,432
$2,493 $2,618 $2,749 $2,886 $3,030 $29,916 $36,360
$2,271 $2,385 $2,504 $2,629 $2,760 $27,252 $33,120
$4,910 $5,156 $5,414 $5,685 $5,969 $58,920 $71,628

$25 $300 $300

TEMPORARY PART-TIME EMPLOYEE HOURLY WAGES

Hourly Rate/Ranee

After School Coordinator

After School Instructional Aide

After School Site Coordinator

After School Teacher - Certified

Cashier

Community Center Attendant

Intern

33.00-38.00

12.00-15.00

20.00-22.00

33.00-38.00

8.25

7.75-16.00

9.00-35.00

ro



City of Winters

Effective January 1,2012

TEMPORARY PART-TIME EMPLOYEE HOURLY WAGES

Hourly Rate/Ranee

Lifeguard I

Lifeguard li

Lifeguard III

Lifeguard IV

Pool Manager

Project Management

Recreation Leader I

Recreation Leader II

Recreation Leader III

Recreation Leader IV

Recreation Director

Supervising Lifeguard

9.25

9.75

11.25

11.75

17.25

9.00-35.00

8.25

8.75

9.25

9.75

13.25

14.25

Key to Benefit Codes

C = Confidential

CON = Contract

DH = Department Head

F=Fire

E = Elected

M = Manager

MM = Mid Manager

Ml = Miscellaneous

PT = Part Time

S = Sergeants

(v) = Vacant

• Employer pays PERS Misc. Member Contribution of 7%

•* Employer pays PERS Safety Member Contribution of 9%

ro
ro



BENEFIT UNIT & POSITION

City of Winters

Effective July 2013

MONTHLY SALARY STES ANNUAL SALARY

MM Accounting Technician*

Ml Administrative Assistant (v)*

MM Administrative Coordinator - Police Dept.*
Ml Buiding Official*

F  Captain - Fire***

E  City Clerk*

E  City Council*

E  Mayor*

CON City Manager*

Ml Community Services Officer*

PO Corporal**

DH Director of Administrative Services*

DH Director of Community Development (v)*
DH Director of Financial Management*
M  Environmental Services Manager*

C  Executive Asst. to City Manager (v)*
F  Engineer - Fire (v)***

F  Fire Chief***

F  Firefighter***

MM Grant Writer (v)*

DH Housing Manager*

PO Lieutenant (v)**

Ml Maintenance Worker -1*

MI Maintenance Worker - II*

Ml Maintenance Worker - III-Senior*

Ml Maintenance Worker - IV - Field Supervisor*
C  Management Analyst - Administration*

A a C D E

$3411 $3,267 $3,430 $3,601 $3,781 $37,332 $45,372
$3,240 $3,402 $3,572 $3,751 $3,938 $38,880 $47,256
$5,929 $6,225 $6,536 $6,863 $7,206 $71,148 $86,472
$5,436 $5,708 $5,994 $6,293 $6,608 $65,232 $79,296
$5,432 $5,704 $5,989 $6,289 $6,603 $65,184 $79,236

$80 $960 $960
$180 $2,160 $2,160
$180 $2,160 $2,160

$2,689
$10,554 $126,648 $126,648

$2,823 $2,964 $3,113 $3,268 $32,268 $39,216
$4,860 $5,093 $5,337 $5,594 $5,864 $58,320 $70,368
$7,306 $7,671 $8,055 $8,458 $8,880 $87,672 $106,560
$7,306 $7,671 $8,055 $8,458 $8,880 $87,672 $106,560
$7,306 $7,671 $8,055 $8,458 $8,880 $87,672 $106,560
$5,667 $5,950 $6,248 $6,560 $6,888 $68,004 $82,656
$3,240 $3,402 $3,572 $3,751 $3,938 $38,880 $47,256
$4,814 $5,045 $5,287 $5,542 $5,809 $57,768 $69,708
$7,306 $7,671 $8,055 $8,458 $8,880 $87,672 $106,560
$4,614 $4,845 $5,087 $5,342 $5,609 $55,368 $67,308
$3,929 $4,126 $4,332 $4,548 $4,776 $47,148 $57,312
$7,306 $7,671 $8,055 $8,458 $8,880 $87,672 $106,560
$6,339 $6,656 $6,988 $7,338 $7,705 $76,068 $92,460
$2,238 $2,350 $2,467 $2,591 $2,720 $26,856 $32,640
$2,961 $3,109 $3,264 $3,427 $3,599 $35,532 $43,188
$3,598 $3,778 $3,967 $4,165 $4,374 $43,176 $52,488
$4,376 $4,594 $4,824 $5,065 $5,319 $52,512 $63,828
$3,929 $4,126 $4,332 $4,848 $4,776 $47,148 $57,312

ro
CO



City of Winters

Effective July 2013

BENEFIT UNIT & PQSITIQM MONTHLY SALARY STFS ANNUAL SALARY

D

MM

MM

DH

PO

M

Ml

Ml

Ml

S

E

Management Analyst - Community Development'
Management Analyst - Finance*

Police Chief**

Police Officer**

Public Works Superintendent*

Records Clerk I*

Records Clerk II*

Recreation Coordinator (v)*

Sergeant**

Treasurer*

$3,929 $4,126 $4,332 $4,848 $4,776 $47,148 $57,312
$3,929 $4,126 $4,332 $4,848 $4,776 $47,148 $57,312
$8,026 $8,427 $8,849 $9,291 $9,756 $96,312 $117,072
$4,660 $4,893 $5,137 $5,394 $5,664 $55,920 $67,968
$5,667 $5,950 $6,248 $6,560 $6,888 $68,004 $82,656
$2,302 $2,417 $2,538 $2,665 $2,798 $27,624 $33,576
$2,530 $2,657 $2,790 $2,929 $3,076 $30,360 $36,912
$2,305 $2,420 $2,541 $2,668 $2,802 $27,660 $33,654
$5,475 $5,748 $6,036 $6,338 $6,654 $65,700 $79,848

$25 $300 $300

TEMPORARY PART-TIME EMPLOYEE HOURLY WAGES

Hourly Rate/Ranee

PT After School Coordinator 33.00-38.00
PT After School Instructional Aide 12.00-15.00

PT After School Site Coordinator 20.00-22.00

PT After School Teacher - Certified 33.00-38.00

PT Cashier 9.25

PT Community Center Attendant 9.00-16.00
PT CSO Records

18.12

PT Fire Secretary 18.28

PT Intern 9.00-35.00

ro
4^:;.



City of Winters

Effective July 2013

TEMPORARY PART-TIME EMPLOYEE HOURLY WAGES

Hourly Rate/Ranee

PT Lifeguard I

PT Lifeguard II

PT Lifeguard III

PT Lifeguard IV

PT Pool Manager

PT Project Management

PT Recreation Leader I

PT Recreation Leader II

PT Recreation Leader III

PT Recreation Leader IV

PT Recreation Director

PT Supervising Lifeguard

10.25

10.75

12.25

12.75

18.25

9.00-35.00

9.25

975

10.25

10.75

14,25

15.25

Key to Benefit Codes

C = Confidential

CON = Contract

DH = Department Head

F = Flre

E = Elected

M = Manager

MM = Mid Manager

Ml = Miscellaneous

PT = Part Time

S - Sergeamts

(v) = Vacant

* Employer pays PERS Misc. Member Contribution of 7%

*• Employee pays PERS Safety Member Contribution of 9%

••• Employer pays Pers Safety Member Contribution of 9%

ro



Passed and adopted this IS"" day of October, 2016 by the following vote:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

ABSENT:

ATTEST:

Nanci G. Mills, City Clerk

CITY OF WINTERS

Cecilia Aguiar-Curry, Mayor

26



CITY OF

€ a o i n ( a

Est. 1875

STAFF REPORT

TO: Honorable Mayor and Councilmembers

DATE: 10/18/2016

THROUGH: John W. Donlevy, Jr., City Manager

FROM: Ron Karlen, Grant Manager

SUBJECT: APPLICATION FOR YOUTH SOCCER AND RECREATION
DEVELOPMENT PROGRAM GRANT FUNDS

RECOMMENDATION:

Approve grant application for soccer field project through State of California Department of
Parks and Recreation in the amount of $195,000.00 to cover construction costs of a new
soccer field located at the previous landfill site off Moody Slough Road.

BACKGROUND:

The State of California Department of Parks and Recreation awards grants each year for
California Youth Soccer and Recreation Development Program. Winters has identified a
need to add an additional soccer field due to the increased number of children
participating in soccer today and deterioration of existing soccer fields. This grant, if
awarded, will provide funding to construct of a new soccer field utilizing new advanced
technologies. Artificial turf materials allow for water conservation, reduced maintenance,
safety to players, durability and year round play without weather compromise.

The City owns the twenty five acres previously known as the landfill located off Moody
Slough Road and this has been identified as a location available to construct a soccer
field. This project will utilize approximately three acres to develop the soccer field and
parking spaces.

FISCAL IMPACT:

The grant funding will cover associated costs of installing a new soccer field including site
preparation, grading and installing soccer field material. The grant proposal is in the

27



amount of $195,000.00. This is the estimated cost for construction, installation of a new
soccer field, site work, drainage, parking area and fencing. There Is no matching dollar
amount required to be paid by the city of Winters. However, the grant gives a higher point
rating for covering non-construction costs associated with the project such as the planning
process, permits, bidding, project management and construction documents. This can be
managed internally and allow additional points to be added to the grant creating a better
possibility of acceptance.

28



RESOLUTION NO. 2016-36

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WINTERS

APPROVING THE APPLICATION FOR YOUTH SOCCER
AND RECREATION DEVELOPMENT PROGRAM GRANT FUNDS

WHEREAS, the State Department of Parks and Recreation has been delegated the responsibility
by the Legislature of the State of California for the administration of the Youth
Soccer and Recreation Development Program, setting up necessary procedures
governing the application; and

WHEREAS, said procedures established by the State Department of Parks and Recreation
require Applicant to certify by resolution the approval of application before
submission of said application to the State; and

WHEREAS, successful Applicants will enter into a contract with the State of California to
complete the Grant Scope project;

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Winters as
hereby:

Approves the filing of an application for the Youth Soccer and Recreation Development
Program Grant, and

1. Certifies that said Applicant has or will have available, prior to commencement of any
work on the project included in this application, the sufficient funds to complete the
project; and

2. Certifies that if the project is awarded the Applicant has or will have sufficient funds to
operate and maintain the project, and

3. Certifies that the Applicant has reviewed, understands, and agrees to General Provisions
contained in the contract shown in the Grant Administration Guide; and

4. Delegates the authority to the City Grants Manager to conduct all negotiations, sign and
submit all documents, including, but not limited to applications, agreements,
amendments, and payment request, which may be necessary for the completion of the
Grant Scope; and

5. Agrees to comply with all applicable federal, state and local laws, ordinances, rules,
regulations and guidelines.

29



PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Winters, on this 1 day of
October, 2016, by the following vote:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

ATTEST:

Nanci G. Mills, City Clerk

Approved as to form:

Ethan Walsh, City Attorney

Cecilia Aguiar-Curry, MAYOR

30



CITY OF

€ tt

ERS
o i n t a

Est. 1875

CITY COUNCIL

STAFF REPORT

TO: Honorable Mayor and Council Members

DATE: October 18, 2016

THROUGH: John W. Donlevy, jr., City Manager

FROM; Eric Lucero, Public Works Superintendent

SUBJECT: Purchase of a Compressor for Jack Hammer

RECOMMENDATION: Council approval for the purchase of a new Compressor for the Public
Works Department.

BACKGROUND: As of January 1, 2017, the Compressor for the Jack Hammer that the Public
Works Department currently uses will be out of compliance with Air Quality Control Board. Staff
has received four bids from different companies on similar products and has decided that the MQ
Power 185 CFM is the best quality product within our budget. TTiis purchase has already been
budgeted for in the 2016-17 budget.

FISCAL IMPACT: Total amount not to exceed $25,000 for this equipment which has previously
been budgeted and approved by Council.

31



CITY OF

r er o ? n ( f/

Est. 1875

CITY COUNCIL

STAFF REPORT

TO: Honorable Mayor and Councilmembers

DATE: October 18, 2016

THROUGH: John W. Donlevy, Jr., City Manager

FROM: Shelly A. Gunby, Director of Financial Management

SUBJECT: Selection of Consultant for Fee Study and Cost Allocation Plan

RECOMMENDATION:

Accept the proposal from Matrix Consulting Group for performing a Comprehensive Fee Study
and Cost Allocation Plan , and authorize the City Manager to execute a professional services
contract in the amount of $33,000.00 for the for these services.

BACKGROUND:

By law, the fees the City of Winters charges for services rendered to the public must be based on a
cost recovery basis, the City is not allowed to "profit" from charging fees in excess of the cost of
providing the services. This is unlike being a private business owner, that can charge whatever fee
they believe their service is worth to their customers.

The cost recovery system is valid not only for external customers of the City of Winters (The
Public) but also for the internal customers of the City, for example, one department providing a
service for another department or fund within the City. The most common, for example, would
be the services the Finance Department provides to the Water and Sewer Funds for billing,
maintaining the customer data, and receipting procedures, as well as payroll and the processing of
invoices for paying other costs of the Water and Sewer Funds. The Water and Sewer Funds and
their employees are customers of the Finance Department.

To provide transparency and a separation of interests, Staff has determined that it is best to have a
Consultant provide the required analysis and resulting Fee Structure and Cost Allocation Plan for
the City of Winters.

The last Cost Allocation Plan was completed in 2004, prior to a lot of the reorganization of
staffing, and the dissolution of the Redevelopment Agency. The last Comprehensive Fee Study
was completed in 2008, again, before a lot of reorganization of staffing and the recession.

32



The City of Winters sent out an RFP (Request for Proposal) to approximately 25 firms in
September 2016, with a due date of September 30, 2016. The City received 5 responses, and from
those five, staff selected 2 firms to interview. Based on the result of those interviews and checking
the references indicated by the firms, Staff feels that the selection of Matrix Consulting Group is
an appropriate fit for working with the staff to reach the goal of properly determining the cost of
providing services to all customers of the City of Winters.

nSCAL IMPACT:

Increase in the Central Service Overhead account of $33,000.00 which will then be allocated to
the various funds and departments based on the current cost allocation plan. General Fund
Portion estimated to be $12,635.70, Street Fund #$1,468.50, Water $8,025.60, Sewer $7,236.90
and the City Wide Assessment District $3,633.30

ATTACHMENTS:

Proposal From Matrix Consulting Group.

33



Proposal to Prepare a Full Cost Allocation Study
and User Fee Study

CITY OF WINTERS, CALIFORNIA

matrix^
consulting group

34



TABLE OF CONTENTS

September 29, 2016

Page

1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

2. QUESTIONNAIRE / RESPONSE TO SCOPE OF WORK

A. COMPANY AND GENERAL INFORMATION

B. QUALIFICATIONS AND EXPERIENCE OF THE FIRM

C. QUALIFICATIONS AND EXPERIENCE OF PROPOSED PROJECT

TEAM

D. QUESTIONS / RESPONSE TO SCOPE OF SERVICES

E. FEES - Provided under separate cover

F. REFERENCES

G. IMPLEMENTATION SCHEDULE

1

3

3

5

9

14

26

28

35



CITY OF WINTERS, CALIFORNIA
Proposal to Prepare a Full Cost Allocation Study and User Fee Study

1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The City of Winters wishes to evaluate their current user fees and rates and cost
allocation methodologies to ensure that they reflect current costs and processes, as well
as assess cost recovery levels. The following sections provide a brief summary of our
proposed approach, experience, and proposed project team.

A. PROJECT APPROACH

The Matrix Consulting Group has significant experience working with a wide
variety of cities performing cost of service analyses. The following points highlight the
key components of our approach and methodology to meet the needs of the City of
Winters.

Fee Structure and Existing Service Levels: By documenting current services
being provided by each department including the current and ideal service levels,
the potential for new service areas or revenue resources can be explored.

Cost Recovery Analysis: Utilizing volume statistics and estimates from previous
fiscal years, the. maximum potential revenue that can be achieved will be
calculated. This revenue will be reduced based on federal or state restrictions or
City policy limitations, providing the maximum recoverable revenue. This analysis
helps the City evaluate any policies that are prohibiting its cost recovery levels.

Identification of Indirect Costs: Review of current City services to determine
the key providers of support services to other departments will allow the City to
track on a department / division basis total direct and indirect cost of services.

Documented and Defensible Cost Allocation: Applying generally accepted
accounting principles and 0MB guidelines to allocation methodologies will result
in a defensible cost allocation plan which can be used to develop overhead rates
for reimbursement purposes.

Annual Updates: Recommendations will be provided regarding developing
targeted cost recovery levels on a fee-by-fee basis, on a Department level, and
ultimately Citywide. These recommendations will also include mechanisms to
allow for annual internal updates of fees and the cost allocation plan as the
organization develops and changes.

Overall, the results of this study will provide staff with the documentation and
tools needed to implement fee structures and identify indirect costs that allow for
maximum cost recovery.

Matrix Consulting Group Page i

36



CITY OF WINTERS, CALIFORNIA
Proposal to Prepare a Full Cost Allocation Study and User Fee Study

B. FIRM EXPERIENCE

The Matrix Consulting Group has significant experience working with a wide
variety of jurisdictions performing cost of service analyses, and organizational and
process audits. User fee and cost of service study clients of the Matrix Consulting
Group within the last five years include the following:

User Fee Studies

Allegan County (Ml)
Fresno (OA)
Kissimmee (FL)
Los Angeles (OA)
Madera (OA)
Marin County (CA)
Oceanside (CA)
San Diego (CA)
San Francisco (CA)
San Jose (CA)
Santa Barbara County (CA)
Sonoma County (CA)
Sunnyvale (CA)

Cost Allocation Plans

Central Contra Costa San. District (CA)
Cooper County (FL)
Elk Grove (CA)
Fairfield (CA)
Long Beach (CA)
Rockville (MD)
Sacramento Public Library (CA)
Santa Cruz Resource Cons. Dist. (CA)
San Mateo (CA)
Union Sanitary District (CA)
Vacaville (CA)
Watershed Conservation Authority (WCA)
Willits (CA)

Combined Cost and

Fee Studies

Austin (TX)
Fort Lauderdale (FL)
Huntington Park (CA)
Los Altos Hills (CA)
Maui County (HI)
Manhattan Beach (CA)
Pasadena (CA)
Petaluma (CA)
Richmond (CA)
San Bernardino (CA)

C. PROPOSED PROJECT TEAM

This section of the proposal provides a description of our proposed project team
members and their role in the study. The team members for this project are all full-time
staff of the firm and no subcontractors have been proposed for this study. The specific
roles of each proposed project team member are outlined below:

Courtney Ramos: Financial Services Manager for the Matrix Consulting Group,
and will serve as the Project Manager.

Khushboo Hussain: A lead consultant with the Matrix Consulting Group, and
will serve as the Lead Project Analyst.

Daniel Garcia: A consultant with the Matrix Consulting Group and will serve as
the Data Analyst.

Each member of our proposed project team has successfully managed or
participated in similar studies to the County's requested scope of work.

Matrix Consulting Group Page 2

37



CITY OF WINTERS, CALIFORNIA
Proposal to Prepare a Full Cost Allocation Study and User Fee Study

2. QUESTIONNAIRE / RESPONSE TO SCOPE OF
WORK

The City of Winters has provided a specific set of questions relating to their
requested scopes of work. The following sections outline the requested information and
provide our response.

A  COMPANY AND GENERAL INFORMATION

(1) Company name and address

Matrix Consulting Group
201 San Antonio Circle, Suite 148
Mountain View, CA 94040

(2) Letter of Transmittal signed by an Individual authorized to bind the
respondent stating that the respondent has read and will comply with all
terms and conditions of the RFP.

The following page provides a letter of transmittal including the above requested
information.

(3) General Information about the primary contact who would be able to
answer questions about the proposal. Include name, title, telephone
number and email address of the Individual.

Primary Contact Richard Brady

Title President

Phone Number (650) 858-0507

Email Address

Physical Address 201 San Antonio Circle. Suite 148
Mountain View, CA 94040

Matrix Consulting Group Page 3

38



matrix^
consulting group

September 29, 2016
Ms. Tracy Jensen
Management Analyst
City of Winters
318 First St.

Winters, OA 95694

Dear Ms. Jensen:

The Matrix Consulting Group is pleased to have this opportunity to submit a
proposal to prepare a Full Cost Allocation Study and User Fee Study for the City of
Winters. This proposal will not only demonstrate our exceptional skills and experience
required to meet the City's needs for this study, but also establish the additional value of
choosing a firm like the Matrix Consulting Group.

Our firm understands the urgency and importance of maximizing revenue
recovery, and is committed to helping our clients create and establish defensible
policies and procedures that meet current and future needs. The Matrix Consulting
Group stands apart from other firms for the following reasons:

•  Experience In fee for service studies: Our firm and consulting team have
extensive experience conducting cost of service / fee studies for municipalities.
Current and recent California clients have included Cupertino, Elk Grove,
Fairfield, Livermore, Redwood City, Vacaville, San Mateo, San Pablo and Willits.

On-site presence and accessibility: The Matrix Consulting Group will help the
City reach its goals because we understand its issues and needs, and are
committed to serving our clients as a small firm providing a personal, hands-on
approach. Our office in Mountain View facilitates this commitment.

Project team qualifications: We have proposed a highly qualified and
experienced team for this engagement, which includes Courtney Ramos, our
Financial Services Manager. Ms. Ramos has led all of the recent financial
services projects performed by the firm.

For questions about this proposal or for contract negotiation please contact me,
the firm's President, at rbradv@matrixcg.net. or at the letterhead contact points. As
President of the firm, I have the authority to negotiate on the firm's behalf.

Matrix Consulting woup
Richard Brady
President

201 San Antonio Circle. Suite 148 • Mountain View, OA 94040 ■ 650.858.0507 • 650.917.2310 fax
California, Illinois, Massachusetts. Texas, Washington

39



CITY OF WINTERS, CALIFORNIA
Proposal to Prepare a Full Cost Allocation Study and User Fee Study

B  QUALIFICATIONS AND EXPERIENCE OF THE FIRM

a. Describe your firm's history and organizational structure. Include the size
of the firm, location of offices, years in business, organizational chart,
name(s) of owner(s) and principal parties, and number of position titles of
staff.

(1) Firm History

The Matrix Consulting Group specializes in providing analytical services to local
governments to assist them in providing highly responsive, efficient, and effective
services to their residents. Our market and service focus is financial, management,
staffing and operations analysis of local government. Our firm's history and composition
is summarized below:

While we were founded in 2002, the principals and senior staff of our firm have
worked together in this and other consulting organizations as one team for
between 10 and 30 years.

Our only market and service focus is financial, management, staffing and
operations analysis of local government.

Our firm maintains offices in California (where we are incorporated), Illinois,
Massachusetts, Pacific Northwest (two offices in Oregon and Washington) and
Texas.

We are proud of our service philosophy based on detailed analysis, as well as
our customized fee strategy and partnership with our clients. This has resulted in high
levels of implementation of our project recommendations - exceeding 85%. Our
performance has resulted in many clients who have engaged us for multiple studies
based upon their satisfaction with our services and our commitment to exceeding their
expectations.

(2) Organizational Structure

The chart on the following page provides an overview of the full time staff for
each of our five offices.

Matrix Consulting Group Page 5

40



CITY OF WINTERS, CALIFORNIA
Proposal to Prepare a Full Cost Allocation Study and User Fee Study

Matrix Consulting Group

Corporate Organizalton

Headquarter Office

Mountain View, CA

Tammy
Nicholson

A::-; M.r

Senior

Manager

Courtney
Ramos

Manager.

Khushboo
Hussain

Sf Consultant

Daniel Gnica

Consultant

U.i.iy Refieau

Ian Brady
Sr Consultant

Midwest Regional Office ■Southern Regional Offic.
St Louis Metro B Dallas Metro

Robert Finn
Senior

Manage

LXiv .,1 ; t-'C- Taiiy L!.-'Ws

S' Cu"?..''ant

LiRobin Haley
Senioi

Uana..m

by title:
The following table provides a breakdown of Matrix Consulting Group employees

1  Function Number of
Employees

President 1
Vice President 2
Senior Manaqer 3
Manager 2
Sr. Consultant/Consultant 6
Administrative Manaqer 1

The principals of our firm are the President and one Vice President (a second
emeritus Vice President is no longer an officer of the firm), as noted below.

1  Title Name j
President & CFO Richard Bradv
Vice President & Secretary

■  ̂

Alan Pennlnqton

Matrix Consulting Group Page 6

41



CITY OF WINTERS. CALIFORNIA
Proposal to Prepare a Full Cost Allocation Study and User Fee Study

b.

c.

d.

What is the primary business of the parent company and I or affiliates?

The Matrix Consulting Group does not have a parent company or any
subsidiaries / affiliate organizations. As stated above, our primary business focus
Is financial, management, staffing and operations analysis of local government

Which office(s) of your organization will have primary responsibility for
managing the user fee study?

The User Fee Study will be managed and staffed out of our headquarters in
Mountain View, OA.

What is your firm's experience conducting Full Cost Allocation Plans, and
User Fee Studies? Identify the studies performed by your firm in the last
five years.

The primary focus of our financial studies is to provide documented and
defensible cost recovery studies, and most importantly ensure our clients understand
the analysis and how to implement results. The following table lists financial studies
performed within the last five years in which members of our proposed project team
participated as a project manager or analyst.

User Fee Studies

Allegan County (Ml)
Asheville (NO)
Austin (TX)
Fresno (OA)
KIssimmee (FL)
Los Angeles (OA)
Madera (OA)
Oceanside (OA)
San Bernardino County (CA)
San Diego (CA)
San Francisco (CA)
San Jose (CA)
Santa Barbara County (CA)
Sunnyvale (CA)

Cost Allocation Plans

Central Contra Costa San. District (CA)
Cooper City (FL)
Elk Grove (CA)
Fairfield (CA)
Long Beach (CA)
Santa Cruz County RCD (CA)
Rockville (MD)
Sacramento Public Library (CA)
San Marcos (TX)
San Mateo (CA)
Union Sanitary District (CA)
Vacaville (CA)
Watershed Conservation Authority (CA)
Willits (CA)

User Fee & Cost Allocation

Austin (TX)
Fort Lauderdale (FL)
Huntington Park (CA)
Los Altos Hill (CA)
Manhattan Beach (CA)
Maui County (HI)
Pasadena (CA)
Petaluma (CA)
Richmond (CA)
San Bernardino (CA)
San Pablo (CA)
Santee (CA)
Seal Beach (CA)
Temecula (CA)

The focus of these projects, and all of our studies, is to enhance the efficiency
and effectiveness of cost recovery policy and procedures for local government. We
have had a high success rate of implementation of our user fee and cost allocation
plans.

e. Which office(s) of your organization will have primary responsibility for
managing the Cost Allocation Plan?

The Cost Allocation Plans will be managed and staffed out of our headquarters in
Mountain View, CA.

Matrix Consulting Group Page 7

42



CITY OF WINTERS. CALIFORNIA
Proposal to Prepare a Full Cost Allocation Study and User Fee Study

f. What is your firm's experience preparing Fuli Cost and 0MB 2 CFR Part 225
Cost Allocation Plans? Identify the Plans prepared by your firm in the last
five years. Include the type of plan prepared (i.e. Full Cost; 0MB 2 CFR Part
225, etc.)

The following table lists Cost Allocation studies performed within the last five
years in which members of our proposed project team participated as a project manager
or analyst. Jurisdictions for whom an 0MB 2 CFR Part 225 plan was developed have
been bolded.

Cost Allocation Plans
Central Contra Costa San. District (CA)
Cooper City (FL)
Elk Grove (CA)
Fairfield (CA)
Long Beach (CA)
Santa Cruz County RCD (CA)
Rockville (MD)
Sacramento Public Library (CA)
San Marcos (TX)
San Mateo (CA)
Union Sanitary District (CA)
Vacaville (CA)
Watershed Conservation Authority (CA)
Wiilits (CA)

User Fee & Cost Allocation

Cupertino (CA)
Fort Lauderdale (FL)
Huntington Park (CA)
Los Altos Hill (CA)
Manhattan Beach (CA)
Maui County (HI)
Pasadena (CA)
Petaluma (CA)
Richmond (CA)
San Bernardino (CA)
San Pablo (CA)
Santee (CA)
Seal Beach (CA)
Temecula (CA)

9- Comment on other areas that may make your firm different from your
competitors.

The Matrix Consulting Group does not just provide financial services consulting.
We also provide management consulting services to local government agencies As a
result, we understand the basis behind the fees.

The Matrix Consulting Group has extensive experience in providing evaluations
of development review and permitting functions for local government entities. These
services have been provided as part of organization-wide studies as well as specific
studies focusing solely on development review and permitting. The following table
provides studies conducted in the last five years (with California clients bolded).

Arlington (VA)
Dayton (OH)
DeKalb County (GA)
Flower Mound (TX)
Glendale (CA)
Half Moon Bay (CA)
Hilton Head Island (SC)

KIssimmee (FL)
Lee's Summit (MO)
Los Angeles (CA)
Manatee County (FL)
Montpelier (VT)
Orland Park (IL)

Pasadena (CA)

Raymore (MO)

Rosevllte (CA)
San Francisco (CA)

Springfield (MA)

Sunnyvale (CA)
Sunrise (FL)

West Hollywood (CA)

Matrix Consulting Group
Page 8

43



CITY OF WINTERS, CALIFORNIA
Proposal to Prepare a Full Cost Allocation Study and User Fee Study

The Matrix Consulting Group has also conducted over 200 management studies
of public works departments, Including engineering. Recent examples include:

Beverly Hills (OA)
Brockton (MA)
Cedar Rapids (lA)
Denton (TX)
Deltona (FL)
Falmouth (MA)
Goodyear (AZ)

imperial Irrigation District (OA)
Oakland (OA)
Orland Park (IL)
Palo Alto (CA)
Niles (IL)

Sacramento (CA)
San Ciemente (CA)

San Luis Obispo (CA)
Scarsdale (NY)

Springfield (MA)

Sunnyvale (CA)
Tomales Village CSD (CA)
United Nations (NY)

White Plains (NY)

Additionally, our experience encompasses a wide variety of organization-wide
studies that have encompassed overall organizational analysis. We have conducted
over 75 organization-wide studies in our careers. The following table provides a
sampling of these studies:

Albuquerque, New Mexico
Avon, Connecticut
Barstow, Caiifornia
Brattieboro, Vermont
DeKaib County, Georgia
Deltona, Florida
Franklin Township, NJ
Fort Morgan, Colorado
Goodyear, Arizona

Greenbelt, Maryland
Half Moon Bay, Caiifornia
Hanford, California
Johnson County, Kansas
Lathrop, California
Monroe County, Michigan
Monrovia, California
Montpelier, Vermont
North Miami Beach, Florida

Orland Park, Illinois
Rancho Mirage, California
Rancho Palos Verdes, California
Raymore, Missouri
Rosevlile, California
Spokane, Washington
Sunnyvale, California
Walnut Creek, Caiifornia
Waltham, Massachusetts

Our experience with management and organizational studies gives us a unique
understanding of the process and workflows associated with the various services
provided by departments, both permit and non-permit related. This information is
incorporated into our financial studies and used to better outline and define services and
service level assumptions, as well as strengthen the overall results.

C  QUALIFICATIONS AND EXPERIENCE OF PROPOSED PROJECT TEAM

a. Describe the qualifications of staff proposed for the assignment,
position(s) in the firm, and types and amount of equivalent experience. Be
sure to include any municipal agencies they have worked with in the past
three years and their level of involvement.

The team members for this project are ail full-time staff of the firm and no
subcontractors have been proposed for this study. The specific roles of each proposed
project team member are outlined below:

Courtney Ramos: Financial Services Manager for the Matrix Consulting Group,
and will serve as the Project Manager As the project manager, Ms. Ramos will
be the primary contact for the project and will provide her expertise by leading
interviews, discussing draft reviews, and presenting final results.

Khushboo Hussain: A lead consultant with the Matrix Consulting Group, and

Matrix Consulting Group Page 9

44



CITY OF WINTERS, CALIFORNIA
Proposal to Prepare a Full Cost Allocation Study and User Fee Study

will serve as the Lead Project Anaiyst. Ms. Hussain will participate in interviews
and coordinate necessary data collection for the financial analysis, as well as
develop customized excel models.

Daniel Garcia: A consultant with the Matrix Consulting Group and will serve as
the Data Analyst Mr. Garcia will assist with collection and compilation of
necessary data, as well as provide analytical support.

Each member of our proposed project team has successfully managed or
participated in similar studies to the City's requested scope of work. It is important to
note that all of our project team members are staff to the Matrix Consulting Group. We
propose no subcontractors for this assignment. Our approach has clear advantages,
Including:

•  All of our team are equally highly trained professional consultants, not individuals
who have other competing career paths.

All of our team have a consistent empirical project philosophy based on a 'fact
based' approach to consulting.

All of our team members are part of a single scheduling system, which
maximizes their availability for assignments under contract.

In their totality, our project approaches and business practices have led to high
rates of implementation in successful studies. The established team dynamic of the
proposed project team helps facilitate communication and efficient work practices. We
would commit all of the identified individuals if selected.

Summaries of the experience of our proposed project team are provided in
following points:

COURTNEY RAMOS: Since joining the firm In 2004, Ms. Ramos has managed
and assisted with a number of cost allocation plan, user fee, management,
operations, and staffing analyses for our California and national clients. Most
recently, Courtney managed or significantly assisted on fee studies for the
following jurisdictions: Manhattan Beach (CA), San Bernardino County (CA),
Kissimmee (FL), Asheville, (NC) Austin (TX), and Pasadena (CA). She also
managed or played a significant role in cost allocation plan development for
California cities including Long Beach, Vacaville, Fairfield, and Willits. In addition
to her analytical work on client projects, Ms. Ramos developed the Cost
Allocation Model used by the Matrix Consulting Group.

KHUSHBOO HUSSAIN: Ms. Hussain has been a part of our Financial Services
Division for more than four years. Most recently, Ms. Hussain has assisted with
financial management studies for the following jurisdictions: Long Beach (CA),
Pasadena (CA), Manhattan Beach (CA), San Bernardino County (CA), Austin

Matrix Consulting Group Page 10

45



CITY OF WINTERS, CALIFORNIA
Proposal to Prepare a Full Cost Allocation Study and User Fee Study

D. QUESTIONS / RESPONSE TO SCOPE OF SERVICES

a. Describe the methods by which your firm will fulfill the Full Cost Recovery
Study and User Fee Study requested in the Scope of Services (Section III).
In responding to the Scope of Services, please be thorough in describing
your firm's methodology for completing Full Cost Recovery Studies and
User Fee Studies, and how your firm will address all services identified in
the Scope of this request.

This section of our proposal provides an overview of the general project
approach and the proposed project methodology that will be used to meet the scope of
services presented in the City's RPR.

(1) Project Approach

The Matrix Consulting Group works with a wide variety of clients ranging from
small towns to major metropolitan cities in over 40 states across the U.S. Our staff are
experienced and effective project managers with proven track records of meeting
project schedule and budget requirements. Every project is unique, and is managed
according to the following essential project approaches:

Reputation for effective project management: Our clients value the personal
attention, enthusiasm, responsiveness, timely delivery, and expertise provided on
their projects. This attention to project management is demonstrated in our work
approach, as shown in the detailed work plans provided for each project.

Communication with the City: At the onset of the project, a detailed schedule
will be developed outlining key deadlines and deliverables, and regular progress
reports will be provided to the City's Project Manager. Our project team is known
for its availability to City staff and for providing prompt responses to questions or
issues that develop both during and after the project.

City staff support: The Matrix Consulting Group is mindful of the City's current
workload and our approach is to work with our clients' staff to minimize project
impacts through strong project management, clear expectations of our roles
versus staff roles, and careful as well as realistic scheduling.

Cross-trained project team: Our project team's background in both financial
and management analysis provides them with a unique understanding of the
work processes and service level assumptions behind cost and fees for service.

Workshop data gathering approach: The facilitation of data gathering
workshops allows the project team to obtain more accurate time and service level
data, it also provides staff with the knowledge needed to explain how results
were derived and the assumptions behind the analysis.

Matrix Consulting Group Page ̂ 4

46



CITY OF WINTERS, CALIFORNIA
Proposal to Prepare a Full Cost Allocation Study and User Fee Study

Excel-based analytical models: Our technical cost plan and user fee models
are based in Microsoft Excel, which provides our clients with the ability to adapt
and update them from year to year as their organization changes. Using Excel as
the platform for our models eliminates costs and additional training associated
with software products and licensing.

These approaches have led to high rates of implementation for all of our proiect
results. ^

The following sections provide our proposed scope of work to complete the
studies requested by the City of Winters including specific tasks, project deliverables
and City resource requirements,

(2) Full Cost Plan

The City of Winters is looking to assess the true cost of providing various Indirect
services to departments and funds, and review current overhead rates to ensure an
accurate accounting of costs. This study will develop a full cost allocation plan that will
allow the City to ensure it is accurately accounting for the true cost of providing various
services. Along with preparing accurate and defensible plans, Winters also wishes to
have the ability to continue to update the plans internally from year to year.

Task 1 Discuss Study Objectives

Prior to our initial on-site meeting, the Matrix Consulting Group will provide
Winters with a list of initial data requirements for the study. This will allow our project
team to review this information thoroughly in preparation for initial discussions with
management and department staff.

The project team will then meet with City staff to further clarify the intended goals
and purpose of the engagement, thus beginning the customization of the structure of
the allocation model to meet the City's goals and objectives for the study.

Once goals and objectives have been clarified and outlined the project team will
conduct a kick-off presentation to staff and member agencies regarding the scope,
methodology, and detailed timeline for the project. Any internal or external stakeholders
may be invited at the City's discretion. Discussions will include:

Review of the City's specific needs and critical issues surrounding development
and implementation of the cost allocation plan.

Opportunities for improvement and restructuring of previous cost allocation plan
(2006), and/or review and discussion of existing cost allocation methodologies.

Discussion of the uses of a cost allocation plan, as well as concerns or issues
that should be addressed during the development of the plan.

Matrix Consulting Group ^5

47



CITY OF WINTERS, CALIFORNIA
Proposal to Prepare a Full Cost Allocation Study and User Fee Study

Project Deliverable - MCG

List of basic data requirements for the Study
Kick-Off presentation to appropriate staff and
member agencies
On-site initial meeting with Executive staff to
review goals, objectives, and project
management plans

City Services Required

Basic data requirements for the study as
requested by the Matrix Consulting Group
(staffing, salary, budget, etc.)
Attendance at kick-off presentation and initial
Executive staff meeting
Designate City project management
representative

Estimated Hours: 2 hours for the Finance Department, and approximately 30 minutes for each
attendee of the kick-off presentation and Executive staff meeting.

Task 2 Interview Staff and Gather Data

To structure a custom cost allocation model, our project team would perform the
following tasks;

Review and discuss the accounting (fund and organizational levels) and staffing
structure of the City, as well as current fiscal year actual or budget information.

Meet with each administrative services department or other defined department,
to identify its major services and document the most reasonable allocation basis
of these costs to its benefiting departments, funds, and activities. The following is
a sample flowchart visually representing the outcome of these discussions, the
first level is the Central Service Department, the second level is the identified
service category, and the third level is the basis by which costs will be allocated:

HUMAN

RESOURCES

Personnel Recruitment Worker's Comp

# of Employees
per Dept

#of

Recruitments
per Dept

# of Claims
per Dept

Discuss alternative allocation procedures, including possible outcomes and
potential impacts of each method.

Discuss options and impacts of how certain staff are budgeted and allocated.

Matrix Consulting Group
Page 16

48



CITY OF WINTERS, CALIFORNIA

1  Project Deliverable - MCG City Services Required I
Staff interviews

•  Data collection for the structure, functions,
costs and allocation bases needed to
complete the first draft of the Plan

•  Attendance at interviews

Provide consultant with data as requested
Review and discussion of consultant's initial
interpretation of the data

Estimated Hours: Approximately 2 to 3 hours for each administrative function in the study

Task 3 Structure and Prepare Draft Custom Full Cost Allocation Plan Model

Based upon units of service identified in Task 2, allowable administrative or other
indirect costs are allocated to each benefiting City department, operating unit or fund. At
this point the project team would begin customizing the Cost Plan model in order to
meet the City's specified needs, including;

•  Ensuring methodologies and assumptions comply with Federal regulations and
general accounting principals.

•  Providing the ability to add or remove direct or indirect costs as future needs and
programs change.

Customizing cost allocation summary schedules and narratives in a format that
best allow the City to update and apply them prospectively for future budgets.

Develop justifiable internal and external overhead rates for reimbursement
purposes either through user fees or federal and state grants.

The draft Cost Allocation Plan will provide clear documentation regarding the
basis for allocations, and the methodologies applied to achieve the plan's final result.
The Draft Cost Allocation Plan will be discussed and reviewed with each participating
department as well as Executive staff.

1  Project Deliverable - MCG City Services Required

•  Delivery and discussion of the Draft Full Cost
Allocation Plan and indirect rates

•  Draft narrative report that explains the
analysis

Review the Plan and provide requests for
changes or points of discussion to the
consultant

Estimated Hours: Approximateiy 2 hours for each administrative function in the study

Task 4 Finalize and Present the Full Cost Allocation Plan

Upon City review and acceptance of the revised Cost Allocation Plan, the project
team will prepare and provide to the City a final electronic version of the plan, including
all necessary supporting documentation. Along with presenting the Cost Allocation Plan

Matrix Consulting Group
Page 17

49



CITY OF WINTERS, CALlFORNtA
Proposal to Prepare a Full Cost Allocation Study and User Fee Study

to the City's management group and City Council, at the City's discretion, the project
team would present the plan to stakeholders or receivers of cost in order to ensure
understanding and consensus regarding the methodologies and assumptions used in
the plan.

The Matrix Consulting Group will also be available to staff during and after the
project should the need arise to help defend the Cost Allocation plan as a result of any
audits or challenges.

Project Deliverable - MCG

One to two rounds of revisions to finalize the
Full Cost Allocation plan
One (1) unbound and Five (5) Bound copies
of the Final Full Cost Allocation Plan and e-
version of the analytical model, as well as a
Final narrative report that explains the
analysis in Microsoft Word.
Discussion and advice on implementation.

City Services Required

Review and approve final Full Cost Allocation
plan

Estimated Hours: Approximately 1 hour for each administrative function in the study.

Task 5 Provide Cost Plan Analytical Summary Table and Model, as Well as
Training for City Staff

The City wishes to have the ability to update the final version of the Cost
Allocation Plan, including the ability to add, revise or remove direct and indirect costs so
the plan can be easily adapted to a range of activities both simple and complex.

Our technical cost plan model, produced in Microsoft Excel, provides the ability
for the City to adapt and continuously update the cost allocation plan from year to year
as the organization changes. While the model is structured in Excel, the technical
model is proprietary and for internal use by City staff only. By having our model based
in Excel, the requirements for software training, cost of new software products, updates,
licensing or other additional support, would be minimized.

After the final draft of the cost allocation plan is approved, at the discretion of City
staff, the project team will meet with and train designated City employees on use of the
Excel model. Staff will be provided with initial training that includes: a step-by-step
PowerPoint presentation; a User's Manual which explains key concepts and defines
basic terms; and a customized update checklist of data and information that needs to be
entered. While staff training typically takes about four hours, the Matrix Consulting
Group is committed to supporting City staff well after project completion, including
answering questions and providing model support, for no additional costs.

Matrix Consulting Group
Page 18

50



CITY OF WINTERS, CALIFORNIA

1  Project Deliverable - MCG City Services Required 1
•  Computer based summary table of the final

version of the Cost Allocation Plan and
Technical Model
Four (4) hours of on-site training for
appropriate Finance Department staff.

•  Attend training session with Matrix Consulting
Group

Estimated Hours: Training attendance-4 hours

(3) User Fee Study

The City of Winters is looking to update their current fee schedule to better reflect
and incorporate process alterations or efficiencies that have occurred in the last few
years, as well as account for current service costs associated with fee related services.
This study will not only allow the City to ensure that their fees are in compliance with
Propositions 218 and 26, but also identify current cost recovery levels, and subsidies,
and provide recommendations for increasing fees, and outlining implementation
strategies for annual updates.

Task 1 Determine and Review Initial Documentation

The project team will provide Winters with a written "Data Collection List"
outlining documents and information needed prior to our first onsite visit. This data
request typically includes the following items;

Current Fiscal Year adopted budget for all Departments and Divisions involved in
the study.

•  Revenue reports for all Departments and Divisions involved in the study.

•  List of all budgeted personnel by Department / Division.

List of all current fees being charged by Winters to be included in the analysis.

Before our first on-site visit, we will review this information to familiarize
ourselves with strengths, weaknesses and opportunities for improvement related to the
City's existing fee structure. In addition, we will familiarize ourselves with the budgetary
and staffing structures relevant to fees for service.

1  Project Deliverable - MCG City Services Required

List of basic data requirements for the Study •  Basic data requirements for the Study as
listed by the Matrix Consulting Group {staffing,
salary, budget, etc.)

Estimated Hours: 1-2 hours for Finance

Matrix Consulting Group Page 19

51



CITY OF WINTERS, CALIFORNIA
Proposal to Prepare a Full Cost Allocation Study and User Fee Study

Task 2 Project Initiation - Establish the City's Goals and Objectives for the
Study, and Identify Trends and Plans Which Impact Cost Recovery
Analysis and Policy.

To effectively analyze and present the full cost of providing City services, it is
important that the project team develops an understanding of key issues which impact
and shape the City's service delivery and cost recovery policies. To develop this
perspective and customize the structure of the project, we plan to do the following:

Conduct an initial meeting with the City's management staff to solidify the exact
parameters of the study.

Develop a detailed project management plan, including timelines and associated
deliverables.

•  Conduct discussions regarding the City's current fee structure and any potential
changes (e.g. valuation-based fees vs. square footage model).

•  Identify current cost recovery policies or established subsidies.

As a "user fee" study, the Matrix Consulting Group does not propose to evaluate
any fines, taxes, utility rates, or impact fees. Services and activities included in the study
are those that are defined specifically by an estimate of staff time.

1  Project Deliverable - MCG City Services Required

•  On-site meeting with City management
involved in or impacted by the Study

•  Project Management Plan

Designated project management
representative
Approval of work plan as provided by the
Matrix Consulting Group

Estimated Hours: 0.5 hours per executive staff member attending the meeting

Task 3 Develop a Schedule of Current and Potential Fees for Service

Current, as well as potential fees and charges will be identified and documented.
Meetings with each department will identify the areas of greatest potential cost recovery,
and structure and expand existing fee schedules for both optimum cost recovery and
fairness and equitability to the applicant for services. Potential areas for discussion
would include streamlining or expanding the fee schedule for ease of use by the end
user or evaluating if current deposit based fees cover projected service costs.

At this time, the project team will request volume statistics to be used for staff
utilization and cost/revenue comparisons later in the analysis.

Matrix Consulting Group Page 20

52



CITY OF WINTERS, CALIFORNIA

1  Project Deliverable - MCG City Services Required

On-slte meeting to discuss and revise fee
structures for each department

•  Thorough review of existing documentation
and analyses that support the Department's
current fee structure and operations

•  Participation in discussion of existing and
proposed fee items for the analysis
Review, comment, and approval of fee
structure report prepared by the Matrix
Consulting Group.

Estimated Hours: 3 hours per department

Task 4 Conduct Time and Activity Data Gathering Workshops

The project team will conduct a total of two workshops to gather time and activity
estimates for each service Included In the study, interviewing key personnel from each
department and analyzing the various activities being performed within it that are both
revenue and non-revenue generating. The following flowchart shows an example of the
steps involved in processing a permit and the staff and time associated with each step.

Routing

Permit Tech

• 15 min

Permit Tech

• 10 min

Engineer
• 1 hr

Final Review
m

^ • Engineer I
I  * 30 min |

Permit Tech

• 15 min

As the flowchart above shows, basic process steps in application / permit
processing will be documented and provided in the Departmental detail for each
department represented in the study.

1  Project Deliverable - MCG City Services Required

•  Facilitation of two-days of meetings related to
available net hour calculations, documentation •
of service levels,

•  1-2 iterations of review to achieve a
defensible and reasonable allocation of staff
time to fee and non-fee activities

Attendance at workshop meetings
Provision of follow up data or discussion as
needed

Estimated Hours: 3-7 hours per department

Task 5 Perform a Total Cost Analysis

The Matrix Consulting Group's costing model is built based on the City of
Winter's operations, budget detail and intended uses for the results. This method is a
customized approach, specific to each jurisdiction, for cost analysis of user fee services.
This costing method uses time and annual activity level data to establish the cost of
providing services on both a unit and annual level. Once the time spent for a fee activity
is determined for each individual or position, the team uses its fee and rate software to

Matrix Consulting Group
Page 21

53



CITY OF WINTERS. CALIFORNIA
Proposal to Prepare a Full Cost Allocation Study and User Fee Study

apply applicable City costs to the calculation of the full cost of providing each service.
The following chart describes the typical costs considered as applicable to fees.

Direct

(Salaries,
Benefits, and
allowable

dept.
exenditures)

Dept
Overhead

(Dept. Admin /
Mgmt e.g.
supplies,

utilties, etc.)

Citywide
Overhead

(Costs
associated

with Central

Services such
as Payroll. HR,

etc.)

Plans,
Policies,

etc.

(Technology,
General Plan

Update, etc.)

User

Fee

Resulting costs are presented on a unit and annual level, and are compared to
the existing fee schedule and revenue reports. City of Winters will obtain information
about cost recovery surpluses and deficits on both a detailed (per unit) and global
(annualized) level, as well as an understanding of cost components for each service (i.e.
direct cost, indirect cost, technology cost, etc.)

1  Project Deliverable - MCG City Services Required

•  Detailed documentation of current charges
versus the actual cost of providing services
from both a cost per unit and annual cost
perspective

•  Provision of follow up data or discussion as
needed

Estimated Hours; 1-3 hours per department

Task 6 Analysis of Recoverable Revenue

Utilizing each department's volume and workload data, the project team will
analyze potential and actual recoverable revenue. This will help the City understand
how workload volume impacts revenue and cost subsidies. While potential revenue can
be identified, recoverable revenue is dependent upon the following factors:

Current policies and legal restrictions, which limit the City's ability to increase
fees and thereby revenue recovery.

•  Economic and revenue impacts of proposed and recommended fee levels and
methodologies, including compliance with policies and fee affordability for
recreation classes or small projects and applications.

These factors influence the actual recoverable revenue of a department and
directly influence the self-sustainability of a department / division. City staff can use this
information to shape or alter current or future City policies on cost recovery.

Matrix Consulting Group Page 22

54



CiTYOF WINTERS, CALIFORNIA
Proposal to Prepare a Full Cost Allocation Study and User Fee Study

Project Deliverable - MCG

Discussion of internal and external policies
limiting fee increases
Analysis of potential and actual recoverable
revenue

City Services Required

Provide documentation regarding current City
policies

Attendance at meetings related to discussion
of revenue results

Estimated Hours; 2-4 liours per department

Task 7 Conduct a Market Rate Survey to Similar Jurisdictions

The project team will work with the City to Identify at least 5 comparable
jurisdictions in Yolo County and elsewhere in the Sacramento Valley targeted for the fee
comparison survey. We will also develop the survey tools and work with each
Department to identify the most appropriate fee items in the Department for
benchmarks. Then, we will administer the survey, collect comparative data, conduct the
comparison, and document the results. The following graph provides an example of how
comparative survey results for Building Fees would be presented;

$8,000
$7

$6

$5

$4,
$3,

$2,

$1.

.000

,000

000

000

000

000

000

$-

Single Family Home - New
Permit and Plan Check Fees

■li.ll.-I
c

3
o

o

O

@5 8
^ cc
o

b
Q.

E
o
o

CM

o
Q.

E
o
O

b
Q.

E
o
O

U)

o u
a. a
E £
o o
o O

'Plan Check

'Permit

Market surveys do not provide adequate or objective information about the
relationship of a jurisdiction's costs to its fees, therefore, it is recommended that
information contained in the market comparison of fees be used as a secondary
decision-making tool, rather than as a tool for establishing price points for services.

Project Deliverable - MCG

Survey of fees in similar jurisdictions
Written comparative summarv of the results

City Services Required

Review of proposed jurisdictions and list of
comparable fees to be included in the survey

Estimated Hours: 1 hour per division or program

Matrix Consulting Group Page 23

55



CITY OF WINTERS. CALIFORNIA
Proposal to Prepare a Full Cost Allocation Study and User Fee Study

Task 8 Review / Revise the Fee Study Results with Departments and City
Management

Because the analysis of fees for service Is based on estimates and information
provided by City staff, It is extremely Important that all participants are comfortable with
our methodology and with the data they have provided. Once the departments agree
that the analysis reflects the reasonable costs of providing services, the project team
will present the results to City management. Management will have an opportunity to
review the results.

The project team will address Implementation strategies that consider both policy
issues and goals for optimum cost recovery. While it is generally desirable to eliminate
any subsidies, discussions regarding the feasibility of raising fees based on political
climate, legal restrictions, and social and economic consequences must occur.

1  Project Deliverable - MCG City Services Required

•  Approval of analytical results at the
Department and City management levels

•  Formulation of cost recovery
recommendations and associated revenue
impacts

Review of final analytical model
documentation

•  Attendance at meetings related to discussion
of results and economic policy implications

*  Follow up data or discussion as needed

Estimated Hours: 1-3 hours per department

Task 9 Prepare a Final User Fee Study Report

Upon conclusion of the fee study, we will prepare a detailed report that
surrimarizes the results of each of the previous work tasks described above. This report
will include the following;

A succinct executive summary discussing the study, the methodology, and the
results.

A narrative describing the services Included in the study, as well as any revenue
enhancement and operational recommendations specific to your organization
and based on our extensive experience with hundreds of jurisdictions, as well as
key decision making points to be considered.

Appendices that compare existing and potential cost recovery on a unit and
annual basis by department.

The report will be reviewed, revised and finalized with Department and City
management.

Matrix Consulting Group Page 24

56



CITY OF WINTERS. CALIFORNIA
Proposal to Prepare a Full Cost Allocation Study and User Fee Study

Project Deliverable - MCG

Preparation and approval of the Final City-
wide User Fee Study report
One (1) unbound and Five (5) Bound copies
of the final report along with delivery of one
(1) PDF file and One (1) Word file.
Delivery of technical model.
Detailed back-up documentation for each
department included in the study.

City Services Required

Review and approval of Final Report drafts.

Estimated Hours: 1 hour per reviewer

Task 10 Present the Final Report to the City Council

The presentation of results to City officials and/or stakeholders Is critical to the
success of the overall engagement. Because the product from the study is often
controversial, the objective of this final step is to present a succinct summary that
provides decision makers with key information. The Matrix Consulting Group will attend
and present the Study to the Council and the Finance and Investment Committee.
Additional meetings can be arranged at cost.

1  Project Deliverable - WICG City Services Required

Presentation of Study results to City Council
and Finance and Investment Subcommittee

•  Preparation discussion with the consultant
and review of any presentation materials
required for Board meetings
Preparation of Citv Staff Reoort

Estimated Hours: 12 Estimated Hours: 4 hours Finance Department

Task 11 User Fee Software Model and Training

The City of Winters wishes to have the ability to update the final version of the
service cost analysis, including the ability to add, revise or remove direct and indirect
costs, or apply an annual cost factor to calculate fee increases in future years.

Our technical fee model, produced in Microsoft Excel, provides the ability for the
City to adapt and continuously update user fees from year to year as the organization
changes. While the model is structured in Excel, the technical model is proprietary and
for internal use by City staff only. By having our model based in Excel, the requirements
for software training, cost of new software products, updates, licensing or other
additional support, would be minimized.

After the final draft of the fee study is approved, at the discretion of Departmental
staff, the project team will meet with and train designated City employees on use of the
Excel model. Staff will be provided with initial training that includes: a step-by-step
PowerPoint presentation; a User's Manual which explains key concepts and defines

Matrix Consulting Group Page 25

57



CITY OF WINTERS. CALIFORNIA
Proposal to Prepare a Full Cost Allocation Study and User Fee Study

basic terms; and a customized update checklist of data and information that needs to be
entered. While staff training typically takes about four hours, the Matrix Consulting
Group is committed to supporting City staff well after project completion, including
answering questions and providing model support, for no additional costs.

Project Deliverable - MCG

Technical User Fee Model
Four (4) hours of on-slte training for
appropriate Finance Department staff.

City Services Required

Attend training session with Matrix Consulting
Group

Estimated Hours: Training attendance-4 hours

b. Provide a statement of the service(s) that differentiate your firm from other
respondents.

As noted in part seven of the Qualifications and Experience of the Firm section of
our proposal, the Matrix Consulting Group provides management, staffing, and process
analysis to local government agencies. This analysis provides our staff with a more in-
depth understanding of the services provided by local jurisdictions, as well as the
processes and time associated with performing these duties. As such, our project team
members are able to begin projects with a greater understanding of the services
provided by departments, and are better equipped to work with staff to ensure all
processes are included in the analysis, and ensure that time associated with specific
steps is in line with comparable jurisdictions. It is critical to talk to our client references
about this - we serve our government clients as a personal service.

F. REFERENCES

a. Provide a list of the municipal agencies for which the respondent has
conducted a Full Cost Recovery Plan and a User Fee Study within the past
three years.

The following table lists the agencies for which the proposed project team has
provided Cost Allocation or User Fee Study services in the last three years.

User Fee Studies

Ashevllle (NO)
Austin (TX)
Kissimmee (FL)
Los Angeles (CA)
Madera (CA)
Sunnyvale (CA)

Cost Allocation Plans

Central Contra Costa San. District (CA)
Elk Grove (CA)
Fairfieid (CA)
Livermore (CA)
Long Beach (CA)
Santa Cruz County RCD (CA)
San Mateo (CA)
Vacaville (CA)
Watershed Conservation Authority (CA)
Willlts (CA)

User Fee & Cost Allocation

Cupertino (CA)
Fort Lauderdale (FL)
Manhattan Beach (CA)
Maui County (HI)
Pasadena (CA)
San Pablo (CA)

Matrix Consulting Group Page 26

58



CITY OF WtNTERS, CALIFORNIA
Proposal to Prepare a Full Cost Allocation Study and User Fee Study

b. Provide the following information for three projects that are similar in size
and scope to the project requested by this proposal:

a) Name, address, and telephone number of the agency
b) Time period for the project
c) Brief description of the scope of the review
d) Recommended procedures
e) Reference contact name and telephone number

The following section provides five references for recent projects, which our firm,
as well as the Project Manager and proposed project team, has worked on which have
similar scopes of work and project deliverables.

1  Client Client Contact Services Provided

Cupertino,
California

Jacqueline Guzman
Assistant to the City Manager
(408) 777-1322

JacaueIineG(®cuDertino.ora

• Full Cost Allocation Plan

• 0M8 Compliant Cost Plan
• Citywide User Fee Study
FY 15-16

CAP & Fee Technical Models

Manhattan Beach,
California

Steve Charelian

Revenue Services Manager
(310) 802-5555

scharelianOcitvmb.info

• Full Cost Allocation Plan

• 0MB Compliant Cost Plan
• Citywide User Fee Study
FY 14-15

VacavMIe,
California

Connie Donovan

Assistant to the City Manager
(707) 449-5103

cdonovan(a)citvofvacaville.com

• Full Cost Allocation Plan

FY 11-12

• Development Services User Fee
Study (Building. Planning,
Engineering, Fire, Utilities)
FY15-16

above:

The following points provide further project descriptions for the projects listed

Cupertino: The Matrix Consulting Group worked with City Staff to update their
internal Cost Allocation Plan to ensure that the plan provided fair and equitable
results to all receiving departments and funds. The project team also worked with
City staff to update the previous Cost of Service Study by streamlining existing
fee structures, eliminating outdated fees, and adding new fees for service. The
project team is currently in the process of training City staff on the use of the
technical CAP and Fee models, to enable City staff to develop new results based
on organizational and expenditure changes in the City.

Manhattan Beach: The Matrix Consulting Group updated the City's Cost
Allocation Plan and User Fee study in accordance with best management
practices. The project team worked with City staff to refine allocation
methodologies and update cost information to ensure that the Cost Allocation

Matrix Consulting Group
Page 27

59



CITY OF WINTERS, CALIFORNIA
Proposal to Prepare a Full Cost Allocation Study and User Fee Study

Plan provided fair and equitable results to all receiving departments and funds.
As part of the User Fee Study, fee structures were streamlined to reflect current
services, and indirect costs were incorporated to provide the City with an
accurate picture of the full cost of providing fee related services.

Vacaville: The Matrix Consulting Group performed a Citywide Cost Allocation
Plan for the City of Vacaville. The project team worked closely with staff to tailor
the plan to fit the City's needs, and to ensure understanding and consensus
among allocation recipients. The project team also provided staff with training
and documentation in order to facilitate the City's desire to update the plan
internally, which City staff have been able to do for the past two years internally.
Additionally, the project team is currently in the process of working with the City
to update its development-services related fees; fees related to Building
Planning, Engineering, Fire, and Utilities.

We would be happy to provide additional references upon request from the City.

G. IMPLEMENTATION SCHEDULE

1. Include an implementation schedule with a preliminary report delivery date
by February 2017 and note key project milestones and timelines for
deliverables. Identify any assumptions used in developing the schedule.

The following subsections present the proposed project schedule on a task-by-
task basis. These project schedules take into account the City's proposed project
completion date of February 2017.

(1) Comprehensive User Fee and Rate Study

The typical timeframe for a study of this nature is three months, which should
allow for the study to be completed well before February 2017, assuming a start date in
October 2016. The following table outlines our proposed project schedule on a task-by-
task basis.

1. Initial Documentation

2. Project Kick-off

3. Current & Potential Fees

4. Data Workshops

5. Total Cost Analysis

6. Analysis of Recoverable Revenue

7. Comparative Survey

8. Review / Revise Results

9. Prepare Final Report

All timelines can be adjusted based upon the City's schedule and other
commitments in agreement with City staff. Presentation of results and adoption by the

Matrix Consulting Group Page 28

60



CITY OF WINTERS. CALIFORNIA
Proposal to Prepare a Full Cost Allocation Study and User Fee Study

Council would occur after delivery and approval of the final report, at the discretion of
the City. Additionally, delivery of technical model and on-site training will also occur after
the adoption of the Final report.

(2) Cost Allocation Plans

The typical timeframe for a study of this nature is twelve weeks, which should
allow for the study to be completed by January / February 2017. Should the City want to
complete an 0MB Cost Allocation Plan, a final report would need to be delivered to the
City's cognizant agency no later than December 31'*. 2016. The only issues that could
Impede achieving the City's requested timeline would be the availability of City staff or
data. The table on the following page outlines our proposed project schedule on a task-
by<task basis.

Task 10 11 12

1. Discuss Study Objectives
2. Interview Staff and Gather Data

3. Custom Full Cost Allocation Plan

4. Finalize Full Cost Allocation Plan

5. Prepare Draft 0MB A-87
6. Finalize and Present Final 0MB A-87

Technical models and training will be provided to staff after the acceptance of the
Final Cost Allocation Plans by Council, or at the discretion of City management.

Matrix Consulting Group
Page 29

61



matrix^
consulting group

September 30, 2016
Ms. Tracy Jensen
Management Analyst
City of Winters
318 First St.

Winters. OA 95694

Dear Ms. Jensen:

The Matrix Consulting Group is prepared to conduct a Full Cost Allocation Study
and User Fee Study at the level of detail described in our technical proposal for $33,000
for professional time within our hourly rates as requested information in Section E Fees.

a. Provide your fees for the proposed service detailed by service.

b. The fee should include preparation of the Full CAP (including a supplement
for an 0MB 2 CFR Part 225 CAP) and a User Fee Study.

1 Project Lead Total

1  Task Manager Analyst Analyst Cost

FULL COST ALLOCATION PLAN

1. Discuss Study Objectives 2 2 0 $600
2. Interview Staff and Gather Data 4 6 16 $2,650
3. Structure Custom Full Cost Allocation Plan 4 8 16 $2,900
4. Finalize Full Cost Allocation Plan 4 12 12 $3,100

Subtotal CAP 14 28 44 $9,250

USER FEE STUDY

1, Initial Documentation 2 4 6 $1,300
2. Project Kick-off 4 4 4 $1,500
3. Current & Potential Fees 4 6 10 $2,200
4. Data Workshops 4 12 16 $3,400
5, Total Cost Analysis 4 10 20 $3,450
6. Analysis of Recoverable Revenue 0 2 8 $850
7, Comparative Survey 0 0 8 $600

8. Review / Revise Results 6 10 16 $3,500
9. Prepare Final Report 6 8 16 $3,250
10, Present Final Report 4 0 0 $700

Subtotal Comprehensive User Fee Study 16 20 48 $20,750
RATE PER HOUR $175 $125 %n
Model & Training (CAP & Fee) $2,500
Travel $500

FULL COST ALLOCATION AND USER FEE STUDY COST $33,000

201 San Antonio Circle. Suite 148 • Mountain View. OA 94040 • 650.858.0507 ■ 650.917.2310 fax
California. Illinois, Massachusetts, Texas. Washington

62



c. Outline billing and payment expectations, including timing and method of
payment.

Our typical procedure for invoicing is to bill on a monthly basis for hours and
expenses incurred on a project. We are also open to invoicing on a deliverable basis.

d. Describe any remaining fees not already detailed above.

The price quoted for services above is all-inclusive, and represents a final cost.

e. Present a specific "not to exceed" fixed fee including associated fees (i.e.,
printing costs, attendance at meetings, travel).

The Matrix Consulting Group is prepared to conduct a Full Cost Allocation Study
and User Fee Study at the level of detail described In our technical proposal for $33,000
for professional time within our hourly rates. This "not-to-exceed" price includes all
travel, printing, and miscellaneous costs.

For questions pertaining to the content of this proposal or for contract negotiation
please contact me, the firm's President, at rbradv@matrixcq.net, or at the address,
phone or fax number listed on this letterhead. As President of the firm, I have the
authority to negotiate on its behalf.

Matrix Consulting Group
Richard Brady
President

matrix^
consulting group

63



CITY OP

, WINTERS
cat i ̂o- i f p ̂  a^

Est. 1875

The presentation by

WJUSD Superintendent Todd Cutler, Ed.D.,

(pages 64-75) is under separate cover.



CITY OF

c a o t n t a

Est. 1875

TO: Honorable Mayor and Council Members

DATE; October 18, 2016

THROUGH: John W. Donlevy, Jr., City Manager

FROM: David Dowswell, Community Development Departmen^^^^^;^^^*-^
SUBJECT: Public Hearing and Consideration of various amendments to Title 17 (Zoning

Ordinance), pertaining to zoning of the Winters Municipal Code.

RECOMMENDED CITY COUNCIL ACTIONS:
1) Find the proposed amendments Categorically Exempt from CEQA, Section 15308 (Actions

by Regulatory Agencies); and
2) Receive the staff report, conduct the public hearing, and introduce Ordinance No. 2016-10

approving various amendments to Tide 17, Zoning Ordinance, of the Winters Municipal
Code.

GENERAL PLAN DESIGNATION, EXISTING ZONING AND LAND USE: The proposed
Mumdpal Code amendments to various sections affect properties designated in the General Plan as
agricultural, residential, commercial, industrial and zoned A-1, R-R, R-1, R-2, R-3, R-4, C-1, C-2 C-H
D-A, D-B, O-F, B-P, M-1, M-2, and P-D.

BACKGROUND: Earlier this year staff brought forward to the City Council various amendments to
the city s s^gn, noise and performance standard regulations. During the review of the Zoning Ordinance
for preparing these amendments staff observed a number of irregularities (formatting, dupUcative

^ l^ck of consistency between various chapters) within the Code. Recendy, the City
Council also approved a request to add a Planned Development (P-D) overlay zone to a parcel located
near 1-505 and zoned Highway Service Commercial (C-H), which was approved for a new hotel. The
overlay was needed so the height of the hotel could be increased from 30 to 45 feet. The proposed
amendments include revising the Lot Development Standards in Table 3A in Section 17.56.010 by
increasing from 30 to 45 feet the maximum allowable structure height permitted in the (C-H) Zone.

On September 27, 2016 the Planning Commission reviewed the proposed ordinance and voted
unanimously to recommend that the City Council adopt the proposed changes to Tide 17 (Zoning
Ordinance) of the Winters Municipal Code as recommended by staff.

76



The formatting of the various chapters within the Zoning Code is inconsistent. The first
section in some chapters is either entided "purpose", "purpose and intent", "purpose, intent and
applicability" and "purpose-scope"; the most common being "purpose and intent". Staffis proposing all
first sections which use "purpose" be entided "purpose and intent". In some instances staff is
proposing adding a "purpose and intent" section to a chapter for clarity.

At the beginning of the Zoning Ordinance is the definition section (17.04.140B), which contains over
100 definitions. There are also definition sections in many of the other chapters of the Zoning
Ordinance. There are some defimtions for the same word or term in two or more chapters. In some
cases, the duplicate definitions are worded exactly the same and in others they ate worded slightly
different. Staff is proposing where defimtions with the exact same wording are used in two different
sections keeping the definition which makes the most sense and deleting the other one. For example,
the defimtions describing "farmworker, farmworker dwelling unit, farmworker housing and farmwo^er
housing complex" are being deleted fiom the definition section (17.04.140B) and kept in the definition
section 17.123.020 of Chapter 17.123, Farmworker Housing. In those cases where there are two or more
defimtions with different wording, staff is recommending keeping the most descriptive definition and
deleting the others. For example, *Tow income, moderate income and very low income" are defined in
sections 17.04.140B, 17.112.020 and 17.200,020. Staff is proposing keeping the ones in section
17.200.020 (highlighted in green) and deleting the ones from ie other two sections. In a few cases stoff
proposes moving a defimtion from one section to another section because it makes more sense.

Staff is proposing that Table3A in section 17.56.010 to increase from 30 to 45 feet the mavimnm
structure height allowed in the C-H zone to allow for taller buildings, up to 45 feet, consistent with the
maximum allowed structure height permitted in the Central Business District (C-2) zone.

ENVIRONMENTALi ASSESSMENT: The proposed project is categorically exempt from
environmental review pursuant to California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Guidelines Section
15308 (Actions by Regulatory Agencies).

RECOMMENDED FINDINGS FOR PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO TITLE 17
(ZONING ORDINANCE) OF THE CITY OF WINTERS MUNICIPAL CODE.

CEQA Findings;
1) The proposed project is categorically exempt from review under the California Environmental

Quality Act (CEQA) Guidelines, Sections 15308 (Actions by Regulatory Agencies to Protect the
Environment.

General Plan and Zoning Consistency Findings;
1) The project is consistent with the goals and policies of the General Plan.
2) The project will not result in a negative fiscal impact upon the City.

ATTACHMENTS:

A. Draft Ordinance redline copy
B. Draft Ordinance clean copy

77



ORDINANCE NO. 2016-10

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WINTERS

AMENDING VARIOUS SECTIONS OF TITLE 17 (ZONING ORDINANCE) OF
THE WINTERS MUNICIPAL CODE

The City Council of the City of Winters, State of California, does hereby ordain as
follows:

1  Purpose. The purpose of this ordinance is to amend various sections of Title 17
involving mostly formatting, removal of duplicative language and amending TableSA in Chapter
17.56 by increasing from 30 to 45 feet the maximum allowable structure height permitted in the
Highway Service Commercial (C-H) Zoning District.

2, Authority. The City of Winters has authority to adopt this ordinance pursuant to the
general police power granted to cities by Article 11. Section 7 of the California Constitution.

Amendments to Title 17 of the Municipal Code are hereby arrtended to read-as
follows:

a- Chapter 17.04 of the Municipal Code is hereby amended in its entirety to
read as follows:

Chapter 17.04
INTRODUCTORY PROVISIONS AND DEFINITIONS

17.04.140 Definitions.

B. Definitions.

Abutting or "contiguous" means land or zoning district boundaries having a common property
line. Lands or district boundaries separated by an alley, street or right-of-way shall be
considered abutting.

Acceptance for filing" means receipt and confinued processing of an application or submittal
over the public counter or through the mail or other delivery service, based on a preliminary
determination that ail required components (e.g. fees, completed application, mailing lists,
appropriate copies of maps, special notes or statements, etc.) are provided. If all required
components are not provided, the application shall not be accepted and/or shall be returned.
Acceptance" for purposes of filing, routing, or processing, is to be distinguished from a
determination that the application or submittal is "complete."

"Access drive" or "driveway" means a private driveway connecting a street or alley with a
parking or loading area with space and of sufficient width to permit safely the passage of ail
vehicles, equipment, machinery, trailers, mobilehomes. tJoats, and/or pedestrians, either self-
propelled or transported, which may normally or reasonably be expected to seek access to the
parking or loading area or space. Whenever the size, location, or use of the parking or loading

1

ATTACHMENT A

78



area is such as to reasonably necessitate the use of the drive by emergency vehicles, the drive
shall t)e of adequate width and design to permit the passage of the emergency vehicles. An
access drive or easement serving four (4) or fewer single-family residences shall not be counted
for setback purposes

"Accessory buildir>g or accessory structure* means a detached subordinate structure or building
located on the same premises as the main building or buildings (or proposed for development
concurrently with the main building or buildings), the use of which is customarily incidental to
that of the main building or to the use of the land Where any portion of a wall of an accessory
building or structure is attached to the main building, or where an accessory structure is
attached to the main building in a substantial manner by a roof or deck, the accessory building
or structure shall be considered and treated as part of the main building.

Accessory use" means a lavtrfully permitted use in the zone, unless otherwise noted in this title,
which use is customarily incidental and subordinate to the principal use of ttie site or of a main
building on the site and serving a puipose which does not change the character of the principal
use. and which is compatible with other principal uses in the same zone and with the purpose of
the zone.

"Adjoin" means the same as "abutting."

Administrative' means an internal, preliminary draft document submitted to the city for
independent review for administrative purposes only Administrative draft documente are not a
part of the record of proceedings nor considered a 'public document" for the purposes of the
Public Records Act or the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). Administrative drafts
are to l>e discarded or returned to the consultant, and shall not be retained in the project files,

A-Frame sign" means a portable freestanding sign capable of standing without support or
attachment.

-(Conunent [1]; Movtd to Section 17 Joo,aza

Agent of owner" means any person who can show certified written proof that he or she is acting
for the property owner

Alley or "lane" means a public or private way, other than a driveway, affording only secondary
means of access to abutting property.

Alter" means a physical change in a structure, including changes to bearing walls, columns and
beams, or to the exterior appearance of a structure, other than painting.

79



'Animal,_Exotic animal' means any wild animal not customarily confined or cultivated by man for
domestic purposes, ottier than small or large domestic animals. This term includes llamas,
peacocks, large reptiles.

Aramal. fcarge IDomestic.

'Animal. Laroe domestic-awmaT means domestic horses, burros and mules, domestic swine,
domestic cattle, sheep, goats and similar livestock. The term shall also include the keeping of
rabbits, pot-bellied pigs, hens, and geese

Animal, Small Domootic

'Animal. Small domestic-afMmal" means dogs and cats over the age of ten (10) weeks.

'Apartment' means a muttifamily dwelling consisting of three (3) or more dwelling units offered
for rent or lease, under single ownership.

"Applicant" means the person, public or private, listed as the applicant on an application for a
project and includes the record owner of the real property that is the subject of the project at the
time of the application for the project.

'Approving body" means the city council of the city of Winters and/or the Winters plannir^g
commission, whichever takes final discretionary action on a project.

"Beginning of construction" means the incorporation of latx)r and materials at a construction site,

commencing with grading or foundation construction, whichever occurs sooner

'Block' means all property fronting on one (1 i side of a street between intercepting streets or
t)etween a street and a waterway, dead-end street, major easement or right-of-way. or
unsutxlivided land. An intercepting street shall only determine the boundary of a block on the
side of the sti^eet which it intercepts.

'Breezeway" means a roofed structure open on two (2) sides connecting two structures, such as
a residence and a garage.

'Building* means any structure having a roof and supported by columns or walls, which is used
or intended to t>e used for the shelter or enclosure of persons, animals or property.

'Building frontage" means the primary wall of a building facing a street (not including the
freevray) If the building does not front on a street, the face of the building containing the main
structure entry is the building frontage.

"Building materials" means any substance that can be used in construction of buildings,
roadways or accessory structures.

80



'Building, means a buikJtng in which is conducted the principal use of the building
site on which the building is situated.

Building, Nonconforming Puilding' means a building or portion thereof which v/ss lawful when
established but which does not conform to subsequently established zoning regulations.

Carport means a roofed structure with one (1) or more open sides for the parking of vehicles

Commercial marijuana cultivation' means cultivation of medical marijuana licensed by the state
of California in accordance vwth the Medical Marijuana Regulation and Safety Act. California
Business and Professions Code Section 193Q0 et seq., and contemplated by the definition of
commercial cannabis activity' set forth in California Business and Profusions Code Section
l93QQ^(k), as amended. Commercial marijuana cultivation is prohibited in the city. Pursuarrtto
Section 11362 777 of the California Health and Safety Code, effective January 1, 2016, this
definition is intended to regulate the cultivation of medical marijuana by prohibiting commercial
marijuana cultivation within the city, and thereby expressly reserving any future local licensing
authority granted to the city by that section. This definition shall not restrict cultivation of medical
marijuana by a "primary caregiver" or "qualified patient," as those terms are defined by Health
and Safety Code Section 11362 7. or by a "medical marijuana cooperative,' as defined herein
subject to the restrictions set forth in this section

Community development director' means the director of the community development arxi
building department

iComplete Aapplicatton; means Aan application or submittei shall bo determined to be
complete pursuant to Section 65943 of the Government Code, upon receipt of adequate
(sufficient) information and data describing the project and the project setting, to allow for an
initial study to be conducted and the environmerrtal determination to t)e made This

determination is usually documented by a letter of completeness

property. "C ottage food operation" means any activity operated as a cottage food enterprise wilh
not more ttian one (1) foil-time equivalent cottage food employee, not including a family memt>er
or household member of the cottage food operator living in the home where the cottage food
products are prepared or packaged for direct or Indirect sale to consumers, as defined and may
be amended by the Callfomia Department of Public Health. Section 113758 of the Health and

Commeiit [2]: SmtorwdtlMtionln
17.112.020.

81



Safety Code. Gross annual sales are regulated by the provisions of Section 113758 of Health
and Safety Code.

'Cottage food products' means non-potentially-hazardous foods, induding foods that are limited
to and described In Section 114365 5 of the California Health and Safety Code and that are
prepared for sale in the kitchen of a cottage food operation.

'Counter audit" means a preliminary evaluation of a submrttal or application ttiat occurs at the
public counter, to determine whether it can be accepted for filing, routing, or processing, and to
determine the applicability of CEQA.

'Cultivation" means any activity involving the planting, growing, harvesting, drying, curing,
grading, trimming or processing of marijuana or any part thereof.

'Deemed withdrawn' means a determination by the city that an application is no longer valid.
Applications that have t)een deemed withdrawn are to t)e physically returned to foe applicant
and no further processing Is conducted. Processing fees that have not been expended, less
administrative charges, are reimbursed or may l)e applied to resubmittal. Projects that are
withdrawn and resubmitted are processed in the same manner as newly submitted projects. No
special priority or fees are applicable.

extstong (onginal) extenor building or sfructure wallsl'Demolition' means any act or Dro(»ss that
destroys in part or in whole at least seventv-five (75) percent of an existing (original extenor
building or structure walls. indiv>dual cultural resource or a cultural resource or other structure
within a historic district or neighborhood, or cultural resource area

"Density tjonus" means entitlement to build additional residential units attove the maximum
numtJer of units permitted pursuant to the existing general plan, applicable specific plan and
zoning designations. Density txjnus units may be constructed only in the development where
foe units of affordable housing are located. Density bonus means a bonus of units awarded to a
development pursuant to Govemment Code Section 65915 et seq

'Density, Gross residential" means the average number of dwelling units on one fll acre of land
In a given area where the acreage is based on the total land area (including streets and

'Density, Net residential' means the average number of dwelling units on one f 11 net acre of
land used or available for residential ounooses after excluding streets and nohts-of-wav

'Developer" means any person, firm, partnership, association, loint venture, conooration. or any
entity or combination of entities which seeks the city's approval of discretionarv land use

entitlements for all or part of a development project. 'Developer^ includes 'owner'

- CMnmant fSJ; Ownblntd with dtfinWon from
Wtinn 17.108J310.

82



Development means any activity related to the placement of any structure, grading, change in
density or intensity of land use and including subdivision of land or air ̂ >ace, or a demolition,
addition, repair or alteration of a structure or fecility.

"Dwelling" means any building or portion thereof containing one (1) or more dwelling units
designed or used exclusively as a residence or sleeping place for one (1) or more families, but
not including a tent, cabin, boat, trailer, dormitory, labor camp, hotel or motel.

'Dwelling, Guest dwelltrtg' means separate, accessory living quarters, having no kitchen
facilities, attached to the main building or located in an accessory building situated on the same
site as the main building, for temporary use by guests of the occupants of the main building and
not rented or otherwise used as a separate dwelling.

"Dwelling unif means one ULroom or suite of two (2) or more rooms designed for. interKled for,
or used by one_(1j family, which family lives, sleeps, and cooks therein, and which unit has one
CU kitchen or kitchenette.

•Emergency vehicle" means a self-propelled vehicle or trailer used in the discharge of duties of
public districts, agencies or departments, or privately owned public utilities responsible for
medical services, fire prevention and control, policing, sanitation, sewerage, drainage, levee
maintenance, flood control, public utility lines arxl ail essential services.

'Environmental coordinator" means the director of community devetopment or his or her
designated representative.

'Te^Erecf means to locate, construct, attach, suspend, affix or paint a sign.

'Factory-built home" means a residential building constiucted in conformance with the State of
California Factory-Built Housing Code. A factory-built home shall not t)e deemed to include a
mobilehome or manufactured home as defined in this section.

"Family" means one LD_or more persons occupying a dwelling unit and livirrg as a single
housekeeping unit, arid distinguished from a group occupying a boarding house, lodging house,
rrratel, hotel, or fraternity or sorority house.

^armworkor" moons the same ae 'agnculturol omployoo" as defined in Section 114Q.4fb>ofthe

?ied by a maximum of six

Comment [4]: Same definition ai In Section
17.123,020.

Comment [5]: SafnadafinliSonat InSacSon
17.121020.

83



xxjation dovoloped for ond/or provided to
farmwofkers orx^ shall consict of any living quartefE, dwolling,

travel trater, or other housing accommodation maintoned in one of mofe buildings arxi on one
or more sites. Formworkof housing ohall

fatmworker houcingeomplew.

'Farmwofker houoing complox' means farmwofker housing other than a farmworker dwoWm§
unit that (1) contoinc o maximum of thirty six (36) bodo if the houcing
living quarters, such as borraoks or a bunkhouoo,

and'their households, if the housing does n

Fence' means any structural device forming a physical barrier by means of wood, mesh, metal,
chain, brick, stakes of plastic or similar materials It includes a wall or gate used as a fence.

'Floor area" means the gross floor area bounded on all sides by the outside surface of exterior
walls of all floors of all tHjildings, including hallways, stairways, utility rooms, storage rooms, any

I portion of attic and basement space over seven (7)^feet in height, restrooms and attached
garages, but excluding detached accessory buildings of less than two-hundred (200) square
feet

"Floor Area Ratio" or "FAR* means the allowed ratio of floor area to net tot area.

Free-standing sign' means a sign which is independently supported in a fixed location and not
attached to a building, fence or structure

Freeway' means a multi-lane divided highway for through-traffic with full control of access and
with grade separations at all intersections and railroad crossings, and to which highway the
owners of abutting lands have no right of easement or access to or from tiieir abutting lands

"Garage, PPrivate garage" means an accessory building or portion of a main building designed
for the storage and minor repairs or maintenance of self-propelled passenger vehicles, camping
trailers or txjats belonging to the owners or occupants of the site and their guests, or an
enclosed area for the same use as a private parking area

'General plan" means the adopted general plan of the city of Winters.

Final grade" means the elevation of the finished surface of the ground, paving or sidewalk at
any particular point on a property where grading has occurred in conjunction with development
regulated by this title. (See following diagram.)

COnMHent ISJ: SarMdaAnNianMinSKilOt>
17.U3.020.

Comment [7]: Swim MMlanw In Stedon
17.U3.020.

84



jwraALiBosnNOCMa

fDMIOUU

mmTYlM

KOUnLM

"Grading" means any activity related to the cutting, filling, compaction, storage or other
movement of earth.

"Height" means the verticat distance of a building measured tjetween point where the final
grade intersects a building or its foundation to the highest point of the building directly above
that point (See following diagram)

■OBUUdlute

SiSKT ri

nornc
« —1 i  1

♦

1  1
1  ̂

Commer<[8]: Php«« h not uwd •nywhowln
tht Zonlni Ordinwioc

"Holiday decorations" means traditional outdoor decorations of a nonadvertlsing nature which
celebrate a nationally recognized holiday.

Home occupation' means a commercial enterprise which is clearly incidental and secondary to
the residential use of a property

"Improvement" means a stiuctojral addition or modification to an existing structure, or addition of
a structure to a property

"Incomplete" means the status of an application following the city's request for additional
information in order to complete the application and make an environmental determination. This
status may be used by the city to freeze mandatory CEQA time frames while the applicant

6

85



responds to the request for addttionai information. This determination is usually documented by
correspondence to the applicant.

'Independent review' means city evaluation of accuracy and completeness of any information
submitted by outside consultants. May involve preliminary assessment of adequacy and/or
feasibility.

"Kitchen - kitchenette" means any space used or intended or designed to be used for the
storage, preparation and cooking of food, whether the cooking unit is permanent or temporary
and portable, in conjunction with the establishment or use of a dwelling unit

"Landscaping" means the minimum required percentage of the total lot area which must be
landscaped. Landscaping may consist of planting and maintaining some combination of trees,
ground cover, shrubs, vines, flowers and lawn, and may include natural or constructed features
if they are an integral element to the overall landscape plan.

"Living quarters' means one or more rooms in a building designed for, interxled for, or used by
one or more individuals for living or steeping purposes, with no cooking facilities.

Loading space" means an off-street area which is suitable and usable for the temporary parking
of commercial vehicles white loading or unloading merchandise or materials, which area abuts
upon a street or alley or has other appropriate means of access to and from public roads, and
which area is on the same lot as the building which the area serves or on a lot contiguous to a
building or group of buildings which the site serves.

"Lof means a site or parcel of land under single ownership which has been legally subdivided,
resubdivided or merged.

Lotj_Comer-lot" means a lot abutting upon two (2) or more streets at their intereection or upon
twoi2] parts of the same street, the streets or parts of the same street forming an interior angle
of less than one hundred thirty-five (135) degrees. (See following diagram.)

86



SmET

sntM^

nsKTistLac'

r-*
UOMMn
momm

'Lot depth' means the distance measured perpendicularly between the midpoint of the front
property line and the rear property line Where the configuration of a lot prevents measurement
of the lot depth pursuant to this requirement, the lot depth shall be the longest possible straight-
line distance measured perpendicular from a point on the front lot line towards the rear lot line.
(See following diagram.)

LOTWmTH

STREET
3kFita<T

SETBACK

/use

MmrasT
AWT

SETBACK

_

LOTDcrra
r-iOToerm

v'MDKHNT
WIDTH

LOTwnmc MmPOCKT

-tor

WIDTH
SffiC UDt%ax
LOT

LOT
LINE

USE UW

MAK- —

SETBACK

LINE

REAK

STBACK^MPPOIST
LINE

£UMP1£/

BfiCTtVCCiAAiOr
LUMPLE2

m(£OUAJttr.SHAKDLOT

means an interior parcel not having direct frontage to a public road or street,
except for a narrow portion capable of being used solely for access purposes The flag stem

10

87



portion of the lot shall nrt l)e used for the purpose of meeting required yard sett)acks or in the
calculation of lot depth or net lot area. (See diagram under 'Lot, Comer')

'Lot Interior-lef means a lot, other than a comer lot. t>ounded by other lots and/or a street. (See
diagram under "Lot, Comer")

"Lot lines' means the property lines bounding a lot.

'Lot line. Front-lot-toe' means, in the case of an interior lot, the lot line separating the lot from
the street, edge of pavement or street right-of-way. In the case of a comer lot the shorter street
frontage shall constitute the front lot line, with the remaining portion of the lot with street
frontage treated as secondary frontage for setback purposes. (See following diagram.)

inxinniiivimiiM

STREET

T/77777m
//////////A

MAMCTklLOat

K^:Hr::A\\v

nUMTlOTLM
MUOimrrwoT-

- UiULOTlM

"Lot line^Rear-teMine' means the lot line typically and approximately parallel to and most distant
from the front lot line. (See diagram under 'Lot Line, Front')

'Lot line. Side-jpytfte' means a lot line other than a front or rear lot line, typically and
approximately perpendicular to a front and rear lot line. (See diagram under 'Lot Line. Front")

11

88



'Lot area^Net lot apoa" means the total horizontal area included witfiln lot lines, excluding
streets, alleys and vehicular easements or rights-of-way.

title.

4Lot size. Minimum* means tt>e minimum amount of net lot area required under this

"Lot^Through-tet" means a lot having frontage on two (2) dedicated parallel or approximately
parallel streets.

'Lot width" means the horizontal distance between the side tot lines measured perpendicular to
the depth of the lot at a point midway in the txjilding envelope (the area between the required
front and rear yard setback lines). V\ftiere the configuration of a lot prevents measurement
pursuant to this requirement, the community development director shall determine the lot width.

(See diagram under 'Lot depth ")

'Manufactured home' means any structure transportable In one or more sections, which, in the
traveling mode is eight (8) t)odv feet or more in width, or forty (40) txxJy feet or more in length,
or. when erected on site, is three hundred twenty (320) or more square feet, and which is built
on a permanent chassis and designed to t>e used as a dwelling with or without a permanent
foundation v^rhen connected to the required utilities, and includes the plumbing, heating, air
conditioning, and electrical systems contained therein; except that such term shall include any
structure which meets all the requirements of this paragraph except the size requirement and
with respect to which the manufacturer voluntarily files a certification and complies with the
standards established in the Manufactured Housing Consfruction arfo Safety Act of 1974 (42
U.S C. Sec. 5401, etseq.)

'Marquee sign' means a sign which is suspended below a canopy or covered walkway and
which projects perpendicular to the building or structure wall

'Massage' means manipulation of tisoues (ao
body or other instrument.

"Medical marijuana' means a product containing cannabis, including, but not limited to,
concentrates and extractions, intended for use by medical cannabis patients in California

12

-Tcmmenc [9}: Slmiterdcfinltfon u In SKtkm
[ 17.200.020.

\ Continent [10]; Mowtd to section 17.100JH0

89



pursuant to the Compassionate Use Act of 1996 (Proposition 215). found at Section 11362 5 of
the Health and Safety Code. Cannabis as used in this definition shall have the meaning as set
forth in subsection (f) of Section 1930Q 5 of the Business and Professions Code.

I  'Medical marijuana cooperative' involves two (2) or more persons collectively or cooperatively
cultivating, using, transporting, possessing, administering, delivering, or giving away medical
marijuana. It does not involve sale or gifts involvir>g payment of money Notwithstanding foe
prohibition in this code as to medical dispensaries, medical cannabis collectives and

cooperatives formed in a manner consistent with California law and foe Califomia Attorney
General's Guidelines for the Security and Non-Diversion of Marijuana Grown for Medical Use
issued in August 2008 shall be permitted to operate, provided they do not sell, exchange, trade,
distribute or cultivate medical cannabis in a manner prohibited herein.

'Medical marijuana dispensary" means any facility or location, whether fixed or mobile, where
medical marijuana is made available to. distributed by, or distributed to or>e or more of the
following: (1) a qualified pabent, (2) a person with an identification card, or (3) a primary
caregiver All three of these terms are defined in strict accordance with Califomia Health and

Safety Code Section 11362 5 et seq. A medical marijuana dispensary Is further defined as any
place, location, building or establishment where medical cannabis is traded, exchanged, sold, or
distributed which would otherwise require a business license, home occupation permit or any
other use permit to conduct similar type activities. Unless othenrvise regulated by this code or
applicable law, a 'medical marijuana dispensary' shall not include the following uses: a clinic
licensed pursuant to Chapter 1 of Division 2 of the Health and Safety Code, a health care facility
licensed pursuant to Chapter 2 of Division 2 of foe Health and Safety Code, a residential care
facility for persons with chronic life-threatening illnesses licensed pursuant to Chapter 3.01 of
Division 2 of the Health and Safety Code, a residential care facility for foe elderly licensed
pursuant to Chapter 3.2 of Division 2 of the Health and Safety Code, a residential hospice, or a
home health agency licensed pursuant to Chapter 8 of Division 2 of foe Health and Safety
Code, as long as any such use complies strictly with both applicable federal or state law,
including, but not limited to. Health and Safety Code Section 1 1362 5 et seq. Currently, medical
marijuana dispensaries are prohibited from opening and operating within any zone in the city of
Winters. At such time as both federal and state law change to allow the operation of medical
marijuana dispensaries, such dispensaries shall be then allowed only in a zone district
designated for medical offices and only if consistent with the applicable provisions of this c»de
and federal and state law

"Ministerial" means an action or decision by the city involving little or no personal judgment by
city staff as to the wisdom or manner of carrying out a project Approval of a ministerial project
merely requires application of the law, usually involving fixed standards or objective
measurements

13

90



'Mitigation monitoring and reporting program (MMRP)' or "program" means a comprehensive
program adopted by the approving body prior to project approval pursuant to Public Resources
Code Section 21081.6 and this title to ensure compliance with adopted or required changes to
mitigate or avoid significant environmental effects

'Mobilehome' means any standard make of trailer constructed and equipped in such a manner
as to permit permanent occupancy thereof as living quarters for a family unit. In general, any
trailer over twenty-five (25) feet in length may t)e considered a mobilehome; provided, that such
trailer complies with all applicable laws and regulations controlling the design, construction,
equipment or occupancy thereto. Mobilehomes are considered structures for the purpose of this
chapter when they are parked in a mobilehome park Small mobilehomes or trailers are defined
as t)eing five hundred (500) square feet or less in size, average mobilehomes or trailers as
being five hundred one (501) to one thousand (1,000) square feet in size, and large
mobilehomes or trailers as being more than one thousand (1,000) square feet in size.

'Mobile sign" means a sign which is designed to be moved or capable of being moved and not
intended for permanent installafion.

'Monitoring" means the function of implementing the MMRP by the city through the
environmental coordinator

"Nonconforming sign" means a sign which was lawful when erected but which does not
presently conform to this title.

"Nonconforming use" means any use of land, buildings or structures which was lawful when
established but which does not conform to subsequently established zoning regulations.

'Off-premise sign" means a sign which provides directions to general places, destinations and
collectjons of uses

'Official plan line' or "future right-of-way" means an officially established line defining the outer
boundaries within which a public road right-of-way may Ije widened, constructed or extended
and within which the construction of structures may tie prohibited

"On-premise sign" means a sign located on the same site as the specific business, product use,
etc., it advertises.

"Open space" means land which Is available for outdoor recreational activities, passively or
actively, for putjiic or pnvate use

14

Comment [U]: similar deftrmion u In SKtien
17.200.020,

91



Outdoor storage" means the stocking, parking, stacking or holding of goods, materials or
equipment in the open or in a partially closed structure.

Owner" means the person or persons holding legal title to, or recorded contract of purchase of.
tee property in question.

Parking, Primary use parktng" means use of a parcel or lot exclusively for the temporary, daily
or overnight off-street parking of passenger vehicles, whether as a public or private parking
area, as necessary to sen/e some use on a separate legal parcel.

"Parking space" means an off-street covered or uncovered area for the parking of a motor
vehicle.

Paved means an area which has been drained, graded, compacted, provided with adequate
base and surteced with asphaltic concrete at least two (2) inches thick, or equivalent as
determined by the city engineer, so as to provide a sufficient durable surface to render the area
usable for the purpose specified under all normal weateer conditions.

Person means any individual, firm association, partnership, joint venture, corporation or other
entity, public or private in nature, including an instrumentality of this state or any political
subdivisions of this state includir»g the dty; "person" shall also include any office, employee or
agent of any of the fbregoing.

Planning commission" means a group of persons appointed or assigned by the city council to
administer the general plan and the zoning ordinance; in this title the planning commission of
Winters.

Planning director" rr>eans the director of the community development and building departmer^
for the city.

Pnncipol Permittod Uoo.'PrinciDal residence" means the orimarv dwellino unit located on a
residential lot that includes a secondary housing unit

Production housing" means construction of six or more single-family residential units, where
a set of base construction plans are utilized for more than one (1) residence.

Program completion certificate' means a certificate issued by the environments coordinator to
certify completion of all or a designated phase of an adopted MMRP.

15

92



■project" means any private or public agency project as defined in CEQA found at Public
Resources Code Section 210QQ et, seq.

Projecting sign" means a sign, other than a wall or marquee sign, which is susperxJed from or
supported by a building and which projects outward at a perpendicular angle.

■Recreational vehicle" means any trailer, motor home, camper or similar vehicle designed ar>d
intended for sleeping, traveling and recreational purposes.

'Remodel" means the alteration of all or a portion of an existing structure or building.
Remodeling does not include the enclosure or construction of new building or structure square
footage. (See also "Demolition.■)

■Reporting* means the obligabon of the applicant/developer to file perkxlrc written repwts on the
status of mitigation/implementation under a project MMRP

Residential Doncrty, Grooo.

units on one acre of land in a

Rooidontiol Donclty, Not

nn i^pf) ntmntn nnri |nrtnomontc(j^ {commei^c^li Mo\«dtp«fwDen«itybpny>'.

the ovorage number of dwelling units on or>e net acre of land

"Secondary housing (second residential unit)' means a dwelling unit attached or detached from
principal permitted dwelling which provides complete and irxlependent living facilities for a
maximum of two (2j_persons, induding living, sleeping, eating, cooking and sanitation fadlities,
for rent but not for sale

"Setback" means the required minimum distance that a building or structure must be located
from a lot line, existing or proposed street or alley right-of-way or edge of pavement, whichever
setback line may encroach furthest onto a lot.

"Setback Front setback' means the minimum distance a building or structure must t)e set back
from the front lot line.

Setback line" means a line established by the provisions of this title to govern the placement of
buildings or structures on a lot

Setback. Rear

16

Comment [13]: Movad te after *D«nsRy, yoa
rvMtntlil'.

93



Setbad^Rear settock" rrjeans the minimum distance a building or structure must be set back
from a rear lot line.

Setback, Side setback' means the minimum distance a building or structure must be set back
from a side lot line.

Sign means a writing, graphic (including colored background, pictorial representation, logo,
frademark. symbol or banner) or any other figure of whatever material which is used to identify,
announce, direct attention to. advertise or communicate a message, including standardized
corporate and franchise graphic. "Sign" includes a sign structure except that the structure is not
measured fw purposes of determining sign area or height.

Sign area" means the area in square feet of the smallest rectangle enclosing the total exterior
surface of a sign. A double-faced sign shall l)e considered as a single-fece sign for the purposes
of determining sign area.

"Sign heighr means the greatest distance between the top of the actual sign face and the final
grade directly below it

minimum floor aroo of ono hundred fifty (160) foot ar)d a maximum floor area of four hurHjfed
(400) squoro foot These dwoHing unite may have kitchen or bathroom
o^ed on a monthly basis or longer^.

Site coverage' means the percentage of a lot or site collectively covered by a roof, solid-
surfaced deck or patio, paved driveway and parking areas, sports court/swimming pool or
similar impervious improvements.

Stable' means a detached accessory building for the shelter of horses or simitar hoofed
animals.

'Street line (right-of-way)" means the boundary between an existing or proposed street right-of-
way and abutting property.

Structure means anything constructed or erected, the use of which requires a location on the
ground, excluding swimming pools, driveways, patios or decks (where the driveway, patio or
deck is not more than thirty (30) inches above final grade at any point), fences not exceeding a
height of six (glfeet and retaining walls which do not exceed a height of three (31 feet,
measured from the bottom of the wall where it Intersects final grade to the top of the wall See
also 'Building,"

ComiMnt {14]S SHMtMrMonulnSaMofl
17.12i02O,

17

94



mean houang with no limit on length of stay, that ie Gccupied by the
target population oo dofinod in Hootth and Sofotv Codo Soction 60676.1«1 and that ic-l4Bted4a

improving hie or tw heatth statue, and mawmiaing his or hor obilrty to live and, when poe6H>te,
wotk in the Community.

Temporary sign' means a sign wtiich conforms to this title and is intended only for a short
period of use as specified in this title.

Trailer," including 'camp trailer" or "travel trailer" means any vehicle constructed in such a
manner as to permit temporary occupancy thereof as sleeping quarters, i.e., camp trailer, or the
conduct of any business, trade or occupation, or use as a selling or advertising device, or use
for storage or conveyance for tools, equipment or machinery, and so designed that it is mounted
on wheels and may be used as a conveyance on highways and streets propelled or drawn by
other motive power. Camp trailers are considered structures for the purposes of this chapter
when they are parked in a trailer camp or park.

Trailer camp," trailer park" or "mobilehome park" means any lot or part ttiereof, or any parcel of
land, which is used or offered as a location for two (2) or more trailers or mobilehomes used for
any of the residential purposes set forth under the definition of Trailer" Including "camp trailer"
or "travel trailer."

"Transient" means any person who exercises occupancy or is entitled to occupancy by reason
of concession, permit, right of access, license or other agreement of whatever nature, for a
period of thirty (30) consecutive calendar days, or less, counting portions of calendar days as
full days. Any such person so occupying space in a hotel/motel shall be deemed to be a
transient if his or her actoal total period of oa:upancy does not exceed thirty (30) days Unless
days of occupancy or entitlement are consecutive without break, then prior or subsequent
periods of such occupancy or entitiement to occupancy shall not tie counted when determining
whether a period exceeds the stated thirty (30) calendar days.

/Trqnstttonal houeing" shall mean biHkkr^gs configurod ae rental housing developments, but
operated under program requirements that call for the termination of assistance and

recrrculatKjn of the assisted urnt to arK)ther eligiblo program reapient at some predetermined
future point in timo. which shall t>e no loco than six rrKWths (Health and Safety Code Section
5Q675.2fH)V

'Unreasonable delay* means the delay of thirty (30) days or more by ttie applicant In providing
requested information and/or required submittals. or failure to meet any of the time periods
specified herein, or any time period as set by staff.

"Use" means the purpose for which either land or structure thereon is designed, arranged or
InterKled, or which the land or structure thereon is or may be occupied or maintained.

18

CommeiA [15]: SMnadtMUonatlnfiRHoti
17.154.020.

Oomment [U]: Sm drfnMen M tn SmUor
17.125.020.

95



Use, Condrtionat.

'Use, Conditional-Bse' means use of land or structures thereon which requires approval of a
conditional use permit by the planning commission or zoning adminisbetor as indicated on the
land use/zoning matrix.

"Use^Principal permitted-use" means the primary or main use of land or a main building, which
use is compatible with the purpose of the zone. If a use is listed in a specific zone as a principal
permitted use, it means that the owner, lessee or other person who has a legal right to use the
land has a vested right to conduct the principal permitted use without securing special
permission therein, as are generally applied to all uses in the zone.

Utility Sorvicoo, Major or Eseontiol.

4-r—"MafOf-uUtility services. Maior" means large-scale public utilities typically requiring
substantial commitment of land and/or having the potential of creating impacts on the
surrounding area, such as sewer treatment plants, electrical substations and vrater

storage/reservoirs.

2-—'Essentiol ujJtility services, Essential* means the erection, construction, alteration or

maintenance of minor public utilities such as minor underground or overhead gas, electrical,
steam or other transmission or distribution systems or collection, communication, supply or
disposal systems, including poles, wires, drains, sewers, pipes, conduits, cables, fire alarm
boxes, police call t>oxes, traffic signals, hydrants and other similar equipment and accessories in
connection therewith, reasonably necessary for furnishing adequate services by such public
utilities or municipal or other governmental agencies, or for the public health, safety or general
wettere

' CommenttlT]; iNttermbnotundlnthe
I Zoning OnHmnce.

"Wall sign" means a sign which is erected, printed, painted, incorporated into, suspended from
Of otherwise affixed to a wall, awning, canopy, overhang or covered walkway of a building or
structure in an essentially flat position or with the exposed face of the sign in a location parallel
to the plane of the wall

19

Comment [H]; SbnUvdrtnWonumSocSon
17.2C0.020.

96



"Window sign" means a sign erected on a building window or a sign located indoors and within
three feet of a window or building opening whidi is clearly visible and readable from a street or
public place.

Wtthdrawn' means the status of an application after an unreasonable delay has occurred.

"Yard" means an open space on the same site with a building, created by minimum setback
requirements or which open space is unoccupied and unobstructed by buildings or structures
from the ground upward and excluding ttierefrom any portion of any street, alley or road nght-of-
way.

Yard, Front

'Yard. Front-vard' means the area extending across the full width of the front of the lot

measured from the front tot line, right-of-way line or edge of pavement (whichever encroaches
furthest into a lot), to the required front yard setbadt line, measured perpendicular to the front lot
line. The front yard of a comer lot means the yard adjacent to the shorter street frontage (See
diagram under "Lot Line, Front")

'Yard, Rear-vafd" means the area extending across the full width of the rear of tfie lot measured
from the rear tot line to the required rear yard setback line, measured perpendicular to the rear
lot line. The rear yard of a comer lot shall extend only to the side yard adjacent to the street
(also rear setback). (See diagram under "Lot Line, Front")

Yard, -Side-vard' means the area extending between the side tot line and the required side yard
setback line, and located between the front yard and the rear yard of the lot. (See diagram
under "Lot Line. Front")

"Zone" means a portion of the territory in the city within which territory certain uniform
regulations and requirements or various combination thereof, apply pursuant to this title. "Zor>e"
includes the word "district."

b  Section 17 06 010 of the Muniopal Code is hereby amended to read as follows.

17.08.010 Purpose and applicability intent
A use classification descnbes a land use or activity that may be appropriately included within
that use classification. The community development director may detemnine that a specific use
is or is not within a use classification, whether or not it is named, and if its operational
characteristics are sutistantially compatible or incompatible with those uses named within the
classification

20

97



c. Section 17.20 010 of the Municipal Code is hereby amended to read as
fallows:

17.20.010 Purpose and intent.

The purpose of a use permtt is to allow the proper integration Into the community of uses which
may be suitable only in specific locations in a zone or only if the uses are designed or arranged
out on the site in a partcular manner.

d  Section 17.24.010 of the Municipal Code is hereby amended to read as
fallows:

17.24.010 Purpose and Intent.

The purpose of a variance is to allow relief from the strict application of the provisions of this trtte
where special circumstances, typically pertaining to the physical characteristics or location of a
site, are such that the literal enforcement of the requirements of this title would involve practical
drfficiitties or would cause hardship, and therefore would not carry out the spirit arxJ purposes of
this title.

e. Section 17.32.010 of the Munidoal Code is hereby amended to read as
fallows:

17.32.010 Purpose and intent.

The purpose of a temporary activity permit is to allow for specified temporary uses of land or
buildings in a manner vrhich would not detrimentally impact the immediate area or otherwise
create a public nuisance

i  Section 17.36.010 of the Municioal Code is hereby amended to read as
fallows.

17.36.010 Purpose and intent.

It is the policy of the city to preserve and enhance the small-town qualities of Winters, to
improve property values and to conserve the overall visual character of the community. Furtfier,
the design review process is intended to ensure that the location and configuration of structures
and corollary site improvements are visually harmonious with their site and that of surrounding
sites and structures To implement these policies, the city requires design review for certain
types of development or when development occurs in certain locations. The design review
process may include an analysis of proposed architectural styles, consbuction materials, colors,
site landscaping ar>d similar development criteria. The Winters design guidelines shall t)e used
as a basis for this review.

Q. Section 17.46.010 of the Municipal Code is hereby amended to
read as follows

21

98



I  17.48.010 Purpose and intent.
In order to achieve the general plan goal "to promote the development of a cohesive and
aesthetically pleasing urtjan structure for Winters," the P-D overlay zone has been Included
within the scope of the zoning ordinance to allow for the maximum flexibility consistent with the
minimum development standards within each underlying zone category,

El Section 17.56.010 of the Municipal Code is hereby amended to
read as follows:

17.56.010 Generalfy.
A. All buildings or stnjctures or portions of structures developed or modified under the terms of
this title shall comply with the development standards of Tables 3A, 3B and 4 (Lot Development
Standards and Structure Setback Matrix).

B. Some developments within the city contain standards regulating issues such as
building/structure height, yard setbacks, floor area rabo and fencing which may be less or more
restrictive than the development standards contained within this section Such individualized
standards, typically prescribed by conditions of approval of the underlying subdivisions or
planned developments, shall prevail over the standards contained within this section, except
where, as determined by the community development director, application of standards unique
to a particular development would t>e inconsistent with the general plan In such cases, the
community development director shall consult with the planning commission in determining if
curent standards from this title should be applied.

Table 3A

LOT DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS

ZONE MAXIMUM FLOOR

AREA RATIO

MAXIMUM SITE

COVERAGE (%)
MAXIMUM STRUCTURE

HEIGHT

(In Feet)

A-l N/A N/A 45 nonresidential/30

residential

R-R N/A N/A 30

R-1 N/A 50 for single story

45 two or more stories

30

R-2 N/A 50 for single story

45 two or more stories

30

22

99



R-3 N/A 60 35

R-4 WA 70 45

C-1 .40 N/A 30

C-2 2.aV.60^ N/A 45

C-H .40 N/A 3045

0-F .40 N/A 35

SIP .40 N/A 35

M-1 ,40 N/A 40

M-2 .40 N/A 50

POP .50 N/A 40

P-R .20 N/A 25

O-S .05 N/A 25

P-D Per PD Plan Per PD Plan Per PD Plan

Footnotes:

1. 2.0 FAR for office and commercial uses.

2. 0.60 FAR for non-office and non-commercial uses.

The F A R, number is the maximum allowed for any combination of uses in a given zone.

Building height exceptions/modificatbns appear in Section 17 56-020fA).

L  Section 17 58.010 of the Municipal Code is hereby amended to read as
follows:

17.68.010 Purpose anA intent, and opplioability.

—Chapter Purpose and Intent The purpose of this chapter is to establish unique allov^ use
and development standards for properties within the downtown master plan area of Winters.
These standards are intended to help preserve and protect the existing, historic, and distinctive
character of the downtown by requiring new construction and remodels and existing
development to complement the existing built environment Through the application of these
standards, the downtown will continue to be the pedestrian-oriented shopping, dining,
entertainment, and living center of the greater Winters area.

follows:

Section 17.58.015 of the Municipal Code is hereby amended to read as

23

100



17.58.015 Applicabilitv.

BA Applicability of Standards and Entrtlement Review. The downtown master plan area has
been divided into downtown-A (D-A) and downtown-B (0-B), These districts are shown on the
regulating plan (Figure 17 58-1). The standards of this chapter apply to all property zoned either
downtown-A (D-A) or dowmtown-B (D-B). All qualifying projects under Section 17 36 020
(Requirements for design revtew) within the D-A or D-B zones shall be subject to design review
prior to issuance of building permit. Additionaliy, those uses that require a conditional use permit
as listed in Section 17 56 050 (Allowed use regulations) shall obtain a conditional use permit
prior to establishment of the use.

The application of both the zoning disbict and the regulating plan (see Section 17 58.030 for
definition) are described in more detail in Sections 17 58 Q20fA1 (Defining the Form-Based
Code for Downtown) and 17 56 040 (Regulating plan and street typologies and standards).
Generally, the zoning district designation (D-A or D-B) defines the character and allowed use

provisions for the subject site while the regulating plan defines ttie development standards
(setbacks, building typology, street standards).

GB. Applicability of Regulating Plan Standards. Generally, the development standards
applicable to a property shall be those for the respective zone (either D-A or D-B) and street
frontage as reflected in ttie regulating plan. However, for those properties that face onto multifHe
street frontages (e.g., a comer lot or a double frontage lot), the following shall apply:

1  Site Devetopment. The development starKlards applicable to the site shall be
reflective of tee irnJividual sides of tee lot For instance, if a comer lot faces Street A and
Street B, then that side of the lot tedng Street A shall be developed consistent with the
standards for Street A and tee side facing Street B shall t>e developed consistent with
tee standards for Street B. At tee comer, the design shall merge and unify the two (2)
standards together such teat:

a. The more restrictive setback requirement shall prevail on that side of tee
corner. For instance, if Street A has a five-foot build-to line and Street B has a zero

(Oj-foot build-to line, then that side facing Street A shall be located at the five (5)-
foot build-to line and the side facing Street B shall be located at tee zero (O)-foot
build-to line (note: in this example, tee building is not centered on the comer this is

consistent with the intent of this provision)

b. The more restrictive design standards shall prevail on that side of the comer,
provided the two (2J_standards are architecturally integrated together For instance,
if Street A allows for a stoop frontage and Street B does not, a stoop may be
developed along the Street A frontage, but at the comer the design of the building
must architecturally transition into a frontage type that Is allowed along Street B.

24

101



The same shall be true for allowed building types, storefront regulations, sign
types, and landscaping. Only those features allowed on that frontage may be
developed on said frontage.

2. Allowed Uses. The least restrictive use provisions shall apply to the entire lot
provided, that the primary entrance for the use either faces the street with the least
restrictive use regulations or (preferred) faces the intersection/street comer. For
instance, if a comer lot feces Street A and Street B and Street A allows a particular use
by right and Street 8 requires a conditional use permit for the same use. then the use
shall be allowed by right on that lot provided the primary entrance to the use is located
facing Street A or (preferred) facing the intersection/at the comer

3, Parking, Parking requirements are generally based on the use of the building;
however, where there is a conflict based upon street frontages, the more
restrictive/high^- parking ratio shall prevail (e.g., one and three-quarters 11.751 spaces
per unit are required, not one and one-half f 1,51 spaces per unit)) across the entire site,

__!< Section 17 58 030 of the Municipal Code is hereby amended to read as
follows

17.58.030 Ferm-

The following terms are used throughout the form-based code for downtown arfo are defined as
follows;

*Build-to line (BTL)* means an urt)an setback dimension tfiat delineates the maximum distance
frwn the property line a front or street side building facade can be placed Typically, build-to
lines range from zero (O)feet to ten (10) feet

"Building type" defines the type of structure based on massing, layout, and use, (See Section
17 56.060(0) for further discussion.)

"Bulkhead" means the portion of a commercial tecade located between the ground and the
bottom of the street level display windows. It is typically constructed of stone, brick, or concrete.

"Dwolbng unit" means any room or group of connected rooms that have sleeping, cooking;
eating, ar^d bathroom focalrttes. and are intended for long-term bccupationTExpression lirie* is an
architectural emtjellshment that delineates the end of the ground floor and the start of the
secofKj floor of a building,

"Facade" means the architecturally finished side of a building, typically facing onto a public right-
of-way or street.

Comment[19); StmilardefinttionMinSection
17.04,140. ftecofnm«nddelRln(thii(teflnltlenand
keeplre the one in Section 17D444a

25

102



"Form-based code (FBC)' means a development code emphasizing the regulation of building
form, scale, and orientation, rather than zoning and land use.

'Frontage line' means a tot line fronting a street, public right-of-way. paseo, plaza, or park.

tftat-poml}."Regulating plan' designates building form and streetscape starxlards based on
location, street hierarchy, and character. More specifically, it addresses how development
interacts with the street and how the street is developed, and it defines the development
standards (setbacks, building typology, street standards).

"Sotfaaok' moano the roquired diGtanoe betwoon o property line and o building or ancillafy
otructuro. (Ord. 2000 10 § 1 Exh 1 (^Mrlj))

follows

Section 17 76.010 of the Muntcioal Code is heretjv amended to read as

, Coniinent [20]: Same definWon«« in Section
; 17.04.140. Recommanddelatlngthlfdcflnftlonend
I keeping one In Sectlonl7.04.140.

-j Comment [21]: similar deflnRlon u in SectfMi
' 17.04.140. Recommend deleting ihlidcflnliien aid

! keeping one In Section 17.04.140.

17.76.010 Purpose and intent

The purpose of this chapter is to prescribe standards for landscaoifKi and irrioation for the

conservation and protection of property, the assurance of safety and secuntv. the enhancement

of prrvacv, the control of dust, the abatement or attenuation of noise, and the improvement of
the visual environment. All new develofwent shall provide landscaping in conformance with tfie

I standards contained in this chapter

read as follows

m. Chapter 17 96 of the Muniaoal Code is hereby amended in its entirety to

Chapter 17.96
ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGE ESTABLISHMENTS

Sections;

117.96.010 Use permit required.'

17 96.030 Requirements for on-sale liquor est^lishments

■17 96.040—Off solo liquor OGtoblishmento deftned
17 96 0640 Minimum conditions for off-sale liquor establishments
17 96 0650 Nonconforming establishments/improvements
17 96.0760 Existing establishments selling alcoholic beverages (on-sale and/or off-sale).
17.96.0670 Revocation of use permit.
17 96 0860 One-day on-sale licenses.

Comment [22]: Snce you are editing the
iHimberlng throu^out thh Chapter, you Should ]iat
include the full chapter In tha Ordinance, so the
entira Chapter tt replaced.

26

103



17.96.010 Use permit required.
A. On or after the effective date of the ordinanoe codified in this title, a use permit must be
obtained from the city for all on- and off-sale liquor establishments, with the exception of
veterans clubs, listed fraternal organizations, and restaurants, as defined m Chapter 17 08.
Existing on-sale and off-sale establishments not exempt from the provisions of fois titie must
obtain a use permit before substantially changing their mode or character of operation or
requesting a new, more permissive liquor license.

B. A copy of the conditions of approval for the use permit must be kept on the premises of the
establishment and posted in a place where it may readily be viewed by any member of the
general public.

C. In making any of the findings required pursuant to this title, the planning commission, or city
council on appeal, shall consider whether the proposed use will adversely affect the health,
safety or welfare of area residents or will result In an undue concentration In the area of

establishments dispensing, for sale or other consideration, alcoholic tjeverages, including beer
and wine.

The planning commission, or city council on appeal, shall also consider whether the proposed
use will detrimentally affect nearby residentially zoned community neighborhoods in the area,
after giving consideration to the distance of the proposed use from the following

1  Residential buildings;

2. Churches, schools, hospitals, public playgrounds and parks, convalescent homes,
and other similar uses, and

3. Other establishments dispensing for sale, or other consideration, alcoholic beverages
including t>eer and wine

Aft-'eOn-sale liquor establishment" means any establishment wherein alcoholic tieverages are
sold, served or given away for consumption on ttie premises including but not limited to any
focility which has obtained a California Department of Alcoholic Beverages Control license
Typical on-sale uses include, but are not limited to, the following establishments; bars, taverns,
night clubs, wineries, wine tasting rooms, txeweries or other private dubs. This definition shall
not indude restaurants as defined in Chapter 17 Q8. veterans' clubs, or the following fraternal
organizations: Elks Club. Moose Club, Eagle Club, Lions Club, or Rotary Club Fraternal
organizations not listed may be exempt upon planning commission approval.

Off-sale liQuor establishment" means any establishment which is aoolvinQ for or has obtained a
liquor license from the California Department of Alcoholic Beverage Control, indudlno Tvoe 20

(off-sale beer and wine). Type 21 foff-sale oeneral). for selling alcoholic beverages in an

27

104



unopened container for the consumption off the premises. For purposes of this title, the
definition of off-sale liquor establishment" shall not include food markets, supermarkets.
convenience markets, dnjostores. or any establishment in which sales of alcoholic beveraoes
constitute less than twenty (20) percent of total retail sales. Upon request, the owner/operator
shall submit evidence of total retail sales to the accountlno department of the citv for the
purpose of verifvinQ compliance with this chantar

17.96.0^ Requirements for on-sale liquor eetablishmente.
A- No on-sale liquor establishments shall be authorized or maintained within five hundred
(500) feet of sensitive uses. Sensitive uses include schools (public ar>d private): established
churches or places of worship; hospitals, clinics, or other health care facilities; public paries, or
playgrounds or other parie or recreational uses; or another on-sale liquor establishment. There
shall be no separation requirement Ijetween on-sale liquor establishments and a sensitive use
within the regulating plan area for the form-based code for downtown as defined in Chapter
V  purposes of this section, distance shall t)e measured from the nearest entrance
used by patrons of such establishments along the shortest route intended and available for
public passage to the entrance of other such establishments, or to the nearest property line of
any other sensitive use Veterans' clubs, fraternal organizations and restaurants are excluded
from the separation requirement of this section

B- Exterior lighting of the parking areas shall be kept at an intensity of at least one (1) foot
candle of light on the parking surface during the hours of darkness

C. All establishments shall be required to have a public telephone listing,

D. Special security measures such as security guards, robt>ery and burglar alarm systems
may be required.

E. The noise levels generated by the operation of such establishment shall not exceed fifty
(50) dba during daytime and forty-five (45) dba during nighttime, on adjoining properties zoned
for residential purposes

F. It shall be the responsibility of the applicant licensee to provide all staff with the training
necessary to gain the knowledge and skills that will enable tiiem to comply with their
responsibilities under law The knowledge and skills deemed necessary for responsible
alcoholic beverage service include, but not limited to, the following topics and skills
development:

1  State laws relating to alcoholic tieverages, particularly ABC and penal provisions
concerning sales to minors and Intoxicated persons, driving under the irrfluence, hours
of legal operation, and penalties for violations of these laws,

28

105



2. The potential legal liabilities of owners and employees of businesses dispensing
alcoholic beverages to patrons who may subsequently injure, harm or kill themselves or
innocent victims as a result of the excessive consumption of alcoholic beverages;

3  The effects of alcohol on the body, and behavior, including how the effects of
alcohol relate to the ability to operate a motor vehicle;

4. Methods for dealing with intoxicated customers and recognizing underaged
customers. Methods for preventing customers from becoming intoxicated.

17.96.040 Off sale liquor oetablishments doflrwd.
An ligi mr mnnnfi nny octablichmont which ic applying for or hoc
obtawied a liquor license from the California Dopartment of AlGoholic Beverage Control.
tnoluding Type 20 (off solo boor arxj wine), Type 21 (off sale general), for selling alcoholic

btte, the definition of 'off solo liquor octablishmonf shall not

supermarkotD,

alooholic bovoragoo constituto loco than twonty (20) porcont of total rotoil solos. Upon roquoot,
the ownor/oporotor shall cubmit ovidonoo of total rotoil

17.96.0940 Minimum conditions for off-sale liquor establishments.
Off-sale liquor establishments shall not sell or store motor fuels on the same premises as
alcoholic beverages, except upon the following conditions;

A. No beer or wine shall t>e displayed within five (5) feet of the front door unless it is in a

permanently affixed cooler

B. Exterior lighting of the parking lot shall be kept at an intensity of at least one (1) foot candle
on the parking lot surface, so as to provide adequate lighting for patrons while not disturbing
residential or commercial areas.

C. Signs shall be posted both inside and outeide the premises in conspicuous places, which
state 'It is unlawful for any pereon to sell, drink or consume beer, wine or other alcoholic

beverage, as defined in Business and Professions Code Section 23004. in or upon the public
streets, alley-ways or other public places in the city, including private parking lots held open to
the public,* Winters Municipal Code Section 9 08 010.

D. No sale of alcoholic beverages shall be made from a drive-through window

E. No display or sale of alcoholic beverages shall t)e made from an ice tub, or similar
container

Comment [23]: MowdtoSKtion 17.96.020
above.

29

106



F. Exterior public telephones that permit incoming calls may not be located on the premises.

G. Adult magazines and all printed matter coming within the definition of Section 313 of the
California Penal Code shall be located for sale only behind the counter and shall be stored in
racks covered by modest panels.

H. Litter and trash receptacles shall be located at convenient locations inside and outside the
premises, and operators of such establishments shall remove trash and debris on a daily basts.

I. Paper or plastic cups shall not be sold in quantities less than their usual and customary
packaging

J. All establishments shall be required to have a public telephone listing

K. No off-sale liquor establishment shall be maintained within five hundred (500) feet of such
consideration points as schools (public and private), established churches or other place of
worship, hospitals, convalescent homes, public parks, and playgrounds and/or other similar
uses. The distance of five hundred (500) feet shall be measured between the nearest entrances
used by patrons of such establishments along the shortest route to other establishments, or to
the nearest property line of any of the above referenced consideration points The separation
requirement shall be reduced to two hundred (200) feet for operations located within the central
business disbict.

L. The noise level generated by the operation of such establishments shall not exceed fifty
(50) (tt>a at daytime and forty-five (45) dba at nighttime on adjoining property zoned for
residential purposes, and sixty-three (63) dba at daytime and forty-five (45) dba at nighttime for
commercially zoned property

M Hours of operation of off-sale establishments may be restricted upon showing of good
cause.

N. It shall be the responsibility of the applicant licensee to provide all staff with the training
necessary to gain the knowledge and skills that will enable them to comply witfi their
responsibilities under law. The knowledge and skills deemed necessary for responsible
alcoholic beverage service shall include, but not be limited to the following topics and skills
development:

1. State laws relating to alcoholic beverages, particularly ABC and penal provisions
concerning sales to minors and intoxicated persons, driving utiderthe influence, hours
of legal operation, and penalties for violations of these laws:

30

107



2. The potential legal liabilities of owners and employees of businesses dispensing
alcoholic beverages to patrons who may subsequently injure, kill or harm themselves or
innocent victims as a result of the excessive consumption of alcoholic beverages;

3. The effects of alcohol on the body, and behavior, including how the effects of
alcohol affect the ability to operate a motor vehicle.

4. Methods for dealing with intoxicated customers and recognizing underaged
customers

[  17.96.0^0 Nonconformlng establlshmenta/improvements.
Except as provided herein, establishmente not conforming to the spatial requirements between
establishment and referenced consideration points shall not be permitted to expand a structure
or portion of structure as determined by the city's building and/or fire inspector Ordinary repair
and maintenance shall not be affected. Spatial requirements may be waived for establishments
who wish to expand. Individual plans to exparxJ a structure will tie reviewed on a case-by-case
basis by the planning commission, or city council on appeal, >vho will decide if the remodel or
upgrade is in the best interest of the city

17.96.0760 Existing establishments selling alcoholic beverages (on-sale and/or off-sale).
A. Any establishment lawfully existing prior to the effective date of this section and licensed by
the state of California for the retail sale of alcoholic beverages for on-slte consumption,
excepting restaurants and veterans clubs, arxl/or off-site consumption within the definitions of
Section 17 96 040. shall obtain a use permit w^n: (1) the existing establishment changes its
type of liquor license within a license classification and/or (2) there is a substantial change in the
mode or character of operation For purposes of this title 'substantial change of mode or
character of operation' shall include, but not limited to, expansion, a pattern of cor>du<S in
violation of other laws or regulations, a period of closure greater than six (6) months, or
increased square footage of alcoholic beverage sales or inventory

B  Any establishment which becomes lawfully established on or after the effective date of this
section and licensed by the state of California for retail sale of alcoholic beverages for on-site
and/or off-site consumption, shall obtain a modification of use permit when (1) the
establishment changes its type of liquor license within a license classification and/or 2) there is
a substantial change in the mode or character of operations

17.96.0870 Revocation of use permit
Use permits issued under this chapter shall be revocable pursuant to the temris of the zoning
ordinance.

17.96.0880 One-day on-saie licenses.

31

108



This chapter shall not apply to applications for one-day on^ale licenses pursuant to Business
and Professions Code Section 24045 1 and requirements for a temporary activity permit
pursuant to this title.

n. Section 17.100.010 of the Munfaoa! Code is hereby amended in its
entirety to read as foltows.

17.100.010 Purpose and Intent

The pumose of this chaoter is to prevent communitv-wide adverse economic imoacts. increased

crime, decreased orooertv values, and the deterioration of neiohborhoods which can result from
the concentration of adult-oriented businesses in close proximity to each other or proximity to
other incompatible uses such as private and public educational facilities for minors, places of

religious assembly or worship, public parks and recreation areas, and restdentialiy zoned
districts or uses. The Crty Council finds that rt has been demonstrated m various communities
that the concentration of adult-oriented businesses causes an increase in the numt)er of

transiente in the area, an increase in crime and biioht and also causes other businesses and

residents to move elsewhere. It is. therefore, the ouroose of this chapter to ftstahiish reasonable
and uniform regulations to prevent the concentration of adult-oriented businesses or their dose
prowmity to incompatible uses, while permittino the location of adult-oriented businesses in

certain areas.

0  Section 17 100.Q15of the Muniapal Code is hereby added to read as
follows.

17.100.0105 Definitions.

For the purposes of this chapter, certain vw)rds and phrases used are defined as follows:

"Adult entertainment use' includes all of the following types of establishments:

"Adult bookstore' means a business vyhich as a regular and substantial course of conduct offers
for sale or rent books, magazines, periodicals or other printed matter or photographs, films,
motion pictures, video cassettes, slides or other visual representatives whose dominant or
predominant character and theme is the depiction or description of specified sexual activrty or
specified anatomical areas, as defined in this chapter

1  As defined in this subsection, "regular and substantial course of conduct" shall be

construed with reference to all relevant factors, including but not limited to the following:

a. The proportion of the business' merchandise which depicts or describes
specified sexual activity, specified anatomical areas or is a nonprescription,
noncontraceptive sex-incitement device: and

32

109



b. The percentage of the business' revenues which are attributable to the sale or
rental of merchandise which depicts or specifies sexual activity, specified
anatomical areas or is a nonprescription, noncontraceptive sex-incitement device.

'Adult Eentertainment 8business% Ameans anv business ts an 'adult ontortainmont

buGinoGo'where tf-any of the following conditions exist;

1  The business devotes or intends to devote more than twenty-five (25) percent of its
retail inventory (not as measured by the number of items but rather by the cost to the
business owner of the inventory) to merchandise whose dominant or predominant
character and theme is specified sexual activities or specified anatomical areas,
hereafter referred to as "sexually e)^licit"

2. The business devotes or intends to devote more than twenty-five (25) percent of
the retail floor area to sexually explicit merchandise

3. The business has not segregated or intends not to segregate in one (ILIocation in
the store all sexually explicit mercharxJise offered for sale, rental and/or viewirrg from
the non-sexually explicit merchandise

4. The retail value of sexually explicit inventory offered for sale in each category; (a)
books: (b) magazines; (c) Beta videotapes for sale: (d) VHS videotapes for sale: (e)
DVDs for sale ifi Beta videos for rental: (^) VHS videos for rental: (gh) DVDs for rental.
(D.novelties: (hg) on-premises viewing of images, films and/or videos exceeds or is
expected to exceed twenty-five (25) percent if the total retail value of inventory offered
for sale in each category

5. Gross revenue derived from sexually ei^licit inventory in any particular category
(see sut>division 4 atiove) of inventory exceeds or is expected to exceed twenty-five
(25) percent of the total gross revenue for that category.

6. The business advertises (either ft̂ ee or paid for advertisements) in a manner that
identifies the business as having sexually explicit merchandise for sale, rental and/or
viewing.

7  Any business which offers or advertises sexually explicit merchandise in any of the
above categories (see subdivision 4 above), and which fails to make available to the
city for inspection and copying all records of revenue on request after reasonable notice
not less than twenty-four (24) hours

8. Any business that is an adult entertainment use based on any of the above
conditions may make an application for an exception Such an application shall be

33

110



made to the zoning administrator and shati specify all facts supporting the exception
and shall have attached to it ail supporting documentation.

Adult hotel means any hotel which as a regular and substantial course of conduct provides,
through dosed-circuit television or other media, material which is distinguished or characterized
by an emphasis on matter depicting or describing specified sexual activity or specified
anatomical areas, as defined in this chapter.

Adult motion picture theater" means an endosed building and/or drive-in motton picture theater
which is open to the public and which, as a regular course of conduct, is used for presenting
filmed or videotaped materials whose dominant or predominant character and tiieme are the
depiction or display or spedfied sexual activity or specified anatomical areas, as defined in this
chapter, for observation by six 16) or more patrons of such use at any one (1) time.

1  As defined in this subsection, "regular and substantial course of conduct" shall be
construed with reference to all relevant factors, induding but not limited to the following:

a. The proportion of the theater's films which depict specified sexual activity or
specified anatomical areas;

b. The number of films depicting or displaying spedfied sexual activity or
spedfied anatomical areas which are shovwi at the theater each week, each
weekend or each month;

c. The nature of the films which receive top billing on the theater's marquee or in
its advertising; and

d. The proportion of the theater's revenue which is attributable to the showing of
films depicting or displaying specified sexual activity or anatomical areas.

"Adult picture arcade* means any business wherein, as a regular course of conduct coin or
slug-operated or electronically, electrically or mechanically controlled still or motion picture
machines, projectors, television sets or other image produdng devices are used to display
images to five l^or fewer persons per machine at any one Qltime, and which images have as
a dominant or predominant character and theme the display or depiction of spedfied sexual
activity or specified anatomical areas.

1  As defined In this subsection, "regular and substantial course of conduct" is
construed with reference to a number of factors, including, but not limited to the
following:

34

111



a. The proportion of the business" movies, shows, pictures and images which
have as their predominant tfieme the display or depiction of specified sexual
activity or specified anatomical areas; and

b. The proportion of the business' revenue which is attributable to the showing of
pictures depicting or displaying specified sexual activity or specified anatomical
areas.

"Bathhouse" means an establishment which as a regular and substantial course of conduct
provides, for a fee or other consideration, access to any kind of bath facility, including showers,
saunas and hot tubs. This definition does not include a bona fide athletic club, health club,
school, gymnasium, reducing salon or similar establishment where baths or hydrotherapy are
offered as incidental or accessory services

"Massace" means manipulation of tissues las bv rubbino. kneading or tapping) with the hand.
body or other instrument 4 comment [24]: Moved fnm Sceaon l7.M.14a

'Massage parlor" means any establishment having a fixed place of business where any person
engages in or carries on, or permits to be engaged in or carried on, any activity set forth in the
definition of "massage" in Chapter 17 04. Any establishment engaged in, carrying on, or
permitting any combination of massage and bathhouse shall t>e deemed a massage parlor.

"Modeling studio' means a business which provides as a regular and substantial course of
corrduct. for a fee or other consideration, figure models who display specified anatomical areas
to be observed, sketched, photographed, painted, sculptured or otherwise depicted by persons
paying such consideration 'Modeling studio" does not Include schools maintained pursuant the
standards set by the State Board of Education

"Nude dancing theater" means and building or structure which as a regular and substantial
course of conduct Is used for the presentation of live dancing or modeling, the dominant or
predominant character and theme of which are the display of specified sexual activity or
specified anatomical areas, as defined in this chapter, and to which the public is permitted or
invited

"Sexual encounter center" means a business which as a regular and substantial course of
conduct fxovides two l2i.or more persons, for pecuniary cxjmpensation, consideration, hire or
reward, with a place to assemble the purpose of engaging in specified sexual activity or
displaying specified anatomical areas. "Sexual encounter center" does not include hotels or
motels.

"Establishment of an adult entertainment use" means and includes the opening of such a
business as a new business, the relocation of such a business or the conversion of an existing
use to any adult entertainment use.

35

112



"Speafied anatomical areas' means and inciudes, and is limited to. the following:

1  Less than completely and opaquely covered human genitalia, pubic region,
buttocks and female breasts below the top of the areola, and/or

2. Human male genitalia in a discemibly turgid state, even if completely or opaquely
covered

'Specified sexual activity' means and includes, and Is limited to the following:

1- Actual or simulated genital or anal sexual intercourse:

2. Oral copulation:

3. Bestiality;

4. Direct physical stimulation of unclothed genitals;

5. Masochism;

6. Erotic or sexually-oriented torture, beating or the infliction of pain; or

7. The use of excretory functions in the context of a sexual relationship.

P- Section 17.108.010 of the Muniaoal Code is hereby amended to read as
follows:

17.108.010 Purpose and Intent

The purpose and intent of this chapter is to help preserve and protect historic buildings and
structures, cultural resources, landmarks, natural feature and other resources of historical

significance through the aoDlication of the regulations contained in this chapter

Q  Section 17.108.015 of the Muniaoal Code is hereby added to read as
follows;

17.108.0105 Definitions.

'Alteration' means any exterior change or modification, through public or private action, of any
cultural resource or of any property located within a historic district including, but not limited to,
exterior changes to or modification of structure, architectural details or visual characteristics

such as grading, surface paving, new structures, cutting or removal of trees and other natural
features, disturbance of archeological sites or areas, and the placement or removal of any

36

113



exterior objects such as signs, plaques, light fixhjres, street fumrture, walls, fences, steps,
plantings and landscape accessories affecting the exterior visual qualities of the property.

"Cultural resource' means improvemente, buildings, structures, signs, features, sites, places,
areas or other areas of scientific, aesthetic, educational, cultural, archeological, agricultural,
religious, ethnic, architectural, or historical significance to the citizens of the city, or the state of
California, or the nation.

'Demolition" means any act or prooooo that destroys in part Of in whole an individual cultural
roBouroe or a culturol rosourco or other structuro within a hictonc district or neighborhood, or

"Designated site" (historic site, cultural resource site, landmark site) means a parcel or part
thereof on which a cultural resource Is situated, and any abutting parcel or part thereof
constituting part of the premises on which the cultural resource is situated, and which has been
deemed a designated site pursuant to this chapter.

'Designated structure" (landmark, cultural resource, historic structure) means any improvement
that has special historical, cultural, aesteetic or architectural character, interest or value as part
of the development, heritage or history of the city, the state of California, or the nation and that
has been designated pursuant to this chapter

"Exterior architectural feature" means the architectural elements embodying style, design,
general arrangement and components of all of the outer surfaces of an improvement, including
but not limited to tf>e kind, color and texture of the building matenals and the type and style of all
windows, doors, lights, signs and other fixtures appurtenant to such improvement.

'Historic district" means any area containing improvements viihich have a special character,
historical interest or aesthetic value or \which represent one or more architectural periods or
styles typical to the history of the city, and which improvements constitute a distinct section of
the city that has tjeen designated a historic district pursuant to this chapter

"Improvement" means any building, structure, place, parking facility, fence, gate, wall, work of
art or other object constituting a physical betterment of real property, or any part of such
betterment.

'Natural feature" means any tree, plant life, geographical or geological site or feature subject to
the provisions of this chapter.

"Object" means a material thing of functional, aesthetic, cultural, symbolic, archeological,
religious, ethnic, agricultural or saentific value, usually by design or nature movable.

37

\ Comment [251; Moved to SwrBon 17J4.14a

114



"Potential cultural resource" means an improvement, object or natural feature which may be
nominated for consideration by the commission and may be designated under the condition that
either: (1) more research becomes available regarding its eligibility; or (2) the resource is
restored to its original condition; or (3) the resource is one of the few remaining examples in the
dty of Its t^.

"Preservation" means the identification, study, protection, restoration, rehabilitation or

enhancement of cultural resources.

"Secretary of the Interior Standards for Rehabilitation" means the guidelines prepared by the
National Park Service for Rehabilitating Historic Buildings and the Standards for Historic
Preservation Projects prepared by the National Park Service with Guidelines for Af^lying the
Standards.

"Significant feature' means the natural or man-made elements embodying style or type of
cuttural resource, design, or general amangement and components of an improvement,
including but not limited to. the kind, of the building matenals and type and style of all windows,
doors, lights, signs and other fixtures appurtenant to such improvement.

r  Section 17.112.010 of the Municipal Code is hereby amended to read as
follows:

17.112.010 Purpose and intent.

This chapter shall provide for the conversion of projects where ownership of existing buildings is
subdivided, whether such subdivision involves residential to commercial/industrial or

commercial/industrial to commercial/industrial, and whether such conversion is to condominium,
as defined in Section 1350 of the Civil Code, to community apartment projects, as defined in
Section 11004 of the Business and Professions Code, or to stock cooperatives, as defif>ed in
Section 11003 2 of the Business and Professions Code.

This chapter recognizes that a conversion is different from new construction in that the owners

of a unit in a conversion take responsibility for a building built under standards that may lie less
stringent than those that are currently required, and existing tenants may t>e displaced by a
convereion A conversion also differs from a leased or rental property in that the unit owner
assumes long-term responsibility for the unit owned, for the common areas of the project, and
the higher level of economic cost required to own instead of rent

The intent of this chapter is to provide increased options for commercial development and
business ownership opportunities. The further intent of this chapter is to mitigate the hardship
caused by displacement of commercial tenants; and to assure that conversion projects maintain
long-term economic value for the owner

38

115



Therefore, such conversions shall be permitted, provided that they shall comply with the
standards set forth in this chapter for the class of conversion proposed and all other applicable
laws.

S- Section 17.112.02QQf the Municipal Code is hereby amended to read as
follows.

17.112.020 Definitions.

The following definitions pertain to this chapter related to condominium conversions and new

construction

"Applicant" means the owner(s) or subdivider(s) with a controlling interest in the proposed
project, and any successors in interest.

"Association' means the organization created to own, lease, manage, maintain, preserve and
control the lots, parcels or areas of a project, or any portions thereof or interests therein owned
in common by the owners of the separately owned condominium units.

"Commercial condominium project" means a commercial condominium project intended for
commercial occupancy

"Common area" means an entire condominium project excepting all units therein

"Condominium" means and includes:

1  "Condominium' as defined by Section 7^ of the Civil Code;

2. "Community apartment project' as defined by Section 11004 of the Business and

Professions Code;

3. 'Stock cooperative" as defined by Section 11003 2 of the Business and Professions

Code; and

4. "Planned development' as defined by Section ^ 1003 of the Business and

Professions Code

The term 'condominium* spedfically includes, but is not limited to, the conversion of any
existing structure for sale pursuant to a method described in subsections 1 through 4 of this
definition

"Condominium conversion' or 'conversion' means a change in the ownership of a parcel or
parcels of property, together with structures thereon, whereby the parcel or parcels and
structures previously used as rental units are changed to condominium ownership

39

116



Condominium conversion includes projects which have previously obtained final map approval,
but have not proceeded to sell any of the units.

"CorKJominium prpjecf or 'project* includes the real property and any structures thereon, or any
structures to be consfructed thereon, which are to be divided into condominium ownership.

'Condominium unit* or "units' means the individual spaces within a condominium project owned
as individual estates.

'Eligible tenant* means any tenant who was a resident of the condominium project proposed for
conversion on the date notice of intent to convert is given as required by state law.

person or household or other torni.

.•ypiir.ihia tn Ynif> pnnnf^t fiipft 35 publlshod and annually updotod by the

-of Housing and Urban Developmofll

means a housohoid whooo incomo is eighty one (61) to one hundred twenty (120) percent of
the median income applicable to Yolo County, adjuotod for family size as published ar>d
annually updated by the United States Deparfrnent of Housing and Urban Development.

"Notice of intent to converf means the notice required to be served upon tenants or prospective
tenants pursuant to the requirements of Section 66427 1, 86452.8, 66452.9 or 66459 of the

Subdivision Map Act The definition includes both sixty (60) and one hundred eighty (180) day
notices as further defined in the applicable section.

"Special category tenants' refers to persons or tenants v\^o fall within one or more of the
following categories:

1. "Elderly' means individuals sixty-two (62) years of age or older.

follows:

2. "Handicapped" or "permanently disabled' means as defined in Section 50072 of the

CaWomia Health and Safety Code or 42 U.S.C 423 and 24 CFR 8.3;

3. "Low income* or "Very low income' means as defined in tfwsSection 17.200.020.

t- Section 17.116 010 of the Municipal Code Is hereby amended to read as

Oummenl [2S]: Smitw <tafinMon «t in Section
17.200.020.

Comnient [27]: Sbnte iWMtlen as In Sietlan
17,200.020.

17.116.010 Purpose and intent.

The sidewalk cafe regulations as established in this chapter are intended to encourage the
establishment of sidewalk cafes in the city of Winters, to provide for the creation of a more

40

117



urban pedestrian environment, and to promote and protect the public health, safety, and general
wettere. These goals Indude among otfiere the following specific purposes:

A. To encourage and promote sidewalk cafes as visual amenities which in tum intensify
pedestrian activity and make street life more attractive:

B. To enhance the character of the city of Winters; and

C. To ensure adequate space for pedestrians on the sidewalk adjacent to sidewalk cafes.

u  Section 17 120.010 of the Municipal Code is hereby amended to read as
follows.

17.120.010 Purpose and intent—Soopo.

It is the purpose and intent of the Winters city council, through the adoption of this chapter, to
establish an abandoned or vacant property registration program as a mechanism to protect
neighborhoods arfo commercial areas from becoming blighted through the lack of adequate
maintenance and security of abandoned and vacated properties.

V  Section 17 120.020 of the Munlapal Code is hereby amended to read as
follows:

17.120.020 [Definitions.

For the purposes of this chapter, certain words and phrases used in this chapter are defined as
follows:

"Abandoned" means a property that is vacant and is (A) under a current r>otice of default (B)
under a current notice of trustee's sale; (C) pending a tax assessor's lien sate; (D) any property
that has been the subject of a foreclosure sate where the title was retained by the beneficiary of
a deed of trust Involved in the foreclosure, and (E) any property transferred under a deed in lieu
of foreclosure/sale.

'Ac^ssible property" means a property that is accessible through a compromised/breached
window, gate, fence, vrall, etc.

"Accessible structure" means a structure/building that is unsecured and/or breached in such a
way as to allow access to the interior space by unauthorized persons.

'Beneficiary' means a tender or holder of a note secured by a deed of trust

"Beneficiaryrtrustee" means both the t>eneficiary and the trustee V\flien any act is required of
the t)eneficiary/trustee by this chapter, both are responsible for performing such act and may be
charged with a violation of this code for feilure to act. However, it is sufficient if it is

41

118



accomplished by either one. If information is required to be provided, then both must provide
such information.

"Deed in lieu of foreclosure/sale* means a recorded document that transfers ownership of a
property from the trustee to the holder of a deed of trust upon consent of the t>eneficiary of the
deed of trust.

'Deed of trust' rneans an instrument by which title to real estate is transferred to a third party
trustee as security for a real estate loan and often used in California instead of a mortgage. This
definition applies to any and all subsequent deeds of trust, i.e., second trust deed, third trust
deed. etc.

"Distressed" means a property that is under a current notice of default and/or notice of trustee's
sale and/or pending tax assessor's lien sale or has been foreclosed upon by the trustee or has
been conveyed to the beneficiary/trustee via a deed in lieu of foreclosure/sale

"Evidence of vacancy" means any condition that on Its own or combined with other conditions
present would lead a reasonable person to believe that the property is vacant and not occupied
by authorized persons. Such conditions include, but are not limited to, overgrown and/or dead
vegetation, accumulation of nev/spapers, circulars, flyers and/or mail, past due utility notices
and/or disconnected utilities, accumulation of trash, junk and/or debris, the absence of window
coverings such as curtains, blinds and/or shutters, the atjsence of fumishings and/or personal
items consistent with residential habitation, and statements by neighbors, passersby. delivery
agents, or government employees that the property ts vacant.

"Locai" means within thirty (30) road/driving miles distant of the subject property

"Notice of default' means a recorded notice that a default has occurred under a deed of trust
and that the beneficiary intends to proceed with a trustee's sale

"Out of area" means in excess of thirty (30) road/driving miles' distance of the subject property.

"Property" means any unimproved or
improved real property, or portion thereof, situated in the city and Includes the buildings or
structures located on the property regardless of condition

■Responsible person' means any person, partnership, association, corporation, or fiduciary
having legal or equitable title to or any interest in any real property and Includes trustees and
beneficiaries of a deed of trust on the property and any other lien holder on the property.

"Securing" means such measure as may be directed by the director of community
development, or his or her designee, that assist in rendering the property inaccessible to

Comment [2t]: Tbistarmb netustdln this
SKOon. SlmUar deftnitign u in S«tk>n 17.04,14a

42

119



unauthorized persons, including but not limited to the repairing offences and walls, chaining or
padlocking of gates, or the repair or boarding of doors, windows and/or other openings.
Boarding shall be (xjmpleted to a minimum of the current HUD securing standards at the time
the boarding is completed or required.

Trustee" means the person, firm or corporation holding a deed of trust on a property.

Tiiistor" means a twrrower urxjer a deed of trust who deeds property to a trustee as security
for the payment of a debt

"Vacanf means a building/structure that is rxjt occupied by authorized persons.

w. Section 17.122.020 of the Munidoal Code is hereby amended to read as
follows:

17.122.020 Definitions.

For the purposes of this chapter, the following word shall have the meaning respectively
ascrit)ed to it in this section.

"Single room occupancy" means a facility providing six (6) or more dwelling units where each
unit has a minimum floor area of one hundred fifty (150) feet and a maximum floor area of four
hundred (400) square feet. These dwelling units may have kitchen or bathroom facilities and
shall be offered on a monthly basis or longer

X; Section 17 123.020 of the Munigpal Code is herebv added to read as
follows:

17.123.020 Definitions.

"Farmworker" means the same as 'agricultural employee" as defined in Section 114Q 4(b) of the
Califomia Labor Code

"Farmworker dwelling unit" means a single-family residential unit occupied by a maximum of six
farmvirorkers at any one time.

"Farmvirofker housing" means a housing accommodation developed for and/or provided to
farmworkers and shall consist of any living quarters, dwelling, boarding house, tent, barracks,
bunkhouse, malntenance-of-way car, mobile home, manufactured home, recreational vehicle,
travel trailer, or other housing accommodation maintained in one Lllor more buildings and on
one (ILof more sites. Farmworker housing shall consist of either a farmworker dwelling unit or a
fermworker housing complex.

43

120



'Farmworker housing complex" means farmworker housing other than a farmworker dwelling
unit that (1) contains a maximum of thirty-six (36) beds if the housing consists of any group
living quarters, such as barracks or a bunkhouse, and is occupied exclusively by farmworkers;
or (2) contains a maximum of twelve (12) residential units occupied exclusively by farmworkers
arxJ their households, if the housing does not consist of any group Irving quarters.

0  Section 17.200.020 of the Muniaoal Code is hereby amerxled to read as
follows

17.200.020 Definitions.

'Affordable housing" means affordable sales housina or affordable rental housina Affordable
housing focuses on moderate, low and very low income households as defined herein and bv
state statuteL

"Affordable housing steering committee* means an advisory committee af^ointed by the city
council for the purpose of advising the city council, planning commission, community
development agency and city staff on affordable housing policies and programs, use of
redevelopment housing funds, proposed affordable housing projects, and other housing
matters, at the request of the city council.

department of tho orty. or his or her docignoO.'Dovok>per" means any porson. frrm, partnership,
association, joint venture, corporation, or any entity or combination of ontitieB Mrfiich seeks the

project-.city approval discrotionary lafie entitlementc aU developmentuse

Developer" includes lowneri."

'Indusionary housing
agreemenf means an agreement between the developer and the dty setting forth the manner in
which the indusionary housing requirements will be met in the development project.

"Indusionary housing plan' means the plan setting forth the manner in which the developer
proposes to satisfy the indusionary housing requirements of this chapter witain the development
project.

'Indusionary housing requirement" means the indusionary housing requirements as specified in
tais chapter.

"Indusionary housing unit* or "indusionary unlf means an ownership or rental unit developed or
provided in satisfaction of the indusionary housing requiremente of a development project, as
provided for in this chapter, and which is affordable to very low, low income or moderate income
households.

Comment [29]: CoplKl from SKtlon 17.04,140,

Comment [30]: Similar definition as In Section
17,04.140.

Comment [32]: Moved to Section 17.04.140.

Comment [32]: similerdeflntttones in Section
17.04.140.

44

121



torYolp. adjMs^ foK ̂ipiiiySOB BS

HfeiiiiiMi

adjust

4. Severabilitv. If any section, sentence, dause or phrase of this Ordinance or the
application thereof to any entity, person or circumstance is held for any reason to be invalid, or
unconstitutional, such invalidity or unconstitutionality shall not affect other provsions or
applications of this Ordinance which can be given effect without the invalid provision or
application, and to this end the provisions of this ordinance are dedared to be severable. The
City Council of the City of Winters hereby dedare that they would have adopted this Ordinance
and each section, sentenra, clause or phrase thereof, irrespective of the fact that any one or
more section, subsections, sentences, clauses or phrases be dedared invalid or
unconstitutional.

5- Effective Date. This ordinance shall take eff^ thirty (30) days following its adoption

6. Publication- The City Clerk shall certify to tiie adoption of this Ordinance. Not later
than fifteen (15) days following the passage of this Ordinance, the Ordinance, or a summary
thereof, along with the names of the City Council members voting for arKl against the
Ordinance, shall be published in a newspaper of general circulation in the City of Winters.

INTRODUCED at a regular meeting on the day of 2016 and PASSED AND
ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Winters City Council, County of Yolo, State of Califomia,
on the day of , 2016 by tiie following roll call vote;

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN;

ATTEST:
Cecilia Aguiar-Curry. Mayor

45

122



ORDINANCE NO. 2016-10

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WINTERS
AMENDING VARIOUS SECTIONS OF TITLE 17 (ZONING ORDINANCE) OF

THE WINTERS MUNICIPAL CODE

The City Council of the City of Winters, State of California, does hereby ordain as
follows:

1. Purpose. The purpose of this ordinance is to amend various sections of Title 17
involving mostly formatting, removal of duplicative language and amending TableSA in Chapter
17.56 by increasing from 30 to 45 feet the maximum allowable structure height permitted in the
Highway Service Commercial (C-H) Zoning District.

2. Authority. The City of Winters has authority to adopt this ordinance pursuant to the
general police power granted to cities by Article 11, Section 7 of the California Constitution.

3. Amendments to Title 17 of the Municipal Code are hereby amended as follows:

a. Chapter 17.04 of the Municipal Code is hereby amended in its entirety to
read as follows:

Chapter 17.04
INTRODUCTORY PROVISIONS AND DEFINITIONS

17.04.140 Definitions.

B. Definitions.

"Abutting" or "contiguous" means land or zoning district boundaries having a common property
line. Lands or district boundaries separated by an alley, street or right-of-way shall be
considered abutting.

"Acceptance for filing" means receipt and continued processing of an application or submittal
over the public counter or through the mail or other delivery service, based on a preliminary
determination that all required components (e.g. fees, completed application, mailing lists,
appropriate copies of maps, special notes or statements, etc.) are provided. If all required
components are not provided, the application shall not be accepted and/or shall be returned.
"Acceptance" for purposes of filing, routing, or processing, is to be distinguished from a
detennination that the application or submittal is "complete."

"Access drive" or "driveway" means a private driveway connectirig a street or alley with a
parking or loading area with space and of sufficient width to permit safely the passage of all
vehicles, equipment, machinery, trailers, mobilehomes, boats, and/or pedestrians, either self-
propelled or transported, which may normally or reasonably be expected to seek access to the
parking or loading area or space. Whenever the size, location, or use of the parking or loading

1

ATTACHMENT B

123



area is such as to reasonably necessitate the use of the drive by emergency vehicles, the drive
shall be of adequate width and design to permit the passage of the emergency vehicles. An
access drive or easement serving four (4) or fewer single-family residences shall not be counted
for setback purposes.

"Accessory building or accessory structure" means a detached subordinate structure or building
located on the same premises as the main building or buildings (or proposed for development
concurrently with the main building or buildings), the use of which is customarily incidental to
that of the main building or to the use of the land. Where any portion of a wall of an accessory
building or structure is attached to the main building, or where an accessory structure is
attached to the main building in a substantial manner by a roof or deck, the accessory building
or structure shall be considered and treated as part of the main building.

"Accessory use" means a lawfully permitted use in the zone, unless otherwise noted in this title,
which use is customarily incidental and subordinate to the principal use of the site or of a main
building on the site and serving a purpose which does not change the character of the principal
use, and which is compatible with other principal uses in the same zone and with the purpose of
the zone.

"Adjoin" means the same as "abutting."

"Administrative" means an internal, preliminary draft document submitted to the city for
independent review for administrative purposes only. Administrative draft documents are not a
part of the record of proceedings nor considered a "public document" for the purposes of the
Public Records Act or the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). Administrative drafts
are to be discarded or returned to the consultant, and shall not be retained in the project files.

"A-Frame sign" means a portable freestanding sign capable of standing without support or
attachment.

"Agent of owner" means any person who can show certified written proof that he or she is acting
for the property owner.

"Alley" or "lane" means a public or private way, other than a driveway, affording only secondary
means of access to abutting property.

"Alter" means a physical change in a structure, including changes to bearing walls, columns and
beams, or to the exterior appearance of a structure, other than painting.

"Animal, Exotic" means any wild animal not customarily confined or cultivated by man for
domestic purposes, other than small or large domestic animals. This term includes llamas,
peacocks, large reptiles.

124



"Animal, Large domestic" means domestic horses, burros and mules, domestic swine, domestic
cattle, sheep, goats and similar livestock. The term shall also include the keeping of rabbits, pot
bellied pigs, hens, and geese.

"Animal, Small domestic" means dogs and cats over the age often (10) weeks.

"Apartment" means a multifamily dwelling consisting of three (3) or more dwelling units offered
for rent or lease, under single ownership.

"Applicant" means the person, public or private, listed as the applicant on an application for a
project and includes the record owner of the real property that is the subject of the project at the
time of the application for the project.

"Approving body" means the city council of the city of Winters and/or the Winters planning
commission, whichever takes final discretionary action on a project.

"Beginning of construction" means the incorporation of labor and materials at a construction site,
commencing with grading or foundation construction, whichever occurs sooner.

"Block" means all property fronting on one (1) side of a street between intercepting streets or
between a street and a waterway, dead-end street, major easement or right-of-way, or
unsubdivided land. An intercepting street shall only determine the boundary of a block on the
side of the street which it intercepts.

"Breezeway" means a roofed structure open on two (2) sides connecting two structures, such as
a residence and a garage.

"Building" means any structure having a roof and supported by columns or walls, which is used
or intended to be used for the shelter or enclosure of persons, animals or property.

"Building frontage" means the primary wall of a building facing a street (not including the
freeway). If the building does not front on a street, the face of the building containing the main
structure entry is the building frontage.

"Building materials" means any substance that can be used in construction of buildings,
roadways or accessory structures.

"Building, Main" means a building in which is conducted the principal use of the building site on
which the building is situated.

"Building, Nonconfonming" means a building or portion thereof which was lawful when
established but which does not conform to subsequently established zoning regulations.

"Carport" means a roofed structure with one (1) or more open sides for the parking of vehicles.

125



"Commercial marijuana cultivation" means cultivation of medical marijuana licensed by the state
of California in accordance with the Medical Marijuana Regulation and Safety Act, California
Business and Professions Code Section 19300 et seq., and contemplated by the definition of
"commercial cannabis activity" set forth in California Business and Professions Code Section
19300.5(k), as amended. Commercial marijuana cultivation is prohibited in the city. Pursuant to
Section 11362.777 of the California Health and Safety Code, effective January 1, 2016, this
definition is intended to regulate the cultivation of medical marijuana by prohibiting commercial
marijuana cultivation within the city, and thereby expressly reserving any future local licensing
authority granted to the city by that section. This definition shall not restrict cultivation of medical
marijuana by a "primary caregiver" or "qualified patient," as those terms are defined by Health
and Safety Code Section 11362 7. or by a "medical marijuana cooperative," as defined herein
subject to the restrictions set forth in this section.

"Community development director" means the director of the community development and
building department.

"Complete application" means an application or submittal determined to be complete pursuant
to Section 65943 of the Government Code, upon receipt of adequate (sufficient) information and
data describing the project and the project setting, to allow for an initial study to be conducted
and the environmental determination to be made. This determination is usually documented by
a letter of completeness.

"Cottage food operation" means any activity operated as a cottage food enterprise with not more
than one (1) full-time equivalent cottage food employee, not including a family member or
household member of the cottage food operator living in the home where the cottage food
products are prepared or packaged for direct or indirect sale to consumers, as defined and may
be amended by the California Department of Public Health, Section 113758 of the Health and

Safety Code. Gross annual sales are regulated by the provisions of Section 113758 of Health
and Safety Code.

"Cottage food products" means non-potentially-hazardous foods, including foods that are limited
to and described in Section 114365.5 of the California Health and Safety Code and that are
prepared for sale in the kitchen of a cottage food operation.

"Counter audit" means a preliminary evaluation of a submittal or application that occurs at the
public counter, to determine whether it can be accepted for filing, routing, or processing, and to
determine the applicability of CEQA.

"Cultivation" means any activity involving the planting, growing, harvesting, drying, curing,
grading, trimming or processing of marijuana or any part thereof.

"Deemed withdrawn" means a determination by the city that an application is no longer valid.
Applications that have been deemed withdrawn are to be physically returned to the applicant.

126



and no further processing is conducted. Processing fees that have not been expended, less
administrative charges, are reimbursed or may be applied to resubmittal. Projects that are
withdrawn and resubmitted are processed in the same manner as newly submitted projects. No
special priority or fees are applicable.

"Demolition" means any act or process that destroys in part or in whole at least seventy-ftve (75)
percent of an existing (original exterior building or structure walls, individual cultural resource or
a cultural resource or other structure within a historic district or neighborhood, or cultural
resource area

Density bonus" means entitlement to build additional residential units above the maximum
number of units permitted pursuant to the existing general plan, applicable specific plan and
zoning designations. Density bonus units may be constructed only in the development where
the units of affordable housing are located. Density bonus means a bonus of units awarded to a
development pursuant to Government Code Section 65915 et seq.

"Density, Gross residential" means the average number of dwelling units on one (1) acre of land
in a given area where the acreage is based on the total land area including streets and rights of
way.

"Density, Net residential" means the average number of dwelling units on one (1) net acre of
land used or available for residential purposes after excluding streets and rights-of-way.

"Developer" means any person, firm, partnership, association, joint venture, corporation, or any
entity or combination of entities which seeks the city's approval of discretionary land use
entitlements for all or part of a development project. "Developer" includes "owner."

"Development" means any activity related to the placement of any structure, grading, change in
density or intensity of land use and including subdivision of land or air space, or a demolition,
addition, repair or alteration of a structure or facility.

"Dwelling" means any building or portion thereof containing one (1) or more dwelling units
designed or used exclusively as a residence or sleeping place for one (1) or more families, but
not including a tent, cabin, boat, trailer, dormitory, labor camp, hotel or motel.

"Dwelling, Guest" means separate, accessory living quarters, having no kitchen facilities,
attached to the main building or located in an accessory building situated on the same site as
the main building, for temporary use by guests of the occupants of the main building and not
rented or otherwise used as a separate dwelling.

"Dwelling unit" means one (1) room or suite of two (2) or more rooms designed for, intended for,
or used by one (1) family, which family lives, sleeps, and cooks therein, and which unit has one
(1) kitchen or kitchenette.

127



"Emergency vehicle" means a self-propelled vehicle or trailer used in the discharge of duties of
public districts, agencies or departments, or privately owned public utilities responsible for
medical services, fire prevention and control, policing, sanitation, sewerage, drainage, levee
maintenance, flood control, public utility lines and all essential services.

"Environmental coordinator" means the director of community development or his or her
designated representative.

"Erect" means to locate, construct, attach, suspend, affix or paint a sign.

"Factory-built home" means a residential building constructed in conformance with the State of
California Factory-Built Housing Code. A factory-built home shall not be deemed to include a
mobilehome or manufactured home as defined in this section.

"Family" means one (1) or more persons occupying a dwelling unit and living as a single
housekeeping unit, and distinguished from a group occupying a boarding house, lodging house,
motel, hotel, or fraternity or sorority house.

"Fence" means any structural device forming a physical barrier by means of wood, mesh, metal,
chain, brick, stakes of plastic or similar materials. It includes a wall or gate used as a fence.

"Floor area" means the gross floor area bounded on all sides by the outside surface of exterior
walls of all floors of all buildings, including hallways, stairways, utility rooms, storage rooms, any
portion of attic and basement space over seven (7) feet in height, restrooms and attached
garages, but excluding detached accessory buildings of less than two-hundred (200) square
feet.

"Floor Area Ratio" or "FAR" means the allowed ratio of floor area to net lot area.

"Free-standing sign" means a sign which is independently supported in a fixed location and not
attached to a building, fence or structure.

"Freeway" means a multi-lane divided highway for through-traffic with full control of access and
with grade separations at all intersections and railroad crossings, and to which highway the
owners of abutting lands have no right of easement or access to or from their abutting lands.

"Garage, Private" means an accessory building or portion of a main building designed for the
storage and minor repairs or maintenance of self-propelled passenger vehicles, camping trailers
or boats belonging to the owners or occupants of the site and their guests, or an enclosed area
for the same use as a private parking area.

"General plan" means the adopted general plan of the city of Winters.

128



"Final grade" means the elevation of the finished surface of the ground, paving or sidewalk at
any particular point on a property where grading has occurred in conjunction with development
regulated by this title. (See following diagram.)

n>:Ai.cR.tfE

NA7l7.y.i5aSTlN0) GRACE

7 FROPSaiYUM

PROPERTY LINE FISAL GRADE

Grading" means any activity related to the cutting, filling, compaction, storage or other
movement of earth.

"Height" means the vertical distance of a building measured between the point where the final
grade intersects a building or its foundation to the highest point of the building directly above
that point. (See following diagram.)

KEICKTMLlUiU.V67iTi

BITLHW;

"Holiday decorations" means traditional outdoor decorations of a nonadvertising nature which
celebrate a nationally recognized holiday.

"Home occupation" means a commercial enterprise which is clearly incidental and secondary to
the residential use of a property.

"Improvement" means a structural addition or modification to an existing structure, or addition of
a structure to a property.

"Incomplete" means the status of an application following the city's request for additional
information in order to complete the application and make an environmental determination. This
status may be used by the city to freeze mandatory CEQA time frames while the applicant

129



responds to the request for additional Information. This determination is usually documented by
correspondence to the applicant.

"Independent review" means city evaluation of accuracy and completeness of any information
submitted by outside consultants. May involve preliminary assessment of adequacy and/or
feasibility.

"Kitchen - kitchenette" means any space used or intended or designed to be used for the
storage, preparation and cooking of food, whether the cooking unit is permanent or temporary
and portable, in conjunction with the establishment or use of a dwelling unit.

Landscaping" means the minimum required percentage of the total lot area which must be
landscaped. Landscaping may consist of planting and maintaining some combination of trees,
ground cover, shrubs, vines, flowers and lawn, and may include natural or constructed features
if they are an integral element to the overall landscape plan.

"Living quarters" means one or more rooms in a building designed for, intended for, or used by
one or more individuals for living or sleeping purposes, with no cooking facilities.

"Loading space" means an off-street area which is suitable and usable for the temporary parking
of commercial vehicles while loading or unloading merchandise or materials, which area abuts
upon a street or alley or has other appropriate means of access to and from public roads, and
which area is on the same lot as the building which the area serves or on a lot contiguous to a
building or group of buildings which the site serves.

"Lot" means a site or parcel of land under single ownership which has been legally subdivided,
resubdivided or merged.

"Lot, Corner" means a lot abutting upon two (2) or more streets at their intersection or upon two
(2) parts of the same street, the streets or parts of the same street forming an interior angle of
less than one hundred thirty-five (135) degrees. (See following diagram.)

130



inr^i T.H.^

STREET

r»AflWT

r»CN*t«Tu«-'

CORNniCT

r*
SECGNDAkr
mOVTACE

"Lot depth" means the distance measured perpendicularly between the midpoint of the front
property line and the rear property line. Where the configuration of a lot prevents measurement
of the lot depth pursuant to this requirement, the lot depth shall be the longest possible straight-
line distance measured perpendicular from a point on the front lot line towards the rear lot line.
(See following diagram.)

LOTWm-ni AVnnryrw

STREET

FRONT '
SETBACK

^US£

MIDPOINT

LOT DEPTH

/LOT WIDTH
^MIDPOIS'T

;

SIDE

LOT^

LINE

^^REAR
^setback

LINE ^MIDPOINT

Hiot'n'

SETBACK

LOT DEPTH

WIDTH
MIDPONr

^LOT

WIDTH

SIDESIDE
LOTf- L
LINELME

SETBACK

LINE

I-

B£crASO{:uR lot
LUiMPu:.-

lfiRSC<,'LARLT-SHAPEDLOT

"Lot, Flag" means an interior parcel not having direct frontage to a public road or street, except
for a narrow portion capable of being used solely for access purposes. The flag stem portion of
the lot shall not be used for the purpose of meeting required yard setbacks or in the calculation
of lot depth or net lot area. (See diagram under "Lot, Corner.")

131



"Lot. Interior" means a lot, other than a corner lot, bounded by other lots and/or a street. (See
diagram under "Lot, Corner")

"Lot lines" means the property lines bounding a lot.

"Lot line. Front" means, in the case of an interior lot, the lot line separating the lot from the
street, edge of pavement or street right-of-way. In the case of a corner lot, the shorter street
frontage shall constitute the front lot line, with the remaining portion of the lot with street
frontage treated as secondary frontage for setback purposes. (See following diagram.)

LOT iCSIS 4 ̂T> VARBSr trwi. ft n,

STREET

^ EOGEOF
MVtMEKT

(lll£ LOT LINe

PROftotrrLiME

7777/77^
FHONTYAItO / / .

//////////A

BVanNCEtA-ELOK

ntDNTLOTLlNE
(AL&OSTM£TKH}tlt-

O&WaYUNE)

lOTLDi.'E

•R£'(JltOTLC(e

"Lot line. Rear" means the lot line typically and approximately parallel to and most distant from
the front lot line. (See diagram under "Lot Line, Front.")

"Lot line, Side" means a lot line other than a front or rear lot line, typically and approximately
perpendicular to a front and rear lot line. (See diagram under "Lot Line, Front.") /

"Lot area. Net" means the total horizontal area included within lot lines, excluding streets, alleys
and vehicular easements or rights-of-way.

"Lot size. Minimum" means the minimum amount of net lot area required under this title.

"Lot, Through" means a lot having frontage on two (2) dedicated parallel or approximately
parallel streets.

Lot width" means the horizontal distance between the side lot lines measured perpendicular to
the depth of the lot at a point midway in the building envelope (the area between the required
front and rear yard setback lines). Where the configuration of a lot prevents measurement

10

132



pursuant to this requirement, the community development director shall determine the lot width.
(See diagram under "Lot depth.")

"Manufactured home" means any structure transportable in one or more sections, which, in the
traveling mode is eight (8) body feet or more in width, or forty (40) body feet or more in length,
or, when erected on site, is three hundred twenty (320) or more square feet, and which is built
on a permanent chassis and designed to be used as a dwelling with or without a permanent
foundation when connected to the required utilities, and includes the plumbing, heating, air
conditioning, and electrical systems contained therein; except that such term shall include any
structure which meets all the requirements of this paragraph except the size requirement and
with respect to which the manufacturer voluntarily files a certification and complies with the
standards established In the Manufactured Housing Construction and Safety Act of 1974 (42
U.S.C. Sec. 5401, et seq.).

Marquee sign" means a sign which is suspended below a canopy or covered walkway and
which projects perpendicular to the building or structure wall.

"Medical marijuana" means a product containing cannabis, including, but not limited to,
concentrates and extractions, intended for use by medical cannabis patients in Caltfomia
pursuant to the Compassionate Use Act of 1996 (Proposition 215), found at Section 11362.5 of
the Health and Safety Code. Cannabis as used in this definition shall have the meaning as set
forth in subsection (f) of Section 19300.5 of the Business and Professions Code.

"Medical marijuana cooperative" involves two (2) or more persons collectively or cooperatively
cultivating, using, transporting, possessing, administering, delivering, or giving away medical
marijuana. It does not involve sale or gifts involving payment of money. Notwithstanding the
prohibition in this code as to medical dispensaries, medical cannabis collectives and
cooperatives formed in a manner consistent with California law and the California Attorney
General's Guidelines for the Security and Non-Diversion of Marijuana Grown for Medical Use
issued in August 2008 shall be permitted to operate, provided they do not sell, exchange, trade,
distribute or cultivate medical cannabis in a manner prohibited herein.

"Medical marijuana dispensary" means any facility or location, whether fixed or mobile, where
medical marijuana is made available to, distributed by, or distributed to one or more of the
following: (1) a qualified patient, (2) a person with an identification card, or (3) a primary
caregiver. All three of these terms are defined in strict accordance with California Health and

Safety Code Section 11362 5 et seq. A medical marijuana dispensary is further defined as any
place, location, building or establishment where medical cannabis is traded, exchanged, sold, or
distributed which would otherwise require a business license, home occupation permit or any
other use permit to conduct similar type activities. Unless otherwise regulated by this code or
applicable law, a "medical marijuana dispensary" shall not include the following uses: a clinic
licensed pursuant to Chapter 1 of Division 2 of the Health and Safety Code, a health care facility

11

133



licensed pursuant to Chapter 2 of Division 2 of the Health and Safety Code, a residential care
facility for persons with chronic life-threatening illnesses licensed pursuant to Chapter 3.01 of
Division 2 of the Health and Safety Code, a residential care facility for the elderly licensed
pursuant to Chapter 3.2 of Division 2 of the Health and Safety Code, a residential hospice, or a
home health agency licensed pursuant to Chapter 8 of Division 2 of the Health and Safety
Code, as long as any such use complies strictly with both applicable federal or state law,
including, but not limited to. Health and Safety Code Section 11362.5 et seq. Currently, medical
marijuana dispensaries are prohibited from opening and operating within any zone in the city of
Winters. At such time as both federal and state law change to allow the operation of medical
marijuana dispensaries, such dispensaries shall be then allowed only in a zone district
designated for medical offices and only if consistent with the applicable provisions of this code
and federal and state law.

"Ministerial" means an action or decision by the city involving little or no personal judgment by
city staff as to the wisdom or manner of carrying out a project. Approval of a ministerial project
merely requires application of the law, usually involving fixed standards or objective
measurements.

"Mitigation monitoring and reporting program (MMRP)" or "program" means a comprehensive
program adopted by the approving body prior to project approval pursuant to Public Resources
Code Section 21081.6 and this title to ensure compliance with adopted or required changes to
mitigate or avoid significant environmental effects.

"Mobilehome" means any standard make of trailer constructed and equipped in such a manner
as to permit permanent occupancy thereof as living quarters for a family unit. In general, any
trailer over twenty-five (25) feet in length may be considered a mobilehome; provided, that such
trailer complies with all applicable laws and regulations controlling the design, construction,
equipment or occupancy thereto. Mobilehomes are considered structures for the purpose of this
chapter when they are parked in a mobilehome park. Small mobilehomes or trailers are defined
as being five hundred (500) square feet or less in size, average mobilehomes or trailers as
being five hundred one (501) to one thousand (1,000) square feet in size, and large
mobilehomes or trailers as being more than one thousand (1,000) square feet in size.

"Mobile sign" means a sign which is designed to be moved or capable of being moved and not
intended for permanent installation

"Monitoring" means the function of implementing the MMRP by the city through the
environmental coordinator.

"Nonconforming sign" means a sign which was lawful when erected but which does not
presently conform to this title.

12

134



"Nonconforming use" means any use of land, buildings or structures which was lawful when
established but which does not conform to subsequently established zoning regulations.

"Off-premise sign" means a sign which provides directions to general places, destinations and
collections of uses.

"Official plan line" or "future right-of-way" means an officially established line defining the outer ■
boundaries within which a public road right-of-way may be widened, constructed or extended
and within which the construction of structures may be prohibited.

"On-premise sign" means a sign located on the same site as the specific business, product, use,
etc., it advertises.

Open space" means land which is available for outdoor recreational activities, passively or
actively, for public or private use.

"Outdoor storage" means the stocking, parking, stacking or holding of goods, materials or
equipment in the open or in a partially closed structure.

"Owner" means the person or persons holding legal title to, or recorded contract of purchase of,
the property in question.

"Parking, Primary" means use of a parcel or lot exclusively for the temporary, daily or overnight
off-street parking of passenger vehicles, whether as a public or private parking area, as
necessary to serve some use on a separate legal parcel.

"Parking space" means an off-street covered or uncovered area for the parking of a motor
vehicle.

"Paved" means an area which has been drained, graded, compacted, provided with adequate
base and surfaced with asphaltic concrete at least two (2) inches thick, or equivalent, as
determined by the city engineer, so as to provide a sufficient durable surface to render the area
usable for the purpose specified under all normal weather conditions.

"Person" means any individual, firm association, partnership, joint venture, corporation or other
entity, public or private in nature, including an instrumentality of this state or any political
subdivisions of this state including the city; "person" shall also include any office, employee or
agent of any of the foregoing.

"Planning commission" means a group of persons appointed or assigned by the city council to
administer the general plan and the zoning ordinance; in this title the planning commission of
Winters.

13

135



"Planning director" means the director of the community development and building department
for the city.

"Principal residence" means the primary dwelling unit located on a residential lot that includes a
secondary housing unit.

Production housing" means construction of six (6) or more single-family residential units, where
a set of base construction plans are utilized for more than one (1) residence.

"Program completion certificate" means a certificate issued by the environmental coordinator to
certify completion of all or a designated phase of an adopted MMRP.

"Project" means any private or public agency project as defined in CEQA found at Public
Resources Code Section 21000 et. seq.

"Projecting sign" means a sign, other than a wall or marquee sign, which is suspended from or
supported by a building and which projects outward at a perpendicular angle.

"Recreational vehicle" means any trailer, motor home, camper or similar vehicle designed and
intended for sleeping, traveling and recreational purposes.

"Remodel" means the alteration of all or a portion of an existing structure or building.
Remodeling does not include the enclosure or construction of new building or structure square
footage. (See also "Demolition ")

"Reporting" means the obligation of the applicant/developer to file periodic written reports on the
status of mitigation/implementation under a project MMRP.

"Secondary housing (second residential unit)" means a dwelling unit attached or detached from
principal permitted dwelling which provides complete and independent living facilities for a
maximum of two (2) persons, including living, sleeping, eating, cooking and sanitation facilities,
for rent but not for sale.

"Setback" means the required minimum distance that a building or structure must be located
from a lot line, existing or proposed street or alley right-of-way or edge of pavement, whichever
setback line may encroach furthest onto a lot.

"Setback, Front" means the minimum distance a building or structure must be set back from the
front lot line.

"Setback line" means a line established by the provisions of this title to govern the placement of
buildings or structures on a lot.

14

136



"Setback, Rear" means the minimum distance a building or structure must be set back from a
rear lot line.

"Setback, Side" means the minimum distance a building or structure must be set back from a
side lot line.

"Sign" means a writing, graphic (including colored background, pictorial representation, logo,
trademark, symbol or banner) or any other figure of whatever material which Is used to identify,
announce, direct attention to, advertise or communicate a message, including standardized
corporate and franchise graphic. "Sign" includes a sign structure except that the structure is not
measured for purposes of determining sign area or height.

"Sign area" means the area in square feet of the smallest rectangle enclosing the total exterior
surface of a sign. A double-faced sign shall be considered as a single-face sign for the purposes
of determining sign area.

"Sign height" means the greatest distance between the top of the actual sign face and the final
grade directly below it.

"Site coverage" means the percentage of a lot or site collectively covered by a roof, solid-
surfaced deck or patio, paved driveway and parking areas, sports court/swimming pool or
similar impervious improvements.

"Stable" means a detached accessory building for the shelter of horses or similar hoofed
animals.

"Street line (right-of-way)" means the boundary between an existing or proposed street right-of-
way and abutting property.

"Structure" means anything constructed or erected, the use of which requires a location on the
ground, excluding swimming pools, driveways, patios or decks (where the driveway, patio or
deck is not more than thirty (30) inches above final grade at any point), fences not exceeding a
height of six (6) feet and retaining walls which do not exceed a height of three (3) feet,
measured from the bottom of the wall where it intersects final grade to the top of the wall. See
also "Building."

"Temporary sign" means a sign which conforms to this title and is intended only for a short
period of use as specified in this title.

"Trailer," including "camp trailer" or "travel trailer" means any vehicle constructed in such a
manner as to permit temporary occupancy thereof as sleeping quarters, i.e., camp trailer, or the
conduct of any business, trade or occupation, or use as a selling or advertising device, or use
for storage or conveyance for tools, equipment or machinery, and so designed that it is mounted

15

137



on wheels and may be used as a conveyance on highways and streets propelled or drawn by
other motive power. Camp trailers are considered structures for the purposes of this chapter
when they are parked in a trailer camp or park.

Trailer camp, "trailer park" or "mobilehome park" means any lot or part thereof, or any parcel of
land, which is used or offered as a location for two (2) or more trailers or mobilehomes used for
any of the residentiaj purposes set forth under the definition of "Trailer^ including "camp trailer"
or "travel trailer."

"Transient" means any person who exercises occupancy or is entitled to occupancy by reason
of concession, permit, right of access, license or other agr'eement of whatever nature, for a
period of thirty (30) consecutive calendar days, or less, counting portions of calendar days as
full days. Any such person so occupying space in a hotel/motel shall be deemed to be a
transient if his or her actual total period of occupancy does not exceed thirty (30) days. Unless
days of occupancy or entitlement are consecutive without break, then prior or subsequent
periods of such occupancy or entitlement to occupancy shall not be counted when determining
whether a period exceeds the stated thirty (30) calendar days.

"Unreasonable delay" means the delay of thirty (30) days or more by the applicant in providing
requested information and/or required submittals, or failure to meet any of the time periods
specified herein, or any time period as set by staff.

"Use" means the purpose for which either land or structure thereon is designed, arranged or
intended, or which the land or structure thereon is or may be occupied or maintained.

"Use, Conditional" means use of land or structures thereon which requires approval of a
conditional use permit by the planning commission or zoning administrator as indicated on the
land use/zoning matrix.

"Use, Principal permitted" means the primary or main use of land or a main building, which use
is compatible with the purpose of the zone. If a use is listed in a specific zone as a principal
permitted use, it means that the owner, lessee or other person who has a legal right to use the
land has a vested right to conduct the principal permitted use without securing special
permission therein, as are generally applied to all uses in the zone.

"Utility services, Major" means large-scale public utilities typically requiring substantial
commitment of land and/or having the potential of creating impacts on the surrounding area,
such as sewer treatment plants, electrical substations and water storage/reservoirs.

Utility services. Essential" means the erection, construction, alteration or maintenance of minor
public utilities such as minor underground or overhead gas, electrical, steam or other
transmission or distribution systems or collection, communication, supply or disposal systems,
including poles, wires, drains, sewers, pipes, conduits, cables, fire alarm boxes, police call

16

138



boxes, traffic signals, hydrants and other similar equipment and accessories In connection
therewith, reasonably necessary for furnishing adequate services by such public utilities or
municipal or other governmental agencies, or for the public health, safety or general welfare.

"Wall sign" means a sign which is erected, printed, painted. Incorporated Into, suspended from
or otherwise affixed to a wall, awning, canopy, overhang or covered walkway of a building or
structure In an essentially flat position or with the exposed face of the sign in a location parallel
to the plane of the wall.

"Window sign" means a sign erected on a building window or a sign located indoors and within
three feet of a window or building opening which is ciearly visible and readable from a street or
public place.

"Withdrawn" means the status of an application after an unreasonable delay has occurred.

"Yard" means an open space on the same site with a building, created by minimum setback
requirements or which open space is unoccupied and unobstructed by buildings or structures
from the ground upward and excluding therefrom any portion of any street, alley or road right-of-
way.

"Yard, Front" means the area extending across the full width of the front of the lot measured
from the front lot line, right-of-way line or edge of pavement (whichever encroaches furthest into
a lot), to the required front yard setback line, measured perpendicular to the front lot line. The
front yard of a comer lot means the yard adjacent to the shorter street frontage. (See diagram
under "Lot Line, Front.")

"Yard, Rear" means the area extending across the full width of the rear of the lot measured from
the rear lot line to the required rear yard setback line, measured perpendicular to the rear lot
line. The rear yard of a corner lot shall extend only to the side yard adjacent to the street (also
rear setback). (See diagram under "Lot Line, Front.")

Yard, Side" means the area extending between the side lot line and the required side yard
setback line, and located between the front yard and the rear yard of the lot. (See diagram
under "Lot Line, Front.")

"Zone" means a portion of the territory in the city within which territory certain uniform
regulations and requirements or various combination thereof, apply pursuant to this title. "Zone"
includes the word "district."

b. Section 17.08.010 of the Municipal Code is hereby amended to read as follows:

17.08.010 Purpose and intent.
A use classification describes a land use or activity that may be appropriately included within
that use classification. The community development director may determine that a specific use

17

139



is or is not within a use classification, whether or not it is named, and if its operational
characteristics are substantially compatible or incompatible with those uses named within the
classification.

c. Section 17.20.010 of the Municipal Code is hereby amended to read as
follows:

17.20.010 Purpose and intent

The purpose of a use permit is to allow the proper integration into the community of uses which
may be suitable only in specific locations in a zone or only if the uses are designed or arranged
out on the site in a particular manner.

d. Section 17.24.010 of the Municipal Code is hereby amended to read as
follows:

17.24.010 Purpose and intent

The purpose of a variance is to allow relief from the strict application of the provisions of this title
where special circumstances, typically pertaining to the physical characteristics or location of a
site, are such that the literal enforcement of the requirements of this title would involve practical
difficulties or would cause hardship, and therefore would not carry out the spirit and purposes of
this title.

e. Section 17.32.010 of the Municipal Code is hereby amended to read as
follows:

17.32.010 Purpose and intent

The purpose of a temporary activity permit is to allow for specified temporary uses of land or
buildings in a manner which would not detrimentally impact the immediate area or otherwise
create a public nuisance.

f. Section 17.36.010 of the Municipal Code is hereby amended to read as
follows:

17.36.010 Purpose and intent

It is the policy of the city to preserve and enhance the small-town qualities of Winters, to
improve property values and to conserve the overall visual character of the community. Further,
the design review process is intended to ensure that the location and configuration of structures
and corollary site improvements are visually harmonious with their site and that of surrounding
sites and structures. To implement these policies, the city requires design review for certain
types of development or when development occurs in certain locations. The design review
process may include an analysis of proposed architectural styles, construction materials, colors,

site landscaping and similar development criteria. The Winters design guidelines shall be used
as a basis for this review.

18

140



read as follows;
g. Section 17.48.010 of the Municipal Code is hereby amended to

17.48.010 Purpose and intent.

In order to achieve the general plan goal "to promote the development of a cohesive and
aesthetically pleasing urban structure for Winters," the P-D overlay zone has been included
within the scope of the zoning ordinance to allow for the maximum flexibility consistent with the
minimum development standards within each underlying zone category.

read as follows:
h. Section 17.56.010 of the Municipal Code is hereby amended to

17.56.010 Generally.
A. All buildings or structures or portions of structures developed or modified under the terms of
this title shall comply with the development standards of Tables 3A. 3B and 4 (Lot Development
Standards and Structure Setback Matrix).

B. Some developments within the city contain standards regulating issues such as
building/structure height, yard setbacks, floor area ratio and fencing which may be less or more
restrictive than the development standards contained within this section. Such Individualized

standards, typically prescribed by conditions of approval of the underlying subdivisions or
planned developments, shall prevail over the standards contained within this section, except
where, as determined by the community development director, application of standards unique
to a particular development would be inconsistent with the general plan. In such cases, the
community development director shall consult with the planning commission in determining if
current standards from this title should be applied.

Table 3A

LOT DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS

ZONE MAXIMUM FLOOR

AREA RATIO

MAXIMUM SITE

COVERAGE (%)

MAXIMUM STRUCTURE

HEIGHT

(In Feet)

A-1 N/A N/A 45 nonresidential/30

residential

R-R N/A N/A 30

R-1 N/A 50 for single story

45 two or more stories

30

19

141



R-2 N/A 50 for single story

45 two or more stories

30

R-3 N/A 60 35

R-4 N/A 70 45

C-1 .40 N/A 30

C-2 2.0V.6Q^ N/A 45

C-H .40 N/A 45

0-F .40 N/A 35

BIP .40 N/A 35

M-1 .40 N/A 40

M-2 .40 N/A 50

PQP .50 N/A 40

P-R .20 N/A 25

0-S .05 N/A 25

P-D Per PD Plan Per PD Plan Per PD Plan

Footnotes:

1. 2.0 FAR for office and commercial uses.

2. 0.60 FAR for non-office and non-commercial uses.

The F.A.R. number is the maximum allowed for any combination of uses in a given zone.

Building height exceptions/modifications appear in Section 17.56-020fA).

i. Section 17.58.010 of the Municipal Code is hereby amended to read as
follows:

17.58.010 Purpose and intent.

The purpose of this chapter is to establish unique allowed use and development standards for
properties within the downtown master plan area of Winters. These standards are intended to
help preserve and protect the existing, historic, and distinctive character of the downtown by
requiring new construction and remodels and existing development to complement the existing
built environment. Through the application of these standards, the downtown will continue to be
the pedestrian-oriented shopping, dining, entertainment, and living center of the greater Winters
area.

20

142



j. Section 17.58.015 of the Municipal Code is hereby amended to read as
follows:

17.58.015 Applicability.
A. Applicability of Standards and Entitlement Review. The downtown master plan area has
been divided into downtown-A (D-A) and downtown-B (D-B). These districts are shown on the
regulating plan (Figure 17.58-1). The standards of this chapter apply to all property zoned either
downtown-A (D-A) or downtown-B (D-B). All qualifying projects under Section 17.36.020
(Requirements for design review) within the D-A or D-B zones shall be subject to design review
prior to issuance of building permit. Additionally, those uses that require a conditional use permit
as listed in Section 17.58.050 (Allowed use regulations) shall obtain a conditional use permit
prior to establishment of the use.

The application of both the zoning district and the regulating plan (see Section 17.58,030 for
definition) are described in more detail in Sections 17 58.020fA) (Defining the Form-Based
Code for Downtown) and 17.58 040 (Regulating plan and street typologies and standards).
Generally, the zoning district designation (D-A or D-B) defines the character and allowed use
provisions for the subject site while the regulating plan defines the development standards
(setbacks, building typology, street standards),

B  Applicability of Regulating Plan Standards. Generally, the development standards
applicable to a property shall be those for the respective zone (either D-A or D-B) and street
frontage as reflected in the regulating plan. However, for those properties that face onto multiple
street frontages (e.g., a comer lot or a double frontage lot), the following shall apply:

1. Site Development. The development standards applicable to the site shall be
reflective of the individual sides of the lot. For instance, if a comer lot faces Street A and
Street B. then that side of the lot facing Street A shall be developed consistent with the
standards for Street A and the side facing Street B shall be developed consistent with
the standards for Street B. At the corner, the design shall merge and unify the two (2)
standards together such that:

a. The more restrictive setback requirement shall prevail on that side of the
comer. For instance, if Street A has a five-foot build-to line and Street B has a zero

(O)-foot build-to line, then that side facing Street A shall be located at the five (5)-
foot build-to line and the side facing Street B shall be located at the zero (O)-foot
build-to line (note: in this example, the building is not centered on the comer; this is
consistent with the intent of this provision).

b. The more restrictive design standards shall prevail on that side of the comer,
provided the two (2) standards are architecturally Integrated together. For instance.

21

143



if Street A allows for a stoop frontage and Street B does not, a stoop may t>e
developed along the Street A frontage, but at the comer the design of the building
must architecturally transition into a frontage type that is allowed along Street B.
The same shall be true for allowed building types, storefront regulations, sign
types, and landscaping. Only those features allowed on that frontage may be
developed on said frontage.

2. Allowed Uses. The least restrictive use provisions shall apply to the entire lot;
provided, that the primary entrance for the use either faces the street with the least

restrictive use regulations or (preferred) faces the intersection/street corner. For

instance, if a comer lot faces Street A and Street B and Street A allows a particular use
by right and Street B requires a conditional use permit for the same use, then the use
shall be allowed by right on that lot provided the primary entrance to the use is located
facing Street A or (prefen^ed) facing the intersection/at the comer.

3. Parking. Parking requirements are generally based on the use of the building;
however, where there is a conflict based upon street frontages, the more
restrictive/higher parking ratio shall prevail (e.g., one and three-quarters [1.75] spaces
per unit are required, not one and one-half [1.5] spaces per unit) across the entire site.

k. Section 17.58.030 of the Municipal Code is hereby amended to read as
follows:

17.58.030 Definitions.

The following terms are used throughout the form-based code for downtown and are defined as

follows:

"Build-to line (BTL)" means an urban setback dimension that delineates the maximum distance

from the property line a front or street side building facade can be placed. Typically, build-to
lines range from zero (0) feet to ten (10) feet.

"Building type" defines the type of structure based on massing, layout, and use. (See Section
17 58.060fD) for further discussion.)

"Bulkhead" means the portion of a commercial facade located between the ground and the
bottom of the street level display windows. It is typically constructed of stone, brick, or concrete.

"Expression line" is an architectural embellishment that delineates the end of the ground floor
and the start of the second floor of a building.

"Facade" means the architecturally finished side of a building, typically facing onto a public right-
of-way or street.

22

144



"Form-based code (FBC)" means a development code emphasizing the regulation of building
form, scale, and orientation, rather than zoning and land use.

"Frontage line" means a lot line fronting a street, public right-of-way, paseo, plaza, or park.

"Regulating plan" designates building form and streetscape standards based on location, street
hierarchy, and character. More specifically, it addresses how development interacts with the
street and how the street is developed, and it defines the development standards (setbacks,
building typology, street standards).

I. Section 17.76.010 of the Municipal Code is hereby amended to read as
follows;

17.76.010 Purpose and intent

The purpose of this chapter is to prescribe standards for landscaping and irrigation for the
conservation and protection of property, the assurance of safety and security, the enhancement
of privacy, the control of dust, the abatement or attenuation of noise, and the improvement of
the visual environment. All new development shall provide landscaping in conformance with the
standards contained in this chapter.

m. Chapter 17.96 of the Municipal Code is hereby amended in its entirety to
read as follows:

Chapter 17.96
ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGE ESTABLISHMENTS

Sections:

17.96.010 Use permit required.

17.96.020 Definitions

17.96.030 Requirements for on-sale liquor establishments.

17.96.040 Minimum conditions for off-sale liquor establishments.
17.96.050 Nonconforming establishments/improvements.

17,96.060 Existing establishments selling alcoholic beverages (on-sale and/or off-sale).
17.96.070 Revocation of use permit.

17.96.080 One-day on-sale licenses.

17.96.010 Use permit required.

A. On or after the effective date of the ordinance codified in this title, a use permit must be
obtained from the city for all on- and off-sale liquor establishments, with the exception of
veterans clubs, listed fraternal organizations, and restaurants, as defined in Chapter 17.08.
Existing on-sale and off-sale establishments not exempt from the provisions of this title must

23

145



obtain a use permit before substantially changing their mode or character of operation or
requesting a new, more permissive liquor license.

B. A copy of the conditions of approval for the use permit must be kept on the premises of the
establishment and posted in a place where it may readily be viewed by any member of the
general public.

C. In making any of the findings required pursuant to this title, the planning commission, or city
council on appeal, shall consider whether the proposed use will adversely affect the health,
safety or welfare of area residents or will result in an undue concentration in the area of

establishments dispensing, for sale or other consideration, alcoholic beverages, including beer
and wine.

The planning commission, or city council on appeal, shall also consider whether the proposed
use will detrimentally affect nearby residentially zoned community neighborhoods in the area,
after giving consideration to the distance of the proposed use from the following:

1. Residential buildings;

2. Churches, schools, hospitals, public playgrounds and parks, convalescent homes,
and other similar uses; and

3. Other establishments dispensing for sale, or other consideration, alcoholic beverages
including beer and wine.

17.96.020 Definitions.

"On-sale liquor establishment" means any establishment wherein alcoholic beverages are sold,
served or given away for consumption on the premises including but not limited to any facility
which has obtained a California Department of Alcoholic Beverages Control license. Typical on-
sale uses include, but are not limited to, the following establishments: bars, taverns, night clubs,
wineries, wine tasting rooms, breweries or other private clubs. This definition shall not include
restaurants as defined in Chapter 17 08. veterans' clubs, or the following fratemal organizations:
Elks Club, Moose Club, Eagle Club, Lions Club, or Rotary Club. Fratemal organizations not
listed may be exempt upon planning commission approval.

"Off-sale liquor establishment" means any establishment which is applying for or has obtained a
liquor license from the California Department of Alcoholic Beverage Control, including Type 20
(off-sale beer and wine). Type 21 (off-sale general), for selling alcoholic beverages in an
unopened container for the consumption off the premises. For purposes of this title, the

definition of "off-sale liquor establishment" shall not include food markets, supermarkets,
convenience markets, drugstores, or any establishment in which sales of alcoholic beverages
constitute less than twenty (20) percent of total retail sales. Upon request, the owner/operator

24

146



shall submit evidence of total retail sales to the accounting department of the city for the
purpose of verifying compliance with this chapter.

17.96.030 Requirements for on-sale liquor establishment.
A. No on-sale liquor establishments shall be authorized or maintained within five hundred
(500) feet of sensitive uses. Sensitive uses include schools (public and private); established
churches or places of worship; hospitals, clinics, or other health care facilities; public parks, or
playgrounds or other park or recreational uses; or another on-sale liquor establishment. There
shall be no separation requirement between on-sale liquor establishments and a sensitive use
within the regulating plan area for the form-based code for downtown as defined in Chapter
1_7^. For the purposes of this section, distance shall be measured from the nearest entrance
used by patrons of such establishments along the shortest route intended and available for
public passage to the entrance of other such establishments, or to the nearest property line of
any other sensitive use. Veterans' clubs, fraternal organizations and restaurants are excluded
from the separation requirement of this section.

B. Exterior lighting of the parking areas shall be kept at an intensity of at least one (1) foot
candle of light on the parking surface during the hours of darkness.

C. All establishments shall be required to have a public telephone listing.

D. Special security measures such as security guards, robbery and burglar alarm systems
may be required.

E. The noise levels generated by the operation of such establishment shall not exceed fifty
(50) dba during daytime and forty-five (45) dba during nighttime, on adjoining properties zoned
for residential purposes.

F. It shall be the responsibility of the applicant licensee to provide all staff with the training
necessary to gain the knowledge and skills that will enable them to comply with their
responsibilities under law. The knowledge and skills deemed necessary for responsible
alcoholic beverage service include, but not limited to, the following topics and skills
development:

1  State laws relating to alcoholic beverages, particularly ABC and penal provisions
concerning sales to minors and intoxicated persons, driving under the influence, hours
of legal operation, and penalties for violations of these laws;

2. The potential legal liabilities of owners and employees of businesses dispensing
alcoholic beverages to patrons who may subsequently injure, harm or kill themselves or
innocent victims as a result of the excessive consumption of alcoholic beverages;

25

147



3. The effects of alcohol on the body, and behavior, including how the effects of
alcohol relate to the ability to operate a motor vehicle;

4. Methods for dealing with intoxicated customers and recognizing underaged
customers. Methods for preventing customers from becoming intoxicated.

17.96.040 Minimum conditions for off-sale liquor establishments.
Off-sale liquor establishments shall not sell or store motor fuels on the same premises as
alcoholic beverages, except upon the following conditions:

A. No beer or wine shall be displayed within five (5) feet of the front door unless it is in a
permanently affixed cooler.

B. Exterior lighting of the parking lot shall be kept at an intensity of at least one (1) foot candle
on the parking lot surface, so as to provide adequate lighting for patrons while not disturbing
residential or commercial areas.

C. Signs shall be posted both inside and outside the premises in conspicuous places, which
state "It is unlawful for any person to sell, drink or consume beer, wine or other alcoholic

beverage, as defined in Business and Professions Code Section 23004, in or upon the public
streets, alley-ways or other public places in the city, including private parking lots held open to
the public," Winters Municipal Code Section 9.08.010.

D. No sale of alcoholic beverages shall be made from a drive-through window.

E. No display or sale of alcoholic beverages shall be made from an ice tub, or similar
container.

F. Exterior public telephones that permit Incoming calls may not be located on the premises.

G. Adult magazines and all printed matter coming within the definition of Section 313 of the
California Penal Code shall be located for sale only behind the counter and shall be stored in
racks covered by modest panels.

H. Litter and trash receptacles shall be located at convenient locations inside and outside the

premises, and operators of such establishments shall remove trash and debris on a daily basis.

I. Paper or plastic cups shall not be sold in quantities less than their usual and customary
packaging.

J. All establishments shall be required to have a public telephone listing.

K. No off-sale liquor establishment shall be maintained within five hundred (500) feet of such
consideration points as schools (public and private), established churches or other place of

26

148



worship, hospitals, convalescent homes, public parks, and playgrounds and/or other similar
uses. The distance of five hundred (500) feet shall be measured between the nearest entrances
used by patrons of such establishments along the shortest route to other establishments, or to
the nearest property line of any of the above referenced consideration points. The separation
requirement shall be reduced to two hundred (200) feet for operations located within the central
business district.

L. The noise level generated by the operation of such establishments shall not exceed fifty
(50) dba at daytime and forty-five (45) dba at nighttime on adjoining property zoned for
residential purposes, and sixty-three (63) dba at daytime and forty-five (45) dba at nighttime for
commercially zoned property.

M. Hours of operation of off-sale establishments may be restricted upon showing of good
cause.

N. it shall be the responsibility of the applicant licensee to provide all staff with the training
necessary to gain the knowledge and skills that will enable them to comply with their
responsibilities under law. The knowledge and skills deemed necessary for responsible
alcoholic beverage service shall include, but not be limited to the following topics and skills
development:

1. State laws relating to alcoholic beverages, particularly ABC and penal provisions
conceming sales to minors and intoxicated persons, driving under the influence, hours
of legal operation, and penalties for violations of these laws;

2. The potential legal liabilities of owners and employees of businesses dispensing
alcoholic beverages to patrons who may subsequently injure, kill or harm themselves or
innocent victims as a result of the excessive consumption of alcoholic beverages;

3. The effects of alcohol on the body, and behavior, including how the effects of
alcohol affect the ability to operate a motor vehicle;

4. Methods for dealing with intoxicated customers and recognizing underaged
customers.

17.96.050 Nonconfomiing establishments/improvements.
Except as provided herein, establishments not conforming to the spatial requirements between
establishment and referenced consideration points shall not be permitted to expand a structure
or portion of structure as determined by the city's building and/or fire inspector. Ordinary repair
and maintenance shall not be affected. Spatial requirements may be waived for establishments
who wish to expand. Individual plans to expand a structure will be reviewed on a case-by-case
basis by the planning commission, or city council on appeal, who will decide if the remodel or
upgrade is in the best interest of the city.

27

149



17.96.060 Existing establishments selling alcoholic beverages (on-sale and/or off-sale).
A. Any establishment lawfully existing prior to the effective date of this section and licensed by
the state of California for the retail sale of alcoholic beverages for on-site consumption,
excepting restaurants and veterans clubs, and/or off-site consumption within the definitions of
Section 17.96.040. shall obtain a use permit when; (1) the existing establishment changes its
type of liquor license within a license classification and/or (2) there is a substantial change in the
mode or character of operation. For purposes of this title "substantial change of mode or
character of operation" shall include, but not limited to, expansion, a pattern of conduct in
violation of other laws or regulations, a period of closure greater than six (6) months, or
Increased square footage of alcoholic beverage sales or inventory.

B. Any establishment which becomes lawfully established on or after the effective date of this
section and licensed by the state of California for retail sale of alcoholic beverages for on-site
and/or off-site consumption, shall obtain a modification of use permit when: (1) the
establishment changes its type of liquor license within a license classification and/or 2) there is
a substantial change in the mode or character of operations.

17.96.070 Revocation of use permit

Use permits issued under this chapter shall be revocable pursuant to the terms of the zoning
ordinance.

17.96.080 One-day on-sale licenses.

This chapter shall not apply to applications for one-day on-sale licenses pursuant to Business
and Professions Code Section 24045 1 and requirements for a temporary activity permit
pursuant to this title.

n. Section 17.100.010 of the Municipal Code is hereby amended in its
entirety to read as follows:

17.100.010 Purpose and Intent

The purpose of this chapter is to prevent community-wide adverse economic impacts, increased
crime, decreased property values, and the deterioration of neighborhoods which can result from
the concentration of adult-oriented businesses in close proximity to each other or proximity to
other incompatible uses such as private and public educational facilities for minors, places of
religious assembly or worship, public paries and recreation areas, and residentially zoned
districts or uses. The City Council finds that it has been demonstrated in various communities
that the concentration of adult-oriented businesses causes an increase in the number of

transients in the area, an Increase in crime and blight, and also causes other businesses and
residents to move elsewhere. It is. therefore, the purpose of this chapter to establish reasonable
and uniform regulations to prevent the concentration of adult-oriented businesses or their close

proximity to incompatible uses, while permitting the location of adult-oriented businesses in
certain areas.

28

150



0. Section 17.100.015 of the Municipal Code is hereby added to read as
follows:

17.100.015 Definitions.

For the purposes of this chapter, certain words and phrases used are defined as follows:

■ "Adult entertainment use" includes all of the following types of establishments:

"Adult bookstore" means a business which as a reguiar and substantial course of conduct offers
for sale or rent books, magazines, periodicals or other printed matter or photographs, films,
motion pictures, video cassettes, slides or other visual representatives whose dominant or
predominant character and theme is the depiction or description of specified sexual activity or
specified anatomical areas, as defined in this chapter.

1. As defined in this subsection, "regular and substantial course of conduct" shall be
construed with reference to all relevant factors, including but not limited to the following:

a. The proportion of the business' merchandise which depicts or describes
specified sexual activity, specified anatomical areas or is a nonprescription,
noncontraceptive sex-incitement device; and

b. The percentage of the business' revenues which are attributable to the sale or

rental of merchandise which depicts or specifies sexual activity, specified
anatomical areas or is a nonprescription, noncontraceptive sex-Incitement device.

"Adult entertainment business" means any business where any of the following conditions exist:

1. The business devotes or intends to devote more than twenty-five (25) percent of its
retail inventory (not as measured by the number of items but rather by the cost to the
business owner of the inventory) to merchandise whose dominant or predominant
character and theme is specified sexual activities or specified anatomical areas,
hereafter referred to as "sexually explicit".

2. The business devotes or intends to devote more than twenty-five (25) percent of
the retail floor area to sexually explicit merchandise.

3. The business has not segregated or intends not to segregate in one (1) location in
the store all sexually explicit merchandise offered for sale, rental and/or viewing from
the non-sexually explicit merchandise.

4. The retail value of sexually explicit inventory offered for sale in each category: (a)
books; (b) magazines; (c) Beta videotapes for sale; (d) VHS videotapes for sale; (e)
DVDs for sale; (f) Beta videos for rental; (g) VHS videos for rental; (h) DVDs for rental;

29

151



(i) novelties: (g) on-premises viewing of Images, films and/or videos exceeds or is
expected to exceed twenty-five (25) percent if the total retail value of inventory offered
for sale in each category.

5. Gross revenue derived from sexually explicit inventory in any particular category
(see subdivision 4 above) of inventory exceeds or is expected to exceed twenty-five
(25) percent of the total gross revenue for that category.

6. The business advertises (either free or paid for advertisements) in a manner that
identifies the business as having sexually explicit merchandise for sale, rental and/or
viewing.

7. Any business which offers or advertises sexually explicit merchandise in any of the
above categories (see subdivision 4 above), and which fails to make available to the
city for inspection and copying all records of revenue on request after reasonable notice
not less than twenty-four (24) hours.

8. Any business that is an adult entertainment use based on any of the above
conditions may make an application for an exception. Such an application shall be
made to the zoning administrator and shall specify all facts supporting the exception
and shall have attached to it all supporting documentation.

"Adult hotel" means any hotel which as a regular and substantial course of conduct provides,
through closed-circuit television or other media, material which is distinguished or characterized
by an emphasis on matter depicting or describing specified sexual activity or specified
anatomical areas, as defined in this chapter.

"Adult motion picture theater" means an enclosed building and/or drive-in motion picture theater
which is open to the public and which, as a regular course of conduct, is used for presenting
filmed or videotaped materials whose dominant or predominant character and theme are the
depiction or display or specified sexual activity or specified anatomical areas, as defined in this
chapter, for observation by six (6) or more patrons of such use at any one (1) time.

1. As defined in this subsection, Tegular and substantial course of conduct" shall be

construed with reference to all relevant factors, including but not limited to the following:

a. The proportion of the theater's films which depict specified sexual activity or
specified anatomical areas;

b. The number of films depicting or displaying specified sexual activity or
specified anatomical areas which are shown at the theater each week, each

weekend or each month;

30

152



c. The nature of the films which receive top billing on the theater's marquee or in
its advertising; and

d. The proportion of the theater's revenue which is attributable to the showing of
films depicting or displaying specified sexual activity or anatomical areas.

"Adult picture arcade" means any business wherein, as a regular course of conduct, coin or
slug-operated or electronically, electrically or mechanically controlled still or motion picture
machines, projectors, television sets or other image producing devices are used to display
images to five (5) or fewer persons per machine at any one (1) time, and which images have as
a dominant or predominant character and theme the display or depiction of specified sexual
activity or specified anatomical areas.

1. As defined in this subsection, "regular and substantial course of conduct" is

construed with reference to a number of factors, including, but not limited to the
following:

a. The proportion of the business' movies, shows, pictures and images which
have as their predominant theme the display or depiction of specified sexual
activity or specified anatomical areas; and

b. The proportion of the business' revenue which is attributable to the showing of
pictures depicting or displaying specified sexual activity or specified anatomical
areas.

"Bathhouse" means an establishment which as a regular and substantial course of conduct
provides, for a fee or other consideration, access to any kind of bath facility, including showers,
saunas and hot tubs. This definition does not include a bona fide athletic club, health club,

school, gymnasium, reducing salon or similar establishment where baths or hydrotherapy are
offered as incidental or accessory services.

"Massage" means manipulation of tissues (as by rubbing, kneading or tapping) with the hand,
body or other instrument.

"Massage parlor" means any establishment having a fixed place of business where any person
engages in or carries on, or permits to be engaged in or carried on, any activity set forth in the
definition of "massage" in Chapter 17 04. Any establishment engaged in, carrying on, or
permitting any combination of massage and bathhouse shall be deemed a massage parlor.

"Modeling studio" means a business which provides as a regular and substantial course of
conduct, for a fee or other consideration, figure models who display specified anatomical areas
to be observed, sketched, photographed, painted, sculptured or othenwise depicted by persons

31

153



paying such consideration. "Modeling studio" does not include schools maintained pursuant the
standards set by the State Board of Education.

"Nude dancing theater" means and building or structure which as a regular and substantial
course of conduct is used for the presentation of live dancing or modeling, the dominant or
predominant character and theme of which are the display of specified sexuai activity or
specified anatomicai areas, as defined in this chapter, and to which the public is permitted or
invited.

"Sexual encounter center" means a business which as a regular and substantial course of
conduct provides two (2) or more persons, for pecuniary compensation, consideration, hire or
reward, with a place to assemble the purpose of engaging in specified sexual activity or
displaying specified anatomical areas. "Sexual encounter center" does not include hotels or

motels.

"Establishment of an adult entertainment use" means and includes the opening of such a
business as a new business, the relocation of such a business or the conversion of an existing
use to any adult entertainment use.

"Specified anatomical areas" means and includes, and is limited to, the following:

1. Less than completely and opaquely covered human genitalia, pubic region,

buttocks and female breasts below the top of the areola; and/or

2. Human male genitalia in a discernibly turgid state, even if completely or opaquely
covered.

"Specified sexual activity" means and includes, and is limited to the following:

1. Actual or simulated genital or anal sexual intercourse;

2. Oral copulation;

3. Bestiality;

4. Direct physical stimulation of unclothed genitals;

5. Masochism;

6. Erotic or sexually-oriented torture, beating or the infliction of pain; or

7. The use of excretory functions in the context of a sexual relationship.

32

154



p. Section 17.108.010 of the Municipal Code is hereby amended to read as
follows;

17.108.010 Purpose and intent

The purpose and intent of this chapter is to help preserve and protect historic buildings and
structures, cultural resources, landmarks, natural feature and other resources of historical

significance through the application of the regulations contained in this chapter.

q. Section 17.108.015 of the Municipal Code is hereby added to read as
follows:

17.108.015 Definitions.

"Alteration" means any exterior change or modification, through public or private action, of any
cultural resource or of any property located within a historic district including, but not limited to,
exterior changes to or modification of structure, architectural details or visual characteristics

such as grading, surface paving, new structures, cutting or removal of trees and other natural
features, disturbance of archeologlcal sites or areas, and the placement or removal of any
exterior objects such as signs, plaques, light fixtures, street furniture, walls, fences, steps,
plantings and landscape accessories affecting the exterior visual qualities of the property.

"Cultural resource" means improvements, buildings, structures, signs, features, sites, places,
areas or other areas of scientific, aesthetic, educational, cultural, archeological, agricultural,
religious, ethnic, architectural, or historical significance to the citizens of the city, or the state of
California, or the nation.

"Designated site" (historic site, cultural resource site, landmark site) means a parcel or part
thereof on which a cultural resource is situated, and any abutting parcel or part thereof
constituting part of the premises on which the cultural resource is situated, and which has been
deemed a designated site pursuant to this chapter.

"Designated structure" (landmark, cultural resource, historic structure) means any improvement
that has special historical, cultural, aesthetic or architectural character, interest or value as part
of the development, heritage or history of the city, the state of California, or the nation and that
has been designated pursuant to this chapter.

"Exterior architectural feature" means the architectural elements embodying style, design,
general amangement and components of all of the outer surfaces of an improvement, including
but not limited to the kind, color and texture of the building materials and the type and style of all
windows, doors, lights, signs and other fixtures appurtenant to such improvement.

"Historic district" means any area containing improvements which have a special character,
historical interest or aesthetic value or which represent one or more architectural periods or

33

155



styles typical to the history of the city, and which improvements constitute a distinct section of
the city that has been designated a historic district pursuant to this chapter.

"Improvement" means any building, structure, place, parking facility, fence, gate, wall, work of
art or other object constituting a physical betterment of real property, or any part of such
betterment,

"Natural feature" means any tree, plant life, geographicai or geological site or feature subject to
the provisions of this chapter.

"Object" means a material thing of functional, aesthetic, cultural, symbolic, archeological,
religious, ethnic, agricultural or scientific value, usually by design or nature movable.

"Potential cultural resource" means an improvement, object or natural feature which may be
nominated for consideration by the commission and may be designated under the condition that
either; (1) more research becomes available regarding its eligibility; or (2) the resource is
restored to its original condition; or (3) the resource is one of the few remaining examples in the
city of its type.

"Preservation" means the identification, study, protection, restoration, rehabilitation or
enhancement of cultural resources.

"Secretary of the Interior Standards for Rehabilitation" means the guidelines prepared by the
National Park Service for Rehabilitating Historic Buildings and the Standards for Historic
Preservation Projects prepared by the National Park Service with Guidelines for Applying the
Standards.

"Significant feature" means the natural or man-made elements embodying style or type of
cultural resource, design, or general arrangement and components of an improvement,
including but not limited to, the kind, of the building materials and type and style of all windows,
doors, lights, signs and other fixtures appurtenant to such improvement.

r. Section 17.112.010 of the Municipal Code is hereby amended to read as
follows:

17.112.010 Purpose and intent

This chapter shall provide for the conversion of projects where ownership of existing buildings is
subdivided, whether such subdivision involves residential to commercial/industrial or

commercial/industrial to commercial/industrial, and whether such conversion is to condominium,
as defined in Section 1350 of the Civil Code, to community apartment projects, as defined in
Section 11004 of the Business and Professions Code, or to stock cooperatives, as defined in
Section 11003.2 of the Business and Professions Code.

34

156



This chapter recognizes that a conversion is different from new construction in that the owners

of a unit in a conversion take responsibility for a building built under standards that may be less
stringent than those that are currently required, and existing tenants may be displaced by a
conversion. A conversion also differs from a leased or rental property in that the unit owner
assumes long-term responsibility for the unit owned, for the common areas of the project, and
the higher level of economic cost required to own instead of rent.

The intent of this chapter is to provide increased options for commercial development and
business ownership opportunities. The further intent of this chapter is to mitigate the hardship
caused by displacement of commercial tenants; and to assure that conversion projects maintain
long-term economic value for the owner.

Therefore, such conversions shall be permitted, provided that they shall comply with the
standards set forth in this chapter for the class of conversion proposed and all other applicable
laws.

s. Section 17.112.020 of the Municipal Code is hereby amended to read as
follows:

17.112.020 Definitions.

The following definitions pertain to this chapter related to condominium conversions and new
construction:

"Applicant" means the owner(s) or subdivider(s) with a controlling interest in the proposed
project, and any successors in interest,

"Association" means the organization created to own. lease, manage, maintain, preserve and
control the lots, parcels or areas of a project, or any portions thereof or interests therein owned
in common by the owners of the separately owned condominium units.

"Commercial condominium project" means a commercial condominium project intended for
commercial occupancy,

"Common area" means an entire condominium project excepting all units therein.

"Condominium" means and includes:

1. "Condominium" as defined by Section 7^ of the Civil Code;

2  "Community apartment project" as defined by Section 11004 of the Business and

Professions Code;

35

157



3. "Stock cooperative" as defined by Section 11003.2 of the Business and Professions
Code; and

4. "Planned development" as defined by Section 11003 of the Business and
Professions Code.

The term "condominium" specifically includes, but is not limited to, the conversion of any
existing structure for sale pursuant to a method described in subsections 1 through 4 of this
definition.

"Condominium conversion" or "conversion" means a change in the owmership of a parcel or
parcels of property, together with structures thereon, whereby the parcel or parcels and
structures previously used as rental units are changed to condominium ownership.
Condominium conversion includes projects which have previously obtained final map approval,
but have not proceeded to sell any of the units.

"Condominium project" or "project" includes the real property and any structures thereon, or any
structures to be constructed thereon, which are to be divided into condominium ownership

"Condominium unit" or "units" means the Individual spaces within a condominium project owned
as individual estates.

"Eligible tenant" means any tenant who was a resident of the condominium project proposed for
conversion on the date notice of intent to convert is given as required by state law.

"Notice of intent to convert" means the notice required to be served upon tenants or prospective
tenants pursuant to the requirements of Section 66427.1. 66452.8, 66452.9 or 66459 of the

Subdivision Map Act. The definition includes both sixty (60) and one hundred eighty (180) day
notices as further defined in the applicable section.

"Special category tenants" refers to persons or tenants who fall within one or more of the

following categories;

1. "Elderly" means individuals sixty-two (62) years of age or older;

2. "Handicapped" or "permanently disabled" means as defined in Section 50072 of the

California Health and Safety Code or 42 U S.C. 423 and 24 CFR 8.3;

3. "Low income" or "very low income" means as defined in Section 17,200.020,

t. Section 17,116.010 of the Municipal Code is hereby amended to read as
follows:

36

158



17.116.010 Purpose and intent.

The sidewalk cafe regulations as established in this chapter are intended to encourage the
establishment of sidewalk cafes in the city of Winters, to provide for the creation of a more
urban pedestrian environment, and to promote and protect the public health, safety, and general
welfare. These goals Include among others the following specific purposes;

A. To encourage and promote sidewalk cafes as visual amenities which in turn intensify
pedestrian activity and make street life more attractive;

B. To enhance the character of the city of Winters; and

C. To ensure adequate space for pedestrians on the sidewalk adjacent to sidewalk cafes.

u. Section 17.120.010 of the Municipal Code is hereby amended to read as
follows:

17.120.010 Purpose and intent.

it is the purpose and intent of the Winters city council, through the adoption of this chapter, to
establish an abandoned or vacant property registration program as a mechanism to protect
neighborhoods and commercial areas from becoming blighted through the lack of adequate
maintenance and security of abandoned and vacated properties.

V. Section 17.120.020 of the Municipal Code is hereby amended to read as
follows:

17.120.020 Definitions.

For the purposes of this chapter, certain words and phrases used in this chapter are defined as
follows:

"Abandoned" means a property that is vacant and is: (A) under a current notice of default; (B)
under a current notice of trustee's sale; (C) pending a tax assessor's lien sale; (D) any property
that has been the subject of a foreclosure sale where the title was retained by the beneficiary of
a deed of trust involved in the foreclosure; and (E) any property transferred under a deed in lieu

of foreclosure/sale.

"Accessible property" means a property that is accessible through a compromised/breached
window, gate, fence, wall, etc.

"Accessible structure" means a structure/building that is unsecured and/or breached in such a
way as to allow access to the interior space by unauthorized persons.

"Beneficiary" means a lender or holder of a note secured by a deed of trust.

37

159



"Beneficiary/trustee" means both the beneficiary and the trustee. When any act is required of
the beneficiary/trustee by this chapter, both are responsible for performing such act and may be
charged with a violation of this code for failure to act. However, it is sufficient if it is
accomplished by either one. If information is required to be provided, then both must provide
such information.

"Deed in lieu of foreclosure/sale" means a recorded document that transfers ownership of a
property from the trustor to the holder of a deed of trust upon consent of the beneficiary of the
deed of trust.

"Deed of trust" means an instrument by which title to real estate is transferred to a third party
trustee as security for a real estate loan and often used in Callfomia instead of a mortgage. This
definition applies to any and all subsequent deeds of trust, i.e., second trust deed, third trust
deed, etc.

"Distressed" means a property that is under a current notice of default and/or notice of tnjstee's
sale and/or pending tax assessor's lien sale or has been foreclosed upon by the trustee or has
been conveyed to the beneficiary/trustee via a deed in lieu of foreclosure/sale.

"Evidence of vacancy" means any condition that on its own or combined with other conditions
present would lead a reasonable person to believe that the property is vacant and not occupied
by authorized persons. Such conditions include, but are not limited to, overgrown and/or dead
vegetation, accumulation of newspapers, circulars, flyers and/or mail, past due utility notices
and/or disconnected utilities, accumulation of trash, junk and/or debris, the absence of window
coverings such as curtains, blinds and/or shutters, the absence of furnishings and/or personal
items consistent with residential habitation, and statements by neighbors, passersby, delivery
agents, or government employees that the property is vacant.

"Local" means within thirty (30) road/driving miles distant of the subject property.

"Notice of default" means a recorded notice that a default has occurred under a deed of trust

and that the beneficiary intends to proceed with a trustee's sale.

"Out of area" means in excess of thirty (30) road/driving miles' distance of the subject property.

"Property" means any unimproved or improved real property, or portion thereof, situated in the
city and includes the buildings or structures located on the property regardless of condition.

"Responsible person" means any person, partnership, association, corporation, or fiduciary
having legal or equitable title to or any interest in any real property and includes trustees and
beneficiaries of a deed of trust on the property and any other lien holder on the property.

38

160



"Securing" means such measures as may be directed by the director of community
development, or his or her designee, that assist in rendering the property inaccessible to
unauthorized persons, including but not limited to the repairing of fences and walls, chaining or
padlocking of gates, or the repair or boarding of doors, windows and/or other openings.
Boarding shall be completed to a minimum of the current HUD securing standards at the time
the boarding is completed or required.

"Trustee" means the person, firm or corporation holding a deed of trust on a property.

"Trustor" means a borrower under a deed of trust, who deeds property to a trustee as security
for the payment of a debt.

"Vacant" means a building/structure that is not occupied by authorized persons.

w. Section 17.122.020 of the Municipal Code is hereby amended to read as
follows;

17.122.020 Definitions.

For the purposes of this chapter, the following word shall have the meaning respectively
ascribed to it in this section.

"Single room occupancy" means a facility providing six (6) or more dwelling units where each
unit has a minimum floor area of one hundred fifty (150) feet and a maximum floor area of four
hundred (400) square feet. These dwelling units may have kitchen or bathroom facilities and
shall be offered on a monthly basis or longer.

X. Section 17.123.020 of the Municipal Code is hereby added to read as
follows:

17.123.020 Deffnitlons.

"Farmworker" means the same as "agricultural employee" as defined in Section 1140 4(b) of the
California Labor Code.

"Farmworker dwelling unit" means a single-family residential unit occupied by a maximum of six
farmworkers at any one time.

"Farmworker housing" means a housing accommodation developed for and/or provided to
farmworkers and shall consist of any living quarters, dwelling, boarding house, tent, barracks,
bunkhouse, maintenance-of-way car, mobile home, manufactured home, recreational vehicle,
travel trailer, or other housing accommodation maintained in one (1) or more buildings and on
one (1) or more sites. Farmworker housing shall consist of either a farmworker dwelling unit or a
farmworker housing complex.

39

161



"Farmworker housing complex" means farmworker housing other than a farmworker dwelling
unit that (1) contains a maximum of thirty-six (36) beds if the housing consists of any group
living quarters, such as barracks or a bunkhouse, and is occupied exclusively by farmworkers;
or (2) contains a maximum of twelve (12) residential units occupied exclusively by farmworkers
and their households, if the housing does not consist of any group living quarters.

0. Section 17.200.020 of the Municipal Code is hereby amended to read as follows:

17.200.020 Definitions.

"Affordable housing" means affordable sales housing or affordable rental housing. Affordable
housing focuses on moderate, low and very low income households as defined herein and by
state statute.

"Affordable housing steering committee" means an advisory committee appointed by the city
council for the purpose of advising the city council, planning commission, community
development agency and city staff on affordable housing policies and programs, use of
redevelopment housing funds, proposed affordable housing projects, and other housing
matters, at the request of the city council.

"Inclusionary housing agreement" means an agreement between the developer and the city
setting forth the manner in which the inclusionary housing requirements will be met in the
development project.

"Inclusionary housing plan" means the plan setting forth the manner in which the developer
proposes to satisfy the inclusionary housing requirements of this chapter within the development
project.

"Inclusionary housing requirement" means the inclusionary housing requirements as specified in
this chapter

"Inclusionary housing unit" or "inclusionary unit" means an ownership or rental unit developed or
provided in satisfaction of the inclusionary housing requirements of a development project, as
provided for in this chapter, and which is affordable to very low, low income or moderate income

households.

"Low income household" means a household whose income does not exceed eighty (80)
percent of median income applicable to Yolo County, adjusted for family size, as published and
annually updated by the United States Department of Housing and Urban Development.

"Moderate income household" means a household whose income does not exceed one hundred

twenty (120) percent of median income applicable to Yolo County, adjusted for family size, as

40

162



published and annually updated by the United States Department of Housing and Urban
Development.

"Very low income household" means a household whose income does not exceed fifty (50)
percent of the median income, adjusted for household size, applicable to Yolo County, as
published and periodically updated by the United States Department of Housing and Urban
Development.

4. Severabilltv. If any section, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance or the
application thereof to any entity, person or circumstance is held for any reason to be invalid, or
unconstitutional, such invalidity or unconstitutionality shall not affect other provisions or
applications of this Ordinance which can be given effect without the invalid provision or
application, and to this end the provisions of this ordinance are declared to be severable. The
City Council of the City of Winters hereby declare that they would have adopted this Ordinance
and each section, sentence, clause or phrase thereof, irrespective of the fact that any one or
more section, subsections, sentences, clauses or phrases be declared invalid or
unconstitutional.

5. Effective Date. This ordinance shall take effect thirty (30) days following its adoption.

6. Publication. The City Clerk shall certify to the adoption of this Ordinance. Not later
than fifteen (15) days following the passage of this Ordinance, the Ordinance, or a summary
thereof, along with the names of the City Council members voting for and against the
Ordinance, shall be published in a newspaper of general circulation in the City of Winters.

INTRODUCED at a regular meeting on the day of , 2016 and PASSED AND
ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Winters City Council, County of Yolo, State of California,
on the day of , 2016 by the following roll call vote:

AYES:

NOES;

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

Cecilia Aguiar-Curry, Mayor
ATTEST:

Nanci G. Mills, City Clerk

41

163



CITY OF

e a o ̂  n ( (T

Est. 1875

TO; Honorable Mayor and Council Members

DATE: October 18,2016

THROUGH: John W. Donlevy, Jr., City Manager

FROM: David Dowswell, Community Development Department

SUBJECT: Public Hearing and Consideration of various amendments to Tide 19 (Code
Enforcement), pertaining to nuisance abatement of the Winters Municipal Code.

RECOMMENDED CITY COUNCIL ACTIONS:

1) Find the proposed amendments Categorically Exempt from CEQA, Section 15308 (Actions
by Regulatory Agencies); and

2) Receive the staff report, conduct the public hearing, and introduce Ordinance No. 2016-11
approving various amendments to Tide 19, Code Enforcement, of the Winters Municipal
Code.

BACKGROUND: Recendy the City had a code enforcement case involving a property on Niemann
Street. During the abatement process staff became aware that the existing nuisance abatement
regulations, which are part of Tide/Chapter 19 (Code Enforcement) of the Winters Municipal Code
(Code) (Attachment A), have a number of deficiencies. The most significant deficiency is not having a
defimtion of what constitutes a "nuisance". Staff also realized the appeal hearing process is very
cumbersome and needs revriing and that most of the costs the city incurs to abate a code enforcement
case cannot be recovered. Rather than amending the various sections of Chapter 19 the City Attorney
prepared an entirely new Chapter 19, nuisance abatement ordinance, based on similar ordinances from
other cities in the state.

On September 27, 2016 the Planning Commission reviewed the proposed ordinance at a study session
and voted unanimously to recommend that the City Council adopt the proposed changes to Title 19
(Code Enforcement) of the Winters Municipal Code as recommended by staff.

ANALYSIS: The proposed nuisance abatement ordinance is not part of the Zoning Ordinance (Title
17) of the Code, and as such the Planning Commission is not directly responsible for its enforcement.
However, a nuisance can involve a property where the Planning Commission may have been a part of
the entitlement process. For example a business installs a wall sign and then fails to maintain it.

164



The proposed nuisance ordinance (Attachments B and C) is tailored to meet Winters needs and address
recent changes in state law, specifically having to do with the use of marijuana. Added to the nuisance
ordinance, which is not in the current Code, is a definition (Section 19.04.030) of what constitutes a
"nuisance", a section which allows the City to recover city attomey and other costs incurred during the
abatement process. The appeal hearing procedure has been simplified by having a dedicated person (dty
clerk) serve as a hearing officer rather than, as currently require^ the community development director
appointing or hiring an outside person to serve in this capacity. To maintain objectivity the hearing
officer shall not have been responsible for or directly involved with the enforcement action. Also, a
number of sections have been added describing the process by which the dty can lien or assess a
property for the costs incurred to abate the code violation if the property owner fails to abate the
violation in a timely manner. Lasdy, a section has been added that if the property owner is found guilty
of a second violation (Section 19.06.100) within two years of a first offense the costs/fines may be
tripled to abate the violation.

ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT: The proposed project is categorically exempt from
environmental review pursuant to California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Guidelines Section
15308 (Actions by Regulatory Agendes).

ATTACHMENTS:

A. Existing Title/Chapter 19 Code Enforcement regulations
B. Proposed new Title/Chapter 19 Nuisance OrHinanre redline copy
C. Proposed new Title/Chapter 19 Nuisance Ordinance dean copy

165



Print Preview
Page 1 of 16

Title 19

CODE ENFORCEIWENT

Chapters:
19.04 Code Enforcement Generally
19.08 Nuisance Abatement
19.12 Administrative Citations
19.16 Hearing Procedure

Chapter 19.04
CODE ENFORCEMENT GENERALLY

Sections:

19.04.010 Purpose and authority.
19.04.020 Definitions.

19.04.030 Code violations.
19.04.040 Duty to enforce.
19.04.050 Criminal enforcement.
19.04.060 Civil actions.
19.04.070 Public nuisance.

19.04.080 Administrative citations,
19.04.090 Reservation of rights.
19.04.100 Service procedures.
19.04.110 Authority to inspect property.
19.04.120 Authority to obtain records.

19.04.010 Purpose and authority.
The city coundl establishes the procedures set forth in this title for declaring and
addressing violations of the Winters Municipal Code, pursuant to California
Government Code Sections 36900 et seq, 38660, 38771 through 38775, inclusive,
53069.4, 54988, and all other statutes and laws referenced herein. The purpose of
this title is to provide criminal, civil and administrative remedies, which shall be in
addition to all other legal remedies that may be pursued by the city, to prevent,
discourage, abate, or otherwise address any violation of this code. It is the policy of
the city to first seek to address code violations through the least intrusive remedies
available, including administrative remedies, prior to instituting such remedies as civil
or criminal actions. (Ord. 2010-01 § 1 (part))

19.04.020 Definitions.

For the purposes of this title, the words and terms set forth in this section shall have
the following definitions:

A. "Affected property" means any real property or portions thereof within city
boundaries, including any buildings or other improvements located on such property,
where code violations allegedly exist or have previously existed.

httD://www.codenublii?hinp.cnm/rAAX ATTACHMENT A m-i a r.



Page 2 of 16

B. Code" means the Winters Municipal Code, as It may be amended from time to
time.

C. "Code enforcement officer" means any person authorized or directed by the city
manager to enforce any provision of this code.

D. "Compliance" means all actions required to remove, alleviate, eliminate, halt, or
mitigate a violation of this code in the manner and in the time frame prescribed by a
code enforcement officer, hearing officer, or the director.

E. "Day" and "days" mean calendar days.

F. "Director" means the community development director.

G. "Enforcement action" means any notice of violation, hearing, citation,
investigation, complaint or petition, or any administrative or judicial order under
authority of this title or any other legal authority.

H. "Hearing officer" means any person appointed by the director to conduct a
hearing pursuant to this title.

I. "Responsible party" means any person, or parent or legal guardian of any person
under eighteen (18) years of age, whose acts or omissions have caused or
contributed to a violation of this code, and shall include any owner(s) or occupant(s)
of the affected property. (Ord. 2010-01 § 1 (part))

19.04.030 Code violations.

It is unlawful for any person to violate any provision or fail to comply with any
requirement of this code. Any responsible party (including, without limitation, any
agent, employee, or contractor of the responsible party) violating or contributing to the
violation of any code requirement or such term or condition may be subject to an
enforcement action as provided in this title and in any other applicable law. The owner
of any property, building, or structure within the city has the responsibility for keeping
such property, building, or structure free of violations related to its use or condition.
The owner of such property, building, or structure is separately liable for violations
committed by occupants relative to the use or condition of the property.

A. It is unlawful, and it shall be a public nuisance for any person owning, leasing,
occupying or having charge or possession of any premises or property in the city to
maintain a medical cannabis dispensary upon such premises or property.

B. A medical cannabis dispensary is defined as any place, location, building or
establishment where medical cannabis is traded, exchanged, sold, distributed or
cultivated which would otherwise require a business license, home occupation permit,
or any other use permit to conduct similar type activities.

C. Notwithstanding the prohibition in subsection A of this section, medical cannabis
collectives and cooperatives formed in a manner consistent with California law and
the California Attorney General's Guidelines for the Security and Non-Diversion of
Marijuana Grown for Medical Use issued in August 2008 shall be permitted to operate

http://www.codepublishing.eom/CAAVinters/cfii/MenuComDiIe.Dl 7/14/701
167



Print Preview Page 3 of 16

provided they do not sell, exchange, trade, distribute or cultivate medical marijuana In
a manner prohibited by subsection A of this section, and that they do not exchange
payment or gift in the form of money for such medical marijuana. (Ord. 2011-05 § 7;
Ord. 2010-01 § 1 (part))

19.04.040 Duty to enforce.
Nothing In this title shall be construed as requiring the city to pursue the code
enforcement remedies contained herein for every code violation that occurs within the
city. The city envisions that this title will be enforced, in the city's prosecutorial
discretion, as resources permit. Nothing in this section or the absence of any similar
provisions from any other city law shall be construed to impose a duty on the city to
enforce such other provision of law. This title is not intended to and shall not be
construed or given effect in a manner that imposes upon the city or any officer or
employee thereof a mandatory duty of care towards persons and property within or
without the city so as to provide a basis of civil liability for damages, except as
otherwise imposed by law. (Ord. 2010-01 § 1 (part))

19.04.050 Criminal enforcement

In addition to the remedies set forth in this title, any violation of this code may be
subject to criminal prosecution according to the procedures set forth in Chapter 1.16
of this code. Upon entry of a second or subsequent criminal judgment against the
same owner or other responsible party within a two-year period for a condition of real
property constituting a public nuisance (except for conditions abated pursuant to
Health and Safety Code Section 17980), the court issuing the judgment may order
said owner or other responsible party to pay treble the cost of the abatement,
pursuant to Government Code Section 38773.7. (Ord. 2010-01 § 1 (part))

19.04.060 Civil actions.

In addition to the remedies set forth in this title, the city attorney, at the discretion of
the city coundl, may institute an action in any court of competent jurisdiction to
restrain, enjoin, or abate any violation of this code. The city in any such civil action
shall be entitled to recovery of attorney's fees and costs incurred in such action. Upon
entry of a second or subsequent civil judgment against the same owner or other
responsible party within a two-year period for a condition of real property constituting
a public nuisance (except for conditions abated pursuant to Health and Safety Code
Section 17980), the court issuing the judgment may order said owner or other
responsible party to pay treble the cost of the abatement, pursuant to Government
Code Section 38773.7. (Ord. 2010-01 § 1 (part))

19.04.070 Public nuisance.

Any violation of this code is hereby declared to be a public nuisance. In addition to the
remedies set forth in this title, any public nuisance may be abated by the city
according to the procedure set forth in Chapter 19.08, except as otherwise provided
in Chapter 8.08 (Abandoned Vehicles), Chapter 8.12 (Weed and Rubbish
Abatement), Chapter 12.08 (Trees), and Chapter 15.56 (Alternate Procedures for the
Abatement of Dangerous and Unsafe Buildings). (Ord. 2010-01 § 1 (part))

19.04.080 Administrative citations.

http://www.codepubIishine.eom/CA/Winters/cd/Meniironinilft.nl 7/1 Anew f,
168



PrintPreview r» ^Page 4 of 16

In addition to the remedies set forth in this title, any violation of this code may be
subject to the administrative citation process according to the procedures set forth in
Chapter 19.16. (Ord. 2010-01 § 1 (part))

19.04.090 Reservation of rights.
In addition to the remedies provided in this title, the city expressly reserves the right to
utilize enforcement remedies available under any applicable state or federal statute or
pursuant to any other lawful power the city may possess. The election of remedies
provided by this title or other applicable law shall be at the sole discretion of city
officials. (Ord. 2010-01 § 1 (part))

19.04.100 Service procedures.
A. Whenever notice or other document is required to be given under this title, it shall
be personally served or served by mail pursuant to the provisions of Section 1.04.110
of this code. In the case of personal service, senrice shall be deemed complete at the
time of such delivery. In the case of mail, service shall be deemed complete as
provided in Section 1.04.110 of this code.

B. VWiere service of a notice of violation, first offense waming, or administrative
citation is by mail, a copy of the notice of violation, first offense waming, or
administrative citation shall also Ije conspicuously posted at the affected property.

\

C. Proof of service of any notice or other document required to be given under this
title shall be certified by a written declaration under penalty of perjury executed by the
person effecting service, declaring the date, time and manner of service, and the
place of posting, if applicable. The declaration shall be affixed to a copy of the notice
or other document and retained by the code enforcement officer.

p. The failure of a responsible party to receive any notice or other document served
in accordance with this section shall not affect the validity of any proceedings taken
under this title. (Ord. 2010-01 § 1 (part))

19.04.110 Authority to inspect property.
A. A code enforcement officer may enter and inspect any affected property pursuant
to the provisions of Chapter 1.12 of this code to perform any duty imposed upon him
or her by this title whenever the code enforcement officer has cause to believe a
violation is occurring. Notwithstanding the foregoing, any individual or occupant of any
property within the city has the right to deny entry to a code enforcement officer
requesting entry for inspection purposes.

1. If entry is denied, pursuant to Section 1.12.010, the code enforcement
officer may seek a court-ordered inspection wamant pursuant to the Code of
Civil Procedure Section 1822.50 et seq. Upon issuance of an inspection warrant,
the code enforcement officer shall cause such warrant to be executed in
accordance with the procedures set forth in Code of Civil Procedure Section
1822.56.

httn://www.codeniihlTshinp.cnm/C.A AVintftrs/r.ai/Mftniirinmnilp nl 7/i
169



Print Preview o c r i ̂
Page 5 of 16

2. If entry and inspection pursuant to a court-ordered inspection warrant are
denied, the code enforcement officer shall have recourse to every remedy
provided by law to secure entry.

B. Inspections performed pursuant to Chapter 1.12 and/or an inspection warrant
may include, but not be limited to, the taking of photographs, samples,
measurements, surveys, or obtaining other physical evidence, and/or conferring with
any per5on(s) present at the affected property, as permitted by law and consistent
with legally recognized privacy rights. (Ord. 2010-01 § 1 (part))

19.04.120 Authoitty to obtain records.
The city shall have the right and authority to request and review records from the
responsible party or any third party that is, or may be, related to the subject matter of
the enforcement action, and to make copies of the same at the expense of the city, in
any manner authorized by law. (Ord. 2010-01 § 1 (part))

Chapter 19.08
NUISANCE ABATEMENT

Sections:

19.08.010 Nuisance abatement (nonemergency).
19.08.020 Summary abatement (emergency).
19.08.030 Notice of violation—Stop work order.
19.08.040 Time allowed for abatement by the responsible party.
19.08.050 Violation disputes.
19.08.060 Abatement hearing.
19.08.070 Abatement order and abatement warrant.
19.08.080 Appeal of an abatement order.
19.08.090 Recovery of abatement costs.
19.08.100 Report and confirmation of abatement costs.

19.08:010 Nuisance abatement (nonemergency).
Whenever a code enforcement officer determines that a code violation exists, the
code enforcement officer may pursue the abatement of such violation according to
the procedures provided in this chapter. (Ord. 2010-01 § 1 (part))

19.08.020 Summary abatement (emergency).
Notwithstanding any other provision of this code, whenever, in the reasonable
discretion of the code enforcement officer, the existence or continuance of any
violation poses an imminent or immediate threat of harm to persons or property, or to
public health, welfare or safety, a code enforcement officer may act immediately and
without prior notice or hearing to abate or cause the abatement of such violation on
behalf of the city pursuant to this section. Notwithstanding the foregoing, a reasonable
effort shall be made to notify the owner of the premises in advance of abatement.

The city's director of financial management shall keep an itemized account of the
costs incurred by the city in abating the violation and shall submit a report of the
abatement costs to the director in accordance with Section 19.08.100. The report of
abatement costs shall also be served on the responsible party and shall include

httD://www.codenublishinff.com/r!A/Winters/opT/Mennr!nmnilp. nl
170



Page 6 of 16

notice of the time and place when a hearing will be conducted in which the
responsible party may contest the validity of the summary abatement and the costs
incurred by the city in abating the violation pursuant to the procedures in Section
19.08.100. Such costs may be recovered to the same extent and in the same manner
that abatement costs are recovered pursuant to Section 19.16.060. (Ord. 2010-01 § 1
(part))

19.08.030 Notice of violation—Stop work order.
A. A notice of violation serves as a written waming of responsibility and requires
action by the responsible party to cease and abate the violation. A notice of violation
is not required if the code enforcement officer determines that summary abatement Is
necessary pursuant to Section 19.08.020.

B. The notice of violation shall include the following information:

1. The date, approximate time and location of the violation, Including the
address or other description of the location where the violation occurred or Is
occuning;

2. The name(s) of the responsible party(les), if known;

3. The code section{s) violated and a description of the violation(s);

4. An order prohibiting the continuation or repeated occurrence of the violation;

5. A description of the action necessary to abate the violation;

6. A period of time during which the action necessary to abate the violation
shall be commenced and completed, which shall be determined pursuant to
Section 19.08.040;

7. A statement that the period of time during which the action necessary to
abate the violation shall be commenced and completed may be extended
pursuant to the procedure set forth in Section 19.08.040;

8. A statement informing the responsible party that he or she may dispute the
violation by contacting the city clerk to set up a meeting with the director to
discuss the matter within ten (10) days of receiving the notice of violation;

9. An order requiring the responsible party to appear at an abatement hearing
upon the expiration of the period of time to abate the violation or any extension
of that time period granted by the director pursuant to Section 19.08.040 in the
event that the responsible party fails to abate the violation;

10. The time, date and place for the abatement hearing;

11. A description of the abatement process, including the types of evidence
that may be submitted at the abatement hearing; and

http://www.C0depublishine.C0m/CA/Winters/cpi/MennroTnni1ft nl 7/1 Anm f.
171



Page 7 of 16

12. The name and signature of the code enforcement officer, city contact
information (address, telephone number) for additional information and, if
possible, the signature of the responsible party.

C. If the violation is related to a permit, license, or other city approval of a project,
the notice of violation may be accompanied by a stop work order which orders the
responsible party to immediately stop any and all work on the project that is subject to
the permit, license or approval until the violation is corrected. (Ord. 2010-01 § 1
(part))

19.08.040 Time allowed for abatement by the responsible party,
A. Any notice of violation issued pursuant to Section 19.08.030 or abatement order
issued pursuant to Section 19.16.040 shall provide a reasonable time during which
the action necessary to abate the violation shall be commenced and completed based
upon the circumstances of the particular violation, taking into consideration the
followirig factors:

1. The means required to abate the violation;

2. The period of time that the violation has existed; and

3. The potential threat to public health and safety created by the violation.

B. If a violation pertains to building, plumbing, electrical, mechanical, or other similar
structural or zoning issues and does not pose an imminent threat of harm to persons
or property, or to the public health, welfare, or safety, the responsible party shall be
provided an appropriate amount of time to abate the violation as determined by the
code enforcement officer, but in no event shall that amount of time be less than seven
days.

C. Any responsible party receiving a notice of violation may file a written request for
extension with the city clerk for consideration by the director for an extension of time
to abate the violation identified in the notice of violation; provided, that the written
request is received before the end of the period set forth in the notice of violation to
abate the violation. The director may grant an extension of time to abate the violation
if the person requesting the extension of time has supplied sufficient evidence
showing that the abatement cannot reasonably be made within the period set forth in
the notice of violation. (Ord. 2010-01 § 1 (part))

19.08.050 Violation disputes.
If a person designated as the responsible party in the notice of violation wishes to
dispute the alleged code violation, he or she may contact the city clerk to set up a
meeting with the director to discuss and seek resolution of the matter within ten (10)
days of receiving the notice of violation. If the concems of the person designated as
the responsible party in the notice of violation are not satisfactorily addressed in this
meeting, he or she will be entitled to present those concems at an abatement hearing
as described in this title. (Ord. 2010-01 § 1 (part))

19.08.060 Abatement hearing.

httr)r//www.cnHeniihlishina mm/rAAVint<»ro/<^m/\/r#»Ti,i
172



Print Preview d« o
Page 8 of 16

All abatement hearings shall be conducted pursuant to the procedures set forth in
Chapter 19.16 and shall be subject to all of the provisions of this title. (Ord, 2010-01
§ 1 (part))

19.08.070 Abatement order and abatement warrant
A. An abatement order issued pursuant to Section 19.16.040 may include any
combination of the following remedies;

1. Issue a cease and desist order requiring the responsible party to
immediately stop the violation.

2. Require the responsible party to abate the violation according to a proposed
schedule to abate the violation within a reasonable time as determined
according to Section 19.08.040.

3. Require the responsible party to restore a site or location that has been
damaged or disturbed as a result of the violation to a previolation condition.

4. Require the responsible party to mitigate any damage or disturbance to
protected or environmentally sensitive areas as a result of any violation,
including, without limitation, off-site replacement of damaged or destroyed
natural resources where on-site restoration or mitigation is not feasible, as
determined by the city.

5. Impose conditions that restrict or regulate the development of, use of, or
activity on real property where a nexus exists between the violation and the
development, use, or activity. Conditions may be imposed until the violation is
fully abated. Restrictions and regulations on current orftjture development, use,
or activity may include site restoration and/or the suspension or revocation of
any entitlements issued by the city.

6. Authorize the city to abate or cause the abatement of the violation where
the responsible party has refused or othen/vise neglected to abate the violation
or is unable to take steps to abate the violation. The abatement order shall
specify that if the city undertakes the abatement of the violation, the city shall be
entitled to recover all costs of abatement incurred in performing such work and
other costs necessary to enforce the order. Any abatement costs incurred as a
result of the city actions to abate a violation pursuant to an abatement order may
be recovered by the city as a personal obligation and/or through a lien or a
special assessment on the affected property pursuant to Section 19.16.060.

7. Any other order or remedy that serves the interests of justice.

B. If an abatement order is issued pursuant to Section 19.16.040 authorizing the
city to abate a violation, an authorized representative of the city may petition a court
of competent jurisdiction for an abatement warrant authorizing a code enforcement
officer or any employee, authorized agent, representative, or contractor of the city to
enter onto any affected property to abate the violation. An abatement warrant, as
contemplated in this section, shall be requested in the same manner, and be in

httn*//www rnHftniihli^hina nrHn/P A AX/int#»re//^oi
173



Print Preview n
Page 9 of 16

substantially the same form, as an inspection warrant pursuant to Code of Civil
Procedure Section 1822.50 at seq. The city shall seek the written consent of the
responsible party to allow the city to perform the necessary work prior to seeking an
abatement warrant from a court Upon issuance of an abatement warrant, as
described in this section, the code enforcement officer shall cause such warrant to be
executed in accordance with the procedures set forth in Code of Civil Procedure
Section 1822.56. (Ord. 2010-01 § 1 (part))

19.08.080 Appeal of an abatement order.
An abatement order issued pursuant to Section 19.16.040 may be appealed to the
city manager pursuant to Section 19.16.050. (Ord. 2010-01 § 1 (part))

19.08.090 Recovery of abatement costs.
The city may elect to recover its costs to abate a violation, including, without
limitation, the costs of any abatement hearing (including staff time necessary to
prepare for and attend an abatement hearing), any costs incurred by the city in
performing or contracting for work required to achieve compliance with an abatement
order, any reinspections required to determine or confirm that compliance has been
achieved, production of all staff reports, environmental tests or measurements that
are deemed necessary or appropriate by the code enforcement officer, third party
inspection(s) or consultant services as deemed necessary by the city and any
attorneys fees incurred in pursuing enforcement. Any abatement costs incurred may
be recovered even if the nuisance is abated by the responsible party. If the city elects
at the initiation of an administrative enforcement action or proceeding to seek
recovery of attorneys' fees, pursuant to Government Code Section 38773.5, the
prevailing party shall be entitled to recover attorneys' fees in an amount not to exceed
the amount of attorneys' fees incurred by the city in such action. (Ord. 2010-01 8 1
(part))

19.08.100 Report and confirmation of abatement costs.
A. The city's director of financial management shall keep an accounting of all
abatement costs as described in Section 19.08.090.

B. The city's director of financial management shall submit an itemized report of the
abatement costs to the director for confirmation.

C. The city clerk shall serve a copy of such report upon the responsible party
pursuant to Section 19.04.100. The report of abatement costs shall be accompanied
by a notice of the time and place when a hearing will be conducted by the director to
consider confirmation of such report. The report and notice shall be served upon the
responsible party at least ten (10) days prior to the scheduled date of the hearing.

D. At the time and place fixed in the notice of the confirmation hearing, the director
shall consider the report of abatement costs submitted by the city's director of
financial management and hear any protests or objections thereto by the responsible
party or any other interested persons. The hearing may be continued from time to
time without further written notice.

httDj//wWW.Codenilh]ishina rnm/PA AVintorc/r
174



Print Preview m
Page 10 of 16

E. Upon the conclusion of the hearing, the director shail make such revisions,
corrections, or modifications to the report as may be necessary or appropriate, based
upon the evidence presented at the hearing, and shall thereafter confirm the report as
submitted or modified by issuing an order for collection of the abatement costs
pursuant to Section 19.16.060. The decision of the director shall be final and
conclusive, unless timely appealed to the city council in accordance with the
procedures provided in Chapter 2.44 of this code. (Ord. 2010-01 § 1 (part))

Chapter 19.12
ADMINISTRATIVE CITATIONS

Sections:

19.12.010 First offense warning.
19.12.020 Violation disputes.
19.12.030 Administrative citation.
19.12.040 Administrative fines.

19.12.050 Payment of fines—Late payment charges.
19.12.060 Hearing contesting an administrative citation.

19.12.010 First offense warning.
A. Whenever a code enforcement officer determines that a violation of this code
exists, the cxjde enforcement officer may serve a first offense waming to the
responsible party. The first offense waming shall be served as a prerequisite to the
issuance of a first administrative citation and serves as a written waming of
responsibility.

B. The first offense waming shall include the following information:

1. The date, approximate time and location of the violation, including the
address or other description of the location where the violation occurred or is
occum'ng;

2. The name(s) of the responsible party(ies), if known;

3. The code section(s) violated and a description of the violation(s);

4. An order prohibiting the continuation or repeated occurrence of the violation;

5. A description of the action necessary to abate the violation;

6. A period of time during which the action necessary to abate the violation
shall be commenced and completed, which shall be determined pursuant to
Section 19.08.040;

7. A statement that the period of time during which the action necessary to
abate the violation shall be commenced and completed may be extended
pursuant to the procedure set forth in Section 19.08.040;

8. A statement that an administrative citation shall be issued to the responsible
party upon the expiration of the period of time during which the action necessary

httD://www.CodenubIishinty.finm/rAAVint»»rc/nrT;A/f<
175



Print Preview Page 11 of 16

to abate the violation shall be commenced and completed or any extension of
that time period granted by the director pursuant to Section 19.08.040 in the
event that the responsible party fails to abate the violation;

9. The amount of the administrative citation in the event that an administrative
citation is issued for the violation;

10. The name and signature of the code enforcement officer, city contact
information {address, telephone number) for additional information and, if
possible, the signature of the responsible party; and

11. A statement informing the responsible party that he or she may dispute the
violation by contacting the city clerk to set up a meeting with the director to
discuss the matter within ten (10) days of receiving the notice of violation. (Ord
2010-01 § 1 (part))

19.12.020 Violation disputes.
If a person designated as the responsible party in the first offense warning wishes to
dispute the alleged code violation, he or she may contact the city clerk to set up a
meeting with the director to discuss and seek resolution of the matter within ten (10)
days of receiving the first offense warning. (Ord. 2010-01 § 1 (part))

19.12.030 Administrative citation.

A. In the event that the responsible party fails to abate the violation upon the
expiration of the period of time identified in the first offense waming during which the
action necessary to abate the violation shall be commenced and completed or any
extension of that time period granted by the director pursuant to Section 19.08.040,
the code enforcement officer shall have the authority to issue an administrative
citation to the responsible party for the violation.

B. Each administrative citation shall include the following:

1. The date, approximate time and location of the violation, including the
address or other description of the location where the violation occurred or is
occurring and a brief description of the conditions observed that constitute a
violation;

2. The narne(s) of the responsible party(ies), if known;

3. The code section(s) violated and a description of the violation(s);

4. The amount of the fine for the code violation;

5. A description of the fine payment process, inciuding a description of the
time within which and the place to which the fine must be paid;

6. An order prohibiting the continuation or repeated occurrence of the violation
of this code;

httr)!//www.cnrieniihli5;hin(y r.nm/PA/Wtntpr«/roi/\/f#»n»ir'/Mnr»il^ t/i a /om ̂
176



Page 12 of 16

7. A description of the administrative citation process, including the time within
which the administrative citation may be appealed and the procedure for
requesting an appeal hearing;

8. A description of the waiver of deposit process set forth in Section 19:16.020,
including the time within which a written request for a deposit waiver may be
made; and

9. The name and signature of the enforcement officer, city contact information
(address, telephone number) for additional information and, if possible, the
signature of the responsible party. (Ord. 2010-01 § 1 (part))

19.12.040 Administrative fines.
A. The amounts of fines that may be imposed for a violation shall be set forth in a
schedule of fines established by resolution of the city council. The amount of such
fines shall not exceed;

1. The amount of any fine that may be imposed for a violation that would
othenwise be an infraction shall not exceed the amounts set forth in Government
Code Section 36900, as amended from time to time.

2. The amount of any fine that may be imposed for a violation that would
otherwise be a misdemeanor shall not exceed one thousand dollars ($1,000.00).

B. A separate violation shall be deemed committed on each day a violation of this
code occurs or continues for purposes of setting the amount of a fine to be imposed.
Any fine imposed will accrue on a daily basis from the date the fine becomes effective
until the violation is corrected. Any condition of real property that constitutes a
violation where the same, or substantially similar, violation has been the subject of
two or more enforcement actions within any three-month period is deemed a
continuing violation. (Ord. 2010-01 § 1 (part))

19,12.050 Payment of fines—Late payment charges.
A. Fines shall be paid directly to the city within thirty (30) days from the date of the
administrative citation.

B. Payment of a fine under this section shall not excuse or discharge any
continuation or repeated occurrence of the violation that is the subject of the
administrative citation.

C. Fines that remain unpaid thirty (30) days after the due date shall be subject to a
late payment penalty of ten (10) percent plus interest at the rate of one percent per
month on the outstanding balance, which shall be added to the fine amount from the
date that payment is due. (Ord. 2010-01 § 1 (part))

19.12.060 Hearing contesting an administrative citation.
A. Any person issued an administrative citation may contest the administrative
citation by filing a written request for a hearing with the city clerk within thirty (30)
days of the date of the administrative citation. The fine issued by the administrative
citation shall be deposited with the written request for a hearing or a written request

http://www.C0deDublishinfi.C0in/CA/Winter5;/cm/Mftnnrnmnilp nl 7/1
177



Page 13 of 16

for a waiver of the deposit shall be filed with the written request for a hearing. A
hearing to contest the administrative citation shall be conducted pursuant to the
procedures set forth in Chapter 19.16 and shall be subject to all of the provisions of
this title. A hearing to contest the administrative citation shall not be held unless and
uritil the fine has been deposited or a waiver of the deposit has been granted
pursuant to Section 19.16.020. If the fine or written request for a waiver of the deposit
is not filed with the written request for a hearing, the hearing request shall not be
considered timely submitted.

B. When a written request for hearing is filed with the city clerk to contest an
administrative citation, the city clerk shall set the time and place for the hearing and
shall sen/e a notice of hearing on the requesting party. A hearing to contest the
administrative citation shall be conducted pursuant to the procedures set forth in
Chapter 19.16. (Ord. 2010-01 § 1 (part))

Chapter 19.16
HEARING PROCEDURE

Sections:

19.16.010 Preservation of the status quo pending hearing.
19.16.020 Waiver of deposits and fees.
19.16.030 Administrative hearing.
19.16.040 Decision ofthe hearing officer.
19.16.050 Appeal of hearing officer decision.
19.16.060 Collection of fines and costs.
19.16.070 Requirement to exhaust administrative remedies.
19.16.080 Judicial review.

19.16.010 Preservation ofthe status quo pending hearing.
If a timely request for any hearing is filed, any compliance obligations that may be
imposed shall be stayed until a final decision is rendered, unless an emergency
situation exists requiring summary abatement pursuant to Section 19.08.020. (Ord
2010-01 § 1 (part))

19.18.020 Waiver of deposits and fees.
A. Any person who is financially unable to make the deposit required by Section
19.12.060 or the fee required by Section 19.16.050 may seek a waiver from such
payment.

B. In order to seek a waiver from a deposit or fee, a written request for a waiver
shall be filed with the city clerk. The written request for a waiver shall be filed with any
written request for a hearing for which the deposit or fee is required as required by
Sections 19.12.060 and 19.16.050. The request for a waiver shall be submitted with
any supporting documents demonstrating to the satisfaction ofthe city clerk that the
person is financially unable to deposit the full amount ofthe fine in advance ofthe
hearing or pay the full amount of the fee.

C. If the city clerk denies the request for a waiver, the city clerk shall provide the
requesting party a written determination of facts and findings supporting the

httr)://www.cnrieniihlishino rnm/PA
178

ni-\ a I'^rw c



Print Preview Page 14 of 16

determination to not Issue the waiver. If the request for a waiver is denied, the person
shall submit the required deposit or fee to the city clerk within ten (10) days of sen/ice
of the city clerk's determination, or may appeal the determination of the city clerk to
the city council in accordance with the procedures provided in Chapter 2.44 of this
code. (Ord. 2010-01 § 1 (part))

19.16.030 Administrative hearing.
A. The hearing shall be set for a date not less than ten (10) days from the date of
service of the notice of violation, and not more than sixty (60) days from the date a
written request for a hearing to contest the ?idministrative citation is filed with the city
clerk, unless the code enforcement officer detennines that the matter is urgent or that
good cause exists for an extension of time based on the circumstances of the
particular situation, in which case the hearing date may be shortened or extended.

B. If the code enforcement officer submits a written report conceming the notice of
violation or administrative citation to the hearing officer for consideration at the
hearing, then a copy of the report shall be served on the person issued the notice of
violation or administrative citation at least five days before the hearing.

C. At the place and time set forth in the notice of hearing or the notice of violation,
the hearing officer shall conduct a hearing on the alleged violation(s). Any responsible
party or other Interested person(s) may appear and offer written or oral testimony or
other evidence as to whether a violation has occurred and/or whether the violation
continues to exist, whether the person served the notice of violation or the
administrative citation is the responsible party for any such violation, whether an
administrative fine or the fine amount Is warranted, and/or any other matter pertaining
thereto. Evidence presented by the code enforcement officer or other official of the
city tending to show that a violation occurred and that the person served the notice of
violation or administrative citation is the responsible party shall establish a prima facie
case that a violation, as charged, actually existed and that the person served the
notice of violation or administrative citation is the responsible party for the violation.
The burden of proof shall then be on the responsible party to refute such evidence.
The standard to be applied for meeting such burden shall be a preponderance of the
evidence.

D. The hearing officer shall consider all written and oral testimony and other
evidence regarding the violation presented by the responsible party, the owner, the
occupant, any officer, employee, or agent of the city, and any other interested party.
Evidence offered during a hearing must be credible and relevant in the estimation of
the hearing officer, but formal rules goveming the presentation and consideration of
evidence shall not apply.

E. The hearing officer shall conduct the hearing, order the presentation of evidence
and make any rulings or determinations necessary to address procedural issues
presented during the course of the hearing. (Ord. 2010-01 § 1 (part))

19.16.040 Decision of the hearing officer.
A. After considering all of the written and oral testimony and other evidence
presented at the hearing, the hearing officer shall, within ten (10) days following the

httD://wwW.CodeDUb1ishine.COm/r!AAVintftrs/p.ai/N/fftnnrnmnilft nl 7/14/701 e.
179



Page 15 of 16

conclusion of the hearing, issue a written decision. The written decision of the hearing
officer and any abatement order shall be served upon the responsible party and any
interested party requesting a copy pursuant to Section 19.04.100.

B. If the hearing officer's written decision addresses an adrriinistrative citation, the
hearing officer may uphold the administrative citation, uphold the administrative
citation and modify the amount of the fine, or cancel the administrative citation. The
written decision shall state the reasons for the decision. If the hearing officer modifies
the amount of the fine or cancels the administrative citation, the city shall promptly
refund any amount of the fine deposited.

C. If the hearing officer's written decision addresses a notice of violation and/or stop
work order, the hearing officer may uphold, modify, or cancel the notice of violation
and/or stop work order. The written decision shall state the reasons for the decision. If
the hearing officer upholds or modifies the notice of violation and/or stop work order,
the hearing officer shall issue a written abatement order in accordance with Section
19.08.070. The city may seek to enforce any abatement order by confirmation from a
court of competent jurisdiction. Any abatement order that is judicially confirmed may
be enforced through all applicable judicial enforcement measures, including, without
limitation, contempt proceedings upon a subsequent violation of such order. (Ord.
2010-01 § 1 (part))

19,16.050 Appeal of hearing officer decision.
A. The responsible party may appeal any decision of the hearing officer to the city
manager by filing a written request for appeal stating the grounds for the appeal with
the city clerk within seven days after the date on which the decision or determination
is rendered by the hearing officer. The written request for an appeal hearing shall
include payment of the appeal processing fee set forth by resolution of the city council
or a request for waiver of the fee pursuant to Section 19.16.020. An appeal hearing
shall not be held unless and until the appeal processing fee has been paid or a
waiver of the fee has been granted pursuant to Section 19.16.020.

B. The city clerk shall serve, pursuant to Section 19.04.100, notice of the time and
place when the hearing will be conducted by the city manager to consider the hearing
officer's decision upon the responsible party at least ten (10) days prior to the
scheduled date of the hearing. The hearing may be continued to a later date, at the
discretion of the city manager.

C. The city manager may uphold, modify, or cancel the decision of the hearing
officer. Any determination by the city manager shall be in writing and served to the
appellant pursuant to Section 19.04.100 within ten (10) days of the conclusion of the
hearing. The decision of the city manager may be appealed to the city council in
accordance with the procedures provided in Chapter 2.44 of this code. (Ord. 2010-01
§ 1 (part))

19.16.060 Collection of fines and costs.

The city may pursue any and all legal and equitable remedies for unpaid
administrative fines, late payment charges, abatement costs and/or other costs,
including, but not limited to, a lien as prescribed by Government Code Section

Vi 11 n • //\xnkr\\r r*rvH^MTil^licViinrT A .<.1 n/-i a at
180



Page 16 of 16

38773.1 or a special assessment as prescribed by Government Code Section
38773.5. (Ord. 2010-01 § 1 (part))

19.16.070 Requireirient to exhaust administrative remedies.
The failure of any person to do the following shall, constitute a failure to exhaust
administrative remedies and shall preclude the person frpm obtaining judicial review
of the validity of the administrative citation or abatement order:

A. Failure to timely file a written request for a hearing to contest an
administrative citation pursuant to Section 19.12.060.

B. Failure to timely file a written request for appeal of a decision by a hearing
officer pursuant to Section 19.16,050. (Ord. 2010-01 § 1 (part))

19,16.080 Judicial review.

Any responsible party who is aggrieved by a decision of the city council and who has
exhausted the administrative remedies provided by this code, or any other applicable
law, shall have the right to seek judicial review of such decision by filing a petition for
writ of mandate in accordance with Code of Civil Procedure Sections 1094.5 and
1094.6 and Government Code Section 53069.4. (Ord, 2010-01 § 1 (part))

181
httD://wWW.CodeDUblishinS.COin/CA/WinterR/r.ffi/MRnnrntnTiilf» nl



Winters Municipal Code
Title 19 NUISANCE ABATEMENT

Page 1/24

ORDINANCE NO. 2016-11

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WINTERS

AMENDING VARIOUS SECTIONS OF TITLE 17 (ZONING ORDINANCE) OF
THE WINTERS MUNICIPAL CODE

The City Council of the City of Winters, State of California, does hereby ordain as follows:

1. Purpose. The purpose of this ordinance is to amend various sections of Title 17
Involving mostly formatting, removal of duplicative language and amending TableSA in Chapter
17.56 by increasing from 30 to 45 feet the maximum allowable structure height permitted in the
Highway Service Commercial (C-H) Zoning District.

2. Authority. The City of Winters has authority to adopt this ordinance pursuant to the
general police power granted to cities by Article 11, Section 7 of the California Constitution.

as follows

3- Amendments to Title 19 of the Municipal Code are hereby amended as follows:

a. Chapter 19 of the Municipal Code is hereby amended in its entirety to read

Title 19

NUISANCE ABATEMENT

Seotiono:

Chapter 19.04. Nuisance Abatement in General

Sections

19.04.010 Short title.

19.04.020 Definitions.

19.04.030 Nuisance and nuisance conditions defined.

19.04.040 Nuisance unlawful.

19-04.050 Property owner responsibilities.
19.04.060 Relationship of parts of chapter.
19.04.070 Relationship to uniform codes.
19.04.080 Relationship to remainder of City Code.
19.04.090 Attorneys' fees.

19.04.100 Severability.

Chapter 19.06. Nuisance Abatement Procedure

19.06.010 Notice to abate nuisance conditions.

19.06.020 Manner of conducting abatement hearing.
19.06.030 Issuance of decision findings and order
19.06.040 Appeal of decision.
19.06.050 Abatement by enforcement officer if nuisance is not abated.
19.06.060 Abatement by owner/responsible party,
19.06.070 Liability for administrative costs.

ATTACHMENTS
82573.00Q23\27169814.1

182



Winters Municipal Code Pace 2/24
IitleJ9NUISANCE.ABATEMENT

19.06.080 Report of abatement costs.
19.06.090 Appeal of abatement costs.
19 06.100 Manner of conducting the appeal hearing of abatement costs before the hearing

officer.

19.06.110 Hearing officer's decision of appeal hearing of abatement costs.
19.06.120 Assessment of abatement costs.
19.06.130 Manner of collection of notice of lien.

Chapter 19.08. Summary Abatement

19.08.010 Summary abatement.

Chapter 19.10. Administrative Citations

19.10.010 Title of article and authority.
19.10.020 Applicability.
19.10.030 Entry and inspection.
19.10.040 First offense warning.
19.10.050 Administrative citation.
19.10.060 Amount of fines.

19.10.070 Payment of the fine.
19.10.080 Hearing request.
19.10.090 Deposit waiver.
19.10.100 Hearing procedure.
19.10.110 Hearing officer's decision.
19.10.120 Late payment penalties and interest.
19.10.130 Recovery of administrative citation fines and costs.
19.10.140 Right to judicial review.
19.10.150 Notices.

Chapter 19.12. Judicial Review

19.12.010 Right of judicial review.

Chapter 19.04. Nuisance Abatement in General

19.04.010 Short title.

This chapter may be cited as "the nuisance abatement ordinance."

19.04.020 Definitions.

Except as otherwise provided in the other articles of this chapter, the following words, terms and
phrases used in this chapter are defined as set forth in this section:

"Abate" means, but is not limited to, modifying, repairing, replacing, removing, securing, locking,
demolishing, or otherwise remedying the condition in question by such means and to such extent
as necessary.

"Building" means any structure (including but not limited to any house, garage, duplex, apartment,
condominium, stock cooperative, mobile home or other residential buildings or associated
accessory structures) and any commercial, industrial or other establishment, warehouse, kiosk,
sign or other structure affixed to or upon real property used as a dwelling or for the purpose of
conducting a business, storage or any other activity.

82573.00023X27169814.1

183



Winters Municipal Code Paog 3/24
Title 19 NUISANCE ABATEMENT

"Building Code" means the California Building Code, adopted bv reference by the City as modified
pursuant to Chapter 15.08 of the Winters Municipal Code.

"City" means the City of Winters.

"City Council" means the City Council of the City.

"Code" means -the Winters Municipal Code.

"Compliance date" means the date requested for correction of the violation(s) prior to the
imposition of any administrative fines or penalties.

"Day" means calendar day.

"Enforcement officer" means either the Building Official, City Engineer, Community Development
Director, Public Works Director, Fire Chief or Police Chief of the City, or their designees, or the
Code Compliance Technician when such persons have been delegated in writing the authority to
enforce and administer the particular provisions of this chapter at issue in a particular matter.

"Fire Code" means both the California Fire Code adopted bv reference bv the City as modified
pursuant to Chapter 15.20 of the Winters Municipal Code.

"Garbage" means and includes kitchen and table refuse, offal, swill and also every accumulation
of animal and vegetable refuse, and other matter that attends the preparation, consumption.
decay or dealing in or storage of meats, fish, fowl, birds, fruits or vegetables. Food slops or iiouids.
when placed in a plastic liner within the garbage container, shall be considered as garbage waste.
Garbage waste shall also include cans, bottles, containers, wrappings and packaging materials
soiled with foods and waste material. It also includes crockery, bottles, tin vessels, ashes and all
refuse, save and excepting as defined as rubbish.

"Graffiti" means the unauthorized letters, words, symbols, figures and marks placed on buildings
and objects on private property, public property or the public right-of-way by using paint or
marking with ink, chalk, crayon, dye or other similar sutistances, or by cutting or scraping with any
tool or instrument.

"Habitable" means that a building, premises or property is suitable for occupancy per the
standards set forth in the codes referenced in this chapter and/or those codes utilized by the City
in the normal course of govemment operations.

"Hearing officer" means a hearing officer appointed bv the City has contracted to conduct
hearings pursuant to this chapter. The hearing officer may be a city employee, but in that event
the hearing officer shall not have had any responsibility for the investigation, prosecution or
enforcement of this chapter and shall not have had any personal Involvement in the proceeding to
be heard within the past twelve f12) months or possess any disguaiifyino interest in the outcome
of the proceeding. No hearing officer shall be compensated or evaluated, directly or indirectly,
based upon the outcomes of any hearing.

"Industrial waste" means all liquid or solid waste substances, except sewage, from any
production, manufacturing, processing or packaging operation.

"Inoperative" means any vehicle that (1) cannot be immediately started and driven under its own
power on the streets and highways, (2) is in an unsafe condition, or (3) is in any other condition
specified in the Califomia Vehicle Code which prohibits its placement and/or movement on the

82573.00023X27169814.1

184



Winters Municipal Code p^- tnA
I  Title 19 NUISANCE.ABATEMENT

public streets or highways. This includes any vehicles, including trailers or vessels, not currently
registered for operation on the public streets, highways or waterways.

"Lodging house" means any building or portion thereof containing not more than five (5) guest
rooms where rent is paid in money, goods, labor or otherwise. For the purposes of this chapter a
single-family dwelling unit may contain one (1) or two (2) guest rooms and not be classified as a
lodging house; provided, such dwelling meets all of the following criteria: {1) the dwelling contains
only one (1) kitchen; (2) no food preparation appliances, including stoves, ovens, hotplates,
refrigerators or sinks, are installed or located in the guest rooms; (3) doors to guest rooms do not
contain dead bolt locks and such doors only open into the interior of the dwelling unit; {4) the
parcel on which the dwelling is located has only one (1) address and one (1) mailbox; and (5) all
vehicles owned, operated or controlled by occupants of the dwelling and stored for any length of
time on or in proximity of the parcel on which the dwelling is located have space available for and
are capable of simultaneously legally parking on the parcel,

"Owner" means any person, his/her heirs, executors, administrators or assigns, agent, firm,
partnership or corporation having or claiming any legal or equitable interest in the property in
question as listed on the last available equalized tax assessment roll for Yolo County.

"Premises" means every house, dwelling, building, structure, enclosure, business establishment,
lot, yard, location, place, alley, parkway, right-of-way, sidewalk, street, and every vehicle.

"Property" means all residential, industrial, commercial, agricultural, open space and other real
property, including but not limited to front yards, side yards, driveways, walkways, alleys and
sidewalks, and shall include any building or other structure, whether fixed or movable, located on
such property.

"Putrescible" means a substance that is or is liable to become putrid or rotten.

"Refuse" and "rubbish" mean alt putrescible and/or nonputrescible solid or liquid wastes, except
sewage, whether combustible or noncombustible.

"Responsible party" means the owner, agent, manager, lessee, tenant or any other person having
control or possession of the property,

"Sewage" means effluent or waste matter which is required to be disposed of through or should
pass through sewers and the wastewater treatment plant and is composed of human or animal
feces, urine, toilet paper and any other such waste materials.

19.04.030 Nuisance and nuisance conditions defined.
For the purposes of this chapter, "nuisance" and/or "nuisance condition" means any condition or
use of premises or property which is either: (A) detrimental to the premises or property of others;
(B) which poses an immediate or potential health, safety or fire hazard; or (C) which violates any
provision of this code or other codes adopted by the City. "Nuisance" includes, but is not limited to,
any of the following:

A. Storing, keeping or maintaining: vehicle parts; scrap metal; bottles; cans; wire; firewood;
boxes; containers; wood and building materials no longer usable for their intended purpose; tools;
machinery; equipment or parts thereof: or abandoned, discarded or unused household furniture
or appliances;

8. Storing, keeping or maintaining: rubbish; refuse; trash; junk; garbage; and other waste or
discarded material, including but not limited to the accumulation of asphalt, concrete, plaster, tile,
rocks, bricks, crates, cartons, boxes, dirt, sand or gravel:

I  82S73.00023\27169814.1

185



Winters Municipal Code ep.
Tide 19 NUISANCE.ABATEMENT

C. The existence of any condition which constitutes a fire hazard as defined in the Winters Fire
Code, and any condition related to fire protection as defined in the California Health and Safetv
Code; '

D. The existence of any building construction project which is abandoned, partially destroyed or
left in a state of partial construction for an unreasonable period of time. A "state of partial
construction for an unreasonable period of time" exists if the project has been under construction
for more than one (1) year, its appearance from the public street or neighboring properties
substantially detracts from the appearance of the immediate neighborhood, and there is no valid
and active building permit authorizing the construction work;

E. The existence of any dwelling, dwelling unit or lodging house which has not been used for its
legal and intended purpose for a three hundred sixty-five (365) day period. Uses that occur within
any three hundred sixty-five (365) day period and are of a duration of less than thirty (30) days
shall, for the purpose of this chapter, not qualify as meeting the use requirements of this section.
Time during which the dwelling is either being actively remodeled, or marketed for either sale or
rental, shall not be included in determining the period of nonuse;

F. The existence of any dangerous building as defined in the Uniform Code for the Abatement of
Dangerous Buildings as adopted by the City or any building having any or all of the conditions or
defects hereinafter described:

1 Whenever any door, aisle, passageway, stainway or other means of exit is not of sufficient
width or size or is not so arranged as to provide safe and adequate means of exit in case of
fire or panic.

2. Whenever the walking surface of any aisle, passageway, stainway or other means of exit is
so warped, worn, loose, torn or othenvise unsafe as to not provide safe and adequate means
of exit in case of fire or panic.

3. Whenever the stress in any materials, member or portion thereof, due to all dead and live
loads, is more than one and one-half (1.5) times the working stress or stresses allowed in the
Winters Building Code for new buildings of similar structure, purpose or location.

4. Whenever any portion thereof has been damaged by fire, earthquake, wind, flood or by any
other cause, to such an extent that the structural strength or stability thereof is materially less
than it was before such catastrophe and is less than the minimum requirements of the Winters
Building Code for new buildings of similar structure, purpose or location.

5. Whenever any portion or member or appurtenance thereof is likely to fail, or to become
detached or dislodged, or to collapse and thereby injure persons or damage property.

6. Whenever any portion of a building, or any member, appurtenance or ornamentation on the
exterior thereof, is not of sufficient strength or stability, or is not so anchored, attached or
fastened in pike, so as to be capable of resisting a wind pressure of one-half of that specified
in the Winters Building Code for new buildings of similar structure, purpose or location without
exceeding the working stresses permitted in the Winters Building Code for such buildings.

7. Whenever any portion thereof has wracked, warped, buckled or settled to such an extent
that walls or other structural portions have materially less resistance to winds or earthquakes
than is required in the case of similar new construction.

82573.0QQ23\27169814.1

186



Winters Municipal Code Pace 6/^4
Title 19 NUISANCE.ABATEMENT

8. Whenever the building or structure, or any portion thereof, because of; (a) dilapidation,
deterioration, or decay; (b) faulty construction; (c) the removal, movement or instability of any
portion of the ground necessary for the purpose of supporting such building; (d) the
deterioration, decay or inadequacy of its foundation; or (e) any other cause, is likely to
partially or completely collapse.

9. Whenever, for any reason, the building or structure, or any portion thereof, is manifestly
unsafe for the purpose for which it is being used or is intended to be used.

10. Whenever the exterior walls or other vertical structural members list, lean or buckle to
such an extent that a plumb line passing through the center of gravity does not fail inside the
middle one-third of the base.

11. Whenever the building or structure, exclusive of the foundation, shows thirty-three percent
(33%) or more damage or deterioration of its supporting member or members, or fifty percent
(50%) damage or deterioration of its nonsupporting members, enclosing or outside walls or
coverings.

12. Whenever the building or structure has been so damaged by fire, wind, earthquake or
flood or has become so dilapidated or deteriorated as to become: (a) an attractive nuisance to
children; (b) a harbor for vagrants, criminals or immoral persons; or as to (c) enable persons
to resort thereto for the purpose of committing unlawful or immoral acts.

13. Whenever any building or structure has been constructed, exists or is maintained in
violation of any specific requirement or prohibition applicable to such building or structure
provided by the building regulations of the City, as specified in the Winters Building Code,
Winters Housing Code, or any law or ordinance of this State or the City relating to the
condition, location or structure of buildings.

14. Whenever any building or structure which, whether or not erected in accordance with all
applicable laws and ordinances, has in any nonsupporting part, member or portion less than
fifty percent (50%), or in any supporting part, member or portion less than sixty-six (66%)
percent, of the (a) strength, (b) fire-resisting qualities or characteristics, or (c)
weather-resisting qualities or characteristics required by law in the case of a newly
constructed building of like area, height and occupancy in the same location.

15. Whenever a building or a structure, used or intended to be used for dwelling purposes,
because of inadequate maintenance, dilapidation, decay, damage, faulty construction or
arrangement, inadequate light, air or sanitation facilities, or otherwise, is determined by the
Building Official to be unsanitary, unfit for human habitation, or in such a condition that is likely
to cause sickness or disease.

16. Whenever any building or structure, because of obsolescence, dilapidated condition,
deterioration, damage, inadequate exits, lack of sufficient fire-resistive construction, faulty
electric wiring, gas connections or heating apparatus, or other cause, is determined by the
Building Official or Fire Chief to be a fire hazard.

17. The presence of electrical wiring and/or equipment that was installed in violation of code
requirements in effect at the time of installation, or not installed in accordance with generally
accepted construction practices if no codes were in effect, or that has not t>een maintained In
good condition or that is not being used in a safe manner.

82573.CI0023\27169814.1

187



winters Municipal Code Pagg 7/24
Iille_l9 NUISANCE ABATEMENT

18. The presence of plumbing piping and/or fixtures that were installed in violation of code
requirements in effect at the time of installation, or not installed in accordance with generally
accepted construction practices if no codes were in effect, or that have not been maintained in
good condition or that are not being used in a safe manner.

19. The presence of mechanical equipment that was installed in violation of code
requirements in effect at the time of installation, or not installed in accordance with generally
accepted construction practices if no codes were in effect, or that has not been maintained in
good condition or that is not being used in a safe manner

20. Whenever the horizontal and/or vertical weather protection of a structure, because of
obsolescence, dilapidated condition, deterioration, damage, lack of painted surfaces, faulty
construction or other cause, allows moisture to enter the structure,

21. Whenever any building or structure is in such a condition as to constitute a public
nuisance known to the common law or in equity jurisprudence;

G. The existence of any building or portion thereof used as a dwelling, dwelling unit, apartment,
guest room or lodging house defined as having any or all of the conditions or defects described in
the Winters Housing Code or any of the following defects:

1. Lack of or nonfunctioning water closet in a dwelling unit or lodging house.

2. Lack of or nonfunctioning kitchen sink, including lack of hot and cold running water to sink
in a dwelling unit or lodging house.

3. Lack of or nonfunctioning bathtub or shower in a dwelling unit or lodging house, including
lack of hot and cold running water to bathtub or shower.

4. Lack of or nonfunctioning lavatory in a dwelling unit or lodging house, including lack of hot
and cold running water to lavatory.

5. Lack of or nonfunctioning heating system in a dwelling unit or lodging house capable of
heating all habitable spaces to seventy (70) degrees Fahrenheit at a point three (3) feet above
the floor.

6. Lack of or improper operation of habitable space ventilation equipment.

7. Lack of minimum amounts of ventilation in a dwelling unit or lodging house in bathrooms
and habitable spaces. Minimums shall be those amounts required by the code under which
the structure was built or current code if installation or modification occurred without permits
or inspections,

8. Lack of minimum amounts of natural light in a dwelling unit or lodging house in habitable
spaces. Minimums shall be those amounts required by the code under which the structure
was built or current code if installation or modification occurred without permits or inspections.

9. Lack of or nonfunctioning permanent light fixture in a dwelling unit or lodging house in each
bathroom, kitchen and hall.

10. Lack of or nonfunctioning of a single electrical receptacle in a dwelling unit or lodging
house in each bathroom, laundry room and habitable space.

I  82573.00023\27169814.

188



Winters Municipal Code Paog ans
Title 19 NUISANCE.ABATEMENT

11. Infestation of insects, vermin or rodents as determined by the Health Officer or Buildino
Official.

12. General dilapidation or Improper maintenance.

13. Lack of functioning connection to required sewage disposal system.

14. Presence of any condition that can be described as a dangerous building.

15. Presence of any plumbing fixture which is cracked, chipped or does not function,

16. Presence of any plumbing drain pipe which leaks, is blocked or does not convey sanitary
waste to a required sewage disposal system.

17. Presence of any potable water supply pipe which leaks, is blocked or allows rust to enter
the water supply.

18. Lack of or nonfunctioning cooking appliance in a dwelling unit. The meaning of
"functioning" shall include, but not be limited to: all burners and heating elements operate
correctly at all settings; all knobs and controls are present and operating; and all utility
connections are in compliance with current codes.

19. Lack of or nonfunctioning refrigerator in a dwelling unit. The meaning of "functioning" shall
include, but not be limited to: doors are gasketed and open, close, and latch properly; unit can
maintain a minimum temperature of forty-five (45) degrees Fahrenheit.

20. Presence of a refrigerator or freezer with a door which cannot be opened from the inside.

21. Lack of or nonfunctioning or expired required fire extinguisher.

22. Presence of a mounted and displayed nonfunctioning or expired fire extinguisher in a
commercial, industrial, hotel, motel, or apartment building (excluding the interior of individual
dwelling units).

23. Lack of or nonfunctioning code-required smoke and/or heat alarmsdetectors.

24. Lack of or the nonfunctioning of at least one (1) smoke alaimdetector in a dwelling unit or
lodging house located in the hallway leading to the sleeping rooms.

25. Presence of any window in a dwelling unit or lodging house which does not open and
close completely when designed to do so, has missing or cracked glazing, has defective or
missing security latches, or has missing or nonfunctioning insect screens.

26. Presence of any exterior door in a dwelling unit or lodging house which does not open and
close properly, is missing locks or a locking device which does not function to secure the
dwelling, or which lacks adequate weather stripping.

27. Lack of or nonfunctioning water heater in a dwelling unit or lodging house.
"Nonfunctioning" means: does not heat water to one hundred ten (110) degrees Fahrenheit,
lacks or has a nonfunctioning temperature and pressure relief valve, leaks gas or water, or
has insufficient combustion air.

28. Presence of floor coverings in a dwelling unit or lodging house with holes, tears, or rips, or
which are not attached to the floor structure and/or pose a tripping hazard.

82S73.00Q23\27169ai4.1

189



Wtnlcrs MunicipaJ Code p«gg 004
I  Title 19 NUISANCE,ABATEMENT

29. Presence of interior walls in a dwelling unit or lodging house which have holes in drywall
or loose wall materials.

30. Presence of electrical fixtures, switches, or receptacles which are missing cover plates.

31. Presence of mold, mildew, or fungus;

H. The existence of any structure, building, or a portion thereof which is open or maintained for the
use, storage, manufacture, or distribution of "controlled substances" as defined in the California
Health and Safety Code;

I. Any vehicle or portion thereof and/or any equipment located on private or public property or in
the public right-of-way, or any nonresidential building or structure, being used for living or sleeping
purposes except for travel trailers being used on property properly zoned for such use;

J. The existence of any condition dangerous to children or others, Including but not limited to
unsecured structures; fences or portions offences in disrepair, leaning and/or partially down;
abandoned, broken, unprotected and/or unsecured equipment, machinery or household
appliances; or unprotected, unfenced and/or unsecured pools, ponds, or excavations;

K. The existence of any condition or use which unlawfully obstructs, injures, or interferes with the
free passage or use in the customary manner of property, any public park, street, highway,
sidewalk, and any other portion of the public right-of-way;

L. The existence of any body of stagnant water or other liquid in which mosquitoes or other insects
may breed, or which may or does generate noxious or offensive gases or odors;

M. The existence of any improperly contained accumulation of manure, human or animal feces,
garbage or refuse which may serve as a breeding ground for flies, mosquitoes, rodents or other
vermin, or which may or does generate noxious or offensive odors;

N. The existence of sewage, chemical, petroleum, commercial or industrial waste which has the
potential to leak into the groundwater or may or does generate noxious or offensive odors;

O. The existence of any barbed wire, razor ribbon, glass, nails or other sharp objects on, in, or
affixed to any fence or wall, or any electric fences in or adjacent to a residential zoning district or
property used for residential uses;

P. The existence of any sign, banner, balloon, flags (other than those of the United States of
America and the State of California), inflated advertising device and/or the display of retail or
manufactured products on private property or in the public right-of-way, which is not in compliance
with this code;

Q. The existence of graffiti on any building, fence, wall, equipment, motor vehicle, trailer, sign or
other object on private or public property or in the public right-of-way;

R. The existence of a use, business or activity in any zoning district that does not conform with the
requirements of that zoning district in which it is located as set forth in this code; or which does not
conform with any discretionary permit or review approval by the Planning Commission or City
Council; or which does not conform with any law, ordinance or regulations adopted by the City
applicable to the property:

S. The existence of smoke, fumes, gas, dust, soot, cinders, or other particulate matter in such
quantities as to render the occupancy or use of property uncomfortable to a person or persons;

82573.0QQ23\27169814.1

190



Winters Municipal Code Page 10/24
I  Title 19 NUISANCE.ABATEMENT

T. The existence of any condition or use which poses a threat to the public health or safety:

U. Storing, parking, keeping, or maintaining of operative vehicles, boats, vessels, trailers, or
camper shells on any portion of a required front yard area other than the driveway or immediately
adjacent paved driveway extension;

V. Storing, keeping, or maintaining trash cans, refuse cans, recyclable containers and/or other
such containers in the front yard area or other visible yard area at times other than the day of
collection or prior to 6:00 p.m. of the day prior to the day of collection;

W. The existence of any building, or a portion thereof, used by members of a criminal street gang
for the purpose of the commission of: robbery; unlawful homicide or manslaughter; the sale,
possession for sale, transportation, manufacture, offer for sale or offer to manufacture controlled
substances; shooting at an inhabited dwelling or occupied motor vehicle; discharging or
permitting the discharge of a firearm from a motor vehicle; arson; the intimidation of witnesses
and victims; grand theft; burglary; rape; looting; money laundering; kidnapping; mayhem;
aggravated mayhem; torture; felony extortion; felony vandalism; carjacking; or sale, delivery or
transfer of a firearm. As used in this chapter, "criminal street gang" means any ongoing
organization, association or group of three (3) or more persons, whether formal or informal,
having as one (1) of its primary activities the commission of one (1) or more of the criminal acts
enumerated above, having a common name or common identifying sign or symbols, and whose
members individually or collectively engage in or have engaged in a pattern of criminal gang
activity;

X. Making or emitting any noise uncomfortable to or annoying to a reasonable person;

Y. Maintenance of any tree, shrub, or other vegetation such that it impairs passage along a public
sidewalk, impairs the ability of drivers to see any traffic sign, impairs the ability of drivers to see
other traffic, or blocks any street light;

Z. Maintenance of any sidewalk with a crack or hole of over one (1) inch displacement or
otherwise in a condition preventing safe passage of pedestrians, wheelchairs or strollers.

AA. It is unlawful, and it shall be a public nuisance for anv person owning, leasing, occuovino or
having charge or possession of anv premises or property in the city to maintain a medical
cannabis dispensary uoon such premises or orooertv.

—1. A medical cannabis dispensary is defined as any place, location, building or
establishment where medical cannabis is traded, exchanged, sold, distributed or cultivated
which would otherwise reouire a business license, home occupation permit, or anv other use
permit to conduct similar type activities.

—2. Notwithstanding the prohibition in suboaragraph 1 of this subsection, medical cannabis
collectives and cooperatives formed in a manner consistent with California law and the
California Attorney General's Guidelines for the Security and Non-Diversion of Martiuana
Grown for Medical Use issued in August 2008 shall be permitted to operate provided thev do
not sell, exchange, trade, distribute or cultivate medical mariiuana in a manner prohibited bv
subsection A of this section, and that thev do not exchange payment or gift in the form of
money for such medical mariiuana.

19.04.040 Nuisance unlawful.
Every nuisance condition found to exist on any premises is declared to be unlawful. In addition to
all other remedies available to the City, whether criminal, civil, at law or in equity, any nuisance

82573.00023\27169814.1

191



Winters Municipal Code Page ) 1/24
I  Title 19 NUISANCE.ABATEMENT

may be abated by the enforcement officer, Police or Fire Department personnel, or any other
appropriate City staff as designated by the City Manager in the manner provided in this chapter or
in any other manner provided by law.

I  19.04.050 Property owner responsibilities.
It shall be the duty of the owner, and of the responsible party occupying or having charge or
control of any parcel of land, improved or unimproved, to maintain such parcel of land free of any
nuisance and/or nuisance conditions at all times. The same responsibility extends to the public
rights-of-way or public land, related to any vehicle, vessel, structure, machinery, container,
refuse, debris or other item found to be or having been under the charge or control of a property
owner, responsible party, or last registered or documented owner. Any owner or responsible party
shall be responsible for the removal or correction of any nuisance or nuisance conditions and the
costs for such removal or correction.

I  19.04.060 Relationship of parts of chapter.
The remedies provided in this chapter are cumulative to each other. However, in the discretion of
the enforcement officer, the procedures of Chapter 8.08 of this Code may be utilized to abate
abandoned vehicles and the procedures of Chapter 8.12 of this Code may be used to abate
weeds. In the discretion of the enforcement officer, the administrative citation procedure included
in this chapter may be used either in addition to, or in lieu of, the other provisions of this chapter.

19.04.070 Relationship to uniform codes.
The remedies provided in this chapter are cumulative to those provided by the Winters uniform
codes. They are in addition to any remedies or "notice and order" which may be issued under any
of the Winters uniform codes (including, without limitation by reason of enumeration, the Winters
Housing Code, the Winters Fire Code, the Winters Building Code and the Uniform Code for the
Abatement of Dangerous Buiidinos).

19.04.080 Relationship to remainder of City Code.
The remedies provided in this chapter are cumulative and in addition to any other remedy
provided in this code, by law. or in equity.

82573.00023X27169814.1

192



Winters Municipal Code paog 12/24
Title 19 NUISANCE ARATFMFNT ^

19.04,090 Attorneys' fees.

A. Notwithstanding anything in this code to the contrary, the city may only recover its attorneys'
fees in any administrative proceeding or special proceeding commenced by the city to abate a
public nuisance, to enioin violation of any provision of this code, including its adopted codes, or to
collect a civil debt owing to the city, if the city elects, at the initiation of that individual action or
proceeding, to seek recovery of its own attorneys' fees. In these cases, the prevailino party shall
be entitled to recover all costs incurred therein, including reasonable attorneys' fees and costs of
suit. In no action, administrative proceeding or special proceeding shall an award of attorneys'
fees to a prevailing party exceed the amount of reasonable attorneys' fees incurred bv the citv in
the action or proceeding.

B. The city shall be considered a prevailing oartv entitled to attorneys' fees under subsection A
when it can demonstrate that:

1  Its lawsuit was the catalyst motivating the defendant to provide the primary relief
sought:

2. The lawsuit was meritorious and achieved its result bv "threat of victory;" and
3. The citv reasonably attempted to settle the litigation before filing the lawsuit.

19.04.100 Severability.
If any part, section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase or portion of this chapter is, for any
reason, held to be invalid, ineffective or unconstitutional by the decisions of any court of
competent jurisdiction, such decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions of this
chapter. The City Council hereby declares that it would have adopted this chapter, and any part,
section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase or portion of this chapter, irrespective of the fact
that any one (1) or more parts, sections, subsections, sentences, clauses, phrases or portions of
this chapter are judicially determined to be invalid, ineffective or unconstitutional.

Chapter 19.06. Nuisance Abatement Procedure

19.06.010 Notice to abate nuisance conditions.
A. When the enforcement officer finds that a nuisance condition exists upon any premises in the
City, he/she may, or upon the direction of the City Council shall, serve a notice to abate upon the
owner or responsible party in possession or having control of the premises upon which the
condition exists, directing him/her to abate or cause the nuisance condition(s) upon the premises
to be abated on or before a specified compliance date. The notice shall also state that the
responsible party may file a written reguest for a hearing with the citv clerk to dispute the alleged
conditions within fifteen (15) davs of the notice.

B. The enforcement officer shall post one (1) copy of the notice in a conspicuous place on the
property in question and shall deliver one (1) copy of the notice to the owner or responsible party
in possession or control of the property upon which the nuisance condition exists either in person
or by certified mail, with a return receipt requested.

C. The failure of the owner or responsible party to actually receive the notice shall not affect in any
manner the validity of anv proceedings pursuant to this chapter.

D^The notice shall be posted and delivered as set forth in subsection B of this section, at least ten
(10) calendar days before the time and date of the hearing scheduled within the notice if
personally delivered, or fifteen (15) calendar days if mailed.

E In the event the responsible party fails to appeal the notice, the nuisance conditions shall be
deemed confirmed. Such failure shall also constitute a failure to exhaust available administrative
remedies.

82573.00Q23\27169814.1

193



Winters Municipal Code Pag^ 13/24
Title 19 NUISANCE ABATEMENT

19.06.020 Manner of conducting abatement hearing.
In the event a hearing is timely requested pursuant to Section 19.06.010. the hearing shall be
conducted pursuant to the followinQ procedures;

A. At the time and place designated in the notice of hearing, the hearing officer shall hear and
consider all relevant evidence, including but not limited to applicable staff reports, oral evidence,
physical evidence and documentary evidence regarding the alleged nuisance, and proposed
method of abatement. The hearing may be continued from time to time.

B. Failure of the owner or responsible party to appear at the hearing after notice has been served
shall be deemed a waiver of the right to a hearing and an admission by the owner or responsible
party of the existence of the nuisance condition charged. In the event of such failure to appear, the
hearing officer may order that the nuisance condition be abated by the enforcement officer. Such
failure to appear shall also constitute a failure to exhaust available administrative remedies.

C. The City shall bear the burden of proof to demonstrate, by a preponderance of the evidence,
that a nuisance exists and that the proposed mechanism for abatement is appropriate. The City
need not demonstrate that the proposed mechanism for abatement is either the most appropriate
or least expensive.

D. The hearing shall not be conducted according to the formal rules of evidence. Any relevant
evidence shall be admitted if it is the type of evidence on which reasonable persons are
accustomed to rely in the conduct of serious affairs, regardless of the existence of any common
law or statutory rule which might make improper the admission of such evidence over objection in
civil actions in courts of competent jurisdiction in this State. However, irrelevant or unduly
repetitious evidence may be excluded.

E. Prior to conclusion of the hearing, if the owner or responsible party is present, the hearing
officer may request the owner or responsible party to sign a consent to enter and perform work.
The pemiission given shall be used only if the nuisance condition is determined to exist and is not
abated by the schedule of correction specified in the hearing officer's decision.

F. If the owner or responsible party does not provide written consent, entry onto the property may
be made by obtaining verbal permission from the owner or a responsible party, or by means of an
inspection warrant, or by any other lawful manner,

19.06.030 Issuance of decision findings and order.
A. Within ten (10) days after the conclusion of the hearing, the hearing officer shall issue a written
decision. The decision shall set forth the factual findings made by the hearing officer, a conclusion
as to whether a nuisance condition exists, the manner of abatement, including an order that such
nuisance (if one is found to exist) be abated by the City, the amount of administrative costs
imposed, if any, and a schedule of correction or the date by which the abatement shall be
completed.

B. If the hearing officer determines that a nuisance exists which has not been corrected within the
time period specified in the notice to abate nuisance conditions, the hearing officer shall so find in
the decision, and may include in the decision any or all of the following:

1. An order to correct, including a schedule of correction where appropriate;

2. An order to pay administrative costs as provided in Section 19.06,060.

C. Failure to issue a decision in ten (10) days shall not affect the validity of such decision.

82S73.00Q23\27169814.1

194



Winters MunicipaJ Code p^g 14,24
Title (9 NUISANCE ABATEMENT

D. The decision shall be mailed by certified mail with return receipt requested to the owner and
shall be mailed to the enforcement officer. A copy of a summary of the decision and any order it
contains shall also be posted on the property by the enforcement officer in a conspicuous
location.

19.06.040 Abatement by enforcenrient officer if nuisance is not abated.
Upon receipt of the hearing officer's decision (or following an appeal if an appeal has been taken
from the hearing officer's decision) if (A) no schedule of correction has been issued or (B) upon
the failure of the property owner to comply with such schedule if a schedule was included, if the
nuisance condition has not been abated the enforcement officer shall forthwith abate, or cause to
be abated, the nuisance condition upon the premises. The enforcement officer is authorized to
enter upon private property for this purpose, consistent with the provisions of the U.S.
Constitution.

The cost of abatement shall become a personal obligation of the property owner and responsible
P3rty and mav be collected in any legal manner, expressly including as a lien or special
assessment oursuant to the procedures set forth in this chapter.

19.06.050 Abatement by owner/responsible party.
A. Any owner or responsible party may, at his/her own expense and prior to the scheduled
abatement hearing, abate a declared nuisance condition in accordance with the provisions of the
notice sent by the enforcement officer: provided, that all necessary permits are first obtained. If
the enforcement officer determines that the nuisance condition has been abated prior to the
hearing, the hearing proceedings shall be terminated,

B. Any owner or responsible party may request the City to abate a declared nuisance condition on
his/her property. However, the owner or responsible party making the request shall be
responsible for the payment of all abatement costs incurred by the City. The request for the City to
perform the abatement shall be in writing and include a written consent to enter and perform work.
Any such request shall be deemed an agreement to pay for the costs of such abatement and an
agreement that such costs may be collected as a lien upon the property. The abatement hearing
proceedings shall thereafter be terminated.

19.06.060 Liability for abatement costs.

A. In addition to liability for the costs of abatement itself pursuant to Section 19.06.060. the owner
and/or responsible party shall also be liable for any expenses and administrative costs incurred by
the City, County or any related agency incurred subsequent to the initial inspection and
identification of the nuisance.

B. The administrative costs may include any and all costs incurred by the City in connection with
the matter before the hearing officer, including but not limited to costs of investigation, staffing
costs incurred in preparation for the hearing and for the hearing itself, and costs for all
reinspections necessary to enforce the notice to abate nuisance conditions.

C. In the event that the city is entitled to recover its attorneys' fees and costs pursuant to Section
19.04.080. such fees and costs shall be collected at the same time and pursuant to the same
procedures as administrative costs pursuant to this section.

D- The enforcement officer or other authorized citv official shall keep an itemized report of the
costs incurred bv the citv in the abatement of any public nuisance in addition to any accrued fees
and penalties due. The responsible party mav be invoiced for the total. If payment is not
received, the itemized report shall be submitted in writing to the citv clerk no sooner than twenty
(20) days of the invoice date. Any such report mav include the abatement costs, fees and

82573.00023\27169814.1

195



Winters Municipal Code Page 15/24
Title 19 NUISANCE.ABATEMENT

penalties for anv number of properties and abatements, whether or not such properties are
contiguous. In the event, the invoice is not paid within thirty (30) days, the City may collect all
such costs, penalties and interest through a lien or special assessment under sections 19 06 080
and 19.06.090.

19.06.070 Report of abatement costs.

A. In the event a nuisance is abated by the enforcement officer (either utilizing City forces or by
contracting with a third person), the enforcement officer shall keep an itemized list of costs
including but not limited to hearing costs, reinspection fees, posting of notices, and costs for
equipment, material, City staff time and contractor's costs incurred by the City from the time of
initial inspection and identification of the nuisance condition until completion of the abatement by
the City or by the owner or responsible party. Once the abatement is completed, the enforcement
officer shall provide a report of the total abatement costs to the Finance Department. The total
abatement costs shall include those costs ordered to be paid by the hearing officer but remaining
unpaid.

B. The Finance Department shall mall to the owner or responsible party an itemized invoice
indicating the total abatement costs due.

C. The owner or responsible party for the property shall pay the abatement costs within thirty (30)
calendar days from the date on the invoice unless an extension of time in which to pay has b^n
granted by the City Manager In writing.

I  a2573.00Q23\27169814.1

196



Winters Municipal Code paog 1^/24
I  Title 19 NUISANCE.ABATEMENT

19.06.080 Lien procedure.

In the event the City decides to collect abatement costs as a lien, it shall impose such lien
pursuant to this section:

A. Upon receipt of the itemized report, the citv clerk, or his or her designee. shall serve notice of
the lien in the same manner as summons in a civil action in accordance with Code of Civil
Procedure section 415.10 et sea. If the owner of record, after diligent search cannot be found.
the notice may be served by postino a copy thereof in a conspicuous place upon the property for
a period often HQ) days and publication thereof in a newspaper of General circulation in Yolo

The period of notice commences upon the first day of publication and terminates at the
end of the tenth day, includino therein the first day. Publication shall be made on each day on
which the newspaper is published durino the ten f10) day period.

B. The notice shall inform the owner of the pending lien and inform the property owner of the
public hearing where the citv council will consider imposinQ the itemized report as a lien against
the property. The hearing shall be conducted no less than ten flO) days from service of the
notice.

C. At the hearing and after considering the relevant evidence, the citv council may adopt a
resolution confirming the itemized report and directing the citv clerk to record a lien against the
property in the Yolo County recorder's office and, from the date of recording, shall have the force-
effect and priority of a iudoment lien.

D. The lien shall identify:

1. The amount of the lien:
2. The citv as the agency on whose behalf the lien is imposed:
3. The date of the abatement order or citation:

4. The street address, leoal description and assessor's parcel number of the parcel
on which the lien is imposed; and

5. The name and address of the recorded owner of the parcel.

E. In the event that the lien is discharged, released or satisfied, through either payment or
foreclosure, notice of the discharge containing the information specified in subsection D shall be
recorded by the citv clerk.

F. A lien may be foreclosed by an action brought by the city for a money judgment.

G. The citv may recover from the property owner any costs incurred in the processing and
recording of the lien and providino notice to the property owner as part of its foreclosure action to
enforce the lien.

19.06.090 Special assessment procedure.

In the event the Citv decides to collect abatement costs as a special assessment, it shall impose
such special assessment pursuant to this section:

A. The enforcement officer or other authorized city official shall keep an itemized report of the
costs incurred by the city in the abatement of any public nuisance in addition to any accrued fees
and penalties due. The property owner may be invoiced for the total. If payment is not received.
the itemized report shall be submitted in writing to the citv clerk no sooner than fifteen {15) days of
the invoice date. Any such report may include the abatement costs, fees and penalties for any
number of properties and abatements, whether or not such properties are contiguous.

82S73.00Q23\27169814.1

197



Winters MuntcipaJ Code Page 17/24
Title 19 NUISANCE ABATEMENT

B. If the invoice is not timely paid, the city clerk shall provide written notice to the property owner
by certified mail, if the property owner's identity can be determined from the county assessor's or
county recorder's records. The notice shall inform the o\A/ner of the pending special assessment-
including the information set forth in subsection C. and the date, time and location of the public
hearing where the city council will consider imposing the itemized report as a special assessment
against the property. The hearing shall be conducted no less than ten f1Q) days from service of
the notice.

C. At the hearing and after considering the relevant evidence, the citv council may adopt a
resolution confirming the itemized report and assessing the report as a special assessment
against the property. The city clerk shall then provide all documentation necessary to the county
to enter such assessment. After entry, the assessment may be collected at the same time and in
the same manner as ordinary municipal taxes are collected, and shall be subject to the same
penalties and the same procedure and sale in case of delinouencv as provided for ordinary
municipal taxes. The property may be sold after three years by the tax collector for unpaid
delinguent assessments. The tax collector's power of sale shall not be affected bv the failure of
the property owner to receive notice. All laws applicable to the levy, collection and enforcement
of municipal taxes shall be applicable to the special assessment. However. If any real property
to which the cost of abatement relates has been transferred or conveyed to a bona fide purchaser
for value, or if a lien of a bona fide encumbrancer for value has been created and attaches
thereon, prior to the date on which the first installment of the taxes would become delinguent. then
the cost of abatement shall not result in a lien against the real property but instead shall be
transferred to the unsecured roll for collection.

D. Subject to the reguirements applicable to the sale of property pursuant to Section 3691 of the
Revenue and Taxation Code, the citv may conduct a sale of vacant residential developed
property for which the payment of that assessment is delinguent.

E. Notices or instruments relating to the special assessment shall be entitled to recordation.

19.06.100 Order for treble costs of abatement

Upon entry of a second or subseguent civil or criminal judgment within a two-year period finding
that an owner of property is responsible for a condition that may be abated in accordance with the
provisions of this chapter, except for conditions abated pursuant to section 17980 of the Health &
Safety Code, relating to abandoned buildings, the court may order the owner to pay treble the
costs of the abatement, as authorized bv Government Code section 38773.7. Costs of
abatement shall include, without limitation bv reason of enumeration, all administrative costs of
the citv.

Chapter 19.08. Summary Abatement

19.08.010 Summary abatement
A. Any nuisance which the Building Official, or Fire Chief, determines is immediately or potentially
dangerous to the life, health or safety of the occupants of the property or to the public may be
summarily abated in accordance with the procedures set forth in this article

B. Actions taken to abate immediately or potentially dangerous nuisances may include, but are
not limited to, repair or removal of the condition creating the danger and/or the restriction from use
or occupancy of the property on which the condition exists or any other abatement action
determined by the Building Official or Fire Chief to be necessary. Where a residential rental

82573-00023\27169814.1

198



Winters Municipal Code Paae 18/24
Title 19 NUISANCE.ABATEMENT

property is involved, this may require the moving and relocation of the occupants by the owner
and/or responsible party to other habitable temporary or permanent accommodations. Any
temporary accommodations will be maintained by the owner and/or responsible party until the
corrections are done to the vacated residential property so that it is habitable and the occupants
are retumed.

C. When summary abatement is deemed necessary by Building Official or Fire Chief, it may be
ordered only if the abatement order is confirmed by the City Manager.

D. Notice of the summary abatement shall be provided to the owner or responsible party as
provided for in this chapter the same day or as soon as practical. Such notice shall include a
provision authorizing the owner or responsible party to dispute the existence of the nuisance
conditions before the hearing officer. Any request for an appeal shall be filed in writing with the
city clerk within fifteen (15^ days of the notice and shall be conducted in the same manner as all
applicable procedures under Chapter19.06.

E. The costs and expenses for summary abatement, if not paid by the property owner within thirty
(30) days of the date of the invoice, shall be made a lien on the property by the City Council and

I  shall be collected pursuant to the procedures set forth in Aftiele4lsection 19.06.060 of this chapter
for the assessment and collection of liens.

Chapter 19.10. Administrative Citations

19.10.010 Title of article and authority.
This article shall be known as the "administrative citations ordinance." It is adopted pursuant to
Cal. Gov't Code § 53069.4 authorizing local agencies, by ordinance, to make violation of any
ordinance of the agency subject to administrative fine or penalty.

19.10.020 Applicability.
Administrative citations shall be in addition to all other remedies, whether criminal, civil or
equitable, which may be pursued by the City to address any violation of this code.

19.10.030 Entry and inspection.
An enforcement officer may enter and inspect any property or premises at all times to perform any
duty imposed upon him or her by this article whenever the enforcement officer has cause to
believe a violation of this code is occurring; provided, that;

A. The enforcement officer shall present proper credentials, state the reason for entry and request
entry from the owner or occupant.

8. If entry is denied, the enforcement officer may seek a court ordered inspection warrant if cause
exists pursuant to Cal. Civ. Proc. Code § 1822.50 et seq.

C. If entry is denied, the enforcement officer shall have recourse to every remedy provided by law
to secure entry.

D. The enforcement officer shall make a reasonable effort to locate the owner of unoccupied
property or premises, inform the owner of the reasons for entry and request entry.

E. The enforcement officer shall not enter any property or premises in the absence of permission
to enter, unless an inspection warrant has been issued by a court of competent jurisdiction.

82573.QQ023\27169814.1

199



Winters Municipal Code 19/24
I  Title 19 NUISANCE ABATEMENT

I  19.10.040 First offense warning.
A. Whenever an enforcement officer determines that a violation of any section of this code has
occurred, the enforcement officer may issue a first offense warning to any person responsible for
the violation. The first offense warning shall be served as a prerequisite to the issuance of a first
administrative citation and serves as a written waming of responsibility. The first offense warning
requires immediate action by the person responsible for the violation to correct the violation.

B. The first offense waming shall include the following:

1. The code section(s) violated.

2. How the violation can be corrected.

3. A date by which the violation can reasonably be corrected, after which an administrative
citation may be issued if the violation is not fully corrected.

C. In accordance with Cal. Gov't Code § 53069.4, no person will be assessed a fine under this
article for a continuing violation pertaining to a building, plumbing, electrical or similar structural or
zoning issue that does not create an immediate danger to the public health or safety without first
receiving a first offense warning and a reasonable opportunity to correct or otherwise remedy the
violation. In such circumstances, the stated period available to correct the violation prior to the
issuance of an administrative citation must be appropriate to the violation as determined by the
enforcement officer, but in no event less than seven (7) days. If, after expiration of the correction
period stated in the first offense waming, the violation is not corrected, the enforcement officer
may issue an administrative citation,

D Any person receiving a first offense waming for a continuing violation may file a written petition
with the City Clerk for consideration by the City Manager for an extension of time to correct the
violation: provided that the written petition is received before the end of the correction period set
forth in the first offense waming. The City Manager may grant an extension of time to correct the
violation if the person requesting the extension of time has supplied sufficient evidence showing
that the correction cannot reasonably be made within the correction period set forth in the first
offense warning.

E. The requirement of a reasonable opportunity to correct a violation does not apply in instances
where, in the discretion of the City Manager, a violation poses an immediate danger to the public
health or safety.

19.10.050 Administrative citation.
A. Whenever an enforcement officer charged with the enforcement of a provision of this code
(including those uniform codes adopted herein by reference) determines that a violation of that
provision has occurred, the enforcement officer shall have the authority to issue an administrative
citation to the person or entity responsible for the violation.

8. Each administrative citation shall contain the following information:

1. The date of the violation;

2. The address or a definite description of the location where the violation occurred;

3. The code section violated and a description of the violation;

4. The amount of the fine for the code violation;

82S73.0QQ23\27169ai4.1

200



Winters Municipal Code PaeeJOPd
I  Iitle_19 NUISANCE. ABATEMENT

5. A description of the fine payment process, including a description of the time within which
and the place to which the fine must be paid;

6. An order prohibiting the continuation or repeated occurrence of the ordinance violation
described in the administrative citation;

7. A description of the administrative citation review process, including the time within which
the administrative citation may be contested and the place from which a request for hearing
form may be obtained;

8. The name and signature of the citing enforcement officer and the date the administrative
citation is issued;

9. A description of the deposit waiver process, including the time within which a request for
deposit waiver may be made and the place from which the request for hearing form may be
obtained.

I  19.10.0660 Amount of fines.
A. The amounts of the fines for each code violation shall be as set forth in a schedule of fines
established by resolution of the City Council.

B. The schedule of fines may specify any increased fines for repeat violations of the same code
provision by the same person within thirty-six (36) months from the date of a prior administrative
citation.

C. The schedule of fines shall specify the amount of any late payment charge imposed for the
payment of a fine after its due date.

19.10.0670 Payment of the fine.
A. The fine shall be paid to the City of Winters within thirty (30) days from the date of the
administrative citation.

B. Any administrative citation fine paid pursuant to subsection A of this section shall be refunded
in accordance with Section 19.10-1100fD) if it is determined, after a hearing, that the person
charged in the administrative citation either was not responsible for the violation or that there was
no violation as charged in the administrative citation.

19.10.0780 Hearing request
A. Any recipient of an administrative citation may contest either or both that there was a violation
as stated in the administrative citation or that he or she is the responsible party by completing a
request for hearing form and returning it to the City Clerk within thirty (30) days from the date of
the administrative citation, together with either an advance deposit of the fine or an approved
request for a deposit waiver.

B. A request for hearing form may be obtained from the City Clerk.

C. The person requesting the hearing shall be notified by the City Clerk of the time and place set
for the hearing at least ten (10) days prior to the date of the hearing.

D. If the enforcement officer submits an additional written report concerning the administrative
citation to the hearing officer, for consideration at the hearing, then a copy of this report also shall
be served on the person requesting the hearing, at least five (5) days prior to the date of the
hearing.

82573.00023\27169814.1

201



Winters Municipal Code p„ ̂ , .-ja
I  Iitle_I9 NUISANCE ABATEMENT

I  19.10.0890 Deposit waiver.
A. Any person who requests a hearing who is financially unable to make the advance deposit of
the fine as required in Section 19.10.Q780fA) may file a request for deposit waiver.

B. The request shall be filed with the Finance Director within ten (10) days of the date of the
administrative citation on a deposit waiver application form available from the City Clerk. The
Finance Director shall either issue or decline to issue the deposit waiver within five (5) days.

C. The Finance Director shall issue the deposit waiver if the cited party submits to the Finance
Director a sworn affidavit, or declaration under penalty of perjury, together with any supporting
documents or materials, demonstrating to the satisfaction of the Finance Director the person's
actual financial inability to deposit with the City of Winters the full amount of the fine in advance of
the hearing.

D. The Finance Director shall issue a written determination listing the reasons for his or her
determination to issue or not issue the deposit waiver. The written determination of the Finance
Director shall be final, and shall be served upon the person who applied for the deposit waiver the
enforcement officer and the City Clerk.

19.10.1080 Hearing procedure.
A. No hearing to contest an administrative citation shall be held unless the fine has been
deposited in advance in accordance with Section 19.10.Q?80(A) or a deposit waiver has been
issued in accordance with Section 19.10.0890.

B. The hearing shall be set by the City Clerk for a date that is not less than fifteen (15) days and
not more than sixty (60) days from the date that the request for hearing is filed in accordance with
the provisions of this chapter.

0. The hearing officer may continue the hearing and request additional information from the
enforcement officer or the recipient of the administrative citation prior to issuing a written decision.
The hearing officer shall ensure an adequate record of the hearing is made.

D. The City shall bear the burden of proof, by a preponderance of the evidence, that the violation
occurred as charged and that the person to whom an administrative citation was issued is
responsible for the violation. The City may be represented by the enforcement officer or be
represented by counsel.

E. The recipient of the administrative citation may cross-examine the enforcement officer or any
other witness against him or her, and may present such evidence as he or she may have. The
recipient of the administrative citation may be represented by counsel.

F. The formal rules of evidence shall not apply. The hearing officer may rely upon such evidence
as he or she believes reasonable persons would rely upon in the conduct of their affairs. Any
witnesses, including the enforcement officer and the recipient of the administrative citation, shall
testify under oath,

G. The administrative citation and any additional report submitted by the enforcement officer shall
constitute prima facie evidence of the respective facts contained on those documents.

19.10.1100 Hearing officer's decision.
A. After considering all of the testimony and evidence submitted at the hearing, the hearing officer
shall issue a written decision to uphold or cancel the administrative citation and shall list in the
decision the reasons for that decision. The decision of the hearing officer shall be final.

82573.00Q23\27169ftlA 1

202



Winters Municipal Code Page 22/24
I  Title 19 NUISANCE ABATEMENT

B. If the hearing officer determines that the administrative citations should be upheld, then the fine
amount on deposit with the City shall be retained by the City.

C. If the hearing officer determines that the administrative citation should be upheld and the fine
has not been deposited pursuant to an advance deposit hardship waiver, the hearing officer shall
set forth in the decision a payment schedule for the fine.

D. If the hearing officer determines that the administrative citation should be canceled or reduced
and the fine was deposited with the City, then the City shall promptly refund the amount of the
deposited fine or excess, as the case may be, together with interest at the average rate earned on
the City's investment portfolio for the period of time that the fine amount was held by the City.

E. The recipient of the administrative citation shall be served with a copy of the hearing officer's
written decision.

19.10.1420 Late payment penalties and interest.

Any person who fails to pay any fine imposed pursuant to the provisions of this article on or before
the date that fine is due also shall be liable for the payment of a late payment penalty in the
amount often percent (10%) of the fine. Thereafter, the amount of the fine, and the penalty, shall
accrue interest at ten percent (10%) per annum until paid.

19.10.1230 Recovery of administrative citation fines and costs.
The City may collect any past due administrative citation fine or late payment penalty and interest
by use of all available legal means. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, all such fines
or late payments shall constitute civil debts and may be recovered in an action at law, or, where
the violation relates to or occurred upon real property owned by the person to whom an
administrative citation was issued, a lien may be filed by the City against such real property.

19.10.1340 Right to judicial review.
A. The failure of the party contesting the administrative citation to appear at the administrative
citation hearing shall result in a forfeiture of the fine and shall constitute a failure to exhaust
administrative remedies.

8. Subject to the provisions of subsection A of this section, any person aggrieved by an
administrative decision of a hearing officer on an administrative citation may obtain review of the
administrative decision by filing an appeal in a court of competent jurisdiction within twenty (20)
days after service of the decision in accordance with the provisions of Cal. Gov't Code §
53069.4(b)(2).

19.10.1450 Notices.

A. The administrative citation and all notices required to be given by this article shall be served on
the responsible party as follows:

1. The citation and any notices may be served upon the responsible party in person by either
the enforcement officer, the City Clerk or any police officer of the City of Winters.

2. The citation and notices may be served by depositing same in the United States Postal
Service mail, first class mail, postage prepaid, at Winters, California, and addressed to party
to be cited at the address of that party known to the enforcement officer or the City Clerk, or,
if that address is not known, as that address appears on the last equalized assessment roll of
Yolo County if the party to be served with the citation or notice is the owner of real property
within the City and that real property is the situs of the ordinance violation charged in the
citation.

82573.00023\27169814.1

203



Winters Municipal Code Page 23/24
I  Title 19 NUISANCE ARATF.MFNIT

B. Failure to receive any notice in this article does not affect the validity of proceedings conducted
hereunder.

Chapter 19.12. Judicial Review

19.12.010 Right of judicial review.
A. Except as otherwise provided in this title or by law, any person aggrieved by any administrative
decision of a hearing officer pursuant to this chapter may obtain judicial review of the
administrative decision in the Superior Court by filing with the court a petition for writ of mandate
pursuant to Gal. Civ. Proc. Code § 1094.6.

8. This section does not apply to decisions of the hearing officer relating to administrative fines
pursuant to Chapter 19.10 of this title. Such decisions may be appealed pursuant to Section
8.32.692 and Cal. Gov't Code § 53069.4

4. Severabilitv. If any section, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance or the
application thereof to any entity, person or circumstance is held for any reason to be invalid, or
unconstitutional, such invalidity or unconstitutionality shall not affect other provisions or
applications of this Ordinance which can t)e given effect without the invalid provision or
application, and to this end the provisions of this ordinance are declared to be severable. The City
Council of the City of Winters hereby declare that they would have adopted this Ordinance and
each section, sentence, clause or phrase thereof, irrespective of the fact that any one or more
section, subsections, sentences, clauses or phrases be declared invalid or unconstitutional.

5. Effective Date. This ordinance shall take effect thirty (30) days following its adoption.

6. Publication. The City Clerk shall certify to the adoption of this Ordinance. Not later than
fifteen (15) days following the passage of this Ordinance, the Ordinance, or a summary thereof,
along with the names of the City Council members voting for and against the Ordinance, shall be
published in a newspaper of general circulation in the City of Winters.

INTRODUCED at a regular meeting on the day of , 2016 and PASSED AND
ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Winters City Council, County of Yolo, State of California, on
the day of , 2016 by the following roll call vote:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

Cecilia Aguiar>Curry, Mayor
ATTEST:

Nanci G. Mills, City Clerk

82573.0Q023\27169814.1

204



Winters Municipal Code Page 24/24
Title 19 NUISANCE.ABATEMENT

82573.00023\27169ai4.1

205



Winters Municipal Code
Title 19 NUISANCE ABATEMENT

Page 1^3

ORDINANCE NO. 2016-11

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WINTERS

AMENDING VARIOUS SECTIONS OF TITLE 17 (ZONING ORDINANCE) OF
THE WINTERS MUNICIPAL CODE

The City Council of the City of Winters, State of California, does hereby ordain as follows;

1. Purpose. The purpose of this ordinance is to amend various sections of Title 17
involving mostly formatting, removal of duplicative language and amending TableSA in Chapter
17.56 by increasing from 30 to 45 feet the maximum allowable structure height permitted in the
Highway Service Commercial (C-H) Zoning District.

2. Authority. The City of Winters has authority to adopt this ordinance pursuant to the
general police power granted to cities by Article 11, Section 7 of the California Constitution.

3. Amendments to Title 19 of the Municipal Code are hereby amended as follows:

a. Chapter 19 of the Municipal Code is hereby amended in its entirety to read
as follows:

Title 19

NUISANCE ABATEMENT

Chapter 19.04. Nuisance Abatement in General

Sections

19.04.010 Short title.

19.04.020 Definitions.

19.04.030 Nuisance and nuisance conditions defined.
19.04,040 Nuisance unlawful.

19.04.050 Property owner responsibilities.
19.04.060 Relationship of parts of chapter.
19.04.070 Relationship to uniform codes.
19.04.080 Relationship to remainder of City Code.
19.04.090, Attorneys'fees.
19.04.100 Severability.

Chapter 19.06. Nuisance Abatement Procedure

19.06.010 Notice to abate nuisance conditions.

19.06.020 Manner of conducting abatement hearing.
19.06.030 Issuance of decision findings and order.
19.06.040 Appeal of decision.
19.06.050 Abatement by enforcement officer if nuisance is not abated.
19.06.060 Abatement by owner/responsible party.
19.06.070 Liability for administrative costs.
19.06.080 Report of abatement costs.

ATTACHMENT 0

82573.00023\27169814.1

206



Winters Municipal Code 2/23
Title 19 NUISANCE ABATEMENT

19.06.090 Appeal of abatement costs.
19.06.100 Manner of conducting the appeal hearing of abatement costs before the hearing

officer.

19.06.110 Hearing officer's decision of appeal hearing of abatement costs.
19.06.120 Assessment of abatement costs.
19.06.130 Manner of collection of notice of lien.

Chapter 19.08. Summary Abatement

19.08.010 Summary abatement.

Chapter 19.10. Administrative Citations

19.10.010 Title of article and authority.
19.10.020 Applicability.
19.10.030 Entry and inspection.
19.10.040 First offense warning.
19.10.050 Administrative citation.
19.10.060 Amount of fines.
19.10.070 Payment of the fine.
19.10.080 Hearing request.
19.10.090 Deposit waiver.
19.10.100 Hearing procedure.
19.10.110 Hearing officer's decision.
19.10.120 Late payment penalties and interest.
19.10.130 Recovery of administrative citation fines and costs.
19.10.140 Right to judicial review.
19.10.150 Notices.

Chapter 19.12. Judicial Review

19.12.010 Right of judicial review.

Chapter 19.04. Nuisance Abatement in General

19.04.010 Short title.

This chapter may be cited as "the nuisance abatement ordinance."

19.04.020 Definitions.

Except as otherwise provided in the other articles of this chapter, the following words, terms and
phrases used in this chapter are defined as set forth In this section;

"Abate" rneans, but is not limited to, modifying, repairing, replacing, removing, securing, locking,
demolishing, or otherwise remedying the condition in question by such means and to such extent
as necessary.

"Building" means any structure (including but not limited to any house, garage, duplex, apartment,
condominium, stock cooperative, mobile home or other residential buildings or associated
accessory structures) and any commercial, industrial or other establishment, warehouse, kiosk,
sign or other structure affixed to or upon real property used as a dwelling or for the purpose of
conducting a business, storage or any other activity.

82S73.00023\27169814.1

207



Winters MunicipaJ Code Page 3/23
Title 19 NUISANCE ABATEMENT

"Building Code" means the California Building Code, adopted by reference by the City as modified
pursuant to Chapter 15.08 of the Winters Municipal Code.

"City" means the City of Winters.

"City Council" means the City Council of the City.

"Code" means the Winters Municipal Code.

"Compliance date" means the date requested for correction of the violation(s) prior to the
imposition of any administrative fines or penalties.

"Day" means calendar day.

"Enforcement officer" means either the Building Official, City Engineer, Community Development
Director, Public Works Director, Fire Chief or Police Chief of the City, or their designees, or the
Code Compliance Technician when such persons have been delegated in writing the authority to
enforce and administer the particular provisions of this chapter at issue in a particular matter.

"Fire Code" means both the Callfomla Fire Code adopted by reference by the City as modified
pursuant to Chapter 15.20 of the Winters Municipal Code.

"Garbage" means and includes kitchen and table refuse, offal, swill and also every accumulation
of animal and vegetable refuse, and other matter that attends the preparation, consumption,
decay or dealing in or storage of meats, fish, fowl, birds, fruits or vegetables. Food slops or liquids,
when placed in a plastic liner within the garbage container, shall be considered as garbage waste.
Garbage waste shall also include cans, bottles, containers, wrappings and packaging materials
soiled with foods and waste material. It also includes crockery, bottles, tin vessels, ashes and all
refuse, save and excepting as defined as rubbish.

"Graffiti" means the unauthorized ietters, words, symbols, figures and marks placed on buildings
and objects on private property, public property or the public right-of-way by using paint or
marking with Ink, chalk, crayon, dye or other similar substances, or by cutting or scraping with any
tool or instrument.

"Habitable" means that a building, premises or property is suitable for occupancy per the
standards set forth in the codes referenced in this chapter and/or those codes utilized by the City
in the normal course of government operations.

"Hearing officer" means a hearing officer appointed by the City to conduct hearings pursuant to
this chapter. The hearing officer may be a city employee, but in that event the hearing officer shall
not have had any responsibility for the investigation, prosecution or enforcement of this chapter
and shall not have had any personal involvement in the proceeding to be heard within the past
twelve (12) months or possess any disqualifying interest in the outcome of the proceeding. No
hearing officer shall be compensated or evaluated, directly or indirectly, based upon the
outcomes of any hearing.

"Industrial waste" means all liquid or solid waste substances, except sewage, from any
production, manufacturing, processing or packaging operation.

"Inoperative" means any vehicle that (1) cannot be immediately started and driven under its own
power on the streets and highways, (2) is in an unsafe condition, or (3) is in any other condition
specified in the California Vehicle Code which prohibits its placement and/or movement on the

82S73.00023\27169814.1

208



Winters Municipal Code Paog 4/23
Title 19 NUISANCE ABATEMENT

public streets or highways. This includes any vehicles, including trailers or vessels, not currently
registered for operation on the public streets, highways or waterways.

"Lodging house" means any building or portion thereof containing not more than five (5) guest
rooms where rent is paid in money, goods, labor or othen/vise. For the purposes of this chapter a
single-family dwelling unit may contain one (1) or two (2) guest rooms and not be classified as a
lodging house; provided, such dwelling meets all of the following criteria; (1) the dwelling contains
only one (1) kitchen; (2) no food preparation appliances, including stoves, ovens, hotplates,
refrigerators or sinks, are installed or located in the guest rooms; (3) doors to guest rooms do not
contain dead bolt locks and such doors only open into the interior ohhe dwelling unit; (4) the
parcel on which the dwelling is located has only one (1) address and one (1) mailbox; and (5) all
vehicles owned, operated or controlled by occupants of the dwelling and stored for any length of
time on or in proximity of the parcel on which the dwelling is located have space available for and
are capable of simultaneously legally parking on the parcel.

"Owner" rneans any person, his/her heirs, executors, administrators or assigns, agent, firm,
partnership or corporation having or claiming any legal or equitable interest in the property in
question as listed on the last available equalized tax assessment roll for Yolo County.

"Premises" means every house, dwelling, building, structure, enclosure, business establishment,
lot, yard, location, place, alley, parkway, right-of-way, sidewalk, street, and every vehicle.

"Property" means all residential, industrial, commercial, agricultural, open space and other real
property, including but not limited to front yards, side yards, driveways, walkways, alleys and
sidewalks, and shall include any building or other structure, whether fixed or movable, located on
such property.

"Putrescible" means a substance that is or is liable to become putrid or rotten.

"Refuse" and "rubbish" mean all putrescible and/or nonputrescible solid or liquid wastes, except
sewage, whether combustible or noncombustible.

"Responsible party" means the owner, agent, manager, lessee, tenant or any other person having
control or possession of the property.

"Sewage" means effluent or waste matter which is required to be disposed of through or should
pass through sewers and the wastewater treatment plant and is composed of human or animal
feces, urine, toilet paper and any other such waste materials.

19.04.030 Nuisance and nuisance conditions defined.
For the purposes of this chapter, "nuisance" and/or "nuisance condition" means any condition or
use of premises or property which is either: (A) detrimental to the premises or property of others;
(B) which poses an immediate or potential health, safety or fire hazard; or (C) which violates any
provision of this code or other codes adopted by the City. "Nuisance" includes, but is not limited to,
any of the following:

A. Storing, keeping or maintaining: vehicle parts; scrap metal; bottles; cans; virire; firewood;
boxes; containers; wood and building materials no longer usable for their intended purpose; tools;
machinery; equipment or parts thereof; or abandoned, discarded or unused household furniture
or appliances;

B. Storing, keeping or maintaining: rubbish; refuse; trash; junk; garbage; and other waste or
discarded material, including but not limited to the accumulation of asphalt, concrete, plaster, tile,
rocks, bricks, crates, cartons, boxes, dirt, sand or gravel;

82573.00023\27169814.1

209



Winters Municipal Code Page 5/23
Title 19 NUISANCE ABATEMENT

C. The existence of any condition which constitutes a fire hazard as defined in the Winters Fire
Code, and any condition related to fire protection as defined in the California Health and Safety
Code;

D. The existence of any building construction project which is abandoned, partially destroyed or
left in a state of partial construction for an unreasonable period of time. A "state of partial
construction for an unreasonable period of time" exists if the project has been under construction
for more than one (1) year, its appearance from the public street or neighboring properties
substantially detracts from the appearance of the immediate neighborhood, and there is no valid
and active building permit authorizing the construction work;

E. The existence of any dwelling, dwelling unit or lodging house which has not been used for its
legal and intended purpose for a three hundred sixty-five (365) day period. Uses that occur within
any three hundred sixty-five (365) day period and are of a duration of less than thirty (30) days
shall, for the purpose of this chapter, not qualify as meeting the use requirements of this section.
Time during which the dwelling is either being actively remodeled, or marketed for either sale or
rental, shall not be included in determining the period of nonuse;

F. The existence of any dangerous building as defined in the Uniform Code for the Abatement of
Dangerous Buildings as adopted by the City or any building having any or all of the conditions or
defects hereinafter described;

1. Whenever any door, aisle, passageway, stairway or other means of exit is not of sufficient
width or size or is not so arranged as to provide safe and adequate means of exit in case of
fire or panic.

2. Whenever the walking surface of any aisle, passageway, stainway or other means of exit is
so warped, worn, loose, torn or otherwise unsafe as to not provide safe and adequate means
of exit in case of fire or panic.

3. Whenever the stress in any materials, member or portion thereof, due to ail dead and live
loads, is more than one and one-half (1.5) times the working stress or stresses allowed in the
Winters Building Code for new buildings of similar structure, purpose or location.

4. Whenever any portion thereof has been damaged by fire, earthquake, wind, flood or by any
other cause, to such an extent that the structural strength or stability thereof is materially less
than it was before such catastrophe and is less than the minimum requirements of the Winters
Building Code for new buildings of similar structure, purpose or location.

5. Whenever any portion or member or appurtenance thereof is likely to fail, or to become
detached or dislodged, or to collapse and thereby injure persons or damage property.

6. Whenever any portion of a building, or any member, appurtenance or ornamentation on the
exterior thereof. Is not of sufficient strength or stability, or is not so anchored, attached or
fastened in pike, so as to be capable of resisting a wind pressure of one-half of that specified
in the Winters Building Code for new buildings of similar structure, purpose or location without
exceeding the working stresses permitted in the Winters Building Code for such buildings.

7. Whenever any portion thereof has wracked, warped, buckled or settled to such an extent
that walls or other structural portions have materially less resistance to winds or earthquakes
than is required in the case of similar new construction.

8. Whenever the building or structure, or any portion thereof, because of: (a) dilapidation,
deterioration, or decay; (b) faulty construction; (c) the removal, movement or instability of any

82573.00023\27169814.1

210



Winters Municipal Code Page 5^3
Title 19 NUISANCE ABATEMENT

portion of the ground necessary for the purpose of supporting such building; (d) the
deterioration, decay or inadequacy of its foundation; or (e) any other cause, is likely to
partially or completely collapse.

9. Whenever, for any reason, the building or structure, or any portion thereof, is manifestly
unsafe for the purpose for which it is being used or is intended to be used.

10. Whenever the exterior walls or other vertical structural members list, lean or buckle to
such an extent that a plumb line passing through the center of gravity does not fall inside the
middle one-third of the base.

11. Whenever the building or structure, exclusive of the foundation, shows thirty-three percent
(33%) or more damage or deterioration of its supporting member or members, or fifty percent
(50%) damage or deterioration of its nonsupporling members, enclosing or outside walls or
coverings.

12. Whenever the building or structure has been so damaged by fire, wind, earthquake or
flood or has become so dilapidated or deteriorated as to become: (a) an attractive nuisance to
children; (b) a harbor for vagrants, criminals or immoral persons; or as to (c) enable persons
to resort thereto for the purpose of committing unlawful or immoral acts.

13. Whenever any building or structure has been constructed, exists or is maintained in
violation of any specific requirement or prohibition applicable to such building or structure
provided by the building regulations of the City, as specified in the Winters Building Code,
Winters Housing Code, or any law or ordinance of this State or the City relating to the
condition, location or structure of buildings.

14. Whenever any building or structure which, whether or not erected in accordance with all
applicable laws and ordinances, has in any nonsupporting part, member or portion less than
fifty percent (50%), or in any supporting part, member or portion less than sixty-six (66%)
percent, of the (a) strength, (b) fire-resisting qualities or characteristics, or (c)
weather-resisting qualities or characteristics required by law in the case of a newly
constructed building of like area, height and occupancy in the same location.

15. Whenever a building or a structure, used or intended to be used for dwelling purposes,
because of inadequate maintenance, dilapidation, decay, damage, faulty construction or
arangement, inadequate light, air or sanitation facilities, or othenwise, is determined by the
Building Official to be unsanitary, unfit for human habitation, or in such a condition that is likely
to cause sickness or disease.

16. Whenever any building or structure, because of obsolescence, dilapidated condition,
deterioration, damage, inadequate exits, lack of sufficient fire-resistive construction, faulty
electric wiring, gas connections or heating apparatus, or other cause, is determined by the
Building Official or Fire Chief to be a fire hazard.

17. The presence of electrical wiring and/or equipment that was Installed In violation of code
requirements in effect at the time of installation, or not installed in accordance with generally
accepted construction practices if no codes were in effect, or that has not been maintained in
good condition or that is not being used in a safe manner.

18. The presence of plumbing piping and/or fixtures that were installed in violation of code
requirements in effect at the time of installation, or not installed In accordance with generally

82573.00023\27169814.1

211



Winters Municipal Code Page 7/23
Title 19 NUISANCE ABATEMENT

accepted construction practices if no codes were In effect, or that have not been maintained in
good condition or that are not being used in a safe manner.

19. The presence of mechanical equipment that was installed in violation of code
requirements in effect at the time of instaliation, or not installed in accordance with generally
accepted construction practices if no codes were in effect, or that has not been maintained in
good condition or that is not being used in a safe manner.

20. Whenever the horizontal and/or vertical weather protection of a structure, because of
obsolescence, dilapidated condition, deterioration, damage, lack of painted surfaces, faulty
construction or other cause, allows moisture to enter the structure.

21. Whenever any building or structure is in such a condition as to constitute a public
nuisance known to the common law or in equity jurisprudence;

G. The existence of any building or portion thereof used as a dwelling, dwelling unit, apartment,
guest room or iodging house defined as having any or all of the conditions or defects described in
the Winters Housing Code or any of the following defects:

1. Lack of or norifunctioning water closet in a dwelling unit or iodging house.

2. Lack of or nonfunctioning kitchen sink, including lack of hot and cold running water to sink
in a dwelling unit or lodging house.

3. Lack of or nonfunctioning bathtub or shower in a dwelling unit or lodging house, including
lack of hot and cold running water to bathtub or shower.

4. Lack of or nonfunctioning lavatory in a dwelling unit or lodging house. Including lack of hot
and cold running water to lavatory.

5. Lack of or nonfunctioning heating system in a dwelling unit or lodging house capable of
heating all habitable spaces to seventy (70) degrees Fahrenheit at a point three (3) feet above
the floor.

6. Lack of or improper operation of habitable space ventilation equipment.

7. Lack of minimum amounts of ventilation in a dwelling unit or lodging house in bathrooms
and habitable spaces. Minimums shall be those amounts required by the code under which
the structure was built or current code if installation or modification occurred without pennits
or inspections.

8. Lack of minimum amounts of natural light in a dwelling unit or lodging house In habitable
spaces. Minimums shall be those amounts required by the code under which the structure
was built or current code If installation or modification occurred without permits or inspections.

9. Lack of or nonfunctioning permanent iight fixture In a dwelling unit or lodging house in each
bathroom, kitchen and hall.

10. Lack of or nonfunctioning of a single electrical receptacle In a dwelling unit or lodging
house in each bathroom, laundry room and habitable space.

11. Infestation of insects, vermin or rodents as determined by the Health Officer or Building
Official.

12. General dilapidation or improper maintenance.

82573.00023\27169814.1

212



Winters Municipal Code Paeg g/23
Title 19 NUISANCE ABATEMENT

13. Lack of functioning connection to required sewage disposal system.

14. Presence of any condition that can be described as a dangerous building.

15. Presence of any plumbing fixture which is cracked, chipped or does not function.

16. Presence of any plumbing drain pipe which leaks, is blocked or does not convey sanitary
waste to a required sewage disposal system.

17. Presence of any potable water supply pipe which leaks, is blocked or allows rust to enter
the water supply.

18. Lack of or nonfunctioning cooking appliance in a dwelling unit. The meaning of
"functioning" shall include, but not be limited to; all burners and heating elements operate
correctly at all settings; all knobs and controls are present and operating; and all utility
connections are in compliance with current codes.

19. Lack of or nonfunctioning refrigerator in a dwelling unit. The meaning of "functioning" shall
include, but not be limited to: doors are gasketed and open, close, and latch properly; unit can
maintain a minimum temperature of forty-five (45) degrees Fahrenheit.

20. Presence of a refrigerator or freezer with a door which cannot be opened from the inside.

21. Lack of or nonfunctioning or expired required fire extinguisher.

22. Presence of a mounted and displayed nonfunctioning or expired fire extinguisher In a
commercial, Industrial, hotel, motel, or apartment building (excluding the interior of Individual
dwelling units).

23. Lack of or nonfunctioning code-required smoke and/or heat alarms.

24. Lack of or the nonfunctioning of at least one (1) smoke alarm In a dwelling unit or lodging
house located in the hallway leading to the sleeping rooms.

25. Presence of any window In a dwelling unit or lodging house which does not open and
close completely when designed to do so, has missing or cracked glazing, has defective or
missing security latches, or has missing or nonfunctioning Insect screens.

26. Presence of any exterior door In a dwelling unit or lodging house which does not open and
close properly, is missing locks or a locking device which does not function to secure the
dwelling, or which lacks adequate weather stripping.

27. Lack of or nonfunctioning water heater in a dwelling unit or lodging house.
"Nonfunctioning" means: does not heat water to one hundred ten (110) degrees Fahrenheit,
lacks or has a nonfunctioning temperature and pressure relief valve, leaks gas or water, or
has insufficient combustion air.

28. Presence of floor coverings in a dwelling unit or lodging house with holes, tears, or rips, or
which are not attached to the floor structure and/or pose a tripping hazard.

29. Presence of interior walls in a dwelling unit or lodging house which have holes in drywall
or loose wall materials.

30. Presence of electrical fixtures, switches, or receptacles which are missing cover plates.

82573.00023\27169814.1

213



Winters Municipal Code Paog qn-x
Title 19 NUISANCE ABATEMENT

31. Presence of mold, mildew, or fungus;

H. The existence of any structure, building, or a portion thereof which is open or maintained for the
use, storage, manufacture, or distribution of "controlled substances" as defined in the California
Health and Safety Code;

I. Any vehicle or portion thereof and/or any equipment located on private or public property or in
the public right-of-way, or any nonresidential building or structure, being used for living or sleeping
purposes except for travel trailers being used on property properly zoned for such use;

J. The existence of any condition dangerous to children or others, including but not limited to
unsecured structures; fences or portions of fences in disrepair, leaning and/or partially down;
abandoned, broken, unprotected and/or unsecured equipment, machinery or household
appliances; or unprotected, unfenced and/or unsecured poois, ponds, or excavations;

K. The existence of any condition or use which unlawfully obstructs, injures, or interferes with the
free passage or use in the customary manner of property, any public park, street, highway,
sidewalk, and any other portion of the public right-of-way;

L. The existence of any body of stagnant water or other liquid in which mosquitoes or other insects
may breed, or which may or does generate noxious or offensive gases or odors;

M. The existence of any improperly contained accumulation of manure, human or animal feces,
garbage or refuse which may serve as a breeding ground for flies, mosquitoes, rodents or other
vermin, or which may or does generate noxious or offensive odors;

N. The existence of sewage, chemical, petroleum, commercial or industrial waste which has the
potential to leak into the groundwater or may or does generate noxious or offensive odors;

O. The existence of any barbed wire, razor ribbon, glass, nails or other sharp objects on, in, or
affixed to any fence or wall, or any electric fences in or adjacent to a residential zoning district or
property used for residential uses;

P. the existence of any sign, banner, balloon, flags (other than those of the United States of
America and the State of California), inflated advertising device and/or the display of retail or
manufactured products on private property or in the public right-of-way, which is not in compliance
with this code;

Q. The existence of graffiti on any building, fence, wall, equipment, motor vehicle, trailer, sign or
other object on private or public property or in the public right-of-way;

R. The existence of a use, business or activity in any zoning district that does not conform virith the
requirements of that zoning district in which it is located as set forth in this code; or which does not
conform with any discretionary permit or review approval by the Planning Commission or City
Council; or which does not conform with any law, ordinance or regulations adopted by the City
applicable to the property;

S. The existence of smoke, fumes, gas, dust, soot, cinders, or other particulate matter in such
quantities as to render the occupancy or use of property uncomfortable to a person or persons;

T. The existence of any condition or use which poses a threat to the public health or safety;

82573.00023\27169814.1

214



Winters Municipal Code Page 10/23
Title 19 NUISANCE ABATEMENT

U. Storing, parking, keeping, or maintaining of operative vehicles, boats, vessels, trailers, or
camper shells on any portion of a required front yard area other than the driveway or immediately
adjacent paved driveway extension;

V. Storing, keeping, or maintaining trash cans, refuse cans, recyclable containers and/or other
such containers in the front yard area or other visible yard area at times other than the day of
collection or prior to 6:00 p.m. of the day prior to the day of collection;

W. The existence of any building, or a portion thereof, used by members of a criminal street gang
for the purpose of the commission of: robbery; unlawful homicide or manslaughter; the sale,
possession for sale, transportation, manufacture, offer for sale or offer to manufacture controlled
substances; shooting at an inhabited dwelling or occupied motor vehicle; discharging or
permitting the discharge of a firearm from a motor vehicle; arson; the intimidation of witnesses
and victims; grand theft; burglary; rape; looting; money laundering; kidnapping; mayhem;
aggravated mayhem; torture; felony extortion; felony vandalism; carjacking; or sale, delivery or
transfer of a firearm. As used in this chapter, "criminal street gang" means any ongoing
organization, association or group of three (3) or more persons, whether formal or informal,
having as one (1) of its primary activities the commission of one (1) or more of the criminal acts
enumerated above, having a common name or common identifying sign or symbols, and whose
members individually or collectively engage in or have engaged in a pattern of criminal gang
activity;

X. Making or emitting any noise uncomfortable to or annoying to a reasonable person;

Y. Maintenance of any tree, shrub, or other vegetation such that it impairs passage along a public
sidewalk, impairs the ability of drivers to see any traffic sign, impairs the ability of drivers to see
other traffic, or blocks any street light;

Z. Maintenance of any sidewalk with a crack or hole of over one (1) inch displacement or
otherwise in a condition preventing safe passage of pedestrians, wheelchairs or strollers.

AA. It is unlawful, and it shall be a public nuisance for any person owning, leasing, occupying or
having charge or possession of any premises or property in the city to maintain a medical
cannabis dispensary upon such premises or property.

1. A medical cannabis dispensary is defined as any place, location, building or
establishment where medical cannabis is traded, exchanged, sold, distributed or cultivated
which would olhen/vise require a business license, home occupation permit, or any other use
permit to conduct similar type activities.

2. Notwithstanding the prohibition in subparagraph 1 of this subsection, medical cannabis
collectives and cooperatives formed in a manner consistent with California law and the
California Attorney General's Guidelines for the Security and Non-Diversion of Marijuana
Grown for Medical Use issued in August 2008 shall be permitted to operate provided they do
not sell, exchange, trade, distribute or cultivate medical marijuana in a manner prohibited by
subsection A of this section, and that they do not exchange payment or gift in the form of
money for such medical marijuana.

19.04.040 Nuisance unlawful.

Every nuisance condition found to exist on any premises is declared to be unlawful. In addition to
all other remedies available to the City, whether criminal, civil, at law or in equity, any nuisance
may be abated by the enforcement officer. Police or Fire Department personnel, or any other

82573.00023\27169814.1

215



Winters Municipal Code Page IIPB
Title 19 NUISANCE ABATEMENT

appropriate City staff as designated by the City Manager In the manner provided in this chapter or
in any other manner provided by law.

19.04.050 Property owner responsibilities.
It shall be the duty of the owner, and of the responsible party occupying or having charge or
control of any parcel of land, improved or unimproved, to maintain such parcel of land free of any
nuisance and/or nuisance conditions at all times. The same responsibility extends to the public
rights-of-way or public land, related to any vehicle, vessel, structure, machinery, container,
refuse, debris or other item found to be or having been under the charge or control of a property
owner, responsible party, or last registered or documented owner. Any owner or responsible party
shall be responsible for the removal or comection of any nuisance or nuisance conditions and the
costs for such removal or correction.

19.04.060 Relationship of parts of chapter.
The remedies provided in this chapter are cumulative to each other. However, in the discretion of
the enforcement officer, the procedures of Chapter 8.08 of this Code may be utilized to abate
abandoned vehicles and the procedures of Chapter 8.12 of this Code may be used to abate
weeds. In the discretion of the enforcement officer, the administrative citation procedure included
in this chapter may be used either in addition to, or in lieu of, the other provisions of this chapter.

19.04.070 Relationship to uniform codes.
The remedies provided in this chapter are cumulative to those provided by the Winters uniform
codes. They are in addition to any remedies or "notice and order" which may be issued under any
of the Winters uniform codes {including, without limitation by reason of enumeration, the Winters
Housing Code, the Winters Fire Code, the Winters Building Code and the Uniform Code for the
Abatement of Dangerous Buildings).

19.04.080 Relationship to remainder of City Code.
The remedies provided in this chapter are cumulative and in addition to any other remedy
provided in this code, by law, or in equity,

19.04.090 Attorneys'fees.
A. Notwithstanding anything in this code to the contrary, the city may only recover Its attorneys'
fees in any administrative proceeding or special proceeding commenced by the city to abate a
public nuisance, to enjoin violation of any provision of this code, including its adopted codes, or to
collect a civil debt owing to the city, if the city elects, at the initiation of that individual action or
proceeding, to seek recovery of its own attorneys' fees. In these cases, the prevailing party shall
be entitled to recover all costs incurred therein, including reasonable attorneys' fees and costs of
suit. In no action, administrative proceeding or special proceeding shall an award of attorneys'
fees to a prevailing party exceed the amount of reasonable attorneys' fees incurred by the city in
the action or proceeding,

B. The city shall be considered a prevailing party entitled to attorneys' fees under subsection A
when it can demonstrate that;

1. Its lawsuit was the catalyst motivating the defendant to provide the primary relief
sought;

2. The lawsuit was meritorious and achieved its result by "threat of victory;" and
3. The city reasonably attempted to settle the litigation before filing the lawsuit.

19.04.100 Severability.
If any part, section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase or portion of this chapter is. for any
reason, held to be invalid, ineffective or unconstitutional by the decisions of any court of

82S73.00023\27169814.1

216



Winters Municipal Code Page 12/23
Title 19 NUISANCE ABATEMENT

competent jurisdiction, such decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions of this
chapter. The City Council hereby declares that it would have adopted this chapter, and any part,
section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase or portion of this chapter, irrespective of the fact
that any one (1) or more parts, sections, subsections, sentences, clauses, phrases or portions of
this chapter are judicially determined to be invalid, ineffective or unconstitutional.

Chapter 19.06. Nuisance Abatement Procedure

19.06.010 Notice to abate nuisance conditions.
A. When the enforcement officer finds that a nuisance condition exists upon any premises in the
City, he/she may, or upon the direction of the City Council shall, serve a notice to abate upon the
owner or responsible party in possession or having control of the premises upon which the
condition exists, directing him/her to abate or cause the nuisance condition(s) upon the premises
to be abated on or before a specified compliance date. The notice shall also state that the
responsible party may file a written request for a hearing with the city clerk to dispute the alleged
conditions within fifteen (15) days of the notice.

B. The enforcement officer shall post one (1) copy of the notice in a conspicuous place on the
property in question and shall deliver one (1) copy of the notice to the owner or responsible party
in possession or control of the property upon which the nuisance condition exists either in person
or by certified mail, with a return receipt requested.

C. The failure of the owner or responsible party to actually receive the notice shall not affect in any
manner the validity of any proceedings pursuant to this chapter.

D. The notice shall be posted and delivered as set forth in subsection B of this section, at least ten
(10) calendar days before the time and date of the hearing scheduled within the notice if
personally delivered, or fifteen (15) calendar days if mailed.

E. In the event the responsible party fails to appeal the notice, the nuisance conditions shall be
deemed confirmed. Such failure shall also constitute a failure to exhaust available administrative
remedies.

19.06.020 Manner of conducting abatement hearing.
In the event a hearing is timely requested pursuant to Section 19.06.010, the hearing shall be
conducted pursuant to the following procedures:

A. At the time and place designated in the notice of hearing, the hearing officer shall hear and
consider all relevant evidence, including but not limited to applicable staff reports, oral evidence,
physical evidence and documentary evidence regarding the alleged nuisance, and proposed
method of abatement. The hearing may be continued from time to time.

B. Failure of the owner or responsible party to appear at the hearing after notice has been served
shall be deemed a waiver of the right to a hearing and an admission by the owner or responsible
party of the existence of the nuisance condition charged. In the event of such failure to appear, the
hearing officer may order that the nuisance condition be abated by the enforcement officer. Such
failure to appear shall also constitute a failure to exhaust available administrative remedies.

C. The City shall bear the burden of proof to demonstrate, by a preponderance of the evidence,
that a nuisance exists and that the proposed mechanism for abatement is appropriate. The City
need not demonstrate that the proposed mechanism for abatement is either the most appropriate
or least expensive.

82573.00023\27169814.1

217



Winters Municipal Code
Title 19 NUISANCE ABATEMENT

D. The hearing shall not be conducted according to the formal rules of evidence. Any relevant
evidence shall be admitted if it is the type of evidence on which reasonable persons are
accustomed to rely in the conduct of serious affairs, regardless of the existence of any common
law or statutory rule which might make improper the admission of such evidence over objection in
civil actions in courts of competent jurisdiction in this State. However, irrelevant or unduly
repetitious evidence may be excluded.

E. Prior to conclusion of the hearing, if the owner or responsible party is present, the hearing
officer may request the owner or responsible party to sign a consent to enter and perform work.
The permission given shall be used only if the nuisance condition is determined to exist and is not
abated by the schedule of correction specified in the hearing officer's decision.

F. If the owner or responsible party does not provide written consent, entry onto the property may
be made by obtaining verbal permission from the owner or a responsible party, or by means of an
inspection warrant, or by any other lawful manner.

19.06.030 Issuance of decision findings and order.
A. VVithin ten (10) days after the conclusion of the hearing, the hearing officer shall issue a written
decision. The decision shall set forth the factual findings made by the hearing officer, a conclusion
as to whether a nuisance condition exists, the manner of abatement, including an order that such
nuisance (if one is found to exist) be abated by the City, the amount of administrative costs
imposed, if any, and a schedule of correction or the date by which the abatement shall be
completed.

B. If the hearing officer determines that a nuisance exists which has not been corrected within the
time period specified in the notice to abate nuisance conditions, the hearing officer shall so find in
the decision, and may include in the decision any or all of the following:

1. An order to correct, including a schedule of comection where appropriate;

2. An order to pay administrative costs as provided in Section 19.06.060.

C. Failure to issue a decision in ten (10) days shall not affect the validity of such decision.

D. The decision shall be mailed by certified mail with return receipt requested to the owner and
shall be mailed to the enforcement officer. A copy of a summary of the decision and any order it
contains shall also be posted on the property by the enforcement officer in a conspicuous
location.

19.08.040 Abatement by enforcement officer if nuisance is not abated.
Upon receipt of the hearing officer's decision (or following an appeal if an appeal has been taken
from the hearing officer's decision) if (A) no schedule of correction has been issued or (B) upon
the failure of the property owner to comply with such schedule if a schedule was included, if the
nuisance condition has not been abated the enforcement officer shall forthwith abate, or cause to
be abated, the nuisance condition upon the premises. The enforcement officer is authorized to
enter upon private property for this purpose, consistent with the provisions of the U.S.
Constitution.

The cost of abatement shall become a personal obligation of the property owner and responsible
party and may be collected in any legal manner, expressly including as a lien or special
assessment pursuant to the procedures set forth in this chapter.

82573.00023\27169814.1

218



Winters Municipal Code Pagg 14/23
Tide 19 NUISANCE ABATEMENT

19.06.050 Abatement by owner/responsible party.
A. Any owner or responsible party may, at his/her own expense and prior to the scheduled
abatement hearing, abate a declared nuisance condition in accordance with the provisions of the
notice sent by the enforcement officer; provided, that all necessary permits are first obtained. If
the enforcement officer determines that the nuisance condition has been abated prior to the
hearing, the hearing proceedings shall be terminated.

B. Any owner or responsible party may request the City to abate a declared nuisance condition on
his/her property. However, the owner or responsible party making the request shall be
responsible for the payment of all abatement costs incurred by the City. The request for the City to
perform the abatement shall be in writing and include a written consent to enter and perform work.
Any such request shall be deemed an agreement to pay for the costs of such abatement and an
agreement that such costs may be collected as a lien upon the property. The abatement hearing
proceedings shall thereafter be terminated.

19.06.060 Liability for abatement costs.
A. In addition to liability for the costs of abatement itself pursuant to Section 19.06.060, the owner
and/or responsible party shall also be liable for any expenses and administrative costs incurred by
the City, County or any related agency incurred subsequent to the initial inspection and
identification of the nuisance.

B. The administrative costs may include any and all costs incurred by the City in connection with
the matter before the hearing officer, including but not limited to costs of investigation, staffing
costs incurred in preparation for the hearing and for the hearing itself, and costs for all
reinspections necessary to enforce the notice to abate nuisance conditions.

C. In the event that the city is entitled to recover its attorneys' fees and costs pursuant to Section
19.04.080, such fees and costs shall be collected at the same time and pursuant to the same
procedures as administrative costs pursuant to this section.

D. The enforcement officer or other authorized city official shall keep an itemized report of the
costs incurred by the city in the abatement of any public nuisance in addition to any accrued fees
and penalties due. The responsible party may be invoiced for the total. If payment is not
received, the itemized report shall be submitted in writing to the city clerk no sooner than twenty
(20) days of the invoice date. Any such report may include the abatement costs, fees and
penalties for any number of properties and abatements, whether or not such properties are
contiguous. In the~event, the invoice is not paid within thirty (30) days, the City may collect all
such costs, penalties and interest through a lien or special assessment under sections 19.06.080
and 19.06.090.

19.06.070 Report of abatement costs.
A. In the event a nuisance is abated by the enforcement officer (either utilizing City forces or by
contracting with a third person), the enforcement officer shall keep an itemized list of costs
including but not limited to hearing costs, reinspection fees, posting of notices, and costs for
equipment, material, City staff time and contractor's costs incurred by the City from the time of
initial inspection and identification of the nuisance condition until completion of the abatement by
the City or by the owner or responsible party. Once the abatement is completed, the enforcement
officer shall provide a report of the total abatement costs to the Finance Department. The total
abatement costs shall Include those costs ordered to be paid by the hearing officer but remaining
unpaid.

82573.00023\27169814.1

219



Winters Municipal Code pag^ 15/23
Title 19 NUISANCE ABATEMENT

B. The Finance Department shall mail to the owner or responsible party an itemized invoice
indicating the total abatement costs due,

C. The owner or responsible party for the property shall pay the abatement costs within thirty (30)
caiendar days from the date on the invoice unless an extension of time in which to pay has been
granted by the City Manager in writing.

82573.00023\27169814.1

220



Winters Municipal Code Page ig/23
Title 19 NUISANCE ABATEMENT

19.06.080 Lien procedure.
In the event the City decides to collect abatement costs as a lien, It shall impose such lien
pursuant to this section:
A. Upon receipt of the itemized report, the city clerk, or his or her designee, shall serve notice of
the lien in the same manner as summons in a civil action in accordance with Code of Civil
Procedure section 415.10 etseq. If the owner of record, after diligent search cannot be found,
the notice may be served by posting a copy thereof in a conspicuous place upon the property for
a period of ten (10) days and publication thereof in a newspaper of general circulation in Yolo
County. The period of notice commences upon the first day of publication and terminates at the
end of the tenth day, including therein the first day. Publication shall be made on each day on
which the newspaper is published during the ten (10) day period.

B. The notice shall infonn the owner of the pending lien and inform the property owner of the
public hearing where the city council will consider imposing the itemized report as a lien against
the property. The hearing shall be conducted no less than ten (10) days from service of the
notice.

C. At the hearing and after considering the relevant evidence, the city council may adopt a
resolution confirming the itemized report and directing the city clerk to record a lien against the
property in the Yolo County recorder's office and, from the date of recording, shall have the force,
effect and priority of a judgment lien.

D. The lien shall identify:
1. The amount of the lien;
2. The city as the agency on whose behalf the lien is imposed;
3. The date of the abatement order or citation;
4. The street address, legal description and assessor's parcel number of the parcel

on which the lien is imposed; and
5. The name and address of the recorded owner of the parcel.

E. In the event that the lien is discharged, released or satisfied, through either payment or
foreclosure, notice of the discharge containing the information specified in subse^ion D shall be
recorded by the city clerk.

F. A lien may be foreclosed by an action brought by the city for a money judgment.

G. The city may recover from the property owner any costs incurred in the processing and
recording of the lien and providing notice to the property owner as part of its foreclosure action to
enforce the lien.

19.08.090 Special assessment procedure.
In the event the City decides to collect abatement costs as a special assessment, it shall impose
such special assessment pursuant to this section:

A. The enforcement officer or other authorized city official shall keep an itemized report of the
costs Incurred by the city in the abatement of any public nuisance in addition to any accrued fees
and penalties due. The property owner may be invoiced for the total, if payment is not received,
the itemized report shall be submitted in writing to the city clerk no sooner than fifteen (15) days of
the invoice date. Any such report may include the abatement costs, fees and penalties for any
number of properties and abatements, whether or not such properties are contiguous.

82573.00023\27169814.1

221



Winters Municipal Code Page 17/23
Title 19 NUISANCE ABATEMENT

B. If the invoice is not timely paid, the city clerk shall provide written notice to the property owner
by certified mail, if the property owner's identity can be determined from the county assessor's or
county recorder's records. The notice shall inform the owner of the pending special assessment,
including the information set forth in subsection C, and the dale, time and location of the public
hearing where the city council will consider imposing the itemized report as a special assessment
against the property. The hearing shall be conducted no less than ten (10) days from service of
the notice.

C. At the hearing and after considering the relevant evidence, the city council may adopt a
resolution confirming the itemized report and assessing the report as a special assessment
against the property. The city clerk shall then provide all documentation necessary to the county
to enter such assessment. After entry, the assessment may be collected at the same time and in
the same manner as ordinary municipal taxes are collected, and shall be subject to the same
penalties and the same procedure and sale in case of delinquency as provided for ordinary
municipal taxes. The property may be sold after three years by the tax collector for unpaid
delinquent assessments. The tax collector's power of sale shall not be affected by the failure of
the property owner to receive notice. All laws applicable to the levy, collection and enforcement
of municipal taxes shall be applicable to the special assessment. However, if any real property
to which the cost of abatement relates has been transferred or conveyed to a bona fide purchaser
for value, or if a lien of a bona fide encumbrancer for value has been created and attaches
thereon, prior to the date on which the first installment of the taxes would become delinquent, then
the cost of abatement shall not result in a lien against the real property but instead shall be
transferred to the unsecured roll for collection.

D. Subject to the requirements applicable to the sale of property pursuant to Section 3691 of the
Revenue and Taxation Code, the city may conduct a sale of vacant residential developed
property for which the payment of that assessment is delinquent.

E. Notices or instruments relating to the special assessment shall be entitled to recordation.

19.06.100 Order for treble costs of abatement

Upon entry of a second or subsequent civil or criminal judgment within a two-year period finding
that an owner of property is responsible for a condition that may be abated in accordance with the
provisions of this chapter, except for conditions abated pursuant to section 17980 of the Health &
Safety Code, relating to abandoned buildings, the court may order the owner to pay treble the
costs of the abatement, as authorized by Government Code section 38773.7. Costs of
abatement shall include, without limitation by reason of enumeration, all administrative costs of
the city.

Chapter 19.08. Summary Abatement

19.08.010 Summary abatement
A. Any nuisance which the Building Official, or Fire Chief, determines is immediately or potentially
dangerous to the life, health or safety of the occupants of the property or to the public may be
summarily abated in accordance with the procedures set forth in this article.

B. Actions taken to abate immediately or potentially dangerous nuisances may include, but are
not limited to, repair or removal of the condition creating the danger and/or the restriction from use
or occupancy of the property on which the condition exists or any other abatement action
determined by the Building Official or Fire Chief to be necessary. Where a residential rental

82S73.00023\27169814.1

222



Winters Municipal Code Page 18/23
Title 19 NUISANCE ABATEMENT

property is involved, this may require the moving and relocation of the occupants by the owner
and/or responsible party to other habitable temporary or permanent accommodations. Any
temporary accommodations will be maintained by the owner and/or responsible party until the
corections are done to the vacated residential property so that it is habitable and the occupants
are returned.

C. When summary abatement is deemed necessary by Building Official or Fire Chief, it may be
ordered only if the abatement order is confirmed by the City Manager.

D. Notice of the summary abatement shall be provided to the owner or responsible party as
provided for in this chapter the same day or as soon as practical. Such notice shall include a
provision authorizing the owner or responsible party to dispute the existence of the nuisance
conditions before the hearing officer. Any request for an appeal shall be filed in writing with the
city clerk within fifteen (15) days of the notice and shall be conducted in the same manner as all
applicable procedures under Chapter19.06.

E. The costs and expenses for summary abatement, if not paid by the property owner within thirty
(30) days of the date of the invoice, shall be made a lien on the property by the City Council and
shall be collected pursuant to the procedures set forth in section 19.06.060 of this chapter for the
assessment and collection of liens.

Chapter 19.10. Administrative Citations

19.10.010 Title of article and authority.
This article shall be known as the "administrative citations ordinance." It is adopted pursuant to
Cai. Gov't Code § 53069.4 authorizing local agencies, by ordinance, to make violation of any
ordinance of the agency subject to administrative fine or penalty.

19.10.020 Applicability.
Administrative citations shall be in addition to all other remedies, whether criminal, civil or
equitable, which may be pursued by the City to address any violation of this code.

19.10.030 Entry and Inspection.
An enforcement officer may enter and inspect any property or premises at all times to perfonn any
duty imposed upon him or her by this article whenever the enforcement officer has cause to
believe a violation of this code is occurring: provided, that:

A. The enforcement officer shall present proper credentials, state the reason for entry and request
entry from the owner or occupant.

B. If entry is denied, the enforcement officer may seek a court ordered inspection warrant if cause
exists pursuant to Cal. Civ. Proc. Code § 1822.50 et seq.

C. If entry is denied, the enforcement officer shall have recourse to every remedy provided by law
to secure entry.

D. The enforcement officer shall make a reasonable effort to locate the owner of unoccupied
property or premises, inform the owner of the reasons for entry and request entry.

E. The enforcement officer shall not enter any property or premises in the absence of permission
to enter, unless an inspection warrant has been issued by a court of competent jurisdiction.

82573.00023\27169814.1

223



Winters Municipal Code Page 19/23
Title 19 NUISANCE ABATEMENT

19.10.040 First offense warning.
A. Whenever an enforcement officer determines that a violation of any section of this code has
occurred, the enforcement officer may Issue a first offense warning to any person responsible for
the violation. The first offense warning shall be served as a prerequisite to the issuance of a first
administrative citation and serves as a written warning of responsibility. The first offense warning
requires immediate action by the person responsible for the violation to correct the violation.

B. The first offense warning shall include the following:

1. The code section(s) violated.

2. How the violation can be corrected.

3. A date by which the violation can reasonably be corrected, after which an administrative
citation may be issued if the violation is not fully corrected.

C. In accordance with Cai. Gov't Code § 53069.4, no person will be assessed a fine under this
article for a continuing violation pertaining to a building, plumbing, electrical or similar structural or
zoning issue that does not create an immediate danger to the public health or safety without first
receiving a first offense warning and a reasonable opportunity to con^ect or otherwise remedy the
violation. In such circumstances, the stated period available to correct the violation prior to the
issuance of an administrative citation must be appropriate to the violation as determined by the
enforcement officer, but in no event less than seven (7) days. If, after expiration of the correction
period stated in the first offense warning, the violation is not corrected, the enforcement officer
may issue an administrative citation.

D. Any person receiving a first offense warning for a continuing violation may file a written petition
with the City Clerk for consideration by the City Manager for an extension of time to correct the
violation: provided that the written petition is received before the end of the correction period set
forth in the first offense warning. The City Manager may grant an extension of time to correct the
violation if the person requesting the extension of time has supplied sufficient evidence showing
that the correction cannot reasonably be made within the correction period set forth in the first
offense warning.

E. The requirement of a reasonable opportunity to correct a violation does not apply in instances
where, in the discretion of the City Manager, a violation poses an immediate danger to the public
health or safety.

19.10.050 Administrative citation.

A. Whenever an enforcement officer charged with the enforcement of a provision of this code
(including those uniform codes adopted herein by reference) determines that a violation of that
provision has occurred, the enforcement officer shall have the authority to issue an administrative
citation to the person or entity responsible for the violation.

B. Each administrative citation shall contain the following information:

1. The date of the violation;

2. The address or a definite description of the location where the violation occurred;

3. The code section violated and a description of the violation;

4. The amount of the fine for the code violation;

82573.00023\27169814.1

224



Winters Municipal Code Page 20/23
Title 19 NUISANCE ABATEMENT

5. A description of the fine payment process, Including a description of the time within which
and the place to which the fine must be paid;

6. An order prohibiting the continuation or repeated occurrence of the ordinance violation
described in the administrative citation;

7. A description of the administrative citation review process, including the time within which
the administrative citation may be contested and the place from which a request for hearing
form may be obtained;

8. The name and signature of the citing enforcement officer and the date the administrative
citation is issued;

9. A description of the deposit waiver process, including the time within which a request for
deposit waiver may be made and the place from which the request for hearing form may be
obtained.

19.10.060 Amount of fines.

A. The amounts of the fines for each code violation shall be as set forth in a schedule of fines
established by resolution of the City Council.

B. The schedule of fines may specify any increased fines for repeat violations of the same code
provision by the same person within thirty-six (36) months from the date of a prior administrative
citation.

C. The schedule of fines shall specify the amount of any late payment charge imposed for the
payment of a fine after its due date.

19.10.070 Payment of the fine.
A. The fine shall be paid to the City of Winters within thirty (30) days from the date of the
administrative citation.

B. Any administrative citation fine paid pursuant to subsection A of this section shall be refunded
in accordance with Section 19.10.110(D) if it is detemiined, after a hearing, that the person
charged in the administrative citation either was not responsible for the violation or that there was
no violation as charged in the administrative citation.

19.10.080 Hearing request
A. Any recipient of an administrative citation may contest either or both that there was a violation
as stated in the administrative citation or that he or she is the responsible party by completing a
request for hearing form and returning it to the City Clerk within thirty (30) days from the date of
the administrative citation, together with either an advance deposit of the fine or an approved
request for a deposit waiver.

B. A request for hearing form may be obtained from the City Clerk.

C. The person requesting the hearing shall be notified by the City Clerk of the time and place set
for the hearing at least ten (10) days prior to the date of the hearing.

D. If the enforcement officer submits an additional written report concerning the administrative
citation to the hearing officer, for consideration at the hearing, then a copy of this report also shall
be served on the person requesting the hearing, at least five (5) days prior to the date of the
hearing.

82573.00023\27169814.1

225



Winters Municipal Code Pa„g oxirx
Title 19 NUISANCE ABATEMENT

19.10.090 Deposit waiver.
A. Any person who requests a hearing who is financially unable to make the advance deposit of
the fine as required in Section 19.10.080(A) may file a request for deposit waiver.

B. The request shall be filed with the Finance Director within ten (10) days of the date of the
administrative citation on a deposit waiver application form available from the City Clerk. The
Finance Director shall either issue or decline to issue the deposit waiver within five (5) days.

C. The Finance Director shall issue the deposit waiver if the cited party submits to the Finance
Director a sworn affidavit, or declaration under penalty of perjury, together with any supporting
documents or materials, demonstrating to the satisfaction of the Finance Director the person's
actual financial inability to deposit with the City of Winters the full amount of the fine in advance of
the hearing.

D. The Finance Director shall issue a written determination listing the reasons for his or her
detennination to issue or not issue the deposit waiver. The written determination of the Finance
Director shall be final, and shall be served upon the person who applied for the deposit waiver, the
enforcement officer and the City Clerk.

19.10.100 Hearing procedure.
A. No hearing to contest an administrative citation shall be held unless the fine has been
deposited in advance in accordance with Section 19.10.080(A) or a deposit waiver has been
Issued in accordance with Section 19.10.090.

8. The hearing shall be set by the City Clerk for a date that is not less than fifteen (15) days and
not more than sixty (60) days from the date that the request for hearing is filed in accordance with
the provisions of this chapter.

C. The hearing officer may continue the hearing and request additional information from the
enforcement officer or the recipient of the administrative citation prior to issuing a written decision.
The hearing officer shall ensure an adequate record of the hearing is made.

D. The City shall bear the burden of proof, by a preponderance of the evidence, that the violation
occurred as charged and that the person to whom an administrative citation was issued is
responsible for the violation. The City may be represented by the enforcement officer or be
represented by counsel.

E. The recipient of the administrative citation may cross-examine the enforcement officer or any
other witness against him or her, and may present such evidence as he or she may have. The
recipient of the administrative citation may be represented by counsel.

F. The formal rules of evidence shall not apply. The hearing officer may rely upon such evidence
as he or she believes reasonable persons would rely upon in the conduct of their affairs. Any
witnesses, including the enforcement officer and the recipient of the administrative citation, shall
testify under oath.

G. The administrative citation and any additional report submitted by the enforcement officer shall
constitute prima facie evidence of the respective facts contained on those documents.

19.10.110 Hearing officer's decision.
A. After considering ail of the testimony and evidence submitted at the hearing, the hearing officer
shali issue a written decision to uphold or cancel the administrative citation and shall list in the
decision the reasons for that decision. The decision of the hearing officer shall be final.

82573.00023\27169814.1

226



Winters Municipal Code Paeg 22/23
Title 19 NUISANCE ABATEMENT

B. If the hearing officer determines that the administrative citations should be upheld, then the fine
amount on deposit with the City shall be retained by the City.

C. If the hearing officer determines that the administrative citation should be upheld and the fine
has not been deposited pursuant to an advance deposit hardship waiver, the hearing officer shall
set forth in the decision a payment schedule for the fine.

D. If the hearing officer determines that the administrative citation should be canceled or reduced
and the fine was deposited with the City, then the City shall promptly refund the amount of the
deposited fine or excess, as the case may be, together with interest at the average rate earned on
the City's investment portfolio for the period of time that the fine amount was held by the City.

E. The recipient of the administrative citation shall be served with a copy of the hearing officer's
written decision.

19.10.120 Late payment penalties and interest.

Any person who fails to pay any fine imposed pursuant to the provisions of this article on or before
the date that fine is due also shall be liable for the payment of a late payment penalty in the
amount of ten percent (10%) of the fine. Thereafter, the amount of the fine, and the penalty, shall
accrue interest at ten percent (10%) per annum until paid.

19.10.130 Recovery of administrative citation fines and costs.
The City may collect any past due administrative citation fine or late payment penalty and interest
by use of all available legal means. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, all such fines
or late payments shall constitute civil debts and may be recovered in an action at law, or, where
the violation relates to or occurred upon real property owned by the person to whom an
administrative citation was issued, a lien may be filed by the City against such real property.

19.10.140 Right to judicial review.
A. The failure of the party contesting the administrative citation to appear at the administrative
citation hearing shall result in a forfeiture of the fine and shall constitute a failure to exhaust
administrative remedies.

B. Subject to the provisions of subsection A of this section, any person aggrieved by an
administrative decision of a hearing officer on an administrative citation may obtain review of the
administrative decision by filing an appeal in a court of competent jurisdiction within twenty (20)
days after service of the decision in accordance with the provisions of Cal. Gov't Code §
53G69.4(b)(2).

19.10.150 Notices.

A. The administrative citation and all notices required to be given by this article shall be served on
the responsible party as follows:

1. The citation and any notices may be served upon the responsible party in person by either
the enforcement officer, the City Clerk or any police officer of the City of Winters.

2. The citation and notices may be served by depositing same in the United States Postal
Service mail, first class mail, postage prepaid, at Winters, California, and addressed to party
to be cited at the address of that party known to the enforcement officer or the City Clerk, or,
if that address is not known, as that address appears on the last equalized assessment roll of
Yolo County if the party to be served with the citation or notice is the owner of real property
within the City and that real property is the situs of the ordinance violation charged in the
citation.

82573.00023\27169814.1

227



Winters Municipal Code page 23/23
Title 19 NUISANCE ABATEMENT

B. Failure to receive any notice in this article does not affect the validity of proceedings conducted
hereunder.

Chapter 19.12. Judicial Review

19.12.010 Rightof judicial review.
A. Except as otherwise provided in this title or by law, any person aggrieved by any administrative
decision of a hearing officer pursuant to this chapter may obtain judicial review of the
administrative decision in the Superior Court by filing with the court a petition for writ of mandate
pursuant to Gal. Civ. Proc. Code § 1094.6.

B. This section does not apply to decisions of the hearing officer relating to administrative fines
pursuant to Chapter 19.10 of this title. Such decisions may be appealed pursuant to Section
8.32.692 and Cal. Gov't Code § 53069.4.

4. Severabilitv. If any section, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance or the
application thereof to any entity, person or circumstance is held for any reason to be invalid, or
unconstitutional, such invalidity or unconstitutionality shall not affect other provisions or
applications of this Ordinance which can be given effect without the invalid provision or
application, and to this end the provisions of this ordinance are declared to be severable. The City
Council of the City of Winters hereby declare that they would have adopted this Ordinance and
each section, sentence, clause or phrase thereof, irrespective of the fact that any one or more
section, subsections, sentences, clauses or phrases be declared invalid or unconstitutional.

5. Effective Date. This ordinance shall take effect thirty (30) days following Its adoption.

6. Publication. The City Clerk shall certify to the adoption of this Ordinance. Not later than
fifteen (15) days following the passage of this Ordinance, the Ordinance, or a summary thereof,
along with the names of the City Council members voting for and against the Ordinance, shall be
published in a newspaper of general circulation in the City of Winters.

INTRODUCED at a regular meeting on the day of . 2016 and PASSED AND
ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Winters City Council, County of Yolo, State of California, on
the day of , 2016 by the following roll call vote;

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

Cecilia Aguiar-Curry, Mayor
ATTEST:

Nanci G. Mills, City Clerk

82573.00023\27169814.1

228



CITY OF

V e/ t/ ^ f f/

Est. 1875

SUCCESSOR AGENCY
STAFF REPORT

TO: Honorable Chair and Boardmembers

DATE; October 18, 2016

THROUGH: John W. Donlevy, Jr., City Manager

FROM: Shelly Gunby, City of Winters Director of Financial Management

SUBJECT: Proposed Issuance of Refunding Bonds and Related Actions

RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends that the Successor Agency Board, by minute motion:

• Authorize the preparation of documents necessary for the issuance of bonds to
refund the outstanding tax allocation bonds issued by the former Winters
Community Development Agency (the "Former Agency")

•  Designate the City of Winter's City Manager as the Executive Director of the
Successor Agency and the City's Director of Financial Management as the
Financer Officer of the Successor Agency, and authorize the Executive Director
and the Finance Officer to execute contracts with consultants necessary to
proceed with the preparation of documents required for the refunding.

BACKGROUND

To finance redevelopment projects, the Former Agency issued a series of bonds in
2004 (the "2004 Bonds") and a series of bonds in 2007 (the "2007 Bonds"). There are
still outstanding $4,650,000 in principal amount of 2004 Bonds and $9,855,000 in
principal amount of 2007 Bonds. In light of favorable bond market conditions, the
Successor Agency is in a position to issue bonds (the "Refunding Bonds") to refund the
remaining 2004 Bonds and 2007 Bonds to achieve debt service savings.Attached is a
preliminary analysis provided by NHA Advisors (the "Preliminary Refunding Analysis").

229



As shown in the Preliminary Refunding Analysis, based on current market conditions,
the refunding is expected to generate over $2.3 miilion in aggregate gross savings ($1.8
million when cash reserve of 2004 Bonds is deducted). This equates to approximateiy
$100,000 of average annual savings.

The 2004 Bonds and 2007 Bonds, when issued, were secured by a pledge of tax
increment revenues received by the Former Agency. After the Former Agency's
dissolution, tax increment revenues are now deposited in the Redevelopment Property
Tax Trust Fund ("RPTTF"). The Successor Agency pays principal and interest on the
2004 Bonds and the 2007 Bonds from the RPTTF disbursements received pursuant to
each Recognized Obligation Payment Scheduie ("ROPS"), as approved by the
Oversight Board and the State Department of Finance (the "DOF").

After issuance of the Refunding Bonds, the money saved because of the lowered debt
service payments will become additional RPTTF moneys available to the Successor
Agency to pay its enforceable obligations, as approved on the ROPS, or if not needed
for ROPS-approved obligations, for disipursement as "RPTTF residuals" to taxing
entitles (such as the City of Winters, the County, and the school districts) through the
semi-annual RPTTF distribution process. Based on historical RPTTF disbursement
information available from the County, the City receives approximately 23 percent of the
RPTTF residuals.

Before issuing any Refunding Bonds, the Successor Agency must also obtain the
Oversight Board's approval by resolution, and subsequent DOF's approval of the
Oversight Board resolution. Subject to the Successor Agency Board's approval. Staff
will present the relevant resolution to the Oversight Board for consideration in early or
mid-November. After the Oversight Board action. Staff will submit the Oversight Board
resolution to the DOF. By law, the DOF will have an initial 5 business day review
period, during which the DOF will have the option to (and will likely) extend its review by
another 60 days. Based on the current financing schedule. Staff anticipates receiving
the DOF's approval in early January 2017. The pricing {i.e., the final determination of
the principal amount and interest rates of the Refunding Bonds) is expected to take
place in mid- to late January 2017, with the closing to occur in February 2017.

If the Successor Agency Board approves this request to proceed, the Staff will begin
working with the financing team participants to prepare the necessary preliminary
documentation for the issuance of the Refunding Bonds. This will include executing
agreements and engagement letters for the participants for their services.

The Refunding Bonds will be issued pursuant to an indenture, by and between the
Successor Agency and a bond trustee. The indenture is the key document that will
contain the contractual terms governing the Refunding Bonds and establish the funds
and accounts to be held by the bond trustee for the administration of the Refunding
Bonds. The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company ("BNY") currently serves as the
bond trustee for the 2004 Bonds and the 2007 Bonds. With the Successor Agency
Board's authorization to proceed. Staff will review whether to recommend the continued

230



use of BNY as the trustee for the Refunding Bonds or seek another bank to serve in
such role.

Aside from the bond trustee, key financing team participants for the refunding will
include: NHA Advisors LLC, to serve as the Municipal Advisor; Richards, Watson &
Gershon, A Professional Corporation, to act as the Bond Counsel and Disclosure
Counsel; Urban Futures, Incorporated, to act as the Fiscal Consultant and the
Dissemination Agent.

The Municipal Advisor will advise the Successor Agency with regard to the refunding
from a financial perspective. Bond Counsel will provide advice from a bond law
perspective, prepare the key legal documents for the transaction and. upon closing,
deliver its opinion regarding the legal validity of the Refunding Bonds. Disclosure
Counsel will assist the Successor Agency with the preparation of an official statement -
the document which will provide disclosure to investors regarding the terms, the source
of repayment and certain investment risks pertaining to the Refunding Bonds. Some of
the key information in the official statement will be based on a report by the Fiscal
Consultant. The Fiscal Consultant's report will provide historical data and projected
estimates for the property tax revenues {i.e., available RPTTF moneys) securing the
Refunding Bonds. So long as the Refunding Bonds remain outstanding, the Successor
Agency will be required to undertake continuing disclosure obligations - to file annual
report and notices of enumerated events - to make certain pertinent financial and credit
information available to investors. The Dissemination Agent will assist the Successor
Agency with respect to such filings.

The fixed costs of issuance for the Refunding Bonds (including compensation to the
Municipal Advisor, Bond and Disclosure Counsel, Fiscal Consultant and other costs
such as rating fees and printing costs for the official statement) are currently estimated
to be approximately $185,000. Other costs include fees paid to the underwriter and to
the bond insurance provider (assuming bond insurance provides financial benefit) and
will be negotiated closer to the time of bond pricing (estimated total of all costs is
$472,916 as shown on Exhibit A). All of the costs described above are expected to be
paid from proceeds of the Refunding Bonds upon closing. If, ultimately, the Refunding
Bonds are not issued, costs incurred for the consultants will be listed on a future ROPS,
and be paid subject to the DOF approval of the relevant ROPS line items. Because
these are Successor Agency's expenses, the City will not be liable for their payments.

By law, the Successor Agency cannot sell bonds directly to the investing public. In
order for the Refunding Bonds to be sold to the investment market, the Successor
Agency will also have to engage a bond undenwriter (the "Underwriter"). The
Underwriter will market the Refunding Bonds to potential investors, buy the Refunding
Bonds from the Successor Agency at closing, and then sell the Refunding Bonds to the
investors. Staff has begun to review qualifications of prospective firms and is expected
to report its recommendation for an Underwriter by the time of the Successor Agency
Board meeting. The Undenwriter will be compensated through an undenwriter's
discount, which will be deducted from the purchase price for the Refunding Bonds to be

231



paid by the Underwriter at closing. The underwriter's discount will be finalized when the
Successor Agency and the Underwriter sign a bond purchase agreement upon the
pricing of the Refunding Bonds (expected to occur in January, as described above).

If the Successor Agency Board authorizes Staff to proceed with the proposed refunding,
then future actions required by the Successor Agency Board will include:

(i) The adoption of a resolution (expected to be presented to the Board at a
November meeting) to authorize the issuance of the Refunding Bonds,
approval of the draft indenture, and request the Oversight Board to take
action to approve the Successor Agency's issuance of the Refunding
Bonds;

(ii) The adoption of a resolution (expected to be presented to the Board at a
December meeting) to approve the preliminary official statement,
continuing disclosure agreement, escrow agreement and bond purchase
agreement.

FISCAL IMPACT:

As shown in the Preliminary Refunding Analysis, the estimated debt service savings
from the refunding, based on bond market conditions as of end of September 2016, are
follows:

Outstanding
Principal to be
Refunded

Expected Gross
Debt Service

Savings from
Refunding

Average Annual
Savings

Net Present

Value Savings as
Percentage of

Refunded Bonds

$14,505,000 $2,300,000 $100,000 8.4%

The savings will become moneys available for the Successor Agency's enforceable
obligations, as approved on the ROPS or, if not needed for ROPS-approved obligations,
for disbursement to taxing entities (including the City) as RPTTF residuals through the
semi-annual RPTTF distribution process. Based on historical RPTTF disbursement
information available from the County, the City receives approximately 23 percent of the
residuals annually ($23,000 annually to the City's General Fund).

ATTACHMENTS:

EXHIBIT A - Summary of Savings

232



EXHIBIT A

SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE WINTERS COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

REFINANCING OF 2004 & 2007 TAX ALLOCATION BONDS SUMMARY OF SAVINGS

SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS

Sources of Funds:

Par Amount of Bonds $12,880,000
Premium $2,069,755
Transfers from Funds Held SS42.268

Total Sources $15,492,023

Uses of Funds:

Deposit to Escrow Fund $15,019,107
Costs of Issuance $472,916
Debt Service Reserve Fund

-

Total Uses $15,492,023

DEBT SERVICE SAVINGS SCHEDULE

Prior Gross Refunding Gross
Date Debt Service Debt Service Savings
2017 $935,064 $825,583 $109,481
2018 $954,539 $847,500 $107,039
2019 $967,339 $857,700 $109,639
2020 $978,189 $872,100 $106,089
2021 $993,789 $885,500 $108,289
2022 $1,006,902 $897,900 $109,002
2023 $1,023,714 $914,300 $109,414
2024 $1,038,924 $929,500 $109,424
2025 $1,047,412 $939,500 $107,912
2026 $1,064,574 $958,000 $106,574
2027 $1,079,644 $974,500 $105,144
2028 $1,092,934 $984,000 $108,934
2029 $1,109,079 $1,001,750 $107,329
2030 $1,128,184 $1,022,250 $105,934
2031 $1,134,938 $1,025,250 $109,688
2032 $1,154,872 $1,046,500 $108,372
2033 $1,172,311 $1,065,000 $107,311
2034 $1,187,256 $1,080,750 $106,506
2035 $1,203,288 $1,093,750 $109,538
2036 $1,221,025 $1,114,000 $107,025
2037 $1,240,675 $1,131,000 $109,675
2038 $1,257,000 $1,149,750 $107,250

TOTAL GROSS SAVINGS $2,375,566
Less: Old DSRF $(542,268)

Plus: New DSRF .

NET CASH FLOW SAVINGS $1,833,298

233


	Agenda - 10/18/2016 City Council Meeting
	Minutes - 10/4/2016 City Council Meeting
	Amendment #2-Larry Walker Associates Agmt 15-001
	Reso 2016-35-Amending Salary Schedules-CalPERS Audit Finding-Administrative Coordinator
	Reso 2016-36-Application for Youth Soccer and Recreation Development Program Grant Funds 
	Purchase of a Compressor for Jackhammer
	Selection of Consultant for Fee Study and Cost Allocation Plan
	Presentation by WJUSD Superintendent Todd Cutler, Ed.D., is under separate cover.
	Public Hearing & Introduction of Ord. 2016-10 Approving Various Amendments to Title 17, Zoning, in the Winters Municipal Code
	Public Hearing & Introduction of Ord. 2016-11 Approving Various Amendments to Title 19, Code Enforcement, in the Winters Municipal Code
	Successor Agency: Proposed Issuance of Refunding Bonds and Related Actions

